Friends Provident plc

Report and Accounts for the year ended
31 December 2006

UL

A48 03/05/2007 526
COMPANIES HOUSE

*A1BQ30OUX*
A32 19/04/2007 5
COMPANIES HOUSE

>
=
[ =]
N
24
2
I
'—

THY

Registered office. Pixham End, Dorking, Surrey, RH4 1QA
Incorporated company Itrmited by shares and registered in England number 4113107



ANNUAL REVIEW

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Annual Report & Accounts 2006

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

[T- - T - I R ]

10

12
12
13
14
15
16
17

18
18
19
20
21
22
23

24
24
25
26
27
28
29

30
30
32

35
36
38

Annual Review

Financiat Highlights

Chairman’s Staterneant

Group Chief Executive's Review
About the Friends Provident Group
Group aim and strategies

Cur three business segments

UK Life & Pensions

Our aim strategies and risks

Qur view of the market

How we are malang our strategies work
Key risks

Qur trading performance and outlook
Qur financial performance

International Life & Pensions

Qur aim, stratagies and nsks

Qur view of the market

How we are making our strategies work
Key nsks

Qur trading performancea and outlook
Qur financial performance

Asset Managemant

Qur aim strategies and nsks

Our view of the market

How we are making our strategies work
Key rnsks

Qur trading performance and outlook
QOur financial performance

Group Financtal Performance

Group praftability on the EEV basis
Group profitability on the IFRS basis
Shareholders’ equity

Cash generauen and ‘ong-lerm borrowings
Group finang:al strength

Prowisions

Conclustons and Outlook

Corporate Governance

40

44
44
a6

47
50

50
57
58
59
60

Corporate Social Responsibility Repaort

Directors and Managemaent
Board of directors
Executive management

Directors’ Report

Corporate Governance and
Committee Reporta

Corporate Governance Report
Audit and Complance Committee
Narmination Committee
With-Profits Committees
Remuneratuon Report of the Boarg

69
70
71
72
73

74
75

165
165
165
166

167

167

168
168

185
185
i86

190

191

Financial Statements

IFRS Financial Statements
Independant Auditor s report
Consclidated income staterment
Consohdated underlying profit
Consclidated balance sheet

Consolidated statement of recogrised
income and expensea

Consolidated cash flow statement
Notes to the consolidated accounts

EEV Supplementary Information
Statemnent of diractors’ responsibiliies
Independent Auditor’s report
Summary conschidated income
statement

Consolidated statement of recognised
Incoms and expanses

Consolidated movement in ordinary
shareholders eauity

Consolidated balance sheet
Notes to tha EEV results

Parent Company Accounts
Parent company balance sheet
Nates to the parent company accounts

Abbreviations and definttions

Sharehoider Information

Friends Provident Annual Report & Accounts 2006 1



ANNUAL REVIEW

Business segments financial highlights

LK i &8P Pensions
£4,162m | (£108m
Total new Contnbution to
business up % Emflls from new
{Note 1) usiness up 69%
£315m 1.9%
EEV underlying Retum on
profit befors tax | | embedded value
town 8% (Note 2} | |down from 3 4%
Total Life & Pensions
£7,024m | |£434m 9.9%
Total new EEV underlying Return on
business up 31% | |prafit before tax embedded value
(Nota 1) unchanged (Note2)| | down trom 11.2%
: ' : ' £1.8bn )
£204m £325m Excess capitat
Contnbution to IFRS underlying rESOUICES QVer
rofits from new | | profit before tax | |requirements
usiness up 42% | |up 136% {Nate 3| unchanged
£2,912m | |£96m £248m 36.5%
Total new Contrthution to Net revenues Operating margin
business up 2% rofits from new down 7% down from 44 1%
INote 1Y Eusmsss up 0%
Mg N
£119m | |19.8% £89m Underting
EEV underlying Return on Underlying cFmﬁt sarmings per
profit before tax embedded value before tax down | |share down 19%
up 12% {Nate 2) down from 21 5% 18% (Note 3 {Note 3
International Life & Pensions
£104bn
Funds under
management
down 21%

Asset Management*

*F&C Asset Management ple, a 52% owned
hsted sulsidiary
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Group financial highlights

Group

£509m

EEV underlying profit
before tax down 3%
iNate 2)

£398m

EEV profit before tax
down 3%

16.4p

EEV underlying earmings
per share up 1%
[Nota 2)

14.6p

EEV basic earnings
per share down 31%

£400m

[FRS underying profit
before tax up 79%
[Note 3}

£491m

IFRS profit before tax
from continuing operations
up 3%

17.9p

[FRS underlying
earmings per share np 103%
{Nota 3)

13.1p

IFRS basic eamings per
share from continuing
operations up 108%

1.85p

Dividend per share up 2%
{Nota 4}

23 times

Dividend cover up from
11 times
{Note 5)

£1.73

Pro forma embedded value
per share up 5%

19.0%

Total Shareholder Return
(FTSE 100 14 4%)
{Note 6!

Note 1 New business sales are reported on the Present Value of New Business Premums (PYNEBFP} basig which s defined as single prermiums
plus the expected present value of new Business regular premiums

Note 2 EEV underlying profit/earnings per share 13 based on expected invesiment rewurn and excludes i} amorusauon and impairment of Asset
Management acquired intzngible asseis (i) effect of economic assumpuan changes (i) nonecurnng items and 18 stated after deducting interest
payable on Stepup Tier one Insurance Capital Secuntes (STICS)

Note 3 IFRS undertyng profitfearnings per share 1s based on longer term investment return and axcludes (i) pelicyholder tax (n) returns attnbutable
e nminonty interests i policyholder funds {in) nonrecurning items §v) amorusaton and imparment of acqured intangible assets ang present value of
acquired in-force business and :s stated after deducung wterest payabla on Stepup Tier one Insurance Capaat Secunaes (STICS)

Note 4 Dividend per share includes the intenm dvidend paid in November 2008 and the proposed final dividend payable in May 2007 which 18
subject 10 approval at the Annual General Meeting

Note 5 Dividend cover is based on iFRS underlying profit after tax and rruncnty interesis
Note 8 Total Sharehoider Return 1akes account of share price mavements and dnadends paid cunng the year

Friends Provident Annual Report & Accounts 2006 3



ANNUAL REVIEW

CHAIRMAN 5 STATEMENT GROUP CHIEF EXECUTIWE S REVIEW ABOUT THE FRIENDS PROVIDENT GROUP UK LIFE & PENSIONS

Chairman’s
Statement

| am delighted to report on ancther year of good progress for the Friends
Provident Group Last year, | pointed to the work we had done in
rebalancing and reshaping the Group to enhance our growth prospects

In 2006, we have seen those prospects becoming reality across large parts
of our business, and have extended our international reach stili further
Qur overall strong performance throughout the year is reflected in the
tinancial achievements as presented in this Report & Accounts

Setting our sights stll higher, towards the end of 2006 the Board set a new
Vision for the Group, which is "To be the standard by which all other providers
are judged’ We believe this properly reflects our desire and determination to
take a lead in fifting standards in our industry and so help restore the confidence
of consumers This is vital OQur industry contributes so much, both to the
econcmy as a whole and to the financial wellbeing of individual farmilies, but
needs to do more to earn the trust of those who place therr confidence in our
hands Addressing thes is nghtly a pricnty, and we intend to be a leading light

In the UK marketplace, the focus of the media and the Government throughout
2006 has remained on pensions and the vanous options and opportunities for
change The widespread lack of long-term saving centainly needs to be addressed
and we continue to contribute fully and effectively to the developing debate,
primanly through the Association of British Insurers  Although the Government 1s
preferring an alternative approach, we believe that the expenence and expertise of
our iIndustry makes 1t uniquely placed to partner the Government in any eventual
cutcome The increased attention on pensiens, coupled with the greater clanty
brought about through recent rule changes, has led 1o more actvity generally in
this market As one of the leading providers, we have benefited significantly from
this, with pensions accountng for 73% of our total 2008 new business in the UK
Overall, our share of the total UK market has nisen to 5 5%, approaching double
where we were when we became a listed company I 2001

Since that time, we have been able to Increase the annual dividend for cur
shareholders every year, in line with our stated policy For 2006, your Board 15
recommending a final dividend of 5 2 pence per share which would bring the
total dividend to 7 85 pence per share, a 2% increase over 2005 Total
Shareholder Return over 2008, which takes account of share price movements
as well as dividends, was 19 0% compared with 14 4% for the FTSE 100 index
of leading shares

4 Friends Prowident Annual Repori & Accounts 2006



INTERMATIONAL LIFE & PENSIONS ASSET MANAGEMENT GROUP FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE CONCLUSIONS AND QUTLOOK

There are a number of changes to the Board to report It s only night to start ‘ ‘
with the retrement of Keith Satchell who has been a magnificent Group Chief
Executive over the past decade, skilfully guiding the Group through the most
challenging, yet rewarding penod in our long history | know also that the reshaping the Group to enhance
industry acknowledges the significant contnbution he has made, and continues our growth prospects In 2006,
to make, through hus chairmanship of the Association of British Insurers, we have seen those prospects
partucularly with regard to the ongoing issue of pensions becoming reality , ,

Last year, | pointed to the work
we had done in rabalancing and

In Phiip Moore, we have an able successor to Keith, and the Board welcomes his
appointment as the new Group Chief Executive Jim Smart joined the Board in
January this year from Boots Group plc and succeeds Philip as Group Finance
Director Alain Grisay became a Board director at the beginning of 2008,
succeeding Howard Carter as the Chief Executive of F&C Howard retired from
the Board after the 2006 Annual General Meeting, and two long-serving non-
executive directors, Chnstopher Jemmett and Lord MacGregor, will retire
following the 2007 AGM Finally, we are delighted to welcome formally Sir
Mervyn Pedelty as a new non-executive director On behalf of the Board, it 1s my
pleasure to thank all of these directors, both past and present, for their advice and
support to the Friends Provident Group

Thus year, our Annual General Meeting 1s on 24 May 2007 May | encourage all
shareholders to vote on the resolutions beng put foerward at that meeting | look
forward to welcorming those of you who are able to attend in person Finally, we
were delighted to receive such a wealth of posiive feedback over the way we
restructured our Report & Accounts last year, presenting the detaled information
I a more accessible way We have retained broadly the same struciure this year
but with further minor iImprovements, which | trust you find helpful

% %w. / lowts

Sir Adrran Montague, Charman

Friends Provident Annual Report & Accounts 2006 5



ANNUAL REVIEW

CHAIRMAN 5 STATEMENT GROUP CHIEF EXECUTIVE S5 REVIEW ABQUT THE FRIENDS PROVIDENT GRCUP UK LIFE & PENSIONS

Group
Chief Executive's
Review

Let me start my first review as Group Chief Executive by saying how immensely
privileged | feel to be given the opportunity to lead this great Company.
succeeding Keith Satchell who has been an outstanding chief executive over the
past ten years Under his leadership, the Friends Provident Group has been
transformed into ene of the acknowledged leaders in our industry, significantly
larger than when he took office, and now with much greater potentizl for further
profitable growth

The Group has conunued 1ts strong advance through 2006 and these are some
of the most notable highlights

UK Life & Pensions

* New business profits up by more than two-thirds as a result of record sales

¢ Cemeniing our position as one of the top providers of pensions

* Being selected by the John Lew:s Partnership to offer life assurance to ther
customers — the first such retal distnbution agreement for us

* Being voted Life Insurer of the Year at the annual Bniush Insurance Awards
and retaining our 5 Star service rating for the third consecutive year

International Life & Pensions

* Achieving record sales and sigrificantly increasing the assoctated profit

* QOpening new hranch offices in Singapore and Switzerland, extending our
international reach

¢ Successfully entering the pensions market in Germany

+ Deepening penetration of existing markets and enhancing diversification of
earnings by ternitory

Asset Management

* Restructuring the way the business 1s managed and strengthening the
Investrment teams

* Developing new products to build our position in higher margmn areas

¢ |[denufying new distribution and growth opportunities

* Making real progress in embedding a performance driven culture

It1s evident from these achievements, and from our financial results generally,
that the Friends Provident Group has been successfully bulding momentum
ever since our stock market flotation in 2001, accelerating year on year It led us
to announce In 2006 ihat we aim to grow the vatue of UK new business at a
very challenging rate, also t0 express our confidence n the continued growth of
our International operation and in the successful turn-round of the asset
management company, F&C

This generat gathening of pace has charactensed 2006 and | am confident that
2007 will see this trend of success continue

Crtipp Mue

Philip Moore, Group Chief Executive

6 Fnends Prowdent Annual Report & Accounts 2006




INTERNATIONAL LIFE & PENSIONS ASSET MANAGEMENT

GROUP FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE CONCLUSIONS AND OUTLOOQK

Philip Moore succeeded Keirth Satchell as the Friends Provident Group
Chief Executive at the beginming of 2007 Here he gives his views

on strategy
Expect no significant change The strategy we
have followed over recent years has proved to be
the night one It has brought us much succaess and
will continue to do so Although new to the top
job, | have worked closely with Keith, the Board
and my other management colleagues over the
last three years in developing the general direction
of the Group and | have every confidence in 1t

on customers
We have to ensure that the interests and
expectations of our customers remain at the heart
of everything we do We work 1n an industry that
15 often percewved negatively We must play our
part in reversing this perception, because our
tnaustry actually does so much good i helping
people ranage their finances, often at very
difficult times i their ives

on culture
Friends Provident has a very distinctive culture that
henefits our customers and ourselves It has been
created and 1s sustained by the pecple who waork
for us and the talent innovation and high values
we apply to our work We have a superb team and
our good reputation is in safe hands It 1s a team
that 1s really making a difference and | am grateful
to them afl

on values
\Whether at businass or indvidual level there s a
nght and a wrong way to behave and it matters
We operate o a set of values that not only
reflects Friends Prowident s urique herttage but
also gives us a real competitive advantage ltoday

on service
1 see service as the end result of everything else
we do It 1s what distinguishes us from others It
cannot be done well without investing tn many
things, but at heart, quality of service 15 a reflaction
of the quaiity of the people who deliver 1t, and our
peaople are very good What we do is worthwhile
Many rely on us We must never lose sight of the
power of the hurman touch

on style
Everyona is different and that's a good thing My
job is partly to ensure Friends Frovident is a place
where everyone can reafise their full potential for
the good of all We want our people to behave in
themselves and in the decisions they make, and
even take calculated nsks which they feel are
appropriate to help us achieve our aam, which is to
set new standards n our industry

on outlook
{ recogmise that | am taking over at a very exciting
tima 1n the development of the Friends Provident
Group We have three good businesses, albeit
that each 1s at a different stage in its development
But each has real potential, and the marketplaces
n which we operate aithough still fercely
competitive, are now maore positive than they have
been over recent umes | confidently expect the
Group to go on growing and to do so profitably

Friends Provident Annual Report & Accounts 2006 7




ANNUAL REVIEW

CHAIRMAN § STATEMENT GROUP CHIEF EXECUTIVE 5 REVIEW ABOUT THE FRIENDS PROVIDENT GROUP UK LIFE & PENSIONS

About the
Friends Provident
Group

Qur mission
To help customers accumulata,
manage and protect wealth

* Collect, manage and build assets

* Protect wealth against tax and
inflation

* Protect against financial loss
through death and il health

* Protect ncome

Customer Impact survey

2006
70%

Customers agreeing or strongly agreeing that
Friends Provident really cares about customars

2005 2005
78% 88%

Customers agreeing or strongly agreeing that
Frignds Provident treats customers farly

2006 2005
83% 89%

Customers agreeing or sirongly agreeing that
Friends Provident is easy 10 do business with

Setting new standards

Friends Provident 1s one of today’s leading financial services groups, cperating
through three distinct businesses — UK Life & Pensions, International Life &
Pensions and Asset Management Each business has a signficant presence In
their respective markets, with strategies and plans to grow each of them further

The strong ethical values that underpm our operations can be traced back to our
Quaker angins In 1832 and continue to be a clear point of distinction for us
today Our growing reputation for innovative systems supporting unrivalted
service 15 evidenced by the many mndustry awards we recerved in 2006, and has
led us to create a new Vision for the Group

[ To be the standard by which all other providers are judged

Relentless focus on our customers

Across the Group we are Investing time, talent and energy Into setting new
standards for our cusiomers Two wide-ranging programmes of change are
running concurrently, both with ambitions of ifting service to levels that others
will find iIncreasingly hard o match

In F&C Asset Management, our Performance First programme defines top
guartile performance standards for every area of activity and sets a clear and
measurable framework for progressing towards them In Life & Pensions, our

6 Star programme Is focused on the Vision and 1s backed by stretching business
development and cultural objectives

We have also signed up to the Customer Impact Scheme, organised by the
Association of Bnush Insurers Cornpanies that commit to this scheme are
committing to

¢ Developing and promoting products and services that meet
the needs of customers

* Providing customers with clear information and good service
when they buy products

* Maintaining an appropriate and effective relationship with customers,
providing them with good ‘after sales’ service

We wholeheartedly support these ams Several hundred of our customers were
interviewed for this scheme in November 2006 and, as n the previous year,
etght out of ten of them rated our overall quality of products and services as
good or better than good

Our ratings for customer care, farmess, and how easy 1t 1s to do business with
us have also been consistently high over the past two years although the
dechnes in 2006 are disappomting Our commitment to customers was further
endorsed at the 2006 Brinsh Insurance Awards, at which we won the top award
for Customer Care as well as being voted Life Insurer of the Year We are,
however, not complacent We recognise there 1s more we can do to meet our
commitments and have prepared a separate report explaining more fully our
many customer-focused iniiatives and the progress we are making, which 1s
available onhne at www friendsprovident com/reports

8 Fnénds Provident Annual Report & Accounts 2006




INTERMATIONAL LIFE & PENSIONS ASSET MANAGEMENT

GROUP FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

CONCLUSIONS AND QUTLOOK

Group aim
and strategies

GROUP STRATEGIES

Deliver excellent service and
performance by putting
customers at the centre

of what we do

Build strong relationships
with key distributors to secure
profitable growth

Develop our people and
culture i hne with our values
to focus on the customer and
enhance our performance

D Apply technology to improve
service, enhance distribution

and reduce costs

|> Grow our business profitably,
targeting markets where we
can achieve a leading position

Diwversify our business to
umprove return, (mprove
cash generation and reduce
nsk concentration

Dwersification

GROUP AIM
Our aim s to grow shareholdsr value

[2006 Friends Provident 1 19 0%

[ FTSE 100 ] 14 4%

[ Sector* 122 4%

[2005 Friends Provident 28 4% |

[ FTSE 100 ] 208%

[ Sector* ] 21 7%

[2004 Friends Provident ] 22 6%
FTSE 100 11 3%

[ Sector* ] 223%

[2003 Friends Provident 117 0%

[ FTSE 100 117 8%

137%

*Sector refers to FTSE 35¢ Life Insurance sector

UK LIFE & PENSIONS STRATEGIES
See page 12

GROW
SHAREHOLDER
VALUE

INTERNATIONAL LIFE & PENSIONS STRATEGIES
See page 18

ASSET MANAGEMENT STRATEGIES
See page 24

Cur aim and strategies have not changed,
nor do they need to We know that
putting out customers first, and serving
them well will also bring the rewards
that our shareholders deserve for

placing ther confidence in us

Philip Moore , ,

Group Chief Executve

Frnands Prowdent Annual Report & Accounis 2006 9




ANNUAL REVIEW
CHAIRMAN § STATEMENT

GROUP CHIEF EXECUTIVE § REVIEW

ABOUT THE FRIENDS PROVIDENT GROUP

UK LIFE & PEMSIONS

Qur three
business
segments

UK Life & Pensions

Friends
Provident

One of the top ten companies for
attracting new business, offering
a comprehensive range of
protection, pensions and
investment products for
individuals and corporate clients

Recent history

* UK Provident
acquired 1986

* NM Group
acquired 1993

» London & Manchester
Group acquired 1998

Staff and key locations

3,600 staft

= Dorking

» Exater

» { ondon

» Manchester

* Salisbury

= 13 regional offices

International Life & Pensions

Friends
Provident .

International
A major offshore cross-border life
company focusing on Asia, the

Middle East, Continental Europe
and the UK

Lombard

The largest pan-European ife
assurance company of 1ts kind

Recent history

Fnends Provident
International (FPY)

Royal & SunAllance
International Financial
Services was acquired by
Friends Prowvident in 2002
and merged with our
existing Internatonal
division

Lombard

Founded in 1931 and
was acguired by Friends
Prowident in January 2005

Staff and key locations

FPI

360 staff

* isle of Man
* Guarnsey
» Hong Kong
* Duba

* Singapore
Lombard
315 staff

= Luxembourg
* Switzeriand

Asset Management

F&C .

One of the largest asset
managers tn Europe in terms
of funds under management,
offering a diverse range of
products across all the major
asset types

F&C 1s a quoted company In its
own right and 1s 52% owned by
Friends Provident

10 Friends Provident Annual Report & Accounts 2006

Recent history

F&C Assaet Management
ple was formed through
the merger of ISIS Asset
Managernens and F&C
Holdings in 2004

Previous acquisitions

ware

» lvory & Sime
acquired 1938

» Royal & SunAlliance
Investment
Managerent
acquired 2002

Staff and key locations

810 staff

+ | ondon

* Dorking

= Amsterdam
* Dublin

* Edinburgh
* Frankfurt

= Lishon

* Panis

* Geneva

* Boston USA



INTERNATIONAL LIFE & PENSIONS

ASSET MANAGEMENT

GROUP FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

CONCLUSIONS AND QUTLOOK

Market position

Selectively targeting the
market segments maost
likely to sustain profitable
growth Looking to buld

2006 new business
by product type

Graph removed

Distnbution

Through Independent

Financial Advisers (IFAs)
banks building societies
and other strategic

Points of distinction

* One of the fastest growing UK Iife and pensions
companies

«Voted 2006 Life Insurer of the Year at the British
Insurance Awards

on our already strong pannerships * Frve Star ranking for service excellence achieved for
positions in pensions and three consecutive years {Financial Adviser Practiv

Group pensions  55%
protecton, and to grow Ivestments 17% Service Awards)
our presence In Protecuon 10% * Reputation for leading-edge technology evidenced
investments Indwidual pensions 12% through numerous awards

Annuitias 6% * Values-driven approach to business

* Market leader in retall ethical investrents
Market posrtion 2006 new businsess Distribution Points of distinction
by region

Fri {FPl and Lombard) FPI FPI

Already holds sirang
positions In savings and
investments Looking to
build our presence in
pensions and protection
business

Lombard

Focusing an providing
estate and tax planning
solutions for High Net
Worth Indwiduals (HNWIs)
and ultra-HNWis

Graph removed

Continantat Europe 53%

Asia 1
UK 1
Middle East

Rest of World « 1

8%
2%
4%
3%

Primarily via specialist
Independent Financial

Advisers

Distribution agreements

and strategic partnerships

likely 10 prowvige an

INCreasing pProporiion

Lornbard

Partnership approach with

* Private Banks

* Family Cffices

* Specialist IFAs

* [ndependent Asset
Managers

* Strong reputation with intermedianes

= Commitment to the international market 1s a key strand
of the Group strategy

= Access o Friends Provident s core single-platfarm
scalable system enabling supenor customer service

Lombard

* Supenor tevels of international fiscal and succession
planning expertise and private banking service
standards

» Strong relationships with a select number of private
banks and speciahst adwvisors including leading global
Institubions

= Deatailed understanding of the fiscal, legal and cuitural
realities in each country of operation

Market position

Focusing on the UK and
Continental Europe,
targeting new business in
higher margin areas

2006 funds under
management

Graph removed

Insurance
Institetional
Retal

57%
27%
16%

Distribution

» UK institutional market
principally through
Investment consuitants
UK retail market
primarnly through IFAs
Across Europe

F&C has developed
wholesale and
sub-advisory
relationships with local
partners including
Millennium BCP
{Portuga’), Achmea {The
Netherlands), Friends
First (Ireland) and MAAF
Assurances (France)

Points of distinction

* A major force in the UK investment trust industry

* A leading provider of fund serv.ces to the Portuguese
and German retall market

* The leading European socialty responsible investor

* Ons of the leading distributors of Venture Cepital Trusts

* A major manager of UK commercial property

* Actively engages with companies in which we invest
with the goal of enhancing and protecting fong-term
shareholder value

Friends Provident Annual Report & Accounts 2006 11



ANNUAL REVIEW
CHAIRMAN S STATEMENT GROUP CHIEF EXECUTIVE S REVIEW ABOUT THE FRIENDS PROVIDENT GROU? UK LIFE & PENSIONS

UK Life & Pensions

Our aim, strategies and risks

OUR AlM

Our aim 15 to grow profits by
tnereasing our share of selected
UX Ife and pensions markets

New business - sea page 16

STRATEGIES 2006 +30% £4,162m]
[2005 ] £3,192m
Thesa are explained in more detail
onpages 14 & 15 Caontribution from new business - see pags 17
|>Develop service excellence 2008 +69% £108m |
and leading products to [2005 egam
z;eaetﬁ:nggsmve customer EEV underlying profit - sea page 17
E il trat [2006 -4% £315m |
ocus on core strategic
markets targeting a leading (2005 £328m ]
position in these markets Return on embedded value — seg paga 17
Build strong and reliable [2006 -16% 17 9%
distribution relationships [Z005 94% |

I>Apply technology to enhance
distribution, improve service
and reduce costs

l}oevelop our people to
enhance our performance and
foster a customer focused
culture based on common
values

VALUE OF NEW
BUSINESS
GROW PROFITS
MANAGEMENT OF
EXISTING BUSINESS

These ara explamed 1n more detar!
on page 15 \

[1] Changes to the distribution !
landscape

[2] Loss of technologcal ‘
leadership

(3] Changes in volume or
profitability in key market

segments ‘ ‘

[4] Avanabity of cash or capnal
We have made sigmficant progress in 2006

|E| Unexpected changes n life
expectancy

KEY RISKS

12 Fnends Provident Annwal Report & Accounts 2006

Our reputation for excellent service has
helped us to attract record sales, with our
pensions products being the star performers
Woe are also delighted to have secured
further new distribution partners , ,

Ban Gunn
Chief Exscutive Friands Prowdent Life and Penswons



INTERNATIONAL LIFE & PENSIONS

ASSET MANAGEMENT

GROUP FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

CONCLUSIONS AND GUTLOOK

Our view of the market

A strong stock market performance and the continued movement from final
salary to defined contnbution group pension schemes helped the UK Iife and
pension industry to grow hy 28% in 2006 The pensions market received a boost
as the result of the pension legislation changes that came into effect in Apnl 2006

Desprte the increased public awareness of pension issues following the release
of the Turner Reponrt, and the widely reported need for saving, we believe that
the market will remain predominantly supply led for the foreseeable future Only
mortgage protection and annurty sales are likely to be consumer led to any great
extent Financial intermediaries remain key to the future growth of the market

Protection - The housing market defied many experts predictions in 2006 setting
records for both price increases and mortgage advances The protection market
reflected this only to a irmited extent wath a 2% increase in sales The market seems
to have shrugged off recent interest rate nses However, there remains the possibiity

Total UK Life & Pensions market

2008 £12 0bn |
[2005 N ] £9 3bn
[z004 | £8 4bn
[z003 — |8 2bn

The graphs reprasent total industry sales it the UK
market as collatad by the Association of Brush insurers
These arg calculatad using the radivonal Annual
Prarmuum Equivalent basis which calculates now
businass as 100% of reguiar pramiums and 10% of
single prarmiums  Qur prmary measurg of new busingss
15 now the Present Value of New Busness Premiums
which (s defined on page 16

Protection

£0 8bn
2005___] £08bn
£0 9bn

of further interest rate nses, and with the growing i1ssue of first-ime buyer affordability £1 0bn

a slowdown or even a significant downturn cannot be discounted We expect a more

subdued market in 2007, erther flat or slightly negative

Investments - A strong stock market performance m 2006 built on the recovery of 2005  Investments

This drove a 27% increase In sales of investment bonds, which offer investors a simple, 2008 £3 Obn |
tax-efficient Investment vehicle as well as being a useful Inheritance Tax mitgation (2005 ] £2 4bn
vehicle The growth in the demand for account aggregation and open architecture for [2004 } £2 Zon
funds has led to the development of wrap a new form of investment trading platform [2003 ] £1 8bn

We believe that use of these platforms will grow steadily and support the growth of

investment bond products We expect market growth in 2007 to be in the range of

5-10% although market turbulence, as seen recently, may concern retall invesiors

Risks to this growth expectation are therefore largely on the downside

Group pensions — The regulation changes in Apnl had a significant impact in 2006 Group pensions

Atso, the financial nisks and open ended obligations associated with defined benefit (2008 £33bn |
arrangements have led many employers te move to defined contnbution plans erther [2005 ] £2 7bn
far all scheme members or just for new members This continuing trend points to [2004 ] £2 4bn
significant growth potential within new defined contnbution schemes over the coming [2003 | £2 3bn
years The trend away from trust to contract based arrangements i also continuing

We expect market growth in 2007 to be in the range of 7-12%

Individual penstons - There 1s undoubtedly greater public awareness of the need for Individual pensions

adequate pension planning following the media coverage of Lord Turner s report on UK (2006 £3 1bn |
pensians, and a significant part of the 47% growth in the individual market in 2006 was (2005 ]£2 160
inggered by A-Day in Aprl Whilst we believe that a major change in Government policy [2004 ] £18bn

will be needed to encourage the UK public to take pension planning more serously [2003 _]f2 060

we do expect the market for indmdual pensions to grow steadily We expect markei
growth in 2007 to be in the range of 10-15%

Post-retirement — The post-retirernent market 1s currently not a significant area of focus
for Fnends Provident, although we continue 1o be mindfu! of potential opporturities and
nsks within it In general terms the next 10 years will see the post war baby-boom
generation reaching retrement age and this will Igad to growth in new and existing
post-retirement products We expect market growth in 2007 to be in the range of 7-12%

Post-retirement
2006 £12bn

£0.9bn
£0 960
£0 9bn
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ANNUAL REVIEW
CHAIRMAN § STATEMENT

GROUP CHIEF EXECUTIVE 8§ REVIEW

ABOUT THE FRIENDS PROVIDENT GROUP

UK LIFE & PENSIONS

How we are making our strategies work

> Develop service excellence and
leading products to create a positive
customer experience

We aim to daliver outstanding levels
of customer and intermediary service,
redefining industry standards We plan
to provida new levels of speed and
accuracy, further enable self-service
and improve contact management

> Focus on core strategic

markets targeting a leading
posttion in these markets

We aim to grow market share in each of our
target markets in a profitable manner by
constantly enhancing our overall proposition
Our current core strategic markets are
corporate pensions and mndmdual protection,
but we intend to build our presence in the
wealth management and group protection
markets, continue to deliver profitable
growth in the indnidual pensions market
and investigate new opportunities for
growth in the postretirement market

> Build strong and rehable

distrbution relationships

Independent financiai advisers continue to be
our primary source of business However,
following depolanisation we have secured,
and continue to secure and develop,
significant additional distribution alliances
with banks, bullding societies, retailers and
intermediary groups, providing us with a
diversified source of intermediated business

2006 Key points

® Maintained our Five Star service
ranking for third consecutive year

® Numerous awards and positive survey
rasults for our products and services

® Major internal service-related change
programme {the 6 Star programme}
embedded and aligned
10 our vision

® Conunued to embed Treating
Custormers Fairly principles

2005 Key points

® A number of targe corporate
pension schemes secured

® New online services developed
for employers, intermedianes and
pension scheme members

® Indwvidual protection market 1s
competitive but new business
velumes from distrbution agreements
increasing

® Announced intention to develop a
wrap capability to bulld cur presence
in the wealth management market

@ Accelerated growth plans announced

2006 Key points

® 11 significant new distnbution agreements
secured for, predominantly, protection and
corporate pensions business

@ Distribubion agreement secured wath
Greenbee (John Lewis Partnarship} our
first such retall agreement

@ Decision taken to exit the appointed
representative channe! and focus on
directly-authonsed intermediaries

@ The emergence of wrap platforms 1s
re-defining the distnbution of wealth
management services

2007 Prionties

@ Mamntain our Five Star service ranking

® Continue our major internal change
programme that aims to re-define
industry standards

® Continue to embed Treating
Custorers Fairly pnnciples

® Improve our Customer fmpact
survey scores

2007 Priortties

@ Enter the wrap market and re-define
our wealth management proposition

® Grow large pension scheme portfolio
and increase focus on scheme
retention and member services

® Develop protection proposition to
target new segments and extend
market reach

@ |nvestigaie the post-retirement
market for new growth opportuniies

2007 Priorthes

® Seek to secure further distnbution
agreements

@ Strengthen relationships and
accelerate business volumes with
major distnbutors

Financial Acviser Practiv service rankmg

UK Life & Pensions market shara

Contribution from new business

(2008 *kkx K] | [2006 55%] | [2008 E£108m |
[2005 ok | | [2005 52% | 2005 1 £64m

(2004 Jeok ok dok | | [2004 143% [2004 | £58m

{2003 *hw k|| [2003 ]42%

This ranking 1s the resuit of an extensive
indapendent survey of IFAs undertaken
annually The survey rates life and pensions
prowiders covenng various aspects of service
on a scale of
Wi e i e e Excellent

ok k& Good

&k Average
%% Poor

+ Very poor

This shows our markst share of UK Life &
Pension new business sales The statistics are
collated by the Association of British insurers
2005 has been restated to 5 2% from 4 7% to
reflect a change i defimtion A summary of
the market 1s given on page 13 and a summary
of our trading performance 1s given on page 16
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INTERNATIONAL LIFE & PENSIONS

ASSET MANAGEMENT

GROUP FINANCIAL PERFOAMANCE CONCLUSIONS AND QUTLOOK

>Apply technology to enhance
distnbution, improve service and

reduce costs

We aim to generate higher levels of
profitabiiity by growing our new business
levels sigrificantly faster than costs We
plan to achieve service enhancements
and efficiency gains through continued
nvastment in our people and in
technology-based solutions

> Develop our people to enhance our

performance and foster a customer
focused culture based on common
values

We aim to create sustainable competitive
aavantage through our abiity to recrutt
and retan tughly motivated and
appropriately skilled peaple We plan to
enhance performance by developing and
equippng our people with the appropniate
knowledge and skills and engaging thern
in our awms and strategies

2006 Key points

Constderable growth in new business
volumes handled cost-effectively
More than 90% of individual protection
business transacted online

System changes required for A Day
implemented successfully

Voted by IFAs to be the E-commerce
Company of the Year {Financial Adviser
Practiv Service Awards)

Range of new online facihties launched
Continued growth in IFAs use of our
online servicing faciities

2006 Key points

® 86% response to our staff survey

@ Developed a new people strategy to
supporti the business vision

® Executive management development
programmes undertaken

® Employee engagement plans initated
for corporate change programme

® Total reward and annual bonus
scheme reviewed

® Reviewed staff pensions to enhance
flexibility and control costs

2007 Prniorthes

Extend technology to more business
processes to reduce costs

Extend online systems to support a
wider range of preducts, including
wrap and SIPPs

Actively promote customer and
intermediary online self-service
capabihues

Continue to improve financial
management processes and capability
Explore further opportunities for
efficiency gains

2007 Priorthies

® Implement a new performance
management approach and introduce
individual performance element to
the annual bonus scheme

® Improve further the level of
employee engagement

® Contnue 10 improve the leadership
skills of our managers through the
introduction of Development Centres

® Continug t0 ensure that our top talent
have clear career paths

@ Strengthen our employment brand

Operating expenses

2006 | £253m

FVNBP £4.162m ]
2005 | £243m

PVNBP ] £3 192m
£229m

[PyBP ]£2 641m

[2003 | £248m

[PYNEP ] £2 535m

This shows how operating expenses {as defined
on page 17) have remained broadly flat whilst
new business PVNBP has grown

The expenses bars are drawn to a different
scale to the PYNBP bars

Staff Engagement index

[2008 76% ]
f2005 73% |
[2004 ] 65%
[2003 ] 64%

This shows the level of UK staff angagement as
measured by our annuai staff survey

Key risks

E'Changes to the distnbution
landscape

We seek to build long-term
relationships with distnbutors We have
secured places on many best advice
and mult-tie panels with leading firms
and innovative new entrants We have
attracted all types of distnbutors by
deliverning excellent service, products
and technology Ve monitor
developments in the distnbution
sector and seek to position ourselves
In an appropriate way that plays to
these strengths

E]Compatnors develop more advanced
IT solutions and service capability

Our operating platforms are leading
edge and our structure 15 designed

for contrnuous development to be
achieved Ourinternal 6 Star
programme aims to retain and improve
our lead in service and technology We
monitar competitar actwity carefully

EIChanges in volume or profrtability
in key market segments or
emargence of new markets

We monitor our relative product range
and compettive position and analyse
our experience of policy clams and
lapses We use thts information io re-
price our products or develop new
ones, targeting those markets that we
see as most likely to grow and to be
profitable For example, we are
developing a wrap platform that plays
te our technology and service
strengths and allows us to work
closely with key distributors

ElAvallablllty of cash or caprtal
rastrict growth

We have a strong, stable capital
position that ¢can fund several years’
growth Our plans require us to raise
funds to pay for the shori-term new
business stramn This may include
securitisation, reinsurance or other
financing arrangements We are
conftdent that we will have sufficient
funds to support our dvidend policy

EUnexpected changes n life
expectancy

We seek to control our exposure 10
changes in Wfe expectancy for post-
retirement Income products
{annurties} through pneaing that
reflects the economic nsk We also
review our nsk appetite and momitor
market developrnents regularly to
idenufy new effectve mitigation
opportunities
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ANNUAL REVIEW

CHAIRMAN 5 STATEMENT GROUP CHIEF EXECUTIVE S REVIEW

ABQUT THE FRIENDS PROVIDENT GRQUP

UK LIFE & PENSIONS

QOur trading performance and outlook

UK total new business increased 30% to £4,762m and our share of this market
increased from 5 2% to 5 5% OQur trading performance reflected in parucular our
growing reputation in the penstons arena, and the trend towards this business,
both group and individual, continued throughout the year

Protection — new business increased by 8% to £432m at a margm of 7 4%, up from
54% in 2005 As anticipated, we shghtly increased our share of this very competitive
market, up fram 7 6% 10 7 8%, as the impact from some of the already secured
distribution agreements began 1o be felt As well as explonng further distnbution
cpportunities, we intend 10 continue to grow our share N the group protection segment
We expect to grow our market share in the second half of the year as the cutined
inihiatives begin to take effect We wall remain price competitive, which may bring
downward pressure on margin

Total UK new business

[20096_+30% £4,162m|
[2605 | £3 192m
[2004 ] £2 641m

[2603 ] £2 535m

Protection new business

+8% £432m
£400m
£437m
£402m

Investments — new business increased by 2% to £687m at a margin of 1 5%, shghtly
down from 1 6% 1n 2005 Bearing in mind the 15% growth we achieved in 2005, we

Investments new business

20068 +2% £687m

lost some ground in 2006 which we hope to regan this year in this increasingly £672m

competitive market In early 2007 we re-entered the guaranteed bond market, £682m

reflecting growing customer interest Additionally a number of product enhancemenis £473m

are planned for 2007 and we are on track to launch our wrap proposition by the end

of the year which (s an important element of our future growth prospects in this

segment The outlock far sales remains positive for the year as a whole particularly

over the second half

Group pensions — new business increased by 46% to £2,298m at a margin of 1 6%, up Group pe new b

from 1 1% 1n 2005, and accounted for well over hatf of our total UK new business Our (2006 +46% £2,298m |
performance in 2006 reflected the quality and flexibility of our proposiion and hfted our [2005 ] £1 577m
market share to 12 8%, bolstered by the effect of the Pensions ‘A-Day’ regulation changes £1 085m

in April Underlying growth, both far our business and the group pensions market generally, £1 046m

looks set to continue over the medium term and we will continue to benefit from the
transition in the market away from defined benefit schemes to defined contnbution
schemes We will alse increasingly benefit from incremental business forming a greater
proportion of future new business volumes, thereby reducing volatility

Individual pensions — new business increased by 63% to £490m Excluding
contracting-out rebate payments from the Department of Work & Pensions (DWP} new
business increased 74% to £336m This reflected the haightened public interest in
pensions and primarnly compnsed the more profitable "single premium' business, which
we target Margin was 1 3%, shghtly down on the 1 4% achieved in 2005 We have
achieved good growth since relaunching into this market in 2005, which we expect to
continue In{o 2007 Beyond this we expect future growth to be sigady DWP rebate
paymenis will steadily decline through to 2012

Individual pensions new business

+83% £490m
2065 £301m

£277m
£322m

Annurties — new business increased by 5% to £255m at a strong margin of 5 3%, up
from 2 8% in 2005 Our approach to this market segment remains cautious, primarnly
semving our existing customers only although we continue to keep the balance of nsk
and reward under active review

The new business figures on this page are reported on the Present Valug of New Busmess Fremiums
(PVIVEP} basis defined as single premiums plus the expected present value of naw reguiar premiums
The 203 bars on the charts have been estimated on this basts to indicate a companson
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INTERNATIONAL LIFE & PENSIONS ASSET MANAGEMENT GROUP FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE CONCLUSIONS AND OUTLOOK

QOur financial performance

UK Life & Pensions EEV underlying profit before tax decreased by 4% to £315m EEV underlying profrt
{2005 £328m) with the increase in new business profits being more than offsetby  [2006 -4% £315m |
lower returns on the in-force business and shareholders’ net assets (2005 £328m
EEV underlying profit compnses {figures tn £m) 2006 2005
Contribution from new businass 108 64
Profit from existing business 183 209
Development costs (26) 125}
Expected return on shareholders net assets 50 80
Return on embedded value
The return on embedded value, based on underlying profit after tax, decreased to {2006 -16% 79%
7 9% {2005 9 4%} wath largely unchanged profits on an increased embedded value [2o08 94% |
The contnibution from new business has increasad by 69% to £108m (2005 £64m) Contribution from new bustness
with group pensions amounting to 35% and protection 30% of the total The contribution £108m
1s stated net of the cost of solvency capital of £6m {2005 £5m} and share based £64m

payments of £2m (2005 £2m) The overall margin has increased from 2 0% to 2 6%

as a result of the geanng effect of higher volume and relatively flat expenses Individual
product margms are shown on page 16 The Internal Rate of Return {IRR) has increased
10 10 3% pa during 2006 (2005 8 6% pal, again primarnily as a result of operational
gearing The overall payback penod {discounted) has reduced from 17 years to 12 years

The profit from existing business reduced by 12% to £183m {2005 £209m} Profit from existing business
The expected return on the value of the in-force book increased by 2% to £173m 2006 -12% | £183m
(2005 £170m) reflecting the increase In the value of the in-force businass offset by (2005 ] £209m

lower discount rates The profit ncludes positive expenence vanances of £9m

{2005 £20m) and positve operating assumption changes of £1m (2005 £18m)

Within operating assumption changes and experience variances the total UK in-force
charge for persistency I1s £53m and this has been offset by profits from a change
morbidity and mortality assumptions of £27m and a reduction in the cost of burnthrough

of £36m

Development costs have increased to £26m (2005 £25m) reflecting continued Development costs
investment m our market leading protection and group pensions e-commerce +4% £26m
propositions mfrastructure to support our strategic distribution refatienships and the 2005] £25m

development of a wrap platform Development costs in 2007-2008 are expected to
be higher than in 2006 {in the range of £30m - £40m per annum) in support of our
growth strategy

The expected return on shareholders’ net assets decreased by 37% to £50m Expected return on shareholders’ net assets
{2005 £80m), partly due 10 a reduction in the expectad rates of return on equities -37% £50m
and fixed interest securiies and changes in the mix of assets Part of this decrease £80m

results from a change In the tax gross-up basis

Operating expenses* have increased by 4% to £253m (2005 £243m) Since 2003, Operating expenses

operating expenses have increased by only 2% against an increase in PYNBP of 64% {2006 +4% £253m]
over the same period This demonstrates the efficiency of our processes and power of {2005 F343m |
our technology to deliver substantial new business growth whilst mantaining excellent

levels of service, with only a small increase in cost We believe there are further .

opportunities to leverage future efficiencies due to the scalabiity of our solutions and
the continued development of our self-service offening

*Operating expenses exclude commussion daferred acquisiion cost adustments non-récufming rHems,
investment fees amortisation and impairment of intangibles and expenses of policyhoider investments
which are consolidated under IFAS The 2005 comparative has been adjusted prncipally (o remove
corporate costs
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ANNUAL REVIEW
CHAIRMAN 5 STATEMENT | GROUP CHIEF EXECUTIVE S REVIEW | ABOUT THE FRIENDS PROVIDENT GROUP UK LIFE & PENSIONS

International Life & Pensions

Our aim, strategies and nisks

OUR AIM

Qur atm 15 to caprtalise on rewarding
overseas market opportunrties and
thereby make a significant and
increasing contribution to the
Group’s profits

STRATEGIES New business - see page 22
These ars explained m more detail [2006 +32% £2,912m]
on pages 20 & 21 [2005 | £2 205m
Seek %Ut andcl;:apltl?llse C;n g Contribution from new business — see page 23
rewarding and well regulate [2606 +20% £96m]
markets
[2008 | EBOM
Create and maintan strong
and close relationships EEV underlytng profit - see page 23
with our distribution partners [2006 +12% £119m]
to enhance sales opportunities (2005 £106m |
Differentiate ourselves with
market leading service for our Return on embedded valus - see page 23
distnbution partners and [2008 -8% 198% |
customers I2005 21 s%_l

Use technology and
e-commerce to enhance
our service offering
Engage our people to
maximise our performance

VALUE OF NEW
BUSINESS
GROW PROFITS
MANAGEMENT OF
EXISTING BUSINESS

These are expfaned t more detai
on page 21

Further regulation and
fiscal change

[2] Relance on key terrtaries
or distnibution partners
[3] Changes to lapse rates ‘ ‘

E] Expansion into new territories
Our two internattonal businesses,

[5] Mismatch of solutions and Friends Provident Internstional and
chient expectations Lombard, continue to complement each
KEY RISKS other Both achieved growth in sales and

both have opened new offices, in
Singapore and Switzerfand respectively
to extend their reach still further , ,
Ben Gunn

Chief Exacutive Friends Provident Life and Pensions
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INTERNATIONAL LIFE & PENSIONS ASSET MANAGEMENT GROUP FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE CONCLUSIONS AND QUTLOOK

Qur view of the market

Qur intemational business 1s conducted across the glohe, with specific emphasis
on four key regions Asia, the Middle East, the UK and Continental Europe

The business mix includes regular premium savings and protection plans,
alangside single premium savings, investment and estate-planning proposrtions
Customers are attracted by our innovative solutions, wide-ranging investment
opportunities, the portability of the products and the long-term confidence of
strong currency investments

Friends Provident International {FPI} — FPI has followed a delberate strategy of
market diversification, ensunng that it does not mit itseff to a single region or
junsdiction From its base in the Isle of Man, FPl operates in all the four

key regions, with a product max that ranges from regutar savings and protection
business to investment contracts, including highly personalised portfolio bonds

Distnbution partners are prnimanly Independent Financial Adwvisers FPl has also actively
developed distnbution relationships with a number of institutional partners Asia remains
FPl's largest generator of new business volurmes with the bulk of that business corming
from regular premium savings The overall Hong Kong market grew sirongly over the
first half of 2006 before slowing over the second half FPI continues to be confident in
and committed to, the region The Continental European strategy centres on the
targeting of a smail number of specifically selected terntores, including the launch of a
seres of personal pension products in Germany, alongside a German distnbution partner
Business from the Middle East has benefited from the estabishment of a local presence
The UK remains an exclusively sigle premium investment market with particular
emphasis on tax and estate planning

2006 saw no lessening of market activity and competitiveness, with a number of
companies expressing a renewed interest in the Asian region but we mainiam a robust
position based on strong relationships with distribution partners and a demonstrable
commitment to the market The successful development of a new branch office In
Singapore and the continuing demand for high quality wealth management solutons,
adds to our confidence

Lombard - The proviston of talor-made financial and estate planming solutions for high
net worth individuals {(HNWIs} and ultra HNWIs in Europe and beyond remains the focus
of the Lombard business Lombard operates pnmanly acrass eight EU member states,
while continuing to explore new opportunities in other regions Geographic diversification
15 supported by a unique multHunsdictional expertise This expertise 1s cntical in meeting
the planning needs of many clients and the business needs of international private banks,
and has led to wniing rapidly Increasing volumes of new business

Lombard's approach 1s to partner with leading speciahst advisers which enables the
combining of Lombard's financial expertise with the relationship and asset management
capability of the distribution partner As the very large market for HNWIfultra HNW!
continues to grow, so does the requirement for effective protection of prvate wealth
Lombard has been able to increase s penetration of this market year-by-year and
intends to deepen this penetraton further as the business develops

The BHNWI sector in particular continues to attract the atientions of governments
seeking to increase tax on private wealth This intensifies the pressure on traditional
tax planning structures and offshore tax havens and increases the relative attractions
of life assurance being used as a tax shelter and estate planning solution such that
experts tncreasingly recognise life assurance as an important financial planning tool

Lombard competes through the prowvision of enhanced value-added services and
admumistration rather than on pnce Competitors are marnly those that have established
subsidianies in Luxembourg and Dublin primanly 1o sell back 16 ther home country
{although some are increasing ther international diversification), and generally offer a
lower pnced less value-added service

HNWI financial wealth forecast by region
2003-2010 estmated (Figures in tnihons US$

[2010 | 446
Allowing for 6% pa globa) growth

[2005 ]333

[2004 1307

[2003 1285

Annual growth rate 2005-2010 estmated

Afrca 52%
Middle East 80%
Latn Amenca 59%
Asia-Pacific 67%
North America 74%
Europe 3%

Source Cepgermint Lorenz curve gnalysis May 2006
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ABOUT THE FRIENDS PROVIDENT GRCU®

UK LIFE & PENSIONS

How we are making our strategies work

> Seek out and capitalise on rewarding

and well regulated markets

International chents value higher leveis of
service and qualty solutions We aim to
find, and take advantage of, opportunities
i international markets by combirung our
skills and infrastructure to provide
profitable solutions and business
propositions

> Create and maintain strong and

close relationships with our
distnbution partners to enhance
sales opportunities .

Our distnbution partners are key to our
continued business success We seek to
make our distnbution partners feel confident
in the knowledge that choosing us means
they will receive top-quahty service and
innovative products

> Differentiate ourselves with market

leading service for our distnbution
partners and customers

Wa seek to aifferentiate ourselves from
our competition by building trust and
confidence with our intermediaries and
customers The standard of our service
1s therefore dnven by our delvery of
quahty products and solutions in a
professional manner

2006 Key pomnts
Fnends Provident international

@ Opening of Singapore branch, and
development of personal pension
range with German distnbution partner

@ Successful launch of new protection
product — International Protector

Lombard

@ Deepened penetration of existing
markets and enhanced diversification
of earnings by terntory

® Capitalised on opporturities in ltaly
and Mexico

2006 Key points
Friends Provident internatronal

® Distribution partnerships established
n several regions, including Middle
East and Europe

® Bespoke products developed for
distnbution pariners in a number of
languages

Lombard

@ Increased penetration of existing
partner relationships with a number
of leading internatonal and specialist
private banks and professional
advisers

® Cpened new Swiss branch to
enhance service to Swiss-based
international private banks

2006 Key points
Frnends Provident international

@ Initiated Iife administration processes,
based on successful Group model to drive
efficiencies

® Lean Servicing techniques adopted across
the International business

® Launch of quarterly broker survey to gain
greater insight of distnbutors’ needs and
requirements

Lombard

@ Enhanced provision of special product
solutions and support services, for
example, a new succession planning
solution for German clients

® Contnued surrender management
initiatives and partner satsfaction surveys

2007 Priorities
Friends Provident international

® Launch of full preduct range through
Singapore branch - to include savings,
investment and protection plans

@ Explore and develop new market
opportunites in Asia and Europe whilst
bullding on successful steps already
taken in the Middle East

Lombard

® Consider potential new markets in
Europe and beyond

2007 Priorities
Frends Provident international

® Complete further relationship
agreernents with majer strategic
partners

@ Continue to strengihen relationships
with core distributors i all main regions

Lombard

® Contnue to develop and deepen
existing partner relatonships

® Progress development of Swiss office
services 1o Swiss-based international
private banks

@ Furiher develop the concept of long
term strategic partnerships

2007 Priorthies
Friends Prowident International

® Realise full benefits of new life
administration processes, allowing better
targeting of service value

@ Continue to quantitatively monitor our
service performance o ensure
standards are maintained

Lombard

® Continue to develop innovative financial
and estate planning solutions for
wealthy individuals

® Invest in longer term research and
development capability

Contribution from new business

Total International new business PYNBP

Lombard Partner Satisfaction Survey
Overall corporate satisfaction

[2608 £96m | | [2006 £2.912m] | {2006 B2%)|
[2005 ] eeom | [2005 ] £2 206m [2005 81% |
2004 £20m £537m {2004 74% |
This measuras the profit that we make from £510m 2003 72% |

writing new business and is discussed further
on page 23 It 1s measured on the EEV basis
Figures far the years prior to 2004 are not
comparable with the EEV basis 2005 includes
the impact of the acquisition of Lombard

This shows the amount of new business we
have sold and 15 discussed further on page 22
It 15 measured on the PYNBP basis {2003
estimated) 2005 includes the impact of
Loembard which was acquired in January 2005
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INTERNATIONAL LIFE & PENSIONS

ASSET MANAGEMENT

GROUP FINANCIAL PERFCRMANCE

DUse technology and e-commerce

to enhance our service offering

We aim to exploit technology and, where
appropriate find further synergies with
the UK business, using common
platforms and tools to deliver efficient
and effective processes

Engage our people to maximise
our performance

Cur people ara cnucal to the successiul
runming of our business and central

to our ability to build relationships with
intermedianes and custormners We
therefore need to recruit and retan

the appropriate highly skilled and
motivated people

2006 Key points
Friends Prowident international

@ Further development of Link Plus,
Friends Provident International’s
distnbutor Management Information
system

@ Launch of online enquiry senvice for all
Ife-business distributors through
extranet

Lombard

® Continued to roll-out automated
electrontc inks to our partners and
custodian banks

2006 Key ponts
Friends Prowident International

® Leading High Performance Teams
pregramme introduced, te develop and
motvate first-stage managers

@ Introduced Mowving Into Management
for those entering management roles
for the first tmme

Lombard

® |niroduced coaching across key teams
® Improved range of management,
business understanding technical
and general training avalable to
these teams

2007 Priorrties
Friends Prowident International

® Develop next phase of distnbutor and
clent online enguiry facilities

® Continue to develop
Internationalisation’ of all key
processes, functions and systems

Lombard

® Continue to develop automated
elecironic inks with our partners and
custodian banks

® Embark on a senes of developments
to further improve efficiency and nsk
management and enhance chent and
pariner servicing

2007 Priorities
Friends Provident international

® Roll-out newly developed Executive
Development training programme

® Develop and launch strategic
programme of actvities designed to put
‘People at the Centre of our Thinking

Lombard

® Rewview and enhance the
organisational capability to meet long-
term growth demands

® Invest in further recruitment, iraning
and development infrastructures to
maxiise the performance of existing
staff and attract quality new staff

International operating expenses
2008 £83m

[PVNBP

j2005 ] £54m
PVNBP

£21m

PVNBP | £637m

£20m

£510m

This shows how operating expenses {as defined
on page 23) have increased at a significantly lower
rate than the increase n PVNBP The expense bars
are drawn to a different scale to the PYNBP bars

£2,912m]

£32 205m)

Staff Engagement Index

(2066 1% |
[2005 ] 71%
[Z604 "} 62%

7003 ] 69%

This shows the level of our International staff
engagement as measured by our annual staff
survey Lombard s participation commenced
n 2006

Key risks

E]Hagulat:on and/or fiscal change
materially impact costs, capital
requirements, distribution,
regulatory responsibility or the
market for products

The implementation of directives and
other legislative changes 1s monitored
seeking to entfy opportunities and
ensure tmely, comphant and cost
effective solutions Detalled analyses of
the impact on distrbution relationships
and product offenngs are undertaken to
determine the required changes in
distribution and product strategies

E] Reliance on key territones, products
or distribution partners for businaess

Diversification across ternitones business
Ines and distnbution partners allows us
to take advantage of opportunrties to
secure business volumes and profitabidity
and respond to regulatory andfor fiscal
change and competrtor activity

Ellmpact on profrtability of changes
to lapse rates

Particular sources of lapse nsk are
monitored especially for large cases

A focus on service helps to mantain
customer and partner satisfaction and
prevent surrenders Lapse management
programmes seek to prevent surrenders,
wherever practical {including dentifying
alternatives to surrender)

ElExpansnons Into new tarrrtories do
not produce the expected results

We plan our entry into any new
territory by looking at the expected
business volumes and mix dealing
with high-calibrefreputation distribution
pariners, and considering the regulatory
environment and requirements Cur
emphasis IS on business with strong
rmargins supported by excellent
customer senvice

EIMlsmatch of solutions and client
expectations leads to poor
persistency, complaints or damage
to reputation

Due diigence on distnbution partner
fims, particularly in markets where
regulation 1S hghter helps ensure that
business 1s waitten through financially
sound and appropnately authonsed and
competent firns Our strategy 1s to
distnbute through independent
ntermedianes who are authonsed in thewr
respective markets but where
introducers or agents are used there are
clear agreements on the scope of therr
actvities, and appropnate training and
support programmes are developed

Friends Provident Annua! Report & Acccunts 2006 21

CONCLUSIONS AND OUTLOOK




ANNUAL REVIEW

CHAIRMAN S STATEMENT GROUP CHIEF EXECUTIVE S REVIEW

ABQUT THE FRIENDS PROVIDENT GROUP

UK LIFE & PENSIONS

Our trading performance and outlook

International new business, achieved through Fnends Provident International
and Lombard combined, increased by 32% to £2,912m, representing more than
40% of the Friends Provident Group’s total ife and pensions sales

Over the tonger term, we continue to expect the pace of growth in our
International operations to exceed that of the UK Life & Pensions business, with
future trend growth rate for new business profit expected to be in double digrts

Friends Provident International - New business increased by 16% to £823m at an
unchanged margin of 3 1%, with sales higher in Asia, the Middle East, and
Continental Europe

Sales are not generally seasonal and therefore the new business profile for 2006 15 not
typical The strong growth that charactensed 2005 continued over the first half of 2006,
with a marked slowdown over the second half of that year Hong Kong 1s FPIl’s biggest
contributor 10 new business and our perfermance mirrors the strong market growth
seen in Hong Kong in the second quarter followed by a market downturn in the second
half Other factors were the sale of fewer large bonds in 20086, the weakening of the
dol'ar (which had the effect of lowenng average premiums for business sold in Asia and
the Middle East) and the impact of unexpected changes to UK trust and tax rules

The market remains a very compstitive environment

Marketing focus throughout 2006 was pnmarily on the setting up of a new office In
Singapore, successiully achieved, and delivering three new personal pension plans
into the German market Dunng 2007 we plan to review and enhance our core
proposiions as well as introducing specifically designed products to the Singapore
market The new personal pensians for the German market were introduced In late
2006, with early indications of therr success baing encouraging We axpect to build en
this throughout 2007

For 2007, we do not expect szles in the first half to match the excepuocnally strong sales
in the first half of 2008, although we do anticipate sales in the second half of 2007 to be
hugher than in the first half Prospects for medium term growth are attractive

P

Total International new bustness
[2006 +32%

[2005

£537m

£510m

£2,912m]|
| £2 205m

Friends Provident International
new business

2006 +16% £823m

2005 £708m
2004 £537m

2003 £510m

FPl new business by region

Chart removed

Region 2006 2005
Asia 49% 45%
UK 13% 17%
Continental Europe 19% 17%
Middle East 10% 10%
Other 9% 1%

Lombard — New business (ncreased by 40% to £2 089m with partcularly strong
performances in the UK Italy and Mexico The geographic diversification of the Lombard
business 1s a major strength with emphasis varying from year to year - often as a

result of tax changes, as was the case in lialy in 2006 The UK market 15 the one most
sensitive to prevaihng mnvestment markets and sales more than doubled over 2006 as
Investment senument continued to improve and as partnerships with those serving the
HNWI-sector developed

Although the pattemn of new business was as always skewed towards the fourth
quarter, Lombard has achieved higher than usual growth throughout the year A major
factor in this was the increased proportion of large cases wntten in 2006 Wrnung larger
cases generates greater profits, although generally at a lower margin, and the overall
margin reduced to 3 4% from 3 9% in 2005 as a result

In the latter part of 2006, a number of signsficant adverse tax changes were announced
particularty in Mexico where a legal change senously reduced the attractiveness of
foreign life policies and where the position remains uncertan Whilst Lombard s short
term praspects are likely 1o be impacted we expect the growth trend in new business
to continue, albeit that 2006 was above trend and 2007 will be below it This cutlook
recognises Lombard s ability 10 deepen its penetration in European markets, with our
new Swiss office further supporting the increasing number of our quality Swiss-based
partners

The new business figures on this page are reported on the Present Yalue of New Business Premiums (PVNEF) basrs defined
as single premuums plus the expected present value of new reguiar premiums. The 2003 bars on the charts have been
estimated on this basts to indicata a companson
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Lombard new business
[2006 +40%

[2008

{2004

£690m

Lombard became part of the Frtends Provident Group
in Janusry 2005

£2,085m |
| £1 497m
] £1 300m

Lombard new business by ragion

Chart removed

Region 2006 2005
Belgium 4% 20%
Germany 14% 19%
UK 12% 8%
Qther Europe 43% 38%
Other 17% 15%
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Qur financial performance

International Life 8 Pensions EEV underlying profit before tax increased by 12% to
£119m (2005 £106m} This increase has mainly been dniven by strong new
business volume growth and follows on from an 80% increase 1n 2005 {which
included the unpact of the acquisitron of Lombard in January 2005)

EEV underlying profrt compnises {figures in £m} 2006 2005
Contribution from new business 96 80
Profit from existing business 22 25
Expected return on shareholders’ net assets 1 1

The return on embedded value, based on underlying profit after tax, reduced to
19 8% (2005 21 5%} The lower ROEV in 2006 has resulted from the significantly
higher opening embedded value (which included the impact of Lombard)

The contrnbution from new business has increased by 20% to £96m (2005 £80m}
The contnibution 1s stated net of the cost of solvency capital of £1m (2005 £1m)

The Lombard contribution 1s £70m {2005 £58m) and the FPI contribution 1s £26m
(2005 £22m) The overall margin has reduced from 3 6% to 3 3% with Lombard
achieving 3 4% (2005 3 9%) and FPI 3 1% (2005 3 1%} The Lombard margin has, as
anticipated, fallen shghtly as a result of higher case sizes wntten which have lower
margins Low new business strain results in a high IRR of 25 7% pa {2005 28 3% pa}
and a relatively short payback period (discounted) of 4 years {2005 4 years)

EEV underlying profit

(2006 +12% £119m
[2005 £106m
Return on embedded value

[2006 7 9% 198% |
[2005 215% |
Contribution from new business

(2006 +20% £96m |
[z005 | £80m

The profit from existing business reduced by 12% to £22m {2005 £25m) The
expected return on the value of the in-force book increased by 31% to £34m

(2005 £26m), reflecting the increase tn the value of the in-force business, oifset by
lower discount rates The in-force profit includes a charge for operating assumption
changes of £10m {2005 £3m charge} The main item in 2006 was a change in
persisiency assumptions on legacy with-profits bond business resulting in a charge
of £13m

Profit from existing business
-12% E£22m
£25m

Development costs within our International businesses dunng 2065 and 2006 were
not significant Development expenditure 1s expected to be in the order of £10m per
annum in 2007 and 2008 as we seek to exploit opportunities for further growth and to
delver our award winning e-<commerce solutions to the wider international market

The expected return on shareholders’ nat assets amounts to £1m (2005 £1m}
This comprises the return on the shareholders’ net assets held within the business
consistent with the mvestment return assumptions used to calcutate the embedded
value at the start of the penod

Operating expenses® have mcreased by 17% to £63m (2005 £54m) against an
increase tn PYNBP of 32% The growth in expenses reflects the less mature nature of
our International business, which 1s sull bultding cntical mass to support the growing
portfolio of products, markets and customers There i1s a firm focus on cost efficiency,
wath a number of mitiatives under way which will contnbute in 2007 and beyond These
include greater use of technology to improve serice and reduce costs across the
nternational markets in which we operate

*Operating expenses exclude commussion deferred acquisition cost agustments non-recumng tems
investment fees amoriisation and impairment of mtangibles and expenses of polcyholder investments
which are consolidated under IFRS

Operating expenses
(2006 +17%
2005

] £63m
] £54m
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Asset management

Our aim, strategies and rnisks

OUR AIM

Our aim 1s to deliver shareholder
value by seeking to exce! in
sverything that clients expect from us

Net Revenues —sea page 2§

STRATEGIES [2006 -7% £248m]
[2005 £267m]
These are explaned n more detail
on pages 76 & 27 Operating margin - see page 29
2 -17 36 5%
Focus on investment (2008 -17% L b
performance to exceed chent [2005 44 1%]
requirements Underlying profit - see page 29
@Seek and develop distribution (2066 -18% | £89m

opportunities in key markets

topzellver organic t;rowth [2005
Focus on higher margin Undertying earrungs per share — see pags 23
business 2006 _-15% |12 8p
Maintain diversity of earnings [2005 15 9p|
whilst leveraging scale

£108m ]

Funds under management — see pages 288 29
[2006_-21% | £104bn
[2005 £131bn |

NET RUNDS INFLOW DELIVER
SHAREHOLDER

VALUE

MANAGEMENT OF
EXISTING BUSINESS

These are expiained in more detas!
on page 27

[1] Poor investment
performance

[2] Polarsation and fiduciary
management

[3] Impact of EU and other
regulatory developments

El Development of ‘ ‘

operational platforms Going forward, we will continue to focus

[ﬂ Development of front office
control processes

KEY RISKS
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on performance as the key foundation to
generate shareholder value and as
warranted by the strengthening of our
product offering, we wiil further build

up our distribution capabilties , ,

Alaln Grisay
Chiaf Executive FEC Asset Management
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Our view of the market

In 2006 the asset management industry benefited from a year of positive returns i the
major asset classes Despite a sharp carrection in equities in May, markets staged a
remarkably rapid recovery The outlook for 2007 1s one of slowing economic growth and
an easing of inflationary pressures This benign backdrop should be broadly supportive
of equities although we belreve that returns are unlikely to be as high as those
expenenced in 2006 A key risk 1s a more pronounced detengration in the US than
expected We also anticipate thai volatiity will nse from the low levels seen in 2006

Merger & Acquisiion (M&A) activity was a sigmficant feature of markets duning 2006 as
companigs have shifted therr focus from balance sheet strengthening to aggressive
growth An (injection of private equity cash has also helped fuel M&A actvity, with deals
increasingly taking place at the upper end of the market cap spectrum

The asset management industry itself was not immune to this upsurge In corporate
activity, with a number of sizeable transactions duning 2006 as well as an expansion of
the listed asset management sector We envisage corporate activity remaimng an
industry trend, with drivers including the continued move towards open architecture’ by
financial services institutions notably banks bulding societies and insurance
companies As these businesses re-focus on distribbution, there 1s greater willingness to
use multiple external asset managers in therr product ranges

In the UK, firms of Independent Financial Adwsers are also scaling up to meet the
challenge of the new distribution landscape This has led to both increasing sectoral
consohdation and the emergence of new entrants The top tier of Investment advisers
are Increasingly developing discretionary services while the broad adviser market s
rmaking more use of multrmanager products Fund supermarkets are now widely used
by IFAs and we antictpate that the use of wrap accounts will gather pace Access to the
retaill market 1s therefore about positioning on these platforms and servicing distnbution
relationshtps in addition to the prerequisites of strong investrment performance
supported by a credible brand

The developments of the last few years (n the insututional market continue to gather
pace The UK has seen a shift over a number of years away from balanced
management towards the separation of "alpha’ and "beta’ and increasing use of
spectalist mandates, and this continues A comparable trend towards specialist
mandates 1s now emerging in The Netherlands, Europe’s second largest pensions
market, with a number of schemes mowving towards a fiduciary model where a third
party manager determines asset allocation, nsk budgeting and underlying manager
selection This development poses a significant risk 10 balanced management in The
Netherlands In addition across a number of developed markets there 1s a much greater
focus on ensunng that pension scheme assets are sufficient to match therr labihities
This 1s driving interest in Liability Driven Investment (LDI) and Asset Liabiity
Management (ALM)

Together, these market changes are leading to demand for mult-management capeabilities
LDI products active added value "alpha’ products and alternative investments Many of
these trends require asset managers to deepen ther denvatives expertise

This demand for more specialist products 15 prompting asset managers 1o avolve their
business models accordingly ‘House processes and top down investment leadership
through a Chief Invesiment Officer are giving way to ‘mult-boutique’ iInvestment
models where investment teams have much greater accountability for specific products
and processes, whilst leveraging off a common operational infrastructure Likewise,
remunerauon 1s becoming more integrally hnked to the performance of specific teams
and the products that they manage

UK equity market performance
FTSE 100 Index

[2008 6,221])
[2005 5619)
[2004 ] 4814
[2003 ] 4477

UK Government bond market performance
FTA Brit Govt fixed all stocks total return

[2006 1,949]
(2005 1,935}
[z004 1,793]
[2003 1682 ]

Note Al graphs are as at 31 Decernber
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How we are making our strategies work

Performance measures for F&C were rewewed following the 2004 marger of 1515 Asset Managament plc and F&C Group (Holdings) Lirmited

> Focus on investment performance to exceed client requirements

We seek to define and deliver top quartile performance in everything we do

Qur strategy s grounded in our behef in a wirtuous circle delvenng exceflent
performance will be validated by organic growth which wall, in turn, translate into
earnings growth and stock price performance

>Saek and develop distribution
opportunities in key markets to
deliver organic growth

QOur distribution model 1s based on intermedianes
and strategic partnerships We are focused on the
UK and Continental Europe Our prionty 1s to
grow organically We will take an opportunistic

approach towards any further acquisitions

2006 Key points

® 'Performance First initiative launched,
defining top quartile performance
standards

® Management team strengthened in
nvestment and infrastructure ereas

® Selectively upgraded human capital
where necessary to support our
objectives

® Further reinforced our ‘multrhoutique’
nvestment model

® Revised incentives 10 reward supenor
performance

2007 Priorities

@ Investment in front office decision nsk
and dealing systems to support the
delwvery of portfolio performance and
new product initiatives

@ Ensure stabilty of core investment
teams while selectively continuing to
upgrade personnel and optimising
resource allocation

@ Continue momentum In the
Performance First iniuative and in
communication

@ Increase product innovation and speed
to market of new products

Investment performance
2006 Key points

Performance saw broad improvement
during the year with some notable areas
of strength

® 64% of actively managed UK retal
funds delivered above median
performance in therr respective IMA
sectors and 37% were top quartile

® Fourteen funds achieved Standard &
Poor's Fund Research ratings

® Seven fund managers achieved
Citywire ratings during 2006

® 53% of institutional accounts
representing 70% of institutional
assets under management met or
exceeded therr investment objectives
In 2006 compared to 46% over
3 years

® 71% of investment trusts met or
exceeded therr performance
benchmarks

® Outperformed in UK equities,
Continental European equities, Euro
and Global Credit Euro High Yield
Emerging Market Debt, Asia ex-Japan
and mult-manager

® |Improved performance in US large
cap and Emerging Equities areas of
legacy weakness

® Four significant investment awards
achieved

2006 Key points

@ Third Party Distribution links in the UK
established with Canada Life, Zunch
International and L&G CoFunds

® New white-label share class on
emerging debt fund launched with
Commerzhank

® Won first reo® (the Group’s responsthle
engagement overlay product) mandate
in Germany

@ Launched SRI fund with Chanties Aid
Foundation and a Chanties Managed
Fund in lreland

® Opened a representative office In
Switzerland

2007 Priortties

Cur key prionty remains organic growth
founded on strong iInvestment
performance We will achieve this by

® Retaiming UK and Continental Europe
focus

® UK retal market we will work closely
with Fnends Prowvident as they develop
therr wrap business and continue to
strengthen our relations with strategic
distnbution partners and |IFAs

® In Europe we will further develop
existing sub-adwisory and wholesale
relationships

® In institutional we will continue to
expand client coverage across Europe

Corporate Health

The F&C Board has identified sixteen
corporate health indicators provading an
overview of F&C s corporate strategy
management, 1T infrastructure and control
environment These indicators are
assessed by the Board on a quanerly
basis and coded as follows

RED = At nsk
AMBER = Need for improvement
GREEN = Competitive

Number of green indicators {out of sixteen)

Percentage of Retal funds above median
{1 year}

[2008 6]
2005 1 (2008 64}
[200% ] 54
Number of red indicators (out of socteen)
Percentage of key institutional accounts
7 ding client cbjective {3 years}
[20086 46}
[2005 ] 40
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>Focus on higher margin areas

We are targeting net new business in
higher margin and specialist arcas These
include retall, alternatives and specialist
nstitutional mandates yrelding
performance fees such as emerging
market debt, high yield, and high alpha
equities

Key risks

lI]Poor histornical investment

> Marmntain diversity of eamings whulst

leveragtng scale

We are a diversified business by chent
type, asset mix and geography This
provides us with a robust business
model across market cycles We benefit
from scale in terms of research,
infrastructure, distributron and access to
the market

2006 Key points

UK retal funds saw net inflows of
£309m a 98% tncrease on 2005
Launched three new UK equity retail
funds which accumulated £230m assets
under management

Launched Luxembourg registered LDI
pooled funds on the back of the
success In The Netherdands

Strong inflows \n Germany for credit
and emerging market debt

In Novermber we launched an FX and
farward rate volatihty hedge fund
Average basis points fees increased
over calendar year 2005 and we earned
performance fees of £9 5m

2007 Pniorrties

Prionty products in the UK institutional
market wall include LD, reo® and higher
margin products

In Continental Eurcpe the product focus
will vary from market to market

Prionty retall producis are UK equities,
Stewardship mult-manager Life-style
Funds corporate bonds and cash-

plus products

We will launch a fixed income hedge
fund in Q1 2007 and a fund of hedge
funds investment trust in 1H 2007

We will launch an ethically screened
product into the US market

We will leverage our strength in credit
by developing a CDO platform

2006 Key points

® Continued to diversify distribution
across Europe, with our German and
French offices generating greater net
inflows than 2005 We opened a
representative office in Switzerland

® Continued to develop the mult-
boutique investment model,
embedding the concept in our
management structure and
nvestment process

® Progressed outstanding |7 projects
relating to the integration of F&C
and IS1$ in accordance with the
tmetable set

2007 Priorrhies

® Broaden range of higher margin
products with new initiatives in GTAA
products, hedge funds and private
equity fund of funds

® Enhance marketabihty of SICAV range
in Europe

® Develop new products for our sub-
advisory partners

® Cross sell exssung products, such as
global real estate securities and ethical
funds, into new markets

® Continue to consider oppartunities for
bolt-on acquisitions, particularly those
which bring added distnbution

Average basis points earned on Assets
Under Management

Operating Margin

[2008

22 |

[2006 ] 36 5%

[z005

21

[z005 44 1%]

performance, leading to the loss
of key investment mandates

Dunng 2006 we have further
strengthened investment teams and
will continue to Invest N new talent
While investment performance has
improved across asset classes, thes will
take time to translate into the longer
term track records a key requirement
of consultants

E] Market trends towards polansation

{"barbell’) and fiduciary management.

The trend, particularly in The Netherlands,
towards fiduciary management presents
a business nsk for the balanced
institutional mandates managed by F&C
but also opens up new opportunities
F&C has established a project team to
introduce a number of Intiatives to
manage this risk Including our own
fiduciary senace and Liabilty Enven
Investment and GTAA overlays for
balanced and multasset portfolios

Elmpact of EU and other regulatory

developments

The Markets in Financial Instruments
Directive and Capital Requrement
Directive present short to medium
term challenges for asset management
businesses Programmes are in place
to prepare for implementation

E]Developmem of operational platforms

In 2005 F&C terminated its negotiations
with Mellon for the outscurcing of the
back office operations withun the ex-1SIS
book of business In 2006 the
administrative operations continued to
be run on two distinct platforms, one
outsourced and one in-house Senkor
management conunued 10 keep the
performance of both operationat
platforms under review by ensunng
detaled service level agreemenis exist
and key performance indicators are
monitored Management will dunng
2007 be considenng ways of
enhancing the operational efficiency

of these arangements

E]Development of front office

control processes

Progress has been made dunng 2006
n refation to the development and
implementation of the front office
dealing decision support and pre and
post execution monitanng systems
F&C continues to operate short term
controls, albert more manual in nature,
to manage the nsk Dunng 2007,
sigrificant milestones should be
achieved 1n our strategic plans to
replace and enhance these systems
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Our trading performance and outlook

Qverall, funds under management as at 31 December 2006 were £104bn,
compared with £131bn at the end of 2005 Across 2006, F&C expenenced
net outflows of £32bn of assets under management

Insurance — The remaining £21bn of Resolution Life assets were withdrawn dunng the
second quarter of 2006 and F&C received £27m in compensation F&C has focused its
attention dunng 2006 on exploiting opportunities within the emerging sector of annuity
consolidators The development of a dedicated Insurance and ALM capability has given
F&C the ability to provide solutions to the specific Issues facing insurance businesses

Instrtutional — £8bn of insttutional net outflows were broadly related to the following

factors

e An industry trend away from balanced to specialist mandates (including the
migration of the £3 4bn Vervoer mandate in The Netherlands to a fiduciary model}

¢ Loss of the £1bn Electricity Supply Pension Scherne property mandate

® A shift towards passive management by some schemes

* Disappointing legacy investment performance in sovereign fixed income

At the end of 2006, F&C had been informed of further future cutflows of some £5bn
and further institutional outflows may result in 2007 The impagt that the consultant
community has on our organtc growth plans across Eurepe 1s significant particularly in
the UK and Ireland Sales actmwty has therefore focused on extending investment
consultant coverage F&C has concentrated on promoting composite UK bonds, high
alpha UK equities, LDI and alternatves Changes in regulaticn and a greater awareness
of governance and social 1ssues have continued 10 create opportumties throughout
Europe for the Governance and Sustainable Investment team

Good progress has been made with consultants in newer product areas such as LDI
and UK High Alpha Equities

Investment Trusts - 2006 was a penod of considerable corporate activity wathin the

investment trust sector A £694m net outflow of investment trust assets related to

three factors

* The loss of the F&C Emerging Markets Trust due to corporate activity

* The loss of the F&C Latn Amencan and 1SIS Smaller Comparies trusts following
manager departuras

* Share buy backs, discount controls and restructunngs initiated by the trusts

QOur investment trusts savings producis continued to account for approximately a third
of all inflows with our Child Trust Fund exceeding our targeted business volumes The
F&C UK Select Trust adopted & urigue strategy among UK equity trusts ahead of its
rollover Dunng the first half of 2007 we will look 10 expand our range of nvestment
trusis with the launch of a listed fund of hedge funds vehicle

UK Retail - 2006 was a strong year with net retail sales up 98% This was ahead of the
industry increase of 87 5% Flows were spread across a range of key products including
our ethical UK equities, corporate bonds and multrmanager Relationships with key
distribution partners have strengthened and we have extended access to our products
on a number of platforms Our focus in 2007 will remain on multi-manager,

UK equities, ethical investment and corporate bonds Addionally we are enhancing

the marketing of our cash-plus product and will cross-sell our Luxernbourg registered
global real estate fund into the UK

Continental European Retail — We saw positive progress in The Netherlands and a
strong first half in Poriugal Foltowing the sharp dechine in equities in May fund flows
reversed in Portugal as retait investors switched into cash This resulted 1n a net cutflow
of £278m in our total sub-advisory business at year end Retall flows were positive In
Germany, where we established a whitedabelled share class on our emerging debt
fund for Commerzbank and reached a five year performance record on our flagshup F&C
HVB Stftungsfonds product which 1s co-branded with HypoVereinsbank We have now
created a Euro denominated version of the Siewardship International fund and will seek
ways to enhance the marketing of our SICAV range
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2006 fund flows

Qutflows <]

D Inflows

Insurance E23;877m’
Institunional £10,944m |
Retail £4,165m [_|

[ £2,941m
] £3,555m

Net total  |£32,290m

*£20 751m retated ta Rasolution Life

Assets under managemant by client category

Chart removed

Client category 20068 2005
Insurance 57% 60%
Institutional 27%  27%
Retal 16% 13%

Assets under management by asset class

Chart ramoved

Asset class 2006 2005
Fixed interest 52% 55%
Equities 37% 35%
Property 5% 5%
QOther alternatve Investmants 1% 1%
Monay market 5% 4%
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Our financial performance

Asset Management underlying profit decreased by 18% to £89m (2005 £108m) Underlying profit
This reduction mainly anses as a result of the fall in revenues following the [2006 -18% | £89m
previously announced loss of investment mandates {2005 £108m]

IFRS underlying profit campnises (figures in £m) 2005 2005

Net revenues 248 267

Operating expenses {159) {151)

Other axpenses (net) - 8
Underlying earmings per share reduced by 19% to 12 8p (2005 15 9p) This F&C underlying earnings per share
reduction mainly anses &s a result of the decrease 1n underlying profit but also (2008 _19% |128p
reflecting an increase in the number of shares in 1ssue (2005 15 9p|
Net revenues amounted to £248m (2005 £267m} Revenues were impacted by net Net revenues
fund outflows of £32bn {2005 £6bn} including £21bn in respect of Resolution Life [2006 -7% £248m |
following their merger with Britannic Net revenues include performance-related (2005 £267m|

management fees of £10m (2005 £13m)

Operating expenses* represent the ongoing costs of runming the business and these Operating expenses
have ingreased by 5% to £159m {2005 £151m) Expenses have increased due 1o [2006 +5% £159m]
inflationary pressure and increasing competition for management talent Staff related [2008 £181m|

costs amount to approximaiely 60% of toial costs and the management of headcount
1s critical to effecuve cost control

Other expenses included in underlying profits, but excluded from cperating costs,
mainly consist of net finance costs

*Operating expenses exclude Retnvestment Plan costs amortisaton and imparment of intangible
as5e1s, restructunng ¢osts and nei gperating costs on investrment and insurance costs

Operating margin represents the ratio of operating profit to net revenues and Operating margmn
decreased from 44 1% to 36 5% The declineg in operating margin 1s mainly due to the [2008 -17% | 36 5%
lower revenue resulung from the loss of mandates We anticipate that the marg:n will [2005 34 1%)

fall to around 30% in 2007 as although new products will have a higher margin, our
accelerated investment plan will mean investing in additional product and distnbution
personnel and infrastructure

Funds under management reduced from £131bn to £104bn Whilst new business of Funds under management
£6bn was won during the year the loss of the Resolution Life contract through corporate [2006 _21% £104bn |
activity was a major factor tmpacting our net outflows of £32bn Resolution outflows tn 2005 F131on ]

2005 were approximately £5bn and a further £21bn was withdrawn in the first half
2006 We agreed a termination payment with Resolution in respect of this business of
£27m which was received in the first half of 2006 (and accounted for as a capiial receipt
to write down the value of the intangible asset) MNet fund flows are a key performance
measure for us and ndicauve of the growth of our business

Intangible assets - the level of fund losses in insututional and investment trust clients
and resultant impact on future revenue was sigmificant enough to be considered a
potental indicator of imparrment in respect of the related intangible assets A full
impairment review of these assets was therefore undertaken which indicated that the
recoverable amount was less than the carrying value by £58m (2005 £112m) and
accordingly an impairment charge was booked and inclueded in Other Profit ltems

{see page 32) The value of investment management contracts at 31 December 2006
amounted to £284m {2005 £416mi

Under IFRS we are required to conduct an annual imparrment review of the camying value
of goodwll as there 15 no annual amortisation charge Our review demonstrated that there
was no impatrment in Asset Management goodwill and hence no requirement 10 write
down goodwill {2005 £}
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UK LIFE & PENSIONS

Group Financial Performance

Group profitability on the European Embedded Value (EEV) basis

EEV BASIS

Our results are presented on two bases European Embedded Value

{EEV) and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS)

EEV 1s the basis we find more useful because 1t provides a more

representative reflection of the performance of the long-term business
that fully recognises the shareholders’ interest in the in-force portfolic

on a rnisk adjusted basis

The key diffearences betwean the EEV and IFRS bases of accounting are

set out on page 32

EEV PROFIT before tax (Em)

UK LIFE & PENSIONS DOWN 4% — see page 17

INTERNATIONAL LIFE & PENSIONS UP 12% - see page 23

ASSET MANAGEMENT DOWN 18% - soe page 29

CORPORATE ITEMS - see page 31

Expected return on net pension lability

Expected return on corporata net assets
Corporate costs

QOperating assumpton changas for corparate costs

EEV UNDERLYING PROFIT BEFQRE TAX

OTHER PROFIT JTEMS — see page 31

Invastment return vanances

Effect of economi¢ assumption changes

Non recurring itams

Amortisation of Asset Management acquired intangible assets
Impaiment of Asset Management acguirad intangible assats
Venatien i value of option on convertible deb:

EEV PROFIT BEFORE TAX

The EEV results have been preparad in accordance with the
EEV pnnciples issued by the European CFO Forum The EEV
rasults for the Life & Pansions business {covered business)
are cormnbingd wath the resufts for the remander of the
business reported in accordance with IFRS, except where EEV
panciples dictate otherwisa In particular the EEV pnnciples
have been apphed to reflect Step-up Tier one Insurance Capial
Secunties (STICS) as debt rather than equity

When considenng the EEV results management
focuses on undarhang profit as this measure better
reflects the performance
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EEV EEV
UNDERLYING UNDERLYING
PROFIT EARNINGS

BEFORE TAX ’ PER SHARE
£509m 16 4p

{2005 £524m) (2005 16 3p)
DOWN 3% UP 1%

A\ A\

EEV PROFIT EEV BASIC
BEFORE TAX EARNINGS
£398m ' PER SHARE
2005 £600m) 14 6p
DOWN 34% (2005 21 2p)
DOWN 31%

v \4

DIVIDEND PER SHARE 7 &5p
(2005 7 7p) UP 2%

These resuhts represent a considerable
achievement with total Life & Pensions new
business up 31% and a total sharehotder

return of 19% Although EEV underlying

profits are sl:ghtly lower, IFRS profits have
shown a significant increase The dwidend to
shareholders is up 2% to 7 85p per share , ,

Jim Smart
Group Finance Drector




INTERNATIONAL LIFE & PENSIONS

ASSET MANAGEMENT

GROUP FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

CONCLUSIONS AND QUTLOOK

Group EEV underlying profit before tax has reduced by 3% to £609m (2005
£524m} Overall profit from our life & pensions businesses 1s unchanged but
there has been an 18% decrease in profit at our Asset Management business,
where we have seen a net outflow of funds and resulting lower revenues

Group EEV profit before tax has reduced by 34% to £398m (2005 £600m) This
profit measure takes into account the impacts of investment return variances,
economic assumption changes, non-recurring items and other costs In net
terms these were negative by £111m in 2006 but positive by £76m 1in 2005,

as discussed below

Underlying profit before tax ~ There was a reduction in underlying profit {(excluding
corporate items) in UK Life & Pensions of 4% an increase in International Life &
Pensions of 12% and a reduction in Asset Management of 8% Included in underlying
profit before tax 1s a charge for persistency of £68m with £21m in respect of the current
pension products and the balance relating to legacy products This charge has largely
been offset by a lower cost of burnthrough in 2006 of £36m and favourable morbidity
and mortahty assumption changes of £27m Commentary on the segmental results 1s
given on pages 17, 23 and 29

Corporate tems included in underlying profits total £14m negative (2005 £18m
negativel These costs include STICS interest Detadls are shown in the table on page
30 with the main item being corporate costs which amount to £13m {2005 £12m}
The expected return on the net pension liability has increased in 2006 mainly because
the calculation includes the expected return on derivative assets for the first tme

Group EEV underlying profit
[z006 3%
[2005

£509m |
£634m |

Group EEV profit before tax
[Z006 -34%
[2005

] £398m
£600m |

Underlying profit by business segment

Chart removed

Bustness segment 2006 2005
UK Life & Pensions 58% 60%
International Life & Pensions 23% 20%
Asset Management 19% 20%

The contnbution from total Life & Pensions new business, (included in underlying
profit), has increased by 42% to £204m (2005 £144m) The new business margin as a
percentage of PYNBP has increased from 2 7% to 2 9% largely dnven by 30% sales
growth in the UK where operational leverage increased the margin from 2 0% 10 2 6%

Contribution from Life & Pensions
new husiness

[2006 +42% £204m |
(2005 1 £144m

The Lde & Pensions return on embedded value has decreased from 11 2% to 9 9%
reflecting unchanged underlying profit and higher opening net assets on an EEV basis
The UK return 1s 7 9% (2005 9 4%) and the International returnis 19 8% {2005 21 5%},
which reflects the much higher proportion of new business profit to embedded value
compared with the UK business

Life & Pensions return on embedded value

The other profit rtems excluded from underlying profit but included i profit before tax
are shown m the table on page 30 and total £111m negatve (2005 £76m positive)
The main factors impacting 2006 were good equity returns which generated a positive
impact, but these were offset by an increase in fixed interest yields which resulied in a
negative iImpact In addition investment return vanances were negatively impacted by
an increase In the market value of our £290m convertble bond {reflecting the increase
in Fnends Provident’s share pnce over the year) and by an increase in the investment
related costs of options and guarantees The posiiive vanance was significantly higher
in 2005 as equity returns were higher and fixed interest yields fell - both of which
generated significant positive impacts The nisk free rate used for Sterding was 4 6%
{2005 4 1%} and 4 1% for the Euro (2005 3 6%)

Non-recurring items compnse F&C integration costs of £7m (2005 £24m), F&C
Reinvestment Plan costs of £12m {2005 £22m) relating to the share schemes put in
ptace at the tme of the merger, FPI integration costs of £nil (2005 £6m), a release of
mis-selling provisions of £4m (2005 charge of £7m} and costs associated with the
closure of the Appointed Representative sales channel of £2m (2005 £nil)

The reduced amortisation of Asset Management intangible assets of £43m {2005
£56m) reflects a lower book value of these assets as a result of impawrments partially
offset by a higher amortisattion rate iImplemented durnng 2006 The impairment charge
of £68m (2005 £112m) anses from reviewing the farr value of the intangible assets
associated with F&C investment management contracts following the Joss of mandates

[2606 -12% ] 9 9%
{2005 112% |
Other profit items
|2005 negative £111m

2005 positive £76m
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Group profitability on the International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) basis

IFRS BASIS

We present IFRS results in accordance with the EU regulations requinng all
European hsted groups to prepare IFRS accounts

The key differences between the IFRS and EEV bases are n respect of the
timing of profit recognition Underlying IFRS profits tend to be lower than
EEV profits when new business volume 1s growing because EEV
recognises future cash flows in profit, while IFRS does not In addition,
IFRS does not allow full deferral of acquisition expenses which i1s relatively
onerous for investment products, such as group pensions

In 2006, IFRS profits have benefited from positive basis and regulatory
changes, which contnbuted some £123m and £33m respectively The basis
change arises from morbidity on protection business and the regulatory
change anses from tmplementation of PS05/14, Prudential Changes for
Insurers These are discussed on page 33

A reconcthation between ordinary shareholders’ equity on an EEV basis
with equity attributable to agquity holders of the parent on an IFRS basis 1s
set out In note 8 on page 180

KEY DIFFERENCES BETWEEN EEV AND [FRS

NEW BUSINESS

EEV explicitly recognises new business profit in year
of sale by prudently estimating future cash flows and
discounting these using an appropriate nsk discount rate

IFRS recognises only the statutory surplus on new
business and some acauistion costsfiront end fees are
daferred On most product lines the IFRS year ona
profit 1s negative, offset by surpluses in future years

IN-FORCE BUSINESS

The EEV in-force profit ts the unwind of the risk
discount rate reflecung the fact that future cash flows
becorne one year nearer realisation, and the impact of
expenence varying from assumptions

The IFRS profit on in-force business 15 the statutory
surpius for the year adjusted for IFRS items such as
the amorusavon of the deferred acquisition costs/front
end fees

IFRS PROFIT BEFORE TAX (£m) 2008 2005
UK LIFE & PENSIONS - see page 33 254 138 »
IFRS IFRS
INTERNATIONAL LIFE & PENSIONS - see page 33 n - * UNDERLYING UNDERLYING
PROFIT EARNINGS
BEFORE TAX ’ PER SHARE
£400m 17 9p
ASSET MANAGEMENT - see page 29 89 108 » {2005 £224m) {2005 8 8p)
UP 79% UP 103%
CORPORATE ITEMS - ses page 33 ) (22—
Expected return on net pension liability 9 (2
Expected retern an corporate net assets {10} {6) 1 v
Corporate costs (13} {14}
IFRS UNDERLYING PROFIT BEFORE TAX 400 224 IFRS PROFIT IFRS BASIC
BEFORE TAX* EARNINGS
OTHER PROFIT ITEMS— see page 33 91 143 » £491m PER SHARE
Policyholder tax 0] 218 (2005 £367m) 12 1p
Y UP 34% {2005 6 3p)
Returns on Group controlled funds atinbutable to third partes 10 57 @ UP 108%
Short-term fluctuations in mvestment return (39) 102
Interest payable on STICS 52 7 v v
Non recumng sems n (59}
Amarusation of Assat Management a¢quired intangible assets (43) |56} DIVIDEND PER SHARE 7 85p
Amorusation of acquired present valug of in force business 25) 128) {2005 7 7p} UP 2%
Amortisauon of Life & Pensions acquired intangible assets {n n
Imparment of Asset Management acquired intangible assets {58} ma
Varniazon 10 value of opuon on convertible debt - k3]
IFRS PROFT BEFORE TAX* Lk 357

*IFRS profit before tax from continuing operations

When considenng the IFRS results, management focuses on underlying profit as this
measure better reflects the perforrmance
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Group IFRS underlying profit before tax has increased by 79% to £400m {2005 IFRS underlying profit
£224m} The total Life & Pensions underlying profit was 136% up in 2006 with [2006 +79% £400m }
mcreased volumes of new business generating higher new business strain being [2005 ] £224m

offset by higher profits from in-force business and posrtive basis and regulatory
changes The underlying profit from Asset Managemaent fell by 18%, mainly ansing
from the withdrawal of funds as a result of corporate activity

Group IFRS profit before tax from continuing operations has increased by 34% to

£491m (2005 £367m) This profit measure takes into account the actual investment  IFRS profit before tax

returns achieved dunng the year, offset by the impacts of non-recurring and other [2008 +34% £491m |
tems It s also shown gross of policyholder tax and mmnonty interests In net terms  [2005 ] £367m
these were £91m posrtive in 2006 and £143m posrtive in 2005, as discussed below

UK Life & Pensions underlying profit has increased by 84% to £254m (2005 £138m) UK Life & Pensions underlying profit

New business strain in UK Life & Pensions has increased to £96m {2005 £82m) due [2006 +84% £254m |
to Increased new business volumes offset by higher deferred acquisition costs In 2006,  [2005 ] £138m
£216m (2005 £190m} of acquisition expenses were deferred The in-force profit has

increased to £298m (2005 £157m), pnmanly due to the basis and reserving changes for

morbidity on protection business following significant improvernents in claims expenence

of £123m and changes in reserving rules ansing from PS06/14 of £33m The PS06/14

rules are being phased in by the Group over 2 years and we anticipate a similar impact on

IFRS profits in 2007 The other underlying profit component s the expected return on

shargholders’ net assets of £02m (2005 £63m) The fonger-term investment return rates

assumed were equities 7 25% {2005 7 5%, property 6 25% (2005 7 5%) gilis 4 25%

(2005 5 0%) and other fixed interest 4 75% (2005 5 75%) For 2007 these rates of

return will all be increased by 0 75% to reflect increases in interest rates

tnternational Life & Pensions underlying profit amounts to £71m (2005 £nil} made International Life & Pensions underlymg profit
up of FPl of £67m (2005 £11m loss), Lombard £13m (2005 £9m) and other £1m £71m
(2005 £2m) New business strain In International Life & Pensions has fallen to £28m 2005 £nil

(2005 £33m) as a result of a change n business mix enabling more acquisition costs
to be deferred In 2006, £116m (2005 £82m) of acquisition costs were deferred

The in-force prefit has increased to £98m (2005 £31m) due to growth in the size of
the in-force book and to changes in actuanial funding which contnbuted £26m for FPI
(2005 negauve valuation adjustments of £21m})

Asset Management underlying profit has reduced by 18% o £89m {2005 £108m) Asset Management undertying profit
For the Asset Management business, underlying profit under IFRS is the same as for £89m
EEV and 1s discussed on page 29 £108m

Corporate tems included in underlying profit total £14m negative (2005 £22m negative} Corporate items
These comprise the expected return on the net pension liability of £9m positive (2005 L] 2066 £14m negative
£2m negative) expected return on corporate net assets ot £10m negative {2005 £6m  [_] 2005 £22m negative
negative), less corporate costs of £13m (2005 £14m)

The other profit tems excluded from undertying profit but included in profit before Other profit items
tax are shown in the table on page 32 and total £91m {2005 £143m) The non-recurnng £91m
iiems amortisation and impairment of intangible assets are the same as under EEV £143m

and discussed on page 31 Policyholder tax and returns on Group controlled funds
attnbuiable to third parties (the laiter mainly representing the minonty interest held in

F&C Commercial Property Trust which 1s 53% owned by the Group s long term funds)
are excluded from underlying profit as neither 1s attributable 1o shareholders The
short-term investment return fluctuations of £39m negative (2006 £102m positive)

reflect differences between the actual and expected investment market returns Within
the calculation of underlying IFRS profit (as in EEV) we account for the STICS as debt to
reflect the economic reality However, IFRS rules require that STICS should be accounted
for as equity in calculating IFRS profit before tax and consequently STICS interest 1s added
back and treated as an appropriation of profit

Friends Prowvident Annual Report & Accounts 2006 33




ANNUAL REVIEW

CHAIRMAN 5 STATEMENT GRGUP CHIEF EXECUTIVE S REVIEW

ABOUT THE FRIENDS PROVIDENT GRCUP

UK LIFE & PENSIONS

Shareholders’ equity

Our aim 15 to grow shareholder value in ine with the
Group’s strategies which are summansed on page 9 Our
Life & Pensions new business results for 2006 show both
UK and International operations growmyg strongly wrth
total new business up 31% The prospects for Asset
Management, whilst challenging in the short term, have
the potential to generate significant organic growth and
new diverse revenue streams We anticipate investing
£40m-£50m in both 2007 and 2008 to achieve our Life &
Pensions objectives and we are accelerating our investment
plans to achieve our Asset Management objectives We
believe that these ambitious growth plans are the nght
way forward for the Group to dehiver increasing profitability
and increasing shareholder value

The total equity interest in the Group has increased by 6% to
£4,165m (2005 £3 940m) This 15 made up of equity attnbutable
to ordinary shareholders of £2,807m {2005 £2,688m), to other
equity holders (STICS holders) of £810m {2005 £810m}) and
rmnonty interest of £548m (2005 £442m) The ordinary
shareholders eguity comprises share capital of £214m (2005
£214m} share prermium of £2 051m {2005 £2 038m) and other
reserves (manly retained earmngs} of £5642m (2005 £436m)

The company's allotted and fully paid share capital at

31 December 2006 consists of 2,139m ordinary shares of

10 pence sach (including 23m treasury shares) Detalls of the
shares 1ssued in the year are set out In note 37 to the financial
statements The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to vote at
company meetings and are entitled to recewve dividends There
are no nights attaching to treasury shares until they are reissued

Issues of shares in 2007 are anticipated to include employee
share schemes final earm-out payment in respect of Lormbard
and the £280m convertble bonds due 2007

Friends Provident share reqgister at 31 Cecember 2006
Size of investment No of holdings Mo of shares %
iMillions) Shares
Up to 100 000 705876 576 27
100 001 10 1 GO0 000 173 64 4
1,000,001 to 5 000 000 80 189
5,000,001 to 25 000 000 53 551 26
25 D0G 001 to 50,000 000 4 156 7
50 000 001 ang over 4 580 27
Total 706 180 2116 100
Excluding treasury shares

The substantial shareholdings in the company at 31 December
2006 are set out in the Directors’ Report on page 48 with detals
of the dirsctors’ shareholdings i the company set out in note 43
on page 162 The entire share capital of the company 1s free
float The major shareholders in F&C, our hsted Asset
Management subsidiary, at 31 December 2006 were FP plc
which held 52% and Eureko BY which held 20% At 31
December 2006 the free float of F&C shares was 27% and
there were approximately 2 500 F&C shareholders
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The company's share price increased by 15% dunng 2006
(2005 23%) and was 217p at 31 December 2006 (2005 189p)
In 2006 the FTSE 100 Index increased by 11% {2005 17%)
The share pnce of F&C increased by 19% during 2006 {2005
decreased by 29%) and was 211p at 31 December 2006
(2005 177p) In 2006 the FTSE 250 Index ncreased by 27%
(2005 27%}

The total shareholder return {or the company’s shareholders
for the year was 19 0% compared with 14 4% for the FTSE 100
angd 22 4% for the FTSE 360 Life Insurance Sector Cumulatvely
for the past 4 years, the total shareholder return was 119%
compared with 81% for the FTSE 100 and 109% for the FTSE
350 Life Insurance Sector

The total dividend for 2006 of 7 85 pence per share {including
the proposed final dwvidend of 5 2 pence per share) represents
an increase over 2005 of 2% This 1s covered 2 3 tmes {2005
11 umes) by IFRS underlying profit after tax and rminority
interasts  After deducting the basis and regulatory changes
discussed above, the dividend cover 1s approximately 1 5 times
The 2006 dividend 1s covered more than 5 times by available
distnbutable reserves in the company and FPLP The increase
in dwvidend 1s 1n line with our policy of providing dividend
growth up to the rate of inflaticn

The company’s market value at 31 December 2006 amountad
to £4,603m (2005 £3,970m} The market value of our listed Asset
Management subsichary armounted 10 £1,018m (2005 £845m}
QOur 52% holding in this company {and included n the pro forma
embedded value) has increased by 21% to £534m (2005 £441m)

The embedded value, on a pro forma basis, has increased by
6% to £3,660m {2005 £3 464m) as set out below

Figures in £m 2006 2005
Sharehciders invested net assets 1164 1 064
Value of in-force Life & Pensions business 2031 2,019
Market value of Asset Management business 534 441
Othar {mainly provision for future corporate ¢osts) (69} (B0}
3.560 3464

As at 31 December 20086, the Shareholders’ net assets were
invested broadly in a mix of 44% equities and 56% fixed interest
securities and cash

The difference between the embedded value and the market
value represents the value that the market places on the future
prospects of the company 10 generate profits from wnting new
business and cther intangible assets such as goodwill
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Cash generation and long-term borrowings

Shareholder cash generation Is set out below

2006 2005
Cash consumption <@ | P> Cash generation  Cash consumption <} Cash generaton
UK Life & Pensions New busingss strain £295m E261m
In-force surplus _  E507m] | F253m]
Taxation []€£35m |1 £102m
International Life & Pensions New business stran E£65m |:| EESmD
Inforce surplus [ ]£99m ] e71m
Taxation £1m ] £2m
Sub total Life & Pensions net cash operating surplus £280m] :J £100m
Other operating surplusfideficit) ]Elm £8m
investment retum []£31m [ ] £8%m
F&C dividend recewed 1 £28m ] £27m
Sub total cash generated by the business before finance items £340m £206m
Dividends paid £164m £157m | ]
Securitisation £86m ]: £a9m [
Fuancial rensurance £69m[ | £17m{[ ] £40m
Cther finance items £76m £36m [
Total movement ESSm% £13m [

Total cash generated before application to financing tems increased to £340m up from £206m in 2005 Significant contributions to this
increase are £151m from the impact of implementing the reserving rule changes in PS06/14 for some products, and £123m from the
release of excess prudence in morbidity reserves on incorne protection business When we complete the implementation of the
changes 1n PS06/14 for the remainder of the affected products we expect there to be a similar in-force item far 2007

The new business strain has increased to £295m {2005 £261m} due to increased levels of new business partally offset by lower
new business strain due to the reserving basis changes The in-force surplus has increased to £507m {(£2005 £253m) mainly as a
result of the above impacts The tax credit of £34m (2005 £100m) anses from the offset of taxable profits against increased expenses
following losses on the fixed interest investment portfoho The 20056 figure benefited from rehef for brought forward tax losses We
expect tax credits t¢ anse in future penods, albeit at a lower level than in 2006 After apphcation of this surplus to repaying financial
engineenng capital payments (including the Lombard earn-out} and payment of the 2006 dividend, there was a modest cash outflow
of £656m (2005 £13m outftow) which reconciles to shareholder cash resources as follows

2006 2005 Movement
£m fm £m
Shareholders invested net assets 1164 1 064 100
Sacuntisaton 93 179 186)
Financial reinsurance - 69 {69)
Shareholder cash resources 1257 1312 155)
The Group’s long-term borrowings, including STICS (which are treated as equity in {FRS) are set out below

Long-term borrowings Coupon % 2006 £m 2005 £
Subordinated habilities
£215m FP Finance PLC undated subordinated guaranteed bonds {repaid 20086) 9125 - 215
£260m F&L subordinated debt Various 258 -
£10m Lombard undated subordinated loans Vanous 10 10
£10m F&C subordinated ioan 6m LIBOR + 1 05 - 10
Debenture loans
£280m Box Hill Life Finance plc securitisation notes — class A-1 due 2016 3m LIBOR + 0 20 198 280
£100m Box Hill Life Finance plc securitisanon notes — class A-2 due 2019 3mLIBOR + 023 100 100
£8m Friends Provident Investment Holdings plc loan notes cue 2006 LIBOR -0 50 - 6
£230m F&C Commercial Property Trust {a palicyhoider invesimant} secured bonds due 2017 523 229 229
€35m Lombard financial reinsurance treaty LIBOR + 2 00 24 22
£18m Friends Provident plc loan notes due 2011 LIBOR-075 18 -
Convertible bonds
£290m Frends Provident plc convertibla bonds due 2007 525 283 276
Total iong-term borrowings 1,120 1148
Subordinated borrowings [designated as equity under IFRS)
£300mm Friends Provident ple STICS callable 2019 6875 297 297
£500m Friends Provident plc STICS callable 2055 6292 435 495
Total long-term borrowings including STICS 1,912 1940

Borrowings are net of capitalised 1ssue casts

Full detaits of the Group’s long-terrm borrowings are set out In note 32 to the financial statemenis
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ANNUAL REVIEW
CHAIRMAN § STATEMENT

GROUP CHIEF EXECUTIVE S REVIEW

ABQUT THE FRIENDS PROVIDENT GROUP

LUK LIFE & PENSIONS

Group financial strength

The Group remains financially strong
and our financial standing has been
further improved dunng 2006

We continue to manage our business
financially on the basis of our economic
capital We have developed a
sophisticated economic capiial model,
which has helped with setung our financial
risk appetite and our continued drive for
capttal efficiency We look at nisks arising
from 3 key sources Strategic, Financial
and Operational, with due account taken
of diversification where appropriate The
outcome from the model has resufted in a
number of acticns to manage financial nsk
and such modeling forms the basis for
discussions with the FSA to agree the
individual capital requirements for each
company based on an assessment of its
own nsk profite

EEV required capital 1s set at the higher
of regulatory and economic capiial In
aggregate, the economic capital
requirernents are higher than regulatory
requirements by approximately £200m
{2005 £100m}

in add:ition to maintaming our economic
capital, we also ensure that we comply
comfortably with all other regulatory
capital requirements These include the
realistic solvency requirament for our
FPLP with-profits business, our regulatory
solvency in accordance with FSA
regulations for the remainder of our UK
Life & Pensions business and Asset
Management business local regulatory
requirements for overseas businesses and
our Group solvency requirements as
detaled on these pages

Woe have continued to make good
progress in reducing financial risk i the
business and these actions are reaping
tangble benefits, for example wath our
management of the FPLP With-Profits
Fund and the staff pension scheme

Note All indicators are quoted as at
31 December for each year

Group caprtal

The Life & Pensions capital statement
shows the available capital resources
compared with the regulatory capital
requirements The Group also has to file
an annual Insurance Groups Directive
{IGD? return setting out the capital
rasources and caprtal requirernents of the
whole Group

FPLP Realistic solvency

The Reahstic Balance Sheet is an integral
part of how we manage the wath-profits
bustness of the Group

The Life & Pensions capital statement,
drawn up in accordance with FRS 27 s
set out In note 29 to the financial
statements

The total available capital resources,
calculated on a realisuc basis for the FPLP
With-Profits Fund and on a requlatory
basis for all other funds, amounts to

£2 5bn (2005 £2 5bn)

The regulatory capital requirement 1s

£0 7bn (2005 £0 7bn) Therefore the
excess capital resources over the capital
requirement amounts 1o £1 8bn (2005
£1 8bn)

The bulk of the Group's capital 1s held
outside the with-profits funds and,
cansequently, can be deployed around
the Group with a relauvely high degree
of flexibitity

The Group 15 required to comply with the
Insurance Groups Directive, which
requires a very prudent measure of
excess capital resources as it excludes
any surplus capital held within a long-term
fund On this measure, the prowvisional
surplus Group capital resources were
approxirmately £1 0bn at 31 December
2006 (2005 £0 Bbn) The increase anses
from recent regulatory changes and
mproved capital management

The assets and habiities of the FPLP With-
Profits Fund are calculated on a realistic
basis Policyholder lrabilities (including
options and guarantees) are valued using
a market consistent stochastic model

At 31 December 2006, surplus assets
amounted to £254m and the Risk Capital
Margin (RCM) was £220m Our objective
15 to manage the Fund so that, over time,
the RCM should be covered from assets
within the Fund Accordingly the excess
assets have been reserved for
policyholders via a reduction in future
guarantee charges leaving residual surplus
assets of £220m At 31 December 2005
surplus assets amounted to £236m and
the RCM amounted to £276m leaving
£40m to be met by surplus assets
outside the Fund

The FPLP With-Profits Fund Realistic
Balance Sheet 1s resilient in the event of
falls or nses in nvestment markets This
1s due In large measure to the actions
we have taken to hedge the provisions
made to cover the cost of guarantees
and options

Life & Pensions excess capital resources

Risk Caprtal Margin coverage from within
the FPLP With-Profits Fund

[2006 £1,832m | | [2006 WPF surplus assets ] £220m
(2005 £1,813m] {2008 (Risk Capital Margin) RCM | £220m
[2004 ] €1 202m {2005 WPF £236m |
This shows the overall surplus capital aver {___RC™ £276m])
regulatory requirements in respect of the Group s
Life and Pensions business as set out in note 29 2004 WPRF £13im
Comparable figures for 2002 have not bean [ RCM £279m |
produced on this basis £81m

[__RcM 1 £216m
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INTERNATIONAL LIFE & PEMSIONS

ASSET MANAGEMENT

GROUP FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

FPLP Regulatory solvency

FPLP aiso reports regulatory solvency
using the FSA Peak 1 valuation rules
These rules focus on the adequacy of
resources to meet existing guaranteed
benefits

Financial strength ratings

External agencies, such as Standard &
Poor’s, Frich and Moody s regularly
perform independent assessments of the
financial strength of ife comparies and
publish their ratings

Finaneial nsk reduction

We actively manage financial nsk and
have taken a number of imtiatives to
reduce our exposures

In addition to a realistic basis, the solvency
for FPLP's With-Profits Fund 1s assessed
on a regulatory basis The two calculations
are then compared and the more onerous
requirement Is applied For 2006 and 2005
the more gnerous requirement for FPLP
has been the realistic basis

The Free Asset Rat:io {FAR) 1s a commen
measure of financial strength It 1s the
rauo of assets less labilines {including
actuanal reserves but before the camtal
requirements) expressed as a percentage
of actuanal reserves For FPLP it has
increased to an estimated 22 2% at the
end of 2006 (2005 18 3%) and avallable
assets to meet caprtal requirernents have
increased from £3 bbn to £3 8bn The
main reasons for the increase are the
investment return achieved dunng the
year and changes to the regulatory
requrements

The quality of our regulatory capiial s
very high and does not include any
implicit items

FPLP

Standard & Poor's has mantained FPLP's
rating unchanged at A+ with a stable
outlook

Fitch has maintained FPLP's rating
unchanged at A+ with a stable outlock

Moody's upgraded FPLP s rating in July
2006 to A1 with a stable outlook

Friends Provident plc

Standard & Poor's has maintamed FP plc's
rating unchanged at A- with a stable
outlook

Fitch has maintained FP plc s rating
unchanged at A- with a stable outlook

Moeody s upgraded FP pic's rating in July
2006 to Baal with a stable outlook

FPLP Free Asset Ratio

Standard & Poor’s credit rating for FP plc

{2006 222% | | [2006_A- stable ]
{2005 | 183% | [2005 A stable ]
[Z004 }122% [2004_BRE+ stable ]
101% {2003 BBB+ stable |

The Standard & Poor s credit rating of A means
Strong capacity to meet financial commitments
but somewhat suscephible to adverse economuc
conditions and changes i crcumstances The
rminus sign shows the relatve standing within the
rating category Stable means unlkely to change '

FPLP’'s With-Profits Fund
Qur overall aim remains to balance risk to
shareholders with maximising returns to
policyholders whilst ensuring guarantees
are met as they fall due Particular actvities
include
* Managing the proportion of equities
and property backing the asset shares
At 2006 year-end this proportion was
54% (2005 52%])
* Active management of bonuses and any
market value reduction factors
* Hedging strategies to mitigate market and
Interest rate nsks
The gross investrment retwurn achigved by
the FPLP With-Profits Fund in 2006 was
8 1% (2005 16 5%}

Other Life & Pensions Funds

We carry out other nisk mitigation activities
outside the FPLP With-Profits Fund
including cash flow matching and other
inflation and interest rate hedging

Pension schemes

The principal defined benefit scheme,
Fnends Provident Pension Scheme, 15 1n a
healthy position At 2006 year-end thers
was a small deficit of £31m equivalent 1o
3 4% of assets (2005 defict £58m)

The near fully funded positron ts partly due
1o the investment performance but 1s also
due to the success of ongoing nsk
management activities including

» The indmdual denvative hedges agamst
the nsk of inflation have been exchanged
for posisons i ten hability drven
investment pools which better match the
habihties of the scheme

* Employer and employee contnbutions
were increased in 2006

* From July 2007, the scheme wall be
closed to new entrants with a defined
contnbution plan for new employees to
be introduced

The financial position of the pension

schemes 1s further discussed in note 10

to the financial statements
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ANNUAL REVIEW

CHAIRMAN S STATEMENT GROUP CHIEF EXECUTIVE 5 REVIEW ABCUT THE FRIENDS PROVIDENT GROUP UK LIFE & PENSIONS

Provisions

The Group has made provision for habilities in respect of defined pension scheme
deficits, review of past sales for potential mis-selling, future consideration in
respect of the acquisition of Lombard and other habilities In total the accounting
provisions amount to £215m (2005 £364m) In addition £40m (2005 £80m) of
provisions are meluded wrthin actuanal habilities Details are set out below

Pension schemes - The Group cperates several defined benefit pension schemes
which are discussed in note 10 10 the consolidated accounts

The main scheme 1s the Friends Provident Pension Scheme to which the majonty of the
Group's UK Life & Pensions employees belong This scheme will close 1o new entrants
In 2007 and had a deficit of £31m (2005 £19m) which 1s small In the context of assets
of £911m (2005 £888m} The F&C schemes {which are closed to new entrants) had a
deficit of £46m (2005 £48m) In the context of assets of £134m (2005 £116m)

The total pension scheme deficit presented in the IFRS accounts amounts to £77m
{2005 £107m) The 2005 figure excludes £40m of managed pension fund assets which
were treated as non transferable under IFRS At 31 December 2006 thers were no
non-transferable assets

In addition the Group operates defined contnbution schemes for F&C and FPl where
no provisions are necessary Lombard does not operate a pension scheme

Deficits in pension schemes
{2008 +15% £77m|
[2005 £67m* ]

* After natting with managed fund pension fund
invastment of £40m

Mis-selling provisions — Provisions have been established for the estimated likely cost
of redress ncluding administration costs, ansing from the review of past sales There 13
some uncertainty involved 1n these provisions which have been calculated on a best
estimate basis taking into account recent Group and industry experience

The total provision for mortgage endowment complaints has reduced from £109m to
£37m with £41m (2005 £58m) paid out in the year In 2006 there was a release of
£31m of the prowiston with £3m being attributed to shareholders (as a non-recurnng
itern) The majornty of the remaining mongage endowment redress compensatian 15
expected to be settled within the next two years The provision at 31 December 2006 1s
split between an accounting prowision of £20m {2005 £49m) and an actuarial provision
of £17m (2005 £60m)

Areview of certain past sales by our direct salesforce {which 1s now closed) is being
undertaken mainly in respect of inhentance tax planning policies There has been ne
change to the estimated total cost although the total provision has reduced from £33m
to £26m with £7m {2005 £7m) paid out in the year The prowvision at 31 December 2006
15 spht between an accounting provision of £3m {2005 £13m) and an actuanal provision
of £23m (2005 £20m)

Endowmaent review

2006 -66% £37m
[Z2005 £109m |

Review of past sales

(2006 -21% ] £26m
f2005 £33m ]

Future consideration for Lombard - The acquisiton of Lombard in January 2005
allowed for future consideration (earn-out} based on Lombard achieving certain
performance thresholds for both new business profits and underlying embedded value
The total earmn-out has been estimated ai €551m with €440m having been settled by
31 December 2006 The estimated final amount of €111m {£75m} has been provided
for at 31 December 2006 and will be settled in April 2007 The prowision established at
31 December 2005 for future earn-out amounted to €213m (£146m} and included an
estimated final amount of €128m {(£87m)

Future consideration for Lombard
{2006 -49% ] £75m

[2008 £146m |

Other provisions — Other provisions total £40m (2005 £48m) and include future costs
relating to vacant properties of £14m (2005 £18m), unclaimed shares following
demutuaksation of £9m (2005 £9m) and sundry prowvisions of £17m (2005 £22m)

Other provisions
[2006 -18% ] £40m
[Z005 £40m |

38 Friends Providant Annual Report & Accounts 2006




INTERNATIONAL LIFE & PENSIONS ASSET MANAGEMENT GROUP FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE CONCLUSIONS AND OUTLOOK

Conclusions
and Outlook

The successful development of the Friends Provident Group has continued throughout 2006, driven
both by sales growth and expense efficiencies Our growth 1s underpinned by a very strong capital
base, and adequate cash flows have been generated to sustain cur dwvidend policy We also
continue to ptace high emphasts on effective nsk management

The structure of the Group remains organised around its three core business segments of UK Life
& Pensions, International Life & Pensions and Asset Management The Group strategy that has
been in place since before our 2001 stock exchange flotation continues to deliver value

In UK Life & Pensions, record levels of new business have been achieved Sales were up by 30%
whilst acquisition costs increased Dy 5% As a result, the contnbution to profits generated by new
bustness increased by more than two-thirds Our approach 1s to build on our already strong
posttions In the pensions and protection segments, and to renew our focus on investment business
through entry mto the wrap market by the end of this year In 2007, we expect the overall life and
pensions market to grow by 5-10%, cur share of the market to increase and overall product
margins to continue to improve as a resuft of operational leverage However, recent market
turbulence, If prolonged, may have a dampening effect

We have continued to extend the diversity of our international businesses, which provide sorme 40%
of our total sales and almost half of our total Life & Pensions new business profits, reflecting the
generally more profitable nature of international territones Friends Provident International (FPI)
achieved record sales, up 16% on 2005, successfully entered the German personal pensions market,
and received licence approval {o operate in Singapore These activites reflect FPI's approach, which
I1s to logk for growth opportunities in new markets FP!'s trading prospects remain very good

Lombard also achieved record sales growth, well above trend at 40% Lombard's pnimary focus
remains on further developing the already strong relabonships secured with distributors The new
Swiss office supports this approach, as does Lombard’s contnued ivestment in quality people
Lombard 1s particularly impacted by tax regime changes, which can present positive opportunities
as In Mtaly, or negative as in Mexico in late 2006 Whilst many of the situations that came together
to drive the 2006 growth are unlikely to be repeated in 2007, we remain confident about the \
opportunities across the diverse and wellregulated markets in which Lombard operates ‘
|

Throughout 2006, our asset management company, F&C, has continued to put in place the significant
bulding blocks required to turn the business arcund The management framework has been
comprehensively restructured and the investment teamns strengthened Significant progress has been
made 10 introduce a culture focused on performance, and products have been developed for higher-
margin business, both of which are already having a positive impact F&C has announced an
accelerated growth plan, which will encompass further new product and distribution iniiatives, and
which we believe will generate higher margins and new revenue sireams well beyond 2007 This plan
requires increased mvestment In the business dunng 2007, to be financed through a rebasing of the
F&C dividend The approach 1s to have products appropnate for the changing marketplace, and to
attract and retan qualty people with the capability to drive up investment performance

In sumrnary, we are anncuncing another year ¢f strong results founded principally on profitable [
growth in our hfe and pensions businesses, both in the UK and abroad

As to outlook, n UK life and pensions our goal for the next two years remains to buld our market
share significantly and profitably, for which we are investing accordingly Beyond that, we continue
to expect the international Iife and pensions businesses 1o have greater potential for sustained
growth at a higher margin than the UK and believe that we have the nght business model in place
to exploit that potential in asset management, F&C has the potenttal to grow and generate
substantal earrings for the Group, as its growth plan progresses We therefore believe that Frends
Provident has attractive growth credentials
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY REPORT CIRECTORS AND MANAGEMENT

Corporate Social
Responsibility report

I am eager to continue to drnive the Group's CSR strategy
forward, as it I1s fundamental to our future success and will
further differentiate us in the marketplace , ,

Phitip Moare, Group Chief Executive
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DIRECTORS REPORT

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORTS

Tha Friends Provident Group 1s more diverse and
intemational than ever before, and our Corporate Social
Responstbility {CSR) inrtiatives have evolved to reflect this
Each part of the business — UK Life & Pensions, International
Life & Pensions and Asset Management - has rts own
approach appropnate to thewr business, underpinned by an
overarching strategy from the Friends Prowvident pic board
and our statement of business principles

The Group aims to be one of the most successful and
progressive international finangial services groups
Achieving this depends on the trust and support placed in
us by our stakeholders our customers, shareholders,
business partners, employees, local communities and
society at large We recognise that the long-term interests
of our stakeholders are best served by acting n a
responsible manner Qur business continues to live up to
the distinct values and reputation that have underpinned rt
since our foundation Acting responsibly not only gives us a
competitive advantage, 1t will also ensure that our business
continues to meet our stakeholder needs in the long term

Following Kerth Satchell’s retirement, | am delighted to take
over the feadership of our CSR programme These pages
pick out some of the highlights from this programme in
2006 | am eager to continue to dnve the Group's CSR
strategy forward, as it 1s fundamental to our future success
and will further differentiate us in the marketptace

For a full account of our CSR strategy and performance,
please visit www fnendsprovident com/rasponsibiity to
view our 2006 Corporate Social Responsibility Report

CPNp Moo

Phalip Moore, Group Chief Executive
19 March 2007

Matenal 1ssues

tn 2005 the Group worked wath Forum for the Future to rdentufy
our rmatenal 1ssues This year we have focused on the six key
155ues most aligned to the needs of our stakeholders These are
trust and confidence, responsible investment finangial capabihty,
community, chmate change and cur people These pages outlineg
our approach to each of these 1ssues

In 2007 we are engaging with a number of opimion formers
amongst our stakeholders about our matenal Issues We wall
then adapt our strategy accordingly and further align our
business strategy with our stakeholder needs

Governance

The Group has a well-developed and integrated CSR
management system, which includes the following

* Main Board responsibility

¢ Group-wide strategic execution

* Two CSR managers

* Defined roles and responsibilities across the Group
* Performance indicators for all main impact areas

* An objective and target-setting mechanism built into the
Company s strategic and business planning process

*  Annternal communication programme
*  Annternal venfication process

Risk

CSR nsks and opportunities are regularty identified through the
Group's nsk managerment process Quarterly reports from each
business unit specifically cover CSR-related nsks and
opportunities, embracing social ethical and environmental issues

In compliance with the ABI Disclosure Guidelines on Socially
Responsible Investment, key CSR-related nsks have been
assessed and include recruiiment and retention of key
employees, responsible investing community relations, financral
Iteracy levels chimate change, mis-selling issues and bnbery and
corruption Further information on the Group's investment
controls and nsk management can be found throughout this
publication

Memberships

Dunng 2006 the Group has mantained its inclusion in both the
FTSE4Good and the Dow Jones Sustainability World Indices and
was again rated in The Sunday Times ‘Companies that Count’
based on an annual assessment by the chanty Business in the
Community Inaddition F&C 1s hsted separately in FTSE4Good
and 1s a member of the Property Environmertt Group tndex and
the Corporate Leaders’ Group on Climate Change

We are working with a nurnber of CSR expert bodies, such as
Forum for the Future, PncewaterhouseCoopers and Context, to
develop our CSR strategy and initiatves We are active members
of the CSR commumity and are members of the Corporate
Responsibility Group the London Benchmarking Group and
Business in the Community
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY REPORT

DIRECTCRS AND MANAGEMENT

TRUST AND CONFIDENCE

2006 Highhghts

» Awarded Life Insurer of the Year at the
Bntish Insurance Awards 2006

* UK Life & Pensions supports the
Customer Impact Scherme and
produced a Canng for Customers
report, available at
wwwv friendsprovident com/reporis

+ UK Life & Pensions and F&C reviewed
operations to venfy aignment with
the principles of Treating Customers
Fairly {TCF}

RESPONSIBLE INVESTMENT
2006 Highlights

* The Group s Stewardship range of
ethical funds for retall investors 15 still
the market leader For more
information please visit
wwwy friendsprovident com/sr

* Winner of best ethical investment
provider’ award from tnvestment, Life
and Pensions Moneyfacts

* F&C engaged with 640 compantes on
a range of 1ssues such as climate
change and human nghts

FINANCIAL CAPABILITY

2006 Highhights

¢ Friends Prowident Foundation donated
over £800,000 in grants for financial
capability programmes

* Continued support for pfeg, an
educational chanty focused on
providing financial iteracy matenals
to schools

* UK Life & Pensions, in compunction
with Life Academy, created a personal
finance education website for group
pension scherme members

Treating Customers Fairly

Frnends Prowvident 1s committed to
providing Its customers with the highest
level of service TCF 15 one initiative that
helps us to do this UK Life & Pensiens
Sales has produced a ‘TCF Toolkit to use
with our largest distributors, proactively
promoting TCF As a responsible insurer,
we engage with our distrtbutors 1o ensure
our TCF pnnciples are algned We have
trained our sales managers on how ta
apply the toolkit in therr relationships
wath our strategrc partners to ensure
TCF principles are embedded in our
distributors’ seling practices This 1S one
example of how we have moved from
discussing products to providing longer-
term business consultancy for our
distnbutors, improving the end result for
our customers

Shareholder engagement

F&C s ‘responsible engagement overlay’
reo” service uses its influence as a
sharehoider te encourage the companies
in which 1t invests to improve their
corporate social responsibility practices,
thereby improving business performance
For example, in antucipation of the 2006
football World Cup, F&C engaged with
global sportswear brands, highlighting the
potential isks associated with poor labour
standards in their supply chains and
recommended a number of actions the
companes could take F&C conunues to
monitor this issue

Save yourself a fortune

The Friends Provident Foundation 1s a
grant-mak:mng chanty focusing on the nght
use of money In society, with
programmes initially centred on
addressing financial exclusion Save
yourself a Fortune’, run by the Pubhc
Service Broadcasting Trust, 15 one
muative that benefited from a grant this
year The project was designed to
encourage a TV audience to save up to
£100 per week by learning how to reduce
the cost of therr everyday household bills
it targeted people through the earty
evening news INviting viewers to call and
book a free money saving session plus a
CD-ROM to help prevent them getting
into debt in the future Owver 11,000
wiewers attended these sessions

Full detads of the Foundauon can be
found on 1ts website at
www friendspravidentfoundation org

2007 Plans

+ Continue to place the pnnciptes of
TCF at the centre of our activities

* UK Life & Pensions to do further wark
and develop KPls in response to the
Customer Impact feedback

2007 Plans

* F&C to increase engagement on
climate change, wath focus on
high-nsk sectors including insurance

* F&C to engage regulators and
emerging markets companies over
corporate governance standards for
London histngs

+ F&C 1o cantnue engaging on a range
of issues For full hst please see the
Group CSR report at
www friendsprovident comy/responsibiity
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* The Foundation to research finangial
exclusion in the UK, enabling 1t 1o be
more pro-active n its grant-rmaking

» UK Life & Pensions to prowide
web-based tools to help customers
manage therr finances
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CLIMATE CHANGE

2005 Highhghts

e Selected as a carbon champion by The
Times

* Recycled paper now used across all
UK sites

*# Rolled out a new recycling and waste
system across UK Life & Pensions and
FPI head offices

* Recycled 43% of waste across the
Group

COMMUNITY INVESTMENT

2006 Highhghts

*  Group commitment to work towards
aiving 1% of pre-tax profit to the
community, targetng 0 5% in 2007

¢ Group chantable donations exceeded
£1min 2006

* lLombard has continued 1ts relationship
with SOS Villages o Enfant through
corporate donations and employee
fundraising

PEOPLE CAPABILITY

2006 Highlights

s UK Life & Pensions successfully
reassessed as an Investor in People

* UK Life & Pensions attaned the
Business in the Community
'Opportunity Now' sitver award

* Group employee absence was 2 95%

* F&C launched Performance First,
which in¢ludes a cultural change
programme to ¢challenge and motivate
employees

The Carbon Trust

The Group has been working with the
Carben Trust to dentfy more ways 1t can
further reduce the carbon footprint of its
UK offices, the uitimate aspiration 1s to
become carbon neutral The Group's
premises 1T services, transport policy and
working practices have been studied and
employees’ awareness of energy
efficiency checked Recommendations
have been novel but also realistic
replacing old boilers with solar panels or
biomass bailers, upgrading IT systerns 1o
reduce energy consumption without
compramising securty, encouraging video
conferencing and replacing some
cornpany cars with hybnd vehicles are
Just a few examples

FRIENDS n the community

FRIENDS in the community, our new
community Investment programme
launched in December represents a step
change in UK Life & Pensions and FPI's
approach to charitable suppart, aligning
company giving with employees’
interests, and encouraging employees to
help their communities in whichever way
they choose The programme comprises
three schemes FRIENDS raise, matching
employees’ fundraising up to £500 each
year, FRIENDS give, doubling the
matching of payreil grving from £10 to
£20 each month, and FRIENDS volunteer,
donating ‘recognition grants’ of £500 to
volurteers for charitable organisations and
co-ordinating team chailenge days for
employees to give something back

to thewr community

FPI recrutment

Unemployment on the Isle of Man 1s
axtremely low, meaning recruitment and
retention are key i1ssues for FPl s office on
the island FPI continuously consider new
Intiatives 1o encourage people to work
for, and stay with Friends Provident

The office provides a subsidised minibus
service for commuters from Douglas, an
Internet café for pnvate use and a2 gym
and relaxation area The Iste of Man office
was accredited as an Investor In People
for the first tme in 2006 and there has
been 2 large reduction (n avoidable
turnover — down from 20% 1in 2005 to
14% 1n 2006

2007 Plans

s Publish a 3-year carion management
programme for UX offices, based
on our work with the Carbon Trust

*  F&C 1o offset carbon emissions from
travel

« | ombard to impfement a recychng
programme as part of 1ts
environmental management
pragramme

2007 Plans

» Extend F&C's chantable donations
policy to include chanties of the year
and a schools programme

* UK Life & Pensions to start a
numeracy and financtal Iiteracy
programme with a Tower Hamlets
school

+ F&C to continue working with the UK
Career Academy

2007 Plans

* Implement aspects of the UK Life &
Pensions and FPI's pecple strategy

¢ F&C to extend theirr Performance First
programme to include further
irtiatives 1in 2007
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Board of directors

Sir Adrian Montague
CBE MA Solictor 59 Chairman

Apponted Charman n May 2005, having been
appointed an independent director in October
2004 Chairman of the Investment Committes
and rmember of the Nomination Committee
Currently the non-executive Chairman of British
Energy Holdings plc Michael Page Intemational
ple and Infrastructure Investors Limited

A Trustee of the Waterways Trust and a
director of London First

Formerly Deputy Charman of Network Ral and
Chairman of Cross London Rail Links Limited
{Crossrall) Previously Chief Executive of the
Treasury Taskforce and Deputy Chairman of
Partnerships UK plc In his early career he was a
partner of Linklaters & Paines and subsequently
the Global Head of Project Financa for Dresdner
Klemwort Benson

Philip Moore
TO MA FIA 47 Group Chief Executive

Appointed Group Chuef Executve on 1 January
2007 having joned Friends Provident plc on

1 July 2003 as Group Finance Directer and
appointed an executive diractor In September
2003 Member of the Investment Committae
A non-executive director of FAC Asset
Management ple since January 2005 Trustee
of Chighood Eye Cancer Trust

Previously at AMP {UK) where he was Corporate
Cirector of Finance and Head of Mergers and
Acquisitions having been Finance Director and
Actuary of NPI on its acquisition by AMP Prior
to joining NPt in 1998 he spent nine years at
PricewaterhouseCoopers, initially in Lordon

and then based in Hong Kong as the partner
responsible for the firm s East Asia msurance
consultancy practice

Chnistopher Jemmett
70 independent director

Appeinted a director in June 2001, having been an
independent director of Fnends Prowdent Life
Office from 1997 to 2001 Charman of the Audit
and Comphance Committee and member of the
Investrnent and Remuneration Committees An
independent director of F&C Asset Management
plc [called ISIS Asset Management plc untl
October 2004) since February 1998 (when its
name was Friends vory & Sime plci and its
Deputy Chairman and semor ndependent director
since May 1998 Chairman of F&C s Audit and
Comapliance Committee Non-executve director
and deputy chairman of Qngo Sino-nd a ple

Forrer diector and member of the Executve
Committee of Unilever PLC and Unilever NV and
a former member of the Council of The Crown
Agents Foundation

Will retire from Frniends Provident s and F&C s
boards at the close of the respective AGM 2007
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Lady Judge
BA, JD 60 Deputy Chairman
senior independent director

Apporited a director and Deputy Chairman tn
June 2001 having been an independent director
of Frnends Provident Life Office from 1994 to
2001 and its Deputy Charman from 1998 10

2001 Charman of the Remuneraton Committee
Ceputy Charrman of the Investment Commuttes
and a member of the Nominaton Committee
Chairman of the UK Atomic Energy Authority, of
the School of Orental & African Studies, of LIFE
IC Limited of the Professional Standards Adwisory
Board of the nstitute of Directors and Deputy
Chairman of the Financial Reporing Council A
director of Quintain Estates and Developrnent pic,
Private Equity Investor ple, Portmeainon Group
PLC Hardy Underwnung Group ple Plangt Group
Inc, Eaglet Investment Trust PLC and Nationwide
Accident Reparr Services plc A former
commussicner of the United States Securities and
Exchange Comrmission

Ray King
BSc, FCA MCT 53 independent director

Appainted a director in January 2004 Member
of the Audit and Compliance and Investment
Commuitees Group Finance Director for BUPA
since 2001 Member of the Assocration of
Corporate Treasurers

Formerly the Deputy Chiet Executive of Penty
Group ple Dwrector of Group Finance and Conrol
at Diageo plc and Group Finance Director of
Southem Water ple
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Alson Carnwath
BA {Hons] ACA 54 ndependent director

Appanted a director in December 2002 Member
of the Remuneration and Audit and Cormplance
Committees and since Apnl 2004, has charred tha
With-Prafits Committees of Friends Provident’s
reguiated whoily-owned life and pensions
operating companies Norrexecuive Chairman of
1S1S Equity Pariners LLP Non-executwve director of
Gallaher Group plc Glas Cymru Cylyngedig (Welsh
Water) Land Secunties plc and Man Group ple
Charman of Glas Cymru s Remuneration
Committee and Man Group s Audit Commitiee

Previously a Managing Director of the US
investment bank Donaldson, Lufkun and Jenretie
Intemational before it merged with Credit Suisse
Group in 2000 Formerly a director of J Henry
Schroder Wagg & Co Ltd National Power plc
Arcadia Group plc QA Group ple, The Vitec Group
plc and Natomande Building Sccisty

The Rt Hon Lord MacGregor
of Pulham Market
PC 0BE MA LLB 70 mndependent director

Appointed a drector in June 2001 having been
an mdependent director of Friends Prowdent
Life Office from 1998 to 2001 Charman of the
Normination Committee and @ member of the
Audit and Complance Commitiee Also a non-
exacutive director of Associated British Foods ple
a member of the Supenrvisory Board of DAF
Trueks NV of Einghoven the Netherlands and co-
chawman of the UK Food and Agncultural Advisory
Board of Rabobark International Chaiman of the
Slough Estates Pension Fund Trustees

A Conservative Member of Parlament from 1974
10 2001 and 8 member of the Govermment from
1979 1o 1994 including frve Cabinet posts

Deputy Chamman of Hill Sammuel Bank Limited and
director of Hil Samuel & Co Limited Unig pic
{formerty Unigate ple) ang Slough Estates plc

Will retire from Friends Provident’s Board at the
close of the AGM 2007

Alain Grisay
LLM MA, 53 Chief Executive
F&C Asset Managerment plc

Appainted an executve director and member of
the Investment Committee on 1 January 2006
Chief Executive of F&C Asset Management plc

Joined the board of F&C Asset Management

plc 1n October 2004 on completion of the merger
of IS1S Asset Managemaent plc and F&C Group
{Holdings} Limited (F&CGH) where he was
areviously Deputy Chief Executive of F&CGH
and Mead of Institutional Business Previously at
JP Morgan for 20 years, as a Managing Director
responsible for the investment bank s market
client business in Europe

Sir Mervyn Pedelty
FCA FCIB FASA, 58 independent director

Apponted a drector n Qctober 2006 Member
of the Investment Commitiep Also sentor
independent drector of Hiscox Lid {incorporated
n Bermuda) a director of Hiscox plc Hiscox
Insurance Company Lid Business in the
Community Ltd and Chairman of FTSE4Good
Pohcy Comrmittee Chairman of Hiscox
Remunerauon and Nominaticn Committees

Previousty at The Co-operative Bank plc where
he was Chief Executive from 1987 to 2004, and
also Chief Executive of Co-operatve Financial
Services Ltd and Co-cperatve Insurance Society
Ltd from 2002 untll his retrement in 2004
Former member of the Departrnent for Work and
Pensions Employer Task Force on Pensions, 2
director of the Association of British Insurers
from 2002 to 2004 and previous member of the
Ceouncil of the British Bankers Associaton and of
its Chief Executive s and Audit and Remunerauon
Commitises Prior 10 The Co-operative Bank a
partner of LEK Consulting a senior executive af
TSE Group plc and a director of TSB Bank plc

Ben Gunn
MaA, FCII, 56 Chief Executve Friends Provident
Life and Pensions Limited

Appointed an executive director i June 2001
having been appointed an executive director of
Friends’ Prowident Life Office in 2000 and
tManaging Director Frends Provident Lite and
Panswons Limited in March 2001 A non-executive
director of Lombard International Assurance 5 A
Member of Life Insurance Commuttee of the
Association of British Insurers

Joined the Friends Provident Group in September
1998 following the acquisition of London and
Manchester Group plc where he was Managing
Director of London and Manchester Assurance
Limzed and a Group Executive Directer Joined
London and Manchester in February 1996 from
Hambro Countrywide pic where he was an
executve director

Jim Smart
B Com CPFA FCCA MBA, 47
Group Finance Director

Appointed an executive directer on 1 January
2007 having joined Friends Frowident in
November 2006 Member of the Investment
Committee A non-executive direcior of FAC
Agset Management plc since January 2007
Member of the Financial Regulation and Taxation
Committee of the Association of British Insurers

Previously, ch ef financial officer at Boots Group
plc Pror 10 joining Boots he was at Abbey
National plc for 15 years where he held a number
of senior finance and operational positions and
was & director of the group s hfe assurance
business Scotush Mutual Assurance pic
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Executive management

Friends Provident plc

Incorporated in England and Wales
Registered no 4113107
Listed on the London Stock Exchange

Executive Directors
Philip Moore, TD MA, FIA
Graug Chief Executive

Alain Gnisay LLM, MA
Chiet Executive F&C Asset
Management plc

Ben Gunn Ma FCI
Chref Executive Friends Provident Life
and Pensions Limited

Jim Smart, 8 Com CPFRA, FCCA, MBA
Group Finance Director

Semor Management
Nick Boakes MA
Durector of Group Communications

Mike Chadwick ACA, ATIl
Dwector of Group Taxation

Richard Everett, BSc, ACA
Director of Group Finance

Gordon Ellis, MA APMI Solicitor
Director of Legal Services and
Group Secretary

Vitor Ferreira, BAce, CAISA)
Director of Corporate Development

Mike Hampton, MA, FPMI
Group HR Director and Director of
Business Senvices

8nan Harnisan, MA, FIA
Director of Finance Life and Pensions

Stuart Hastings, BSc
Strategic Projects Director

Dawn Reud, LLB, FCol
Director of Governance

UK Life and Pensicns

Sentor Managemant

Simon Clamp, BA,

Managing Director

Marketing and UK Distribution

Rocee Sepe, BSc, FiA
Managing Director International

Jane Stevens, BSc, FIA
Managing Director Operations

Richard Crouch BSc MBA
Director of Customer Services

Andy Jackson, BSc, FIA
Director of Informatian Technology

Paut Tunnichffe, MSc (Mgmt)
Director of international

James Ward MA
Dhrector of Marketing

Kevin Watkins
Birector of Sales and UK Distnbution

International Life and Pensions

Senior Management

Paul Quirk, BSc, MBA, FIA

Chief Executive

Friends Provident International Limited

Dawd Steinegger, BCamm), FCA
Chief Executive
Lembard International Assurance SA
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F&C Asset Management

Senior Management

Alain Grisay, LLM, MA
Chiel Executive F&C Asset
Management plc

David Logan BA, ACA
Chief Financial Officer

Nick Criticos, BBusSe, FIA
Head of Global Retan and
Investment Trusts

Fernande Ribeiro, BEcon, MBA
Head of Investments

W Marrack Tonk:n FCCA
Company Secretary,
Head of Edinburgh Cffice
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Directors’ Report

Directors’ Report for 2006

The directors present their report to shareholders for the financial
year ended 31 December 2006 This report the reports on behalf
of the Board by the chairmen of the Nominatian, Audit and
Compliance and Remuneration Commuttees and the directors
report on corporate governance that follow and the financial
statements will be laid before the Annual General Meeting (AGM)

Annual General Meeting

A separate document the Notce of AGM 2007 convening the
AGM of the Company 1o be held at The Queen Elzabeth |1
Conference Centre Broad Sanctuary, Westmnster, London
SWI1P 3EE on 24 May 2007 at 11 00 am, has been sent to
registered shareholders, including those members of the Friends
Provident Share Account who have elected to receive the mailing,
and contains an explanation of the business to be considered at
that meeting The Notice and the above reports and financiai
statements are also available cn the Company's website

www friendsprovident corm/reports

Principal activities

Friends Provident plc is the holding company of the Friends
Provident Group of companies and s a constituent of the FTSE
100 Index The Group has three diversified business segments
UK Life and Pensions, International Life and Pensions and Asset
Management The principal activities are the provision of retail
financial services, chigfly long-term insurance business and asset
management The UK Life and Pensions business operates
through Friends Provident Life and Pensions Limited (FPLP) and 1ts
subsidiary Iife assurance companies The International Life and
Pensions business 1s serviced through subsidiary fe assurance
compan:es, Fnends Provident International Limited (FPIL) in the
Isle of Man Hong Kong and Dubail and Lombard International
Assurance S A in Luxembourg The Asset Management business
15 undertaken through F&C Asset Management plc (F&C), a 52%
owned, publicly isted subsidiary company Further details of the
Group’s three business segments are contaned on pages 10 and
11 Particulars of the man subsidiary and associated undertakings
are given on page 126

Business review and future developments

A review of the Group s development and performance 1s set out
N the Annual Review on pages 8 te 39 and the Group Chief
Executive s review on pages 6 and 7 This information is designed
to provice shareholders with a balanced and understandable
assessment of the Group's position and prospects, incfuding an
assessment of the principal nsks and how they are managed

Results

The Group's results for the financial review are shown on an IFRS
basis in the consolidated income statement oh page 70 and on a
supplementary EEV basis 1n the summary consolidated income
statement on page 166

Dividend

The directors are recommending a final dvidend for 2006 of

5 2 pence per share payable on 28 May 2007 to all holders of
ordinary shares on the register of members at the close of
business on 13 Apnl 2007 The dwidend tfor the year including the
interim dividend of 2 65 pence per share paid on 24 November
2006 amounts to 7 85 pence per share (7 7 pence per share in
2006} The total cost of dwvidends for 2006 will amount to

£167 milhion The intention 1s for interim dividends to be paid In
Navernher and final dvidends to be paid in May each year The
interim divsdend will represent approximately one third of the
anticipated total dividend

In November 2006, the Company znnounced the introduction of
a Dividend Re-investment Plan with effect from the 2006 final
dividend payment in May 2007 This plan enables shareholders to
elect to receive shares in the Company instead of cash Further
information can be obtained from the Registrar whose contact
detaills are on the Shareholder Information page at the back of the
Report and Accounts

Share capital including treasury shares

The 1ssued share capral of the Company as at 31 December 2006
consisted of 2 139,144,959 ordinary shares of 10p each, including
22,630,083 treasury shares The Company first created treasury’
shares on 9 July 2004, having been authonsed to do so at the AGM
May 2004 During 2006 17 478,172 treasury shares {20056

5 509 717) were used to fulfil ocbligations under the All-Employee
HM Revenue & Custems Approved ShareSave Schemne, the All-
Employee Share Incentive Plan, the Executive Share Option
Scheme, the Deferred Share Plan and the Executive Long Term
Incentive Plan in the peried from 1 January 2007 to 19 March 2007
a further 230 BOB treasury shares have been used for these
purposes and a further 584 shares have been issued to satsfy the
conversion nghts exercised by holders of the £290 milion 5 25%
Convertible Bonds due 2007 1ssued on 11 December 2002 At

19 March 2007 2,139,145 543 ordinary shares of 10p each are in
ssue including 22,398,275 treasury shares

Details of the total issued share caprtal of the Company and the
number of treasury shares are published by the Company on
its website

Debts

The Company 1ssued £18,030,885 Floating Rate Unsecured Notes
2011 ¢on 18 Apnl 20086 to satisfy the payment of part of the
additional consideration due in 2005 in respect of the acquisition
of Lombard International Assurance S A

On 20 Decemnber 2006 F&C issued £260,000,000 subordinated
ioan notes, redeemable 1n 2026 Part of the proceeds from these
nates was used by F&C to redeem £180 mulion term loan from
FPLP which fell due 1n 2006

Full details of the interest payable on the above notes are set out
in note 32 of the notes to the consolidated accounts

Purchase of own shares

The Company s, until the date of the next AGM generafly and
unconditionally authonsed to buy back up to 10% of 1ts 1ssued
share caprtal at 10 April 2006 (211 442 061 sharest No such
purchase has been made
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Substantial shareholdings

At 19 Mlarch 2007, the Company has receved notfications from
the following parties that they have an interest in the Company's
issued share capital

Number of Number of % of total
shares with  shares with  voting
direct ndirect nights of
voting voung the issued
rights nghts share capital
AXA S A 16 705 691 322608869 1603%
Eureko Group {1}
Eureko BV 21 987,926 - 104%
Achmea Pension-en-
Levensverzekenngen NV 20 300 912 - 096%
Capital Group
International Inc 108,622 525 - 513%
Legal & Genera! Group plc 79 064 794 - 373%

{1} Eurekn BV 15 an indiract contrallng shasshaldar v Achmes Penswan-en-
Levansvarzekerngen NV Accordingly the Eureko group of companies has an
aggregate tnierest in 42 287 838 shares or 2% of the 1ssyed share capital of the
Company excluding treasury shares

Birectors’ interests

Details of directors’ interests in shares under option as at

31 December 2006 are shown in the table on page 64 Of the
directors of the Company, only Alain Grisay an employee of F&C,
holds share options in F&C The interests of directors in the shares
of the Company and its subsidianes as at 31 December 2006 are
shown in note 43 on page 162

Directors

Details of Board members at the date of this report are set out on
pages 44 and 45 together with therr biographical details Al
directors must be elected at the AGM foliowing therr appointrnent
Sir Mervyn Pedelty, who was appointed to the Board as a non-
executrve director on 1 QOctober 2006 and Jim Smart who was
appainted as an executive director on 1 January 2007, will offer
themselves for election at the AGM 2007 |n addition, one-third of
the Board members must retire by rotation every year and 1f
approprate seek re-electon The directors retinng by roiaton at
the AGM and seeking re-election are Ray King, Sir Adrian
Montague and Philip Moore Chrnistopher Jemmett and Lord
MacGregor will retire at the AGM 2007

The Combined Code requires that Lady Judge submits t annual
re-election and the Notice of the AGM 2007 sent to sharehclders
fully deals with this and explains why the Board 13 recommending
her re-election

Other than therr employment and service contracts the indeminity
granted to directors by a deed poll dated 30 January 2006 in
accordance with section 309A of the Companies Act 1985 and the
related party transactions referred to in note 44 on pages 163 to
164, there were no contracts i existence dunng or at the end of the
financial year in which a director of the Company was interested
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Employees and equal opportunities

As at 31 December 2006, the Group employs a total of 5,078
people including 813 employees at F&C and 686 withun its
International Life and Pensions business

The Company aims to provide equal opportunities for ali without
discrimunation on the grounds of race, religion, marital status, age,
gender, sexual orientation or disability 1n all its dealings with
employees |t recrurts and promotes those best surted for the job
During 2008, the Company reviewed all of its policies to ensure it
comphed with new 'egistation concerming age discriminaton that
became effective from 1 October 2006

The Company respects the digmity of individuals and ther belefs
The Company does not tolerate any sexual racial physical or
mental harassment of employees in the work place

The Company operates flex-time arrangements in the UK to assist
employees manage thew working hours

The Group has amongst its employees a number who are disabled
't gives full and farr consideration to appircations for employment
from disabled persans In the event of emplayees hecoming
disabled, every effort 1s made to maintain them in employment
with approprate retraining being arranged f necessary It 1s the
Group's policy that disabled persons should as far as posstble be
gwen the same opportunities for traiming career development and
promotion as other employees

Employee involvement and communications

The Group I1s committed to ts policy of encouraging employee
invalvement at all levels The methods used to implement this
policy tnclude

* management bnetings/presentations and discussion through
the managemaent structure,

» the issue of a full range of employee communications via the
Company's intranet ar other internal publicaton of retevant
informatran, which inform employees of current
1ssues/developments and progress,

+ an established and regular staff opmion survey that encourages
ermployees anonymously 1o present thair views, thereby
generating workplace and business improvements and

* the establishment of effective working relationships with
employee representative bodies

The pnmary aim of all these activities 1S to ensure employees
know the objectives and activities of the Company and the Group
20 that they can contnbute fully to thew continued success

Addimonally zll employees other than those of F&C and Lombard,
may participate in HM Revenue & Customns approved All-Employee
Share Schemes a ShareSave Scheme (savings-related share
option scheme) and a Share Incentive Plan In 2008, the Company
introduced a Deferred Share Plan under which shares may be
awarded, subject o certain performance critena, to all employees
other than executive directors directors ot business units and
employees of F&C and Lombard
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Creditor payment policy

While the Company does not follow any code or standard on
payment practice, it 15 the Company’s policy to adhere to the
payment terms agreed with indnadual supplers and to pay in
accordance with therr contractual and other legal obligations

The standard payment terms of the Company and the UK Life
and Pension subsidianies reqguire settlement within 30 days
The Company has no trade creditors

The ratio, expressed in days, between the amount invoiced to the
Group by 1ts supphers during 2006 and the amount owed to its
trade creditors at 31 December 2006 was 16 days (2005 16 days)

Use of financial instruments

Further information on the Group's nsk management process and
the policies for mitigating certain type of nsks are set out on page
54 Destatts of the financial instruments used for these purposes
are in note 30 to the consolidated accounts

Environment

The Company’s engagement and commitment to environmental
issues are referred to in the Corporate Social Responsibiity Report
from pages 40 to 43

Charitable and political donations

The Friands Prowident Feundation 1s an independent vehicle
through which the Company may make its charnitable donations
The Foundation currently focuses 1is grant making activities on
charitres that stimulate new thinking about how money and the
financial systems around 1t should be used to generate social good
The Foundation has made grants and donations to varnious bodies
including charties that the Company traditionally has supported
The Group provides various administrative services to the
Foundation free of charge In 2006 donauons to chaniable
organisations paid by the Group and grants approved, including
outstanding comrmitments from previous years of £9 04 milhon, by
the Foundation amounted to £2,028,740 (2005 £1,954,638}

In addition to the gving through the Friends Provident Foundation,
Friends Provident has dunng 2006 introduced new initiatives to
promote chantable giving through staff participation Full details
of these initiatives can be found in the Corporate Social
Responsitility Report

No political donations were made dunng 2006 (2005 nil)

Directors and officers — Indemnity and insurance

The Company maintains insurance cover with respect to directors’
and officers’ labiities [n addition, the Company has granted an
indemnity in favour of directors and officers of companies within
the Group in accordance with Article 140 and the provistons of
section 309A of the Companies Act 1985 against personal financial
exposure that they may incur in the course of their professional
duties Copies of the indemmity are avallable for inspection at the
Company's registered office

Adequacy of the information supplied to the auditor

The directors who held office at the date of approval of this
directors’ report confirrn that so far as they are each aware there
15 no relevant audit information of which the Company’s auditor 1s
unaware, and each director has taken all the steps that he or she
ought 1o have taken as a director to make himse!f or herself aware
of any relevant audit information and to establish that the
Company’s auditor 15 aware of that mformaton

Statement of going concern

After making enquines, the directors are satisfied that the
Company and the Group have adequate resources to continue to
operate as a going concern for the foreseeable future and have
prepared the financial statements on that basis

Auditor

The Company s auditor, KPMG Audtt Plc, has indicated its
willngness to continue In office and, on the recornmendation of
the Audit and Compliance Committee a resolution to reappotnt
KPMG Audn Plc as auditor to the Company, and to authonse the
directors to fix ther remuneration will be proposed at the AGM

On behalf of the Beard

—

U,
Gordon Ellis

Company Secretary
19 March 2007
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Corporate Governance Report

and Committee Reports

The Board

The Board provides leadership of the Group and, erther directly or
through the operation of commistees of directors and delegated
authonty brings an independent judgment on all Issues of strategy.
performance resources {including key appointments) and standards
of conduct The Board sets the Group’s strategic airns, which it then
implements through its approval and regular menitanng of a
business plan and budget prepared by the executive directars The
business plan specifies key developments towards the strategic
objectives that are to be achieved by management within an agreed
budget The Chairman, together wrth the Company Secretary,
ensures that the directors receive timely and ¢lear information on all
relevant matters At board meetings, directors receive reports from
finance, nsk management and each of the key business areas The
Board, suppled with information that 1s both timely and appropniate,
deals with those matters specifically reserved for its decision, and
takes all matenal decisions affecting the Group These include
acquistions, sales capitat siructure, financing, the estabkshment of
board committees and therr terms of reference, and the oversight
and review of the operation and achievement of the Group s
actvities Dunng 2006, 1t has been the practice for non-executive
directors to have a private session after each board meeung without
the executive directors bemng present The boards of F&C and the
UK and international insurance subsidiartes also meet separately and
regularly to montor and direct the operations of those businesses
and report on a timely basis, through the respective chief
executives, t¢ therr immediate controlhng companies

Beard membership, attendance and balan}:e

The current membership of the Board and the significant
commitments of the directors are stated on pages 44 and 45
The names of the charrman and members of each of the Audit
and Compliance, Nomination and Remuneration Committees are
stated in the reports of those committees

During 2006 the Board met on 10 occasions, and directors alse
attended an off-site strategy meeting The total number of
meetngs including Board committees and the attendance of
directors at these meetings are shown as follows

Total number of meetings B| ARC N R 1
{see key below} 10 7 10 8 4
Sir Adrian Montague

Charrman 10 — 9 - 4
Lady Judge

Deputy Charman and

senior independent director i0 - 9 8 4
Alison Carnwath

Non-axecutive dirgctor 10 & - B8 -
Chnistopher Jemmett

Mon-executve director 10 7 - g 4
Ray King

Non-axecutive director 9 7 - - 4
Sir Mervyn Pedelty®

Non-executve director 3 - - - 1
Lord MacGregor of Pulham Market

Non-executive director 10 7 10 - -
Kerth Satchell

Group Chiet Executive 10 - - - 4
Ben Gunn

Lhiat Exacutve FPLP 10 - - - _
Phiip Moore

Group Finance Drector 10 - - - 4
Alain Grisay

Chief Executive F&AC 10 - - - 4

“appanted on 1 Octobar 2006
KEY B Board
A&C Audit and Compliance Committee
N Nomimation Commuttee
R Remuneratton Committes
1 Investment Committee
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The Board accepts the Nominatien Committes’s assessment and
considers all six non-executive directors {which expression
excludes the Chairman} to be independent m character and
judgment and 1s not aware of any relationshups or circumstances
which are likely to atfect, or could appear to affect, the judgment
of any of them Chrnstopher Jemmett and Lord MacGregor are
both now aged 70 and in accordance with the Company's pelicy
will retire at the 2007 AGM Notwithstanding Lady Judge was {irst
elected to the Board of Friends Prowident Life Office in May 1994
and to the Board of the Company In June 2001 the Board s
entirely satishied that Lady Judge 1S independent in character and
Judgment, that there are no relationships or ¢ircumstances that are
likely to affect, or could appear 1o affect her judgment

Her other roles as Deputy Chairman of the Financial Reporting
Council and Chairman of the Professional Standards Adwisory
Board of the Institute of Directors inform her contributions 1o
Board debates on governance 1ssues and complement her role as
the senior Independent director

The Board 1s satsfied that, as a non-executive director seeking re-
election, Lady Judge continues to perform effectively and
demonstrates cormmitment 1o her role, including commitrment of
ume for Board and committee meetings and her other duties

The Nomination Committee worked closely with the Board in order
to ensure that the mndependent executive directors have the
apprepriate balance of skills and expenience to support the
actvities of the Board and to help the Group continue to compete
effectively in the market place During 2006, the Nomunation
Committee devoted considerable time to succession planning
which resulted in a number of changes to the Board Detalls of the
process followed are contained in the report of the Nomination
Committee on page 58 The non-executive directors have a wide
range of expenence and the Board 15 able to lead and gve
direction to the Group without any imbalance that may allow any
indvidual or group of individuals to dominate its decision taking
Any director having a concern in this or any cther regard may raise
1t with the Chairman or the senor independent director

All directors have access to the advice and services of the
Company Secretary who ensures that Board processes and leading
corporate governance practice are followed There 1s also an
established procedure whereby indmdual directors who constder 1t
necessary in furtherance of ther duties may take independent
professional adwvice at the Company s expense
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Information and communication

The Board regularly reviews strategy and members of executive
rmanagerment also participate in an annual strategic review that
constders overalt business direction and 1ts financial implications
Individual business units prepare annual budgets and business
plans that provide a basis against which actual results can be
benchmarked Assets, habilities, investments and other relevant
criteria are also monitored Progress against plans is actively
monitored and supported by reguler forecasts, which, together
wath actual results, are consolidated and presented to the Board
for discussion on a timely basis

Through these mecharisms the business s performance 15
continually monitored, nsks are dentified in a tmely manner, their
financial implications assessed control procedures re-evaluated
and, where appropriate, corrective aciions agreed and
implemented

Performance and continual professional development

The Board's formal annual evaluation of its own performance of
its committees and individual directors was carned out in 2008 by
each director completing a questionnaire prepared mternally, and

a sel-assessment of s or her performance Completed
questionnaires were sent in confidence to the Chairman who also
conducted indvidual meetings with directors The Chairman
reposted to the October Board meeting comments and 1ssues
raised by directors duning this process The Board has again
confirmed that it will keep this process under review to ensure
that analyses of the outcome of this evaluaton will give the Board,
the Charman and the Nomination Committee in particular, the
infarmation they need to continue to fulfil the intentions underlying
the requirements of the Combined Code during 2007

After the Board meeting in December, the senwor independent
director met with the independent directors {other than the
Chairman) to discuss the performance of the Charrman it was
agreed that the Chairman had continued to perform etfectively
throughout the year and prowided sirong leadership to the Group

Throughout 2008, the Board receved presentations from vanous
business umits and two Board meetings each year are held at the
offices of subsidiary companies in order to gain better msight of
business actvities and operations of the Group at that location
Directors also individually attend internal briefings on specisfic
technical topics and external seminars to keep up-to-date with
regulations and hest practice affecting the Group’s core businesses
and report on these to the Chairman and the Company Secretary

There 1s a full induction process in place for new directors that
recognises the complexities of the Life and Pensicns and Asset
Management businesses and aims to enable directors to make
a full contnbution 1o Board discussions within an optimum
time-frame

Committees of the Board

All commuitees of the Board that are subject to the requirements
of the Combined Code are chared by an independent director and
exclusively comprnise, or in the case of the Nomination Committee
{where the Chairman of the Board 1s a8 member) have a majornty
of, independent directors The Board committees are constituted
with appropnate wrnitten terms of reference that are reviewed
annually and minutes of the Board commuttees are circulated to
the Board Reports on the activities of the Audit and Complhance,
Normination and Remuneraton Committees are included on pages
57 to 68 Detalls of other significant committees reporting to the
boards of the Company or the Life and Pensions subsichanes are

Investment Committee

Sir Adnan Montague {Chairman), Philip Moore, Keith Satchell {until
31 Decernber 2008} Jim Smart {from 1 January 2007}, Alain
Grisay, Christopher Jemmett, Lady Judge, Ray King and Sir
Mervyn Pedelty {from 1 Octcber 2006)

Group Asset Liability Committee

This was established dunng 2006 and reports to the Investment
Committee It comprises the executive directors of the Company,
together with semior managers from the Life and Pensions and
Asset Management businesses, and supervises the application of
agreed risk appetite in respect of asset lability matching for both
shareholder and policyholder funds 1t also reviews the investment
of, and monstors market, iquidity and credit nsk management in
relation to, shareholder funds and makes recommendations to the
Investment Committee in respect of policy on foréign exchange
and interest rate hedging

Group Risk Commitiee

Keith Satchell {until 31 December 2006), Philip Moore, Ben Gunn,
Alain Gnsay and Jim Smart (with effect from 1 January 2007}
Details of the activities of the Committee are set out on page 54

With-Profits Committees (WPCs) of the Life and Pensions
operating companies

While these committees are committees of the boards of the Life
and Pensions operating companies and not the Company, the
Board of the Company appoints the charman of the WPCs from
amongst the independent directors of the Company Ahson
Carnwath has fulfilled that role since 1 Apnl 2004 An overview of
the work of the WPCs 1s set out on page 59
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Reporting to sharsholders

The Company places considerable importance on communications
with shareholders and responds to them on a wide range of
issues [t has an ongoing programme of dialogue and meetings
with major institutional shareholders where a wide range of
relevant 1ssues including strategy, performance, management and
governance are discussed Further the Charrman and the senior
independent director are available to meet ma;or sharehclders and
the Chairman writes annually to the 20 largest shareholders,
emphasising his avallability should they wish to meet with him
Dunng 2006, no such meetings with the Chairman were requested
by shareholders Twiace durning the year, the Chairman and the
directors met with the Company's joint brokers, JPMorgan
Cazenove and Mermrill Lynch, folltowing completion of the executive
presentations 10 rmajor shareholders This helps the non-executive
directors to mantain an up-to-date understanding of the views of
major shareholders

At ts AGM, the Company complies with the provisions of the
Combined Code relating o the disclosure of proxy votes, the
separation of resclutions and the attendance of directors,
particularly committee charmen The timing of the despatch of
the formal notice of the AGM complies with the Combined Code
The outcome of every general meeting of shargholders, including
detaled voting resulis and votes withheld, 1s pubhshed on the
Company's website following the close of the meeting

[nstitutional investors

As an institubional Investor, the Company aims to exercise wise
stewardship over the companies in which 1t invests The
Company’s approach to socially responsible investments has been
enhanced by the Responsible Engagement Overlay (reo®)
developed by the Company s fund manager, F&LC, which complies
with the principles set out In the Institutional Shareholders”
Commuttee’s Code of Activism, including comprehensive and
considered voting and dialogue, where appropriate with investee
companies The Company's policy on socially responsible
invesiment can be found on the corporate website

www friendsprovident comysn which also includes the voting
reports voting policy and latest newsletter
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Internal controls and risk management

The Group has in place an ongoing process for ldentifying,
evaluattng and managing the significant nsks it faces The Board
reqularly reviews the process through the nsk committee structure
and confirms that it complies with the Internal Conircl Revised
Guidance for Directors On The Combined Code’ published by the
Financial Reporting Council and the ABI Disclosure Guidelines on
Socizlly Responsible Investment, which focus on social, ethical
and environmental {SEE) risks

The Board of the Company 1s ultimately responsible for the
Group's systems of internal control and for reviewing their
effectiveness These systems are designed to manage rather than
eliminate the nsk of faillure 10 achieva business objectives, as no
business can be successful without taking some nsk They can
thus provide reasonabte but not absolute assurance aganst
maternal mis-statement or loss

The Board has conducted an annual review of the effectiveness
of the Group's systems of internal controls and nsk management
The Company's Audit and Compliance Committee has also
recelved

* areview of the operation of the Group’s nsk management
framework from the Group's nsk management function

* a3 report from the Group s independent internal audit function
of the framework s effectiveness, and

+ assurances from the Group Risk Committae that the nsk
committees within the operating subsidiaries have reviewed
the effectiveness of the internal contrals and nsk management
activities within their respective remits

These reports commented on the controls that had operated
durning the year under review and where any significant failings or
weaknesses wera identified, actions have been taken or are heing
taken to remedy them Through this process the Aucdit and
Compliance Committee was able to recommend to the Board the
approval of the statements concerning internal controls and risk
management statements
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Risk management

The Group seeks to take appropniate and managed nsks in order
to make superior returns for its shareholders and customers The
Board s wviston for nsk management 1s an environment where
business managers can take nsks with confidence and where
consideration of risk 1s embedded into busmess planning
decision-making and everyday management |t seeks to have in
place the people processes and systems 10

+ dentify and understand the nsks facing the business

* select the appropriate nsks 10 accept and pnce correctly for
them,

*« avoild mitigate or transfer the inappropnate nsks and

* monitor the business's nsk profile against agreed risk appetite

Risk appetite

Risk appetite ts an expression of the level of acceptable and/or
unacceptable nsk and 15 determined by the Board and sentor
management The Group's willingness to take on nsk 1s set with
reference 1o its capacily to bear nsk The Board has set nisk
appetite for the Group as a whole, and has approved more detalled
appetite statements for the individual businesses Qualitatively,
risk appetite 1s set within a range from 'nsk seeking to zero
tolerance’ which vanes according to the type of risk

Risk categorisation

Risks are categonsed as strategic, financial or operational Details of
specific nisks currently facing the Group in the achievernent of its
strategy are given in the Annual Review on pages 15 21 and 27

Strategic nsks are those ansing from the choice of a particular
strategy, or with external forces acting to impair the Group's abibty to
realise 11s Strategy The Board's appette for strategic nsk vanes from
nsk seeking, for example in relation to finding and exploiing new
applications of technology to nsk averse, for example in relanon to
actions or events that could damage the Group’s reputation

Financial risks anise from changes i financial nsk factors and
include credit insurance, hquidity and market nsks The Board's
appetite for the different categories of financial nsks can vary by
nsk type by company wathin the Group and by the funds or assets
concerned More detalls of financial nsk appetite are included in
note 30 to the consolidated accounts

QOperational nsks can anse in the Group's internal processes and
systems, through ts people or from external events The Board
aims to builld an appropnate control environment to keep the
expasure to operational nsks n ling with the agreed nsk appetite,
recognising that operational isks may anse i the normal course
of business even when carned out in line wath the Group s policies
and applcable regulation

Risk processes

Operational nsk 1s dentfred and evaluated within business units
using a nisk and control self-assessment process Risks are
recorded on an operational nsk database along with detalls of the
cantrols In place 1o manage the risks and any remedial actions
necessary to improve those controls Risks are managed as
closely as possible to the source of the nsk

The strategic and financial sk processes are aligned to the
business planning process with nsk being identfied and evaluated
in relation to the achievermnent of business objectives The
processes are run centrally by the Group Risk function in co-
operation with key business units Risks within business change
activities are identified and evaluated by the management of the
change programme both in refation to the delivery of the
programme and in terms of the change programme’s effect on
the business as a whole

Specific nsk identrfication and assessment methodologies have
been developed for merger and acquisition and strategic
nvestment opporiunities, new product developments and general
project and change management programmes

The nsk governance and management structures descnbed below
apply to all the nsks facing the Group, including those that anse
from sogial, environmental and ethical matters More tnformation
about the Group s performance in relation to these matters can be
found in the Corporate Socral Responsibility Report on pages 40
1043
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Governance

Operational responsibility within the Group uitimately rests with
the Group Chief Executive and 1s devolved through an executive
structure with clearly delegated and appropnate levels of authonty
In particular, the Chief Executive of F&C has operational
responstbility to the Board of F&C and its shareholders, reporting
appropriately to the Board of the Company as controlling
sharehalder Members of Group management are, therefore,
accountable for the operation of the systems of internal control
within the Group’s core businesses

Business unit management I1s responsible for putting in place the
ongoing management and monitonng disciphnes for nisks and
activities under ¢ts control The structure 15 designed to provide
clear responsibiities and control for key areas of the Group's
business and ncludes whistleblowing' procedures to enable staff
1o raise concerns in confidence Through these mechanisms, the
performance of the business 18 monitered, nsks are identifled in a
umely manner, therr financial mplications assessed, control
procedures re-evaluated and where appropnate, corrective actions
agreed and implemented

The Group’s governance structures for risk management are based
on three ines of defence Pnmary accountability for managing risk
Iies with the business units, and with those specialist functions
that are responsible for specific operational processes, such as
Human Resources, IT and Facilites Management

(Governance structures for nsk management

A secend line of defence 15 provided by the independent Group
Risk function and those specsabst functions that undertake palicy-
setting and monitoring roles, such as Compliance and Legal

The third line of defence 1s provided by Internal Audit, which has
responsibility for providing ingdependent assurance over the nisk
management process and the internal contrals environment

The diagram below illustrates the governance structure for risk
management including the interaction of vanous committees with
the Board of the Company and its subsidianes

The boards and the risk committees within the Group have
terms of reference that describe therr roles in the idenufication,
assessment managerment and monitonng of nsk

The Board

= g responsible for the nsk management framework and for
setting high level nsk policy and nsk appeuite,

has delegated to the Group Risk Committee authonty to
approve the rnisk framework of the UK Life & Pensions business
and to endorse the nsk frameworks of the other operating
subsidianes, and

receives quarterly reports from the Group Risk function
summansing the Group s key risks and the actions in place to
control them, and a brief monthly update on the key rnisks and
1ssues as part of its regular management information

> FP plc Board
F' Y »
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— Group Risk Commuttee
F 3 F 3
=
[
2
D — FPLP Board FPIL Board Lombard Board F&C Board
-
E I I F Y » FY
o
=]
g
< Financial Risk Operational - FPIL Risk Lombard Risk F&C Management
Committee Risk Commuttee Committee Committee Committee
1 t F Y A Y
FPIL Risk Lombard Risk
coordinator coordmator F&C Risk function
f t F
4
&
i
< $, FPLP B unns FPIL Business units But?nr:sb::ldnrts F&C Business units

54 Friends Providaent Annual Report & Accounts 2006




DIRECTORS REFORT

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORTS

The Group Risk Commitiee

1s chared by the Group Chief Executive and 1s responsible for
deveioping sponsonng and maoniignng the risk management
acuvities and processes of the companies within the Group
has authonty 1o approve pohces fof the management of
strategic and reputational nisks and for those nisks that anse
from memberstup af a groug of campanies {called enterpnse
risks)

approves the nsk management frameworks of the Groups UK
Life & Pensions business and

receives quarterly reporting from the cperating subsidianes
summarnsed by the Group Risk functron

Within the UK Life & Pensions business, the boards of the prnincipal
operating companies

oversee the managerment of strategic risk

have established a Financial Risk Commuittee and an Operational
Risk Committee which mclude executive directors and other
relevant senior managers, and

recewe a quarterly summary of operational and financiat nsk and
a detailed report of strategic nisk from the Group Risk function

The Financial Risk and QOperational Risk Commuttees

recewve detaled guarterty reporung from the Group Risk
functicn in respect of the significant nisks within their respective
remits together with detaills of actvities 10 improve the control
environmaent where necessary

oversee the mplementation of detalled risk appetite for the
risks within therr respective remits and

have delegated authanty to approve the pelictes for and
cversee the management of, financial and ¢perational nsk
respectively

Within the International business FPIL and Lombard have rnisk
carnmitiees comprising executve directors and other relevant
seniar managers that oversee their risk management processes
and report into therr respective boards These commutiees provide
quarterly reports 1o the Group Risk function The boards of FPIL
and Lombard are authonised 1o deterrnine therr respective policies
for the management of risk subject to the oversight of the Group
Risk Commutipe

The board of F&C determunes s policy for the management of
risk and in conjunct:on with management identifies the major
-isks in the Asset Management business and reviews and agrees
procedures to control these nsks where pessible Quanterly
reports are prepared by each of the F&C business units across
all locatiens The FAC Managerrent Comnmwitae which includes
all executive directors of FAC discusses these “eports and all
significant stems are dentfied and reporied to the F&C hoard on
a regular basis F&C provides a quarterly summary of 1ts vey -isks
10 the Greep Risk function The nisk Taragement arraniger-enis
athin F&C are described in cetal 1n the F&C Annual Report

ang Acceunts

Independence of external auditors

The Combined Code requires the Company 1o explain the process
to ensure that auditors objectvity and independence 1s

safeguarded in their provision of non-audit services to the Company

The Audit and Comphance Committee evaluated the independence

of the external auditor and satisfied itself of its integnty,
competence and professionalism Having given full consideration
to the Comrittee s evaluation, the Board has satstied itself that
dunng the year, no aspect af the work of the independent auditer
was impared on these grounds In mantaining a clear perception
ot independence and balancing that with the best interests of the
Company the Board has also considered the policy for awarding
audn-related andfor non-aucht work 1o the Group’s external audtor
The Company does not impose an autamatic ban an any Group
company s external aydrtar undertalung nan-apdw work The
Group's aim 1s always o have any non-audit work carmed out In a

rmanner that affords best value for money The audrtor must not be
in a position of conflict n respect of the work ;n question and must

have the skifl competence and integrity to carry out the work in
the best interests of the Company and the Group

In particular the external auditor is not permitted to

» perform work that involves the valuasion of an asset or liability
ncorperated o any of (he Company s financial statements

» act as secondees to positions of influence within the Group

* design and mplement systems that have firancial implications

» provide internal audrt services where an opinion has to be given

on management s assessment of accounting controls and
financial systems,

¢ provide itigation suppoart services,

* provide corporate finance services and

* advise on Senior executives remuneration

The auditor of the Company is permitted to perform audht-related
and non-audit work in areas where, in the opinien of the Audit and
Compliance Commuttee or its Chairman 115 appropnate for it 1
do s0 and there are ne actual or perceived independence 1ssues

The Chauman of the Audit and Compliance Commuttee 1s

authorised to approve the use of auditors for audit-related and non-

audit work provided that the cost does not exceed £300 000 and
the aggregate value of audit related and non-audit work awarded
10 auditors does not exceed the audit fee for the financtal year in
question In ather circumstances, the approval of the Audit and
Compliance Comrmmitiee is required
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if the Cormmmitee considers t approprate, the provision of audn
services may be formally market-tested through a tender process
ivolving these audit irms judged competent to meet the needs of
e Group The frequency of this market-testing will depeng on the
~eeds of the Group and prevaiing leading practice As reported n
the Aucht and Complance Committee s recort to shareholders on
page 57, a hmited tender process was undertaken dunng the year
n conuncuion with F&C 10 agree the appontment of a single
group external auditor This process concluded with the
appontment oy F&C of KPMG Audst Pic as auditor to F&C n
Ccrober 2006

Statement of compliance with provisions of the
Combined Code

The directors censider that the Company has throughout 2006 and
10 date apphed the principles and met the requirements of the
Combined Code

Statement of directors’ responsibilities in respect of
the Annual Report and Accounts

The directors are responsible for prepanng the Directors’ Report
and the group and parent cormpany financial staternents, In
accordance with applicable faw and regulations

Company law requires the directars 1o prepare group and parent
company financial statements for each financial year uUnder that
law the directors are required to prepare the group financial
statements 1n accordance with Internatonal Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS} as adopted by the EU and the applicable law and
have elected to prepare the parent company financial statements
I accordance with UK Accourting Standards and applicable law
{UKX Generally Accepted Accounting Practice)

The group financial statements are required by law and IFRS as
adopted by the EU to present fairly the financial position and the
performance of the Group, the Cormpanies Act 1985 provides In
relation to such financial statements that references in the relevant
part of that Act to financial statements giving a true and far view
are references (o their achieving a far presentation

The parant company financial staterments are required by law to
gve a true and farr view of the state of affairs of the parent
campany
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In preparing each cf the group and parent company hinancial
statements the directors are required to

s select suilable accounting policies and then apply them
consistently

« make judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent

« for the group financial staterrents state whether they have
been prepared in accordance with iIFAS as adopted by the EU,

» tor the parent company financiat statements, state whether
applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed,
subject to any materal departures disclosed and explained In
the parent cormpany financiat statements and

¢ prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis
unless it 1s Inappropriate 1o presume that the group and the
parent company will continue In business

The directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting
records that disclose with reasonable accuracy at any ume the
financial positon of the parent company and enable them i
ensure that its financial statements comply with the Comparies

, Act 1885 They have general responsitulity for taking such steps as

are reasonably open to them 1o safeguard the assets of the group
and to prevent and detect fraud and other rregulanties

The directors are responsible for the maintenance and integnty of
the corporate and financial iInformation included on the Company's
~ebsite Legislation in the UK governing the preparation and
disseminaton of financial staterments may differ from legislation
in other jurisdictions

Future developments

The Board believes that the controls in place dunng 2006 and to
date have teen appropriate o the needs af the Group
Nevertheless 1t continues to be committed to the highest
standards of governance and business conduct and will ensure
that thase controls continue 1o develop 1n ine with the
requirernents of the business the FSA and leading practice

On tehalf of the Board

Gordon Ellis

Cempany Secretary
19 March 2007
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The Audit and Compliance Committee

Purpose and terms of reference

The Commttee provides the Board with independent assurance on
the Group s financial reporting process, internal controls and
adherence to policies and pracedures The rale, responsibilities and
work af the Committee can best be understcod by reference 1o 1ts
written terms of reference, which are pubhshed on the Company s
website and can be obtaned on written request t¢ the Company
Setretary at the Cormpany s registered office

The Committee has again reviewed 1ts terrns of reference and 1ts
effectiveness the latter by reference 10 a self-assessment
questcnnare that focused an the behaviowrs of the Cammuttee
and its processes The results were discussed in Novernber 2006
when the Committee coliectively concluded that it was cperating
effectively

Membership and attendance

The mernbers of the Comrmittee are Chnstopher Jernmett
{Chairman} Alson Carnwath Ray King and Lord MacGregor and
therr record ot attendance during 2006 1s set out on page 56

The Board 1s satisfied that at least one rnember of the Committee
has recent and relevant tinancial expenence, a positon that should
continue throughout 2007 Committee meetings are normally
attended at the invitation of the Chairman, by the external auditor,
the Group Finance Director the Group Chief Executive and
periodically, the Group Head of Risk, the Director of Governance,
the Dwector of Group Finance and the Head of Internal Audit

Activities and work of the Commiittee

Durning 2006 the Committee met on five occasans trmed 1o
caincide with the financral reporiing and audit cycles of the
Company

The Commuttee has throughout the year monitored the integnty of
the financial staterents through a review ot the quarterly new
business rasults and final and intenm report and accounts In
addrtion, dunng 2006 the Committee n conjunction with the Audit
and Comphance Commuttee of its Asset Management subsiciary,
F&C has met twice to consider the benehts to the Group of the
appointment of a single group auditor A mited tender process
was undenaken betwean the auditors of the Company and of
F&C Followang completion of this process the Audit and
Complance Committee of F&C made a recommendation 1o the
board of F&C 1o appoint KPMG Audit Ple as auditer of F&C and
this appoiniment tock effect in Oclober 2006

The Commitiee has unc¢eriaken a review and implemented
changes 10 ensuyre that the reporting structures for internal controls
and nsk are appropriate for the needs of the Cormpany and reflect
the widening geographical scope of the Company s activities and
its more extensive range of products

As part of its normal responsibilities the Commuttee has dealt with
comphance with the relevant parts of the Combined Code, the
eHectiveness of nternal controls and reporting procedures for risk
management processes In particulas, the Commaittee has agreed
the annual audit plan with the external auditor and has considered
the auditor s reports and has monntored and followed up
management actions in response 1o the issues raised The
Committee also worked closely with Intemal Audrt and agreed the
annual nternal audit olan and reviewed the performance and
resourcing of Internat Audit The Committee also reviewed the
Company s policy on whistleblowing’ the ant-money laundenng
procedures and the annual compliance plan for the Company's UK
Life ang Pensions subsidianes

The use of the auditors for non-audrt work 15 approved by the
Commuttee or its Chairman within his delegated authority

On an annual bas:s the Cormmittee reviews the effectiveness of
the external auditor and has made a recommendatien to the Board
on the reapponiment of the auddor Within the schedule of
meetings the Cornmittee fulfilled ts main role and respons:bilries
and as g consequence can confum that it has met the requirements
of the Combined Code in so far as they refate to the work of audit
committees dunng 2006 and up to the date ot this report

For the Board

J'“"MQ/
Christopher Jammett

Chatrman, Audit and Compliance Committee
19 March 2007
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The Nomination Committee

Purpose and terms of reference

The Comrmittee leads the process, and makes recommendations
10 the Board, for all new Board appointments 1t ensures the
existence of a formal rigorcus and transparent procedure the aim
of which 1S to ensure that appaintrrents are appropriate to the
needs of the Group and the balance cf the Board

The terms of reference of the Cornrmittee, which explain the
purpose delegated authonty and duties of the Comrmittee, have
been published on the Company s website and can De cbtained on
written request to the Company Secretary Through its agends, the
Committee effectively deals with the duties delegated to 1t by its
1erms of reference

Membership and attendance

The members of the Committee are Lord MacGregor (Chairmant,
Lady Judge and Sir Adran Montague The attendance record of
members at the meetings of the Commuttee 1s set out on page 50
The Group Chief Executive attended when required, by (nvitation

For the entirety of 2008, and up to the date of this report the
Company camplied with the requirements of the Combined Code
in so far as they related 1o the work of nomination commitiees

Activities and work of the Committee

Following Keith Satchell's announcement of his intenton 1o retre
in 2007, the succession plans for both executve and non-executive
directors were rewewed throughout 2006 and the Commuttee led
the search and recruitment process with the assistance of external
executive search consultants The Committee considered fully the
leadershp reeds of the Group and after considering both internat
and external cardidates recommended to the Board that Philip
Moore the existing Group Finance Director be appointed as Greup
Chief Exaecutive Philip Moore was duly appointed as Group Chief
Executive on 1 January 2007 in succession to Keith Satchell As a
result of Phip Moare’s appaintment, the Commuttee undertook a
further search for a new Group Finance Director The Commitiee
nterviewed a number of candidates and recommended to the
Board the appontrment of Jim Smart who joined the Company in
November 2006 and was formally appointed Group Finance
Director on 1 January 2007 The Commuttee also considered the
need for additional non-executive directers in view of the planned
retirements of Chnstopher Jemmett and Lord MacGregor who are
both aged 70 in May 2007 The Comimuittee reviewed the mux of
skilis and experience that would be of most berefit tc the Group
and follcwing a further search process recommended the
appointment of Sir Mervyn Pedelty as an independent non-
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execuuve director from 1 October 2006 The Committee 15
currently progressing the search for a further independent non-
executve director The increased number of meeungs held by the
Commutiee durnng the year reflected the additional worklcad ansing
from these activities

The Commuttee has also agam reviewed the standard letter ot
appomtment used for the non executive directors contract far
services 1o ensure that it continues 10 meet the requiremenis of
the Combined Code The indmdual terms and conditions of
appeintment of non-executive directors can be inspected dunng
normat business hours at the Campany’s reqistered office by
contacting the Company Secretary

The Commuttee has assessed whether each independent director
is futfiling his or her duties confirmed the trme required of non-
executive directors for the fulfilment of their duties and made
recommendations to the Board as t¢ the independence of
directors and therr suitabiiity for re-election as directors

Finally, the Committee reviewed the selevant parts of the draft
2007 AGM notice 1o sharehclders to ensure 1ts appropnateness as
regards those matters to be disclosed that could be regarded as
within the Committee s remit for example, the biogrephical details
of directors and ther independence

For the Board

i
efospor

The Rt Hon Lord MacGregor of Pulham Market
Chairman Nomination Cemmittee
19 March 2007
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The With-Profits Committees (WPCs) of
the Life and Pensions operating companies

Purpose and terms of reference

The purpose of the WPCs 1s to bring independent judgment to

{1} the assessment of comphance of each Life and Pensions
operating company with its published Principles and Practices of
Financial Management (PPFM), and (1} how any competing or
conflicting nghts and interests of pelicyholders and, if applicable,
shareholders have been addressed In neither case does this take
away any responsibility or accountability from the boards of the
relevant companies This purpose 1s reflected in each WPC s
written terms ot reference which are published on the Company's
website and are subject to annual review by the WPCs The last
review was carried out in June 2006 when the VWPCs concluded
that the extsting terms of reference for the committees remained
appropriate

Membership and operations

The WPCs are charred by one of the Company’s independent non-
executive directars, currently Alison Carnwath The other members
are Peter Nowell independent external member) and Graham
Aslet (former director and Appointed Actuary) All three served
throughout the year Dunng the year the WPCs reviewed therr
operations and level of activires against peer practice and were
satisfied with the current governance and the infrastructure that
were In place to ensure effective discharge of therr role

Activities and work of the WPCs

The WPCs met four umes dunng 2008, with all members present
on every occasion

During the year, the WPCs reviewed the changes made to the Life
& Penstons operating companies’ published PPFMs and the
consumer friendly With-Profits Summarnes and the main areas of
discretion altowed by the PPFMs In particutar they reviewed the
appropnateness of a change in the mix of assets backing the FPLP
With-Profiis Fund, removal of Market Value Reduction factors the
basis used for determining surrender values, the principles
underlying the bonus declarations for FPLP and FPLA made In
January and July 2006 and January 2007 and the principles by
which benefits are shared among policyholders within the Closed
Fund of FPLA

The WPCs also reviewed the content and quality of communications
1o policyholders, including the With-Profits Actuary’s report on the
use of discretion in the management of with-profits business and
the board report to policyholders A process was in place {o ensure
that the WPCs saw any correspondence that had been sent by
policyholders to the WPCs or any of 1ts members and the
responses

A number of special projects, which potentially affected the
interests of both with-profits palicyholders and shareholders, were
undertaken dunng the year The most important of these projects
were {I) the investigation inte a smaothing methodology for FPLP
with-profits funds to ensure that surrender values for policies in
payment would not fali significantly on a change in basis and {1)
development of the Closed Fund Run-of Plan for FPLA

Addihonally, management also kept the WPCs informed, on a
timely basis of the following reporis and 1ssues during the year

s approach 1o alternatve investments for the FPLP With-Profits
Fund

e actuaral valuation reports and indwidual capital assessment
results of the Life and Pension subsidiares

s comparative analysis of the With-Profits Fund performance and

* natives in promoting Treating Cusiomers Fairly

The WPCs reviewed these and other proposals in accordance with
ther terms of reference, assessed and confirmed that the
proposals were in comphance wath the appropnate PPFM and,
effectively, treated customers farly Any issues ansing from these
reviews were debated within the WPCs and, In some cases, the
WPCs have made recommendations to the Life & Pensions
operating companies’ boards that resulted in changes betng made
by the boards to the oniginal proposals

For the Board

Ava on  (of wteTla,

Alison Carnwath
Charrman, With-Profits Committees
19 March 2007
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Remuneration Report of the Board

This report sets out the remuneration policy and principles under
which the directors and senior managers are remunerated and
details the remuneration and share interests of each director for
the year ended 31 December 2006 Shareholders will be invited to
approve this report at the AGM on 24 May 2007

Remuneration policy

The remuneration policy aims to achieve a structured and balanced
remuneration package, with an emphasis on linking rewards to
corporate and indvidual performance and with an appropriate
balance between short term and long term elements In designing
performance-related remuneration schemes and in preparing this
report, the Board and the Remuneration Committee ithe
Committee) have complied wath the provisions of the Companies
Act 1985, the Combined Code and the FSA Listing Rules

The elements of directors remuneration which are performance-
related are annual bonuses and long-term incentives Base salary Is
determined by reference to the market and indrvidual performance,
and other major benefits are directly related to base salary The
perfarmance-related elements of the executive directors’
rernuneration for 2006 would, for on-target performance, represent
around 140% of base salary and for above-target performance
represent around 170% of base salary which in both cases
represents the monetary amount of the bonus and the value of
iong term incentives The chart opposite shows the proportions of
salary, benefits annual performance-related bonus earned during
2006 and the estimated value of long term incentives granted

during 2006 to individual directors  Alain Grisay 15 a director of the
Company, but he also replaced Howard Carter as the Chief
Executive of F&C on 1 January 2006 and 1s remunerated entirely
by F&C in accordance with s remuneration policy This report
includes only those disclosures required of the Company in respect
of Alain Gnsay as full disclosures have already been made by F&C
in 1its Report and Accounts for the year to 31 December 2006
Accordingly, throughout this report on remuneration, references to
executive directors do not include Alain Grisay unless spectfically
mentioning him by name

Chart removed

During 2007, the Committee will review remuneration policy to
ensure that remuneration continues to support the delivery of
strong performance for shareholders that incentive arrangements
remaimn aligned to the achievement of appropnate corporate and
indwidual performance targets, and that the total remuneration
package 1s suitably posiioned in the markets in which Friends
Provident competes for tatent The outcome of the review wall be
detalled in the 2007 Remuneration Report

The remuneration package of the executive directors includes the following etements

Element Purpose

Methodology

Base salary To attract and retain

Role and contnbution

Pension and benefits

Competitive fixed benefits to provide secunty and
protection and to ratain

Benefits knked 10 service and base salary at
retirement date

Annual bonus

» Normal maximum s 80% of salary and target for
2006 was 50% (100% of salary may be payable
after consultation with major shareholders)

* Where maximam 1s over 80% any bonus over
60% 15 paid in shares and deterred for three years

interests

To motivate and reward for annual performance

Support retention and afign with shareholder

A proporticn based on (paris ofl Achieved
Operaung Prafit and the balance on key
performance targets agreed by the
Commuttes The balance vanes for each
director

Share incentive schemes

Long Term Incentive Plan (LTIP)

» Maximum grant leve! of 200% of salary

® Awards In 2006 were at most 150% of salary

Executive Share Option Scheme (ESOS)

s Used in excepticnal circumstances

* Maximum grant level of three times salary
reduced proportionataly for any LTIP grants

To motvate and ensure ahgnment with Jong-term
strategy and with the interests of shareholders

Primarnily to support recrutment

Total Shareholder Return {TSR)
Excess Profit

Not used in 2006

Further detalls of these elements are set out below

Base salary
The Company operates a marketded pay strategy and sets salary
by reference to the levels of pay

(n of the Financial Services Sector Comparator Group being those
financial senices companies wathin the FTSE 100 having
regard to market capiialisation, and

{n) of the tweniy companies closest to Fnends Prowvident in the
FTSE 100 based on market capitalisation

Indrndual salanes are then set at the appropnate pont within the
salary range

60 Friends Provident Annual Report & Accounts 2006

Performance-related annual bonus scheme {ABS)

The normal maximum bonus level under tha ABS 1s 80% of salary
although the Comnuttee has the {lexibiity to agree a maximum
bonus level of 100% of base salary after further consultatton with
major shareholders The target level for executive directors for the
2006 ABS was 50% of salary

To support the objectves of shareholder alignment and retention,
when the maxtmum bonus 1s in excess of 80% of base salary, the
portion of any bonus award 1n excess of 60% of salary 1s payable
in the form of an award of shares, deferred for three years with no
matching efement and forfeitable on resignation
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The award 1 based on those elements of undertying Achieved
Operating Profit within the directors contro! and individual KPls
such as service-related intiatives, implementation of Group
strategy including nsk management and etficient use of capital,
embedding cutiural change and the earnings per share of F&C

It 15 the pohicy of the Committee not 1o award transaction bonuses
The Committee may, however, award special bonuses In excess of
100% of base salary with prior shareholder approval

Share incentive schemes

The LTIP 15 the man long-term incentive programme within the
Cornpany and compnses a grant of 10 pence options Fellowing
the approval of shareholders at the 2005 AGM, the LTIP replaced
both the previous LTIP and the ESOS for senior management The
Committee believes that, for a given accounting cost and dilution
cost, LTIP awards provide greater incentive effect, and hence value
1o shareholders Awards up to twice base salary may be made In
any one year under the plan {measured as the face value of shares
placed under award at the date of grant} In pracuce, awards made
under the plan have been significantly below this maximum grant
level In 2006, the maximum award granted was to the value of
150% of basic salary

The ESOS has been retained pnmanly to assist, as appropnate

in the recruitment of senior individuals [n the event that the ESOS
1s used, the options would be subject to performance conditions
and there would be no re-testing for any eptions granted There
would be an absolute cap of three tmes base salary on such
option grants reduced in value proportionally for any LTIP grants
No such use of the ESOS was made in 2006

The Comrttee believes that long-term incentive plan performance
conditions should strike a balance between achieving algnment
with ultimate shargholder returns and reward for delivery of strong
underlying financial performance, the latter being more directly
within the control of sentor management

Vesting of LTIP grants made 1n and after 2006 1s determined by
two performance measures

(TSR relative to that of other companies of the FTSE 100 Index
at the date of each grant for 50% of the award, and

{1} Excess Profit of the ife and pensions business relative to
predefined targets for 50% of the award

The Committee believes that relative TSR remains the best
measure of the Company's ultimate delivery of sharehalder returns
and that Excess Profit 1s the internal financial measure that 1s most
closely linked to value creéation in a Iife assurance business

TSR I1s the percentage return in a given penod ta a purchaser of an
ordinary share in the Company ansing from share price
appreciation and re-investment of dwdends The Company s TSR
over a three-year performance penod 1s ranked against the TSR of
other members of the FTSE 100 Index {as at the date of each
grant} and vesting 1s in line with the following scale

Percentage of TSR eloament
TSR relative to FTSE 100 of award vesting

Less than median 0%

At median 25%

Performance above median but
below top quartile

Straightline vesung
between 25% and 100%

Top quartile performance 100%

Excess Profit 1s the underiying iife and pensions profit less expected
returns on both existing business and shareholder net assets less
corporate costs Each year's Excess Profit (net of tax) dwded by the
embedded value at the start of the year determines the Excess
Return for that year In essence, Excess Return 1s a measure of the
extent 1o which the Company’s return on capital has exceeded tts
cost of caprial thereby generating value for shareholders

The average Excess Retum over the performance penod ts
compared against targets set by the Committee at the start of the
pencd The Commitiee with the aid of independent actuarial
advice, sets targets for each plan cycle that are approprately
demanding and challenging in the context of market expectations
of the Company's future profits

The targets for awards made in 2006 were set so that vesting of
the Excess Return element of the award will be as follows

Average Excess Return Percentage of excess profit

{per annum) element of award vesting
Less than 3% 0%
3% 25%

More than 3% but lass than 5% Straight-ine vesting

between 26% and 100%
100%

5% gr more

The measurement basis excludes nemns drven by overall market
movements This means the measure 15 more closely aligned with
factors that are within the control of the sentor management

The Commuttee retains kmited discretion to vary vesting by up to
10% of the overall award Furthermore, the Committee has the
discretion to adjust the targets in a far and reasonable manner to
take account of corporate activity such as acquisitions regulatory
impacts and changes to accounting fules or reserving
requirements The Committee will communicate the rattonale for
any such adjustrments directly to shareholders

Introduction of IFRS and EEV targets

As advised in last year's report, life comnpanies are now reporting
therr results on an European Embedded Value (EEV) basis The
average Excess Return component for the 2006 award used an
EEV basis and the 2005 award has accordingly been recalibrated to
ensure 111s measured consistently going forward

Performance graph

The graph on page 62 demonstrates the performance of the
Company based on TSR compared with the FTSE 100 TSR !ndex
and the FTSE All Share Life Insurance Sector TSR Index The graph
shows performance for the Company s five reporting periods since
31 December 2001

Cver the whole period Friends Prowident s TSR has just slightly
underperformed against the FTSE 100 Index by 2 3% but has
outperforrmed the FTSE All Share Life Insurance Sector by 6 9%
For the year to 31 December 2006, Friends Prowident’s TSR
movement was ranked 58th (34th in 2005) when compared with
the constituents of the FTSE 100 at the beginming of the year
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Benefits and pensions

In common with many financial services orgamisations the
Company provides a range of benefits to its staff some benefits
being dependent upaen senicnity The benefits disclosed for
executive directors comprise the taxable value of a company car
and private medical care

Dunng the year, the changes for pensions simplification have been
implemented and a scheme-specific earnings cap has been
maintained Detalls of the impact of these changes on the pension
arrangements for executive directors are set out in detail later in
this report

The conitractual retirement age for employees in the UK Life and
Pensions business has been increased from 60 to 65 as a
consequence of age discnmination legislation and maximum
penstonable service has been equalised at 45 years of service
for all staff

All staff who are members of the Frnends Provident Pension
Scheme (the Pension Scheme) a UK defined benefit contributory
pension scheme have been offered the option of maintaining a
normal retirement date at age 60 or Increasing 1t to age 65 The
Company has announced an increase in member contnbutions from
3% 1o 7% (to be implemented in a senes of annual 1% stages) for
all those who have chosen to retire at age 60 A 2% contnbution I1s
payable by those who have selected a retrement date at age 65

The Company has also announced the closure of the Pension
Scheme to new members from 1 July 2007 and new employees in
the UK Life and Pensions business will be offered a good quality
defined contnbution package of benefits in order 10 stabilise the cost
and rnisks of overall pension prowision The Company has reserved the
nght, In exceptional arcumsiances, 1o provide final salary benefits in
respect of employees who were not members of the Pension
Scherne prior to 1 July 2007 It 1s intended that this provision will only
be used where there 1s a need to recruii or retain specrfic skills

Other senior executives, management and
all-employee schemes

There are a number of senior executives within the Group's life
and pensions business who, in addition to the executive directors,
have a significant influence over the abiity of the life and pensions
business to meet 1ts strategic goals The Commutiee has regard to
the remuneration of this senior executive group whose total
remuneration mcluding salary, bonus and benefits excluding
pension and share scherne participation are summansed opposite
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Total remuneration 2006 £000 Number in band 2006 (2005}
126-150 - 3)
151-175% 7 N
176-200 5 {2)
201225 2 3
226-250 2 2)
251-275 2 [§}]
276-300 0 [(3}]
301-325 ' 1 4]

The Commuitiee also has general oversight of pohcy in relauion 1o
the granting of discretionary equiy-based incentives throughout
the Company In 2006, the Company introduced a Deferred Share
Plan under which shares may be awarded subject to certain
performance criteria to alt employees cther than the senior
executive group It is proposed that similar arrangements will apply
in 2007 and subsequent years In 2006, 3 102 employees received
an award and detalls are given below

Share award as percentage

Number of staff

of salary receiving an award
Less than or equal to 3% 1601
31% -40% 492
41% -60% 244
1% -80% 165
81% -100% 67
13% k3
20% 2
Total 3102

All employees and executive direclors may participate in two HM
Revenue & Customs approved All-Employee Share Schemes the
ShareSave Scheme, a savings-related share option scheme, and
the Partnership Share element of the Share Incenuve Plan (S|P}
which facilitates the investment by staff of up to £1,500 per
annum in shares

External appointments

1t 15 the Company’s policy 1o permit executive directors 1o accept
up to two extemnal appointments Howaever, all fees receved in
respect of external appointments are paid to the Company not to
the individuat director

Executive directors’ service contracts and termination

Dunng 20086, the Company rewsed its policies to ensure compliance
with the new age discrimination legislation introduced from

1 Qctober 2006 In Iine with the Group policy, all executive directors
have service contracts that expire at the normal retirement age for
all statf at age 65 The executive directors are subject to the same
redundancy provisions as all staff within the Company's life and
pensions business Executive directors’ roling contracts do not
othenmse include compensation for severance as a result of
change of control of the Company Redundancy terms prowide for
payment of a lump surm that depends on service, salary level and,
{0 some extent, age, up to a maximum of 105 weeks’ salary based
on the last 20 years service and for those over 50 (55 from 2010}
wha joined the Company before 1 December 2006, an tmmediate
pension calculated on servce to the date of termination but wathout
actuanal reduction Departing directors are required to mitigate loss
In the case of Alain Gnsay, the nformation set out on page 63
relates to service contracts with F&C
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Number of
months’ notice
Name of executive director  Date of service Last Next due for
{with age at 19 March 2007} contract {re-) elected {re-) election Company Director
Alain Grisay (53) 11 October 2004 AGM 2006 AGM 2009 1% 12
Ben Gunn {56) 25 Apnl 2001 AGM 2006 AGM 2009 12 6
Philip Moore {47) 1 July 2003 AGM 2004 AGM 2007 ' 12 6
Kaith Satchell 55) 25 Apnl 2001 AGM 2004 Retred 31 January 2007 12 6
Jim Smart (47) 10 Cctober 2006 - Due for election 1n 2007 12 [}
Amount of each director's emoluments and compensation in the relevant financial year (audsted)
The remuneration of each director in 2006 {with 2005 companscn) compnsed
Annual bonus Compensation Total Total
Salary and fees Benefits (2006 accrued) for loss of office reported 2006 reported 2005
£000 £000 £000 £000 E£000 E£000
Exgcutive
Howard Carter retired 25 05 06 - - . - 1885
Alain Gnsay appointed 01 01 06 325 6 1.358 - 1,689 1,006
Ben Gunn 330 10 204 544 513
Philip Moora 398 9 229 - 636 538
Keith Satchell retred 31 01 07 525 1 393 929 812
Jim Smart appointed 01 01 07 65 2 . - 67 -
Non-executive
Alison Carnwath 71 - - - n 85
Chnstopher Jemmett 13N - - 131 124
Lady Judge 83 - - - 88 B3
Ray King 58 - - 58 52
Lord MacGregor €1 - - 61 57
Sir Adnian Montague 235 - - 235 139
Sir Mervyn Pedelty appointed 01 10 06 13 - - 13 -

Explanatory notes

1 Benefns All elements i the table represent cash compensation apart from the figures shown in the Benefits column These include the taxable value
of a company car and private medical care The other non-cash benefis are in respect of pension provision

2 Annual bonus (2006 accrued}) These are payments under the ABS that have been pad in March 2007 The ABS for Kerth Saichell includes one manth in
2007 based on 2006 crteria Jim Smart s bonus will be paid in March 2008 based on a 13 5 month penod from 13 Nevemnber 2006 to 31 December 2007

3 Howaerd Carter retred as the Chief Executive of F&C on 31 Decernber 2005 and remained as a Director of the Company untl 25 May 2006 As
disclosed in the 2005 Rermuneration Repon, the 2005 remuneratton paid by F&C includes the tatal payments due for compensatton fer loss of office
Ne additional payments were made i 2006

4 Alan Gnsay also racewved £841 666 deferrad over three years :n Compulsory Purchased Equity under the terms of the Purchased Equity Plan, details of

which are shown in the F&C Remuneration Report

Jim Smart joined the Company on 13 Novermber 2006 at an annual salary of £400 002 His remuneration includes a salary supplernent i heu of pension

benefits (ses page 66} The higure relates to the salary and the salary supplement he receved for the penod 13 Novermber to 31 Decernbar 2006

6 Alison Carnwath receives £12 500 (2005 £7 500) for chainng the With-Profits Committees of Fnends Prowident s three FSA-regulated wholly-owned

Life and Pensions operating companies

Christopher Jemmetts s fees include £55 000 (2005 £55 000} paid by F&C for hus role as the senior independent director and deputy chairman of F&C

and chairman of its Audit and Compliance Committee His appointment to that board 1s at the Company s nomination

@l

~l

8 The amount of £87 500 {2005 £82,500) for Lady Judge was paid to BT Consulting in refation to her services as a director and 1s subjact to VAT {not
ncluded in the table)

On appointmeni as Group Chief Executive, Phiip Moore was awarded a base salary of £510 000 The Remuneration Committee recogntses that in
seting this base salary 1 s maternally below the benchmark for Mr Moore but considers that the new package should not be greater than that payable
to Kerth Satchell the outgoing Group Chief Executive The Committes will seek 1o move base salary over time such that total compensation more
accurately reflects the target benchmark positioning

w

Friends Provident Annual Report & Accounts 2006 63




CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY REPORT

DIRECTORS AND MANAGEMENT

Share options (audited)

Details of directors’ interests in options over ordinary shares of 10p

each in the capital of the Company are given in the table below
The market price of these shares at 31 December 2006 was
217 Op The highest and lowest share price dunng 2006 was

212 Op and 166 5p respectively The market value of the shares at

the ume of the LTIP grants in March 2006 was 210 5p

Durectors’ interests in share options

The mid-market pnce of shares at close of business on 19 March
2007 was 202p per share (7 Apnl 2006 195 5p per share} None of
the terms and conditions of the options listed below varied during
the year The price paid by each executive director for the oplions
under the ShareSave 15 dentified in the notes to the table

Options at Granted Exercised Lapsed Options at Exercise price Earliest Latest
010106 during year during year during year 311206 {pence) exercise date exercise date

Ben Gunn
ShareSave 2002 15,358 15 358 107 76 011007 010408
ESCS 17 03 2003 368 311 (368 311) - 7100 17 03 08 170313
ESOS 12 08 2004 311 949 311 949 127 00 120807 120814
LTIP 17 03 2003 184 155 (184 155) - 10 00 170308 170313
LTIP 28 03 2005 210674 210674 10 00 290308 290315
LTIP 24 03 2006 225166 229166 10 00 240309 240316
Total 1090 447 229 166 {552,466} 767,147
Keith Satchell
ShareSave 2002 15 358 15 358 107 76 011007 010408
ESOS 17 03 2003 61919 B19713) - 7100 17 03 06 170313
ESOS 12 08 2004 524884 524,884 127 00 12 08 07 120814
LTIP 17 03 2002 309 859 {305 859) - 10 00 17 03 06 170313
LTIP 29 03 2005 344102 344,102 10 00 290308 290315
LTIP 24 03 2006 364 583 364 583 10 00 240309 240316
Total 1813922 364,583 (929,578} 1,248,927
Phitip Moore
SharaSave 2003 8499 18 459) - 108 54 0110 06 0t 0ao7
SharaSave 2006 11083 11083 147 74 o1 1111 010512
ESOS 06 08 2003 211,398 (137 409} 73989 136 00 06 08 06 06 0813
ESOS 12 08 2004 298 233 298233 127 00 120807 1208 14
LTIP 08 08 2003 105 699 {105 693) - 1000 06 08 06 060813
LTIP 29 03 2005 210674 210,674 10 00 290308 280315
LTIP 24 03 2006 243 056 243,086 10 00 24 0309 2403186
Total 834 503 254,139 {114,198) {137 409) 837,035
Jim Smart
LTIP 13 11 2006 283,020 283020 1000 131109 131118
Total 283,020 243,020

Notes to the table

1 ShareSave Scheme (SAYE) 2002 Cpuions held at an exercise pnce of 107 76p by saving £250 per month for five years {15 358}
2 ShareSave Scheme [SAYE) 2003 Options held at an exercise price of 108 54p by saving £250 per month for three years (8,499)
3 ShareSave Scheme (SAYE) 2006 Options held at an exercise price of 147 74p by saving £7250 per month for frve years {11,083}
4

The performance conditians for 2003 and 2004 grants under the ES0S, which used a performance condition based on TSA aver a three-year performance
penod when ranked against that of ather companias which formed the FTSE 100 at the stan of each performance penod, are dataled above and in the
Remuneration Reports of the Company contained i the report and accounts of previous accouniing years

5 The 2003 awards under the LTIP wera depandent on the Group s Return on Embedded Value {(RoEV)
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Net gains made by executive directors on share options exercised dunng the year are set out below -

income Tax &

Gross proceeds NICs deductions Net proceeds
Ben Gunn ESOS 2003 £505 286 £245 973 £260313
LTtP 2003 £364 977 £177 671 £187,306
Keith Satchell ESOS 2003 £850 192 £413 874 £436,318
LTIP 2003 £614 110 £298 948 £315 162

Phiip Moocre ESOS 2003 None exercised in 2006
LTIP 2003 £178,240 £86,768 £91 472

Directors’ shareholdings

Directors’ personal shareholdings that are not related to therr
remuneration are disclosed in the Notes to the Accounts The
execuiive directors are expected to buld up their shareholding in
the Company over time To support this, awards in and after 2005
under the LTIP have been made with the expectation that the
recipient will retain shares up to the value at exercise of 75% of
the net proceeds

Pensions (audited}

All executive directors except Alain Gnsay and Jim Smart are
members of the Pension Scheme No element of executive
directors’ remuneraticn other than basic salary 1s pensionable

The pensions simplificaticn changes implemented by the
Government became effective in Apnl 2006 These changes

involved the abolition of the HM Revenue & Customs earnings cap

on approved pension benefits The Pension Scheme has been

amended to ensure the continuaton of a scheme specific earnings

cap {the Pension Scheme Cap) to maintain the benefit at the
previous level and therefore control the costs of the Scheme
Those members of the Pension Scheme who are subject 1o and
whose basic salary exceeds the Pension Scheme Cap are paid a
salary supplement amounting to, currently, 20% of the difference
between their basic salary and the Pension Scheme Cap

The Pension Scheme afso provides a spouse’s pension equal 10
two-thirds of the member s pension upon death after retrement
On death in service the Pension Scheme provides a spouse’s
pension equal to two-thirds of the member's prospective penswon
plus & lump sum death in service benefit F&C contributes to a
money purchase arrangement for Alain Gnsay In January 2008,
F&C made a contribution of £2,000,000 equivalent to £666,666 per
annum for three years into Alain Gnisay's pension fund The
payment represented F&C's commitment to Alain Gnsay on
assuming the role of Chief Executive to prowide him with an
appropnate pension at age 60 This commitment 15 contingent on
Alain Grisay serving as F&C's Chief Executive for a minimum of
three years and not resigning or be:ng dismissed for cause during
this three year pericd
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Transfer value increase in Increase in ~ Transfer value increase in Accumulated  Transfer value
of acerued accrued banefits accrnued benefits of accrued  transfer value total accrued of total accrued
benehits at during year during year after benefits during during year benefits at benefrts at
1.Jan 2006 before inflation inflation year after £000 31 Dec 2006 31 Dec 2008
£000 £000 £000 inflation £000 £000 £000
Name of director {a) (b} fc {d} {e) if g
Ben Gunn 1 956 22 17 353 783 151 2739
Phiip Moore 42 13 13 174 192 18 234
Keith Satchell tratred 31 1 07) 3953 38 27 478 1497 311 5,451

Notes to the above table

1 The accrued benetits for Keith Satchell nclude the appropriate proportion of additional service of 4 years 9 months that has been accruing uniformly
from 1 July 1981 to his normmal retirement date As praviously reported, in the avent of Kesth Satchell retnng between ages 55 and 60 he would be
entitled 10 receive a pension based on actual accrued service without actuarial reduction Keith Satchell retired ¢n 31 January 2007 and based on these
enhanced terms the 3t December 2006 transfer value wouid increase 10 £6 7 milhlon The benefits for Ben Gunn include additional service of 10 years
6 months granted to him on Jjoining Lendon and Manchester Group ple in 1996 and also wncluda additienal service of B years 9 menths that were
purchased with a transfer value he brought from a previous employer s schere The 31 December 2006 transfer value shown above is based on his
selected normal retirement year at age 60

2 Philip Moore transferred £21 000 during 2006 from previous pension arrangemants 1o purchase an additional B months of service in the Pension
Scheme this s reflected in the end of vear position In addiion the end of year figure includes a fixed pansion of £10,259 ralating to a transfer
receved during 2005, which was not included in the beginning of the year transtfer value

3 The Pension Scheme Cap affects Ben Gunn, Philip Moore and Jirmn Smar as descnbed below

a) Ben Gunn has an unfunded unapprovaed pension arrangement under which, on his reteement from the service of the Company at age 80 he will
receive pension benefits that when added to any pension benefits he recerves from the Pension Scheme on that date eguate to the pension
benefits he would have recaved if he were a member of the Pansion Schame and not subject to the Pension Scheme Cap The figures in the table
above include the value of the arrangement It has been agreed that if he retires on or after 30 Juna 2007 he will receive his scheme and unfunded
benefits based on service 1o his date of early retrement and with no actuaria! reduction save for the element of his pension purchased by funds from
former amploymant which would be reduced for early payment

b)Philip Moore recerves a monthly amount in addition to his basic salary of the difference between a varable percentage of his monthly basic salary and
ona twelfth of the Pension Scheme Cap to give him the cpportunity to make further pension provision Since his appoiniment on 1 July 2003
this amount has been equal to 20% and 15 reviewed in each calendar year During 2006 Phillp Moore received £48 431 1n this respect and the
amount 15 Included with the salary figure shown in the table On appointment to Group Chief Executive the Remuneraton Commitiee agreed to the
augmentation of banafits for Philp Moare the effect of which would be to provide an overall pension benefit of broadly two thirds of capped salary at
age 60 This augmentation will be funded by the receipt by the Pension Scheme of transfer values in respect of previous employments and Philip
Moore's personal contributions

c)Jim Smart 1s subject 1o the Iifeume allowance on approved pension benefits introduced in Aprd 2006 as part of the HM Revenue & Customs pension
simplification changes As a result on appointment it was agreed that in leu of benefits under the Pensien Scheme, Jim Smart wou'd be paid a
salary supplement of 20% of basic salary, reviewable 1n each calendar year to give him the oppertunity to make further retirement provision During
2006, Jim Smart receved £1¢ 909 in this respect and the amount 1s included with the salary figures shown in the table

During 2006 each executive director aparnt from Jim Smart and Alain Grisay, in common with all staff, contributed 3% of his pensicnable salary 10 the
Pension Scheme Alain Grisay contributed 6% of his pensionable salary to the F&C Asset Management Staff Pansion Fund

F-S

[42]

No excess retirement benefits have been paid te directors or past directors

The transfer values shown in the table have been calculated in accordance with Actuanal Guidance Note 120 {6 Apnil 1997) 1ssued by the Faculty and
Ingtitute of Actuanes The transfer values disclosed above do not represent a sum paid or payable to the individual director Instead they represent a
potential hability of the appropriate fund

]
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORTS

Non-executive directors

Details of current indivrdual non-executive directars’ contracts for

services are given In the table below These directors are not part
of any pension, bonus or share incentive schema of the Company
or the Group Directors are subject to re-election at least every

three years None of the non-executive directors has a service
contract and none I1s entitled to compensation on leaving the Board
save that if requested ta resign, the Charrman and each non-
executive director 1S enttled to pnor notice or fees in ey as set
out in the table below

Name of director Date of latest letter of appointment  AGM at which iast Next due Required notice
{(with age at 19 March 2007} {anct date first elected) elected for (re-)election from Company
[in months)
Sir Adrian Montague (59) 8 March 2005 May 2005 AGM 2007 6
{26 May 2005}
Lady Judge* {60} 30 May 2001 May 2006 AGM 2007 3
{25 May 1994)
AbLson Carmnwath {54} 18 November 2002 May 2005 AGM 2008 3
18 May 2003}
Christopher Jemmaeti {70) 30 May 2001 May 2006 Te retre at close of 3
{30 April 1997) AGM 2007
Ray King {53) 6 January 2004 May 2004 AGM 2007 1
{20 May 2004)
Lord MacGregor (70) 30 May 2001 May 2006 To retire at close 3
{26 May 1999} of AGM 2007
Sir Marvyn Pedelty (58) 1 QOctaber 2006 - Due for elecuion 1
n 2007

Lady Juage s sutpect to annual te-elsction

Apart from the Charrman and Deputy Charrman, non-executive
directors are paid a basic fee, currently £47,500 per annum for
therr role on the Board and separately remunerated for services on
Board Committees All fees are reviewed annually and the fees
were last increased with effect from July 2006 The Charman and
Deputy Chairman of the Board, wha charr the investment and
Remuneration Cammittees respectively recenve an annual zll-
inclusive fee currently £250 000 and £90 000 respectively the
iatter being exclusive of VAT The Remuneration Committee sets
the Chairman s annual remuneration

Member’s fae (E) Chairrman’s fee {£)

Audit and Compliance 7,000 20000
Nomination 3500 7 750
Remuneration 5000 10 000
Investment 4 500 7000

Sums paid to third parties in respect of executive
directors’ services (audited)

Mo sums were paid to third pariies in respect of any executive
director’s services
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Remuneration Committee
a) Purpose and terms of reference of the Committee

The Committee

* jecommends to the Board the broad policy 1 respect of senior
exgcutive remuneration

« ensures that the levels of remuneration for the executive
directors and senior executives are sufficient to attract retain
and motivate directors of the quality required by the Company

* structures executive directers remuneration so as to link
rewards to corporate and indwdual performance, and

= sets the rermuneration for all executive directors and the
Charman

The fees of non-executive directors are a matter for the
considerauon of the Board as a whole

The Commutiee’s full terms of reference are published on the
Company s website at www friendsprovident com and can be
obtained on written request to the Company Secretary at the
Company's registered office

b} Membership The members of the Committee are Lady Judge
{Chai), Alisen Carnwath and Christopher Jemmatt

¢) Adwvisers During 2006, the Committee was assisted by
PricewaterhouseCocpers LLP to provide independent advice on
remuneration matiers and Towers Parnn in respect of pension
matters The Commuitee also consuited with Keth Satchell, the
Group Chief Executive and Mike Hampton the Group HR
Director 10 ensure policy was appropriaie

Dunng 2006, the Commiitee underiook a review of externat
adwisers and concluded n the interests of good corperate
governance that a rotation would be approprate and appointed
Deloitte Touche LLP in lieu of PncewaterhouseCoopers LLP This
appointment takes etfect from 2 Apnl 2007

Additional disclosures in respect of Alain Grisay
{audited)

The remuneration of the executive directors of F&C Asset
Management pic IF&C} a separately listed 52% owned subsidiary
company 15 fully disclosed in the directors’ remuneration report of
the board of F&C Alain Gnsay 15 remunerated entrely by F&C in
accordance with (15 remuneraticn pelicy He 1s also a director of
the Company He has a rolling service contract with FAC dated

11 October 2004 that fequires twelve months notice of
termination on either skle Accordingly, this report includes only
those disciosures required of the Company in respect of Alain
Gnsay 1115 the Company's palicy to allow the board of F&C and its
remuneration committee to determine the remuneratien policy and
packages for the executrve directors of F&C

Alain Grisay parucipaies i the LTRP which s the pamary long-term
incentive arrangerment of F&C Under the LTRP, contingent

awards of shares are made under the Delerred Awards and the
Restrcted Awards

The vesung of Deferred Awards under the LTRP 15 contingent
solely on the conunued employment cf the relevant parucipant
over a three year penod No deferred awards were made 10 Alam
Gnsay duning the year
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The vestng of Restricted Awards under the LTRP (s determined
over three years and depends on F&C s TSR compared with FTSE
250 companies and on Earnings Per Share {EPS) performance and
15 subject to continuing service TSR and EPS performance
measures are each applied to 50% of every award For TSR
performance no opuons will vest for below median TSR
performance, for TSR performance between the 125th and 63rd
places awards will vest cn a straightdine Basis with 36% vesting
for 125th place and 100% vesting for 63rd place and above

Share options

Duning the year, Alain Grisay receved a restricted share award
under the LTRP of 956 937 shares

Data of Shate price
grant Atain Grisay on award date
15 Novernpar 2004 208,333 240 25p
No awards made in 2005 - NAA
17 May 2006 856 937 209 0p

Alain Grisay also participated in the Re-investment Plan {RP) which
was a one-off plan linked to the merger of F&C Group {Hold.ngs)
Limited {(F&CGH) and 1SIS Asset Management pic on 11 October
2004 The RP was estabhished to encourage key former F&CGH
indraduals to re-invest one hal! of the proceeds of their vested
Shadow Equity Plan entitlernent into investment Shares 1in F&C
These shares were forfetable should the parucipant voluntanly
resign or be dismissed for gross rusconduct within 24 moenths of
completion of the merger Dunng 2006 597 818 Investmant
Shares were released to Alain Gnsay

Full details of the LTRP and RP are set out in the F&C
Remuneration Report

The market price of F&C shares at 31 December was 211 Op The
highest and lowest F&C share price durnng 2006 was 232 0p and

176 Op respectively The rud-market price of F&C shares at close

of business on 19 March 2007 was 173 5p per share




FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Independent Auditor’s report to the members of Friends Provident pic

We have audited the Group and parent company financial statemenis
of Fnends Provident pic for the year ended 31 December 2006 which
compnse the Consolidated income statement, the Consoldated and
Parent company balance sheets the Consolidated cash flow
staterment the Consolidated statemant of recogmsed income and
expense and the related notes These financiat staterments have been
prepared under the accounting policies set out therem We have also
audited the information in the Remuneration Report of the Board that
15 described as having been audited

This report 1s made solely to the company’s members, as a body in
accordance with sechon 235 of the Companies Act 1985 Qur audtt
wark has been undertaken so that we mught state to the company §
members those matters we are required to state to them tn an
audrtor's report and for no other purpose To the fullest extent
permrtted by iaw, we do nat accept or assume responsibility to anyone
other than the company and the company’s members, as a body for
our audit work for this report or for the opinions we have formed

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditor

The drecters’ responsibilities for prepanng the Annual Report and
the Group financial statements In accordance with apphcable law
and Internatronal Financial Reporting Standards (iFRS) as adopted by
the EU and for preparning the parent company financial statemenis
and the Remuneration Report of the Board in accordance with
applicable law and UK Accounting Standards {UK Generally Accepted
Accounting Pracuce) are set out in the Staternent of directors’
responsibilities on page 56

Qur respensibiity is to audn the financial staternents and the pan of
the Remuneration Report of the Board to be audited 1n accordance
with refevant legal and regulatory requirements and International
Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland}

We report to you our opiruon as to whether the financial statements
gve a true and farr view and whether the financial statements and
the part of the Remuneration Report of the Board to be audited have
been properly prepared 1n accordance with the Companies Act 1985
and whether, 1n addiion the Group financial statements have been
properly prepared in accordance with Article 4 of the IAS Regulation
We also report to you if in our opmion the Directors’ report s not
consistent with the financia! statements The information given in
the Directors’ report includes that specific informaton presented in
the Annual Review that is cross-referred from the Business review
section of the Directors report

In addition, we report to you if, In our opinicn, the company has not
kept proper accounting records, if we have not recerved all the
infarmation and explanations we require for our sudit, or if
nformation specified by law regerding directors’ remuneration and
cther transacuons is riot disclosed

We review whether the Corporate governance report reflects the
Company s complance with the mne provisions of the 2003 FRC
Combined Code specthed for our review by the Listing Rules of the
Financial Services Authonty and we report if i does not We are not
required to consider whether the Board's siatements on internal
control cover all nsks and controls, or form an apinion on the
effectveness of the Group's corporate governance procedures or its
nsk and contro! procedures

We read other informaton contained in the Annual Report and consider
whether it 18 consistent w.th the audnted financial statements Ve
consider the impheatans for our report f we become aware of any
apparent misstaterments of materal nconsistencies with the financal
staterments Qur responsbiities do not extend to any other information

Basis of audit opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards
on Auditing (UK and ireland} issued by the Auditing Practices Board
An audn includes examination on a test basis, of ewdence relevant
te the amounts and disclosures i the financial statements and the
part of the Remuneration Report of the Board to be audited It also
includes an assassment of the significant estmates and judgements
made by the directors in the preparation ot the financia! statements,
and of whether the accounting palicies are appropnate to the

Group s and company’s circumstances consistently applied and
adequately disclosed

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the
information and explanatigns which we considered necessary in
order to provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable
assurance that the financial statements and the part of the
Remuneration Report of the Board to be audited are free from
material misstaterment whether caused by fraud or other iregulanty
or error in forming our opimon we also evaluated the overall
adequacy of the presentation of informatton n the financial
staternents and the part of the Rermuneration Report of the Board
to be audited

Opinion

In our apinien

* the Group fingncial statements give a true and far view, In
accordance with IFRS as adopted by the EU of the state of the
Groups affars as at 31 Decembers 2006 and of its profit for the
year then ended

+ the Group financal statements have been properly prepared in
accordance wrth the Companies Act 1985 and Article 4 of the
145 Reguiattn,

* the Parent company financial staterments grve a true and far
view In accordance with UK Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice of the state of the Parent company s atfars as at
31 December 2008,

* the Parent company financial staterents and the part of the
Remuneration Report of the Board to be audited have been
properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 1985
and

» the information grven in the Directors” report 1S consistent with
the financial statements

g sl

KPMG Audnt Plc
Chartered Accountants
Registered Auditer
Landon

19 March 2007
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

IFRS ANANCIAL STATEMENTS £EV SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

Consolidated income statement
For the year ended 31 December 2006

2008 2005
Notes £m £m
Revenue
Gross earned prérmiums 4 980 977
Premiurns ceded to reinsurers 4 {84) {56}
Net earned premiums 4 896 921
Fee ang commission income and ncome from service acivities 565 483
Investment income 5 3.697 6,287
Total revenue 5,158 7683
Claims, benefits and expenses
Grass claims and benefits pad 1,587 1,569
Amounts recevable from reinsurers 43) {37)
Net claims and benefits paid 1544 1,532
Insurance contracts liabilities 27 {764) 5i4
Invesiment contracts lrabilities N 2,620 3.822
Transfer to fund far future approprations 19 187
Mavement in net assets attributable to ynit holders 33 13 136
Movement in policyholder habilities 2,006 4,659
Acquisition expenses 412 285
Administrative and other expenses 618 759
Finance costs 12 88 1]
Total claims, benefits and expenses 4,668 7324
Share of profit of associates and joint venture 20 1 -
Profit before tax from continuing operations 49 367
Palreyholder tax i3 {124) (218)
Profit hefore shareholder tax from continuing operations 367 149
Total tax expense 13 70 (178)
Policyholder tax 13 124 218
Shareholder tax 13 54 40
Profit after tax from continuing operations a1 189
Prafit after tax from discontinued operations a2 - 8
Profit for the year 2 197
Attnbutable to
Equity holders of the parent {1}
Ordinary shareholders 276 132
Other equity holders 52 37
328 169
Muinanty mterest 93 28
Profit for the year ! . , 421 197
Earnungs per share
Basic earnings per share from conunuing operations {pence} 15 131 63
Diluted basic earnings per share from continuing operations {pence} 15 128 63

(i} Allprofit attnibutable to equity holders of the parent 1s from continuing operations
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PARENT COMPANY ACCOUNTS

ABBREVIATIONS AND DEFINITIONS

Consolidated underlying profit
For the year ended 31 December 2006

2006 2005

Notes £m £m
Profit before tax from continuing oparations* 491 367
Policyholder tax 13 124} (218
Returns on Group-controfled funds attributable to third parties {104) {57}
Profit before tax excluding profit generated within policyholder funds 253 92
Non-recurring items 3 17 59
Amortisation of Asset Management acquired intangibte assets 16 43 56
Amortisation of acquired present value of in-force business 16 25 28
Amortisation of Life & Pensions acquired intangible assets 16 7 7
Impairment of Asset Management acquired mtangibie assets 16 58 112
Interest payable on Step-up Tier ane Insurance Capital Secunities (STICS) 39 {52} (37
Short-term fluctuations in Investment return 5 39 (102)
Vanation in value of option on convertible debt 32 - 9
Underlying profit before tax* 400 224
Tax on undeslying profit -] (&)
Minanty mterest in underlying profit {29} (36}
Underlying profit after tax attnibutable to ordinary shareholders of the parent 377 183
Earnings per share
Underlying earnings per share (pence) i5 179 88

IFRS underlying orofit 1s a measure of profit which excludes profit generated within policyholder funds that is not allocated to shareholders
Managemeni consider that underlying profit better reflects the perfarmance of the Group and focus on this measure of profit in its internal

monitering of the Group s IFRS results

IFRS undertying profit 1s based on longerterm investment return and excludes (i} pobeyholder tax, (1) returns attrbutable to minonity interests
in policyholder funds, (n} non-recurnng items, {iv) amartisation and impairment of acquired intangible assets and present value of acquired

in-force business, and 1s stated after deducting interest payable on STICS

* Included in profit before tax from conunuing operations, and underlying profit before tax, are one-off items ralating to basis changes and the
partial adoption of FSA Policy Statement PS06/14 Prudential Changes for Insurers which have increased profit by £156m in 2006 Further

detaills of these items are set out In note 2{h)
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IFRS ANANCIAL STATEMENTS EEV SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

Consolidated balance sheet
At 31 December 2006

2006 2005
Notes £m fm
Assets
Intangible assets 16 1,405 1580
Praperty and equipment 17 80 73
Investment propertres 18 2,426 1912
Investments 1n associates and joint venture 20 15 14
Fmancial assets 21 45,150 420N
Deferred acquisition costs 22 1111 994
Reirsurance assets 23 85 183
Current 1ax assets 30 25
Insurance and ather recewvables 25 606 590
Cash and cash eguivalents 25 358 2614
Total assets 54,489 50 086
Liabilihes
Insurance contracts 27 13,762 14 637
Fund for future approprations 439 420
Financial babihites
- Investment contracts 3 32,821 27 857
— Interest beanng loans and borrowings 32 1,130 1,155
Net asset value attnbutable to unit holders 33 28] 75
Pravisions 34 215 364
Deferred tax labilnies 24 318 288
Current tax liabiitres 116 177
Insurance payables, other payables and deferred income 35 582 497
Total habilitres 50,324 46 146
Equrty attnibutable to sgqurty holders of the parent
Attributable to ordinary shareholders
Share capital 36, 37 214 214
Share premium 36, 37 2,051 2038
Other reserves 36 38 542 436
2,807 2,688
Atinbutable to other equity holders 36 39 810 810
3,617 3498
Minonity interest 36 548 a1z
Total equity 36 4,165 3940
Total equity and Lkabilitias 54,489 50 086

The financial statements were approved by the Board of directors on 19 March 2007

Hpdote (RN T —

Sir Adrian Montague Philip Moore Jim Smart
Chairman Group Chief Executive Group Finance Birector
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PARENT COMPANY ACCOUNTS 1 ABBREVIATIONS AND DEFINITIONS

Consolidated statement of recognised income and expense
For the year ended 31 December 2006

Equity holders of Equity  Total equrty
the parent holders of the holders of the Minorrty
{ordinary shares) parent {STICS] parent interest Total
£m £m £m £m £m
Actuanal losses on defined benefit schemes net of tax {i) (8} - {8 1 (7}
Foreign exchange adjustments {10} - (10) (2} (12)
Revaluation of owner occupred properties 6 - 6 - 6
Shadow accounting i6) - {6) . 6}
Nst income recogrised directly in equrty {18} - {18) (1) {19}
Prcfit for the year 276 52 328 93 421
Total recognised incomae and expense for the year 258 52 310 92 402
For the year ended 31 December 2005
Equnty holders of Equity Total equity
the parent holders of the holders of the Minority
(ordinary shares) parent (STICS) parent interest Total
£m £m £m fm £m
Actuanal losses on defined benefit schemes net of tax ()} {i8) - (18) (10 (28)
Foreign exchange adjustments (7} - {7 (11 (8
Net oxpense recognised directly in equrty {25) - {25) (11} {36)
Profit for the year 132 37 168 28 197
Total racognised income and expense for the year 107 37 144 17 161

(I} Tax recogmsed directly in equity 1s shown i note 13ic)
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Consolidated cash flow statement
For the year ended 31 December 2006

2006 2005
£m Em
Operating activities
Picfit for the year A1 197
Unreahsed gains on investrnents {311} (3,612}
Realised gans on investments {1,618) (1,072)
Finance costs 88 89
Amortisation and impairment of intangible assets 150 221
Depreciation of property and equpment 10 11
Movement in deferred acquisition cosis {119} {148
Total tax expense 70 178
Purchase of shares and other vanable yield securities {13,185} (5019}
Sale of shares and other vanable yield secunties 12,014 3765
Purchase of loans debt secunties and other fixed income securities [13,486) {18 840}
Sale of loans debt secunites and other fixed income secunties 13,311 i7 291
Purchase of investment properues (285) {201)
Sale of Investrment properiies 47 34
{Decreaselfincrease in insurance contract labilitres (875) 590
Increase 0 mvestment contract habhies 5,074 5,669
Increase in fund for future appropriations 19 164
(Decreaselfincrease n Provisons {718} 87
Net increasef{decrease) in recevables and payables 165 {22}
Pre-tax cash inflow/(outflow! from operating activities 1,412 {638)
Tax paid {86) (61)
Net cash inflow/({outflow) from operating activities 1.326 {699)
Investing activities
Acqusition of subsidianes net of cash acquired {21) 603
Reduction in participation in subsidianes net of cash disposed 49 44
Compensation from investrment mandate loss 27 -
Additions to internally generated intangible assets 18) {13)
Purchase of property and equipment (net) {1 (10
Net cash inflow from investing activities 26 624
Financing activities
Finance costs {81) (82}
STICS interest 52) {21}
Proceeds from issue of long-term debt, net of expenses 258 229
Repayment of long-term debt 312) .
Issue ot STICS net of expenses - 495
Net movement in other borrowings, net of expenses 12 5
Dridends paid 10 equity holders ot the parent {164) {157)
Dividends paid to minonty interest 46} {29}
Mot cash (outflow)/inflow from financing activitias {385) 440
Increase in cash and cash equivalents 967 365
Balance at beginning of year 2,614 2249
Balance at end of year 3,581 2,614
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PARENT COMPANY ACCOUNTS |

ABBREVIATIONS AND DEFINITIONS

Notes to the consolidated accounts

1 Accounting policies

1.1 Basis of preparation

The censolidated financial statements of the Group are prepared in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS)
as adopted by the European Union and those parts of the
Companies Act 1986 applicable to companies reporting under IFRS
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of property
and equipment, investment properties and financial instruments at
fair value through the income statement The financtal staternents
also comply with the revised Statement of Recommended Practice
issued by the Association of Britsh Insurers in December 2005 (as
amended in December 2006) in so far as these requirements do not
contradict IFRS requirements The detalled disclosure of new
business does not form part of these accounts

The Group has applied the principles contained in FRS 27 Life
Assurance as appled for the first tirme in the Group s 2005 financial
statements, as an mprovement to 115 accounting policies as
permitted by IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts This requires labibties to
with-protits policyholders to be measured on a realistic basis in
accordance with the FSA's Realistic Balance Sheet {(RBS) regulations

The Group presents its balance sheet in crder of lquidity Where
applhcable, for each asset and liability ine itern that combines
amounts expected 10 be recovered or settled both within ang
beyond 12 months after the balance sheet date disclosure of the
amount due beyend 12 months 1s either made in the maturity tables
in nate 30 or 0 the respective ine item note

Financial assets and financial habilities are not offset, unless there is
a legally enfarceable nght to offset the recognised amounts and
there 15 an miention 10 settle on a net basis, of 1o reahse the asseis
and settle the hability simultaneously Income and expenses are not
otfset in the Income statement unless required or permitted by an
aceouniing standard or interpretation, as specifically disclosed in the
accounting policies of the Group

The parent cormpany has continued to present individual financial
statements prepared on a UK GAAP basis as permitted by section
226A of, and Schedule 4 to, the Companies Act 1985, adopting the
exernption of omiting the prefit and loss account and related notes
conferred by section 230 of that Act The parent company financial
statements, with its respective accounting policies, are presented on
pages 185 to 189

The Group has decided not to earty adopt IFRS 7 Financiai
Instruments Disclosures or the Amendment to IAS 1 Presentation of
Financial Statements 1ssued by the International Accounting
tandards Board {|lASB) in October 2005, and effective from 1 January
2007 These standards will result in changes to disclesures relating to
finangial nstruments and capital when they are adopted w 2007

12 Use of estimates, assumptions and judgements

The preparation of the financial statements requires the use of
estiimates, assumptions and judgements that affect the reported
amounts of assets, habilities and centingent listilities at the balance
sheet date, as well as affecting the reported income and expenses

for the year Although the estirnates are based on management s
best knowledge and judgement of information and financiat data as at
the date the financial statements are approved the actual cutcorme
may differ from these estimates Further information on the use of
estimates, assumptions and judgements 1 set out in note 2

1 3 Summary of significant accounting policies

The pancipal accounting pohicies set out below have been
consistently applied to all years presented in these consolidated
Hinancial statements

1 3.1 Business combinations

The cost of a business combination 1s measured as the farr value of
the assets given, equity Instruments 1ssued and habilities incurred or
assurmed at the date of exchange, plus costs directly attnbutabie to
the business combinatign [dentrfiahle assets acquired and labilties
and contingent habilities assumed in a business combination are
measured iniagily at their farr values at the business combination
date wrespective of the extent of any minonity interest The excess
of the cost of the business combination over the farr value of the
Group’s share of the wentifiable net assets acquired 1s recorded as
goocdwil! If the cost of the business combination s less than the fair
value of the net assets acquired the difference (s recagrused diectly
In the income statement

{a) Subsidrares

Subsidranes are all entittes over which the Group has the power,
directly or indirectly, to govern the financial and operating policies so
as to obtain economic benefits, generzlly accompanying a
shareholding of more than one half of the voting nghts  Potential
voting rights that presently are exercisakle or convertible are alsc
taken inte account

Open-ended investment cormpanies and unit trusts in which the
Group has a percentage holding in excess of 50% are consohdated
The units not owned by the Group are treated as a hability called ‘net
asset value attnbutable to unit holders’

The consolidated financral statements incorparate the assets,
habiities, results and cash flows of the company and i1ts subsidianes
The results of subs:diaries acquired or sold during the period are
included in the consolidated results from the date of acquistion ar
up to the date of disposal Intragroup balances and income and
expenses ansing ffom ntra-group transacuons arg efiminated n
prepanng the consohdated financial statements

Profits or losses ansing from changes 1n holdings 1n subsidianes that
do not impact the Group s controf over that subsidiary are
recogrised direcily (i equity

{0} Associzles ant joint ventures

Associates are all entities over which the Group has significant
influence but not control over the financial and operating policies
generally ansing from holding between 20% and 50% of the voung
nghts Investments in associates are accounted for by the equity
methad of accounting and are wnally recogmised 2t cost The
Group’s mvestment in associates includes goodwill {net of any
irnpairment loss} identfied on acquisition
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1 Accounting policies continued

Joint ventures are those entities where the terms of the contractual
agreement ensure that the parties involved jontly control the entity,

notwithstanding that the Group's share of the underlying assets and
labilities may be more than 50% The Group recognises its Interests
In [oInt ventures using the equity method

Under the equity method, an investment 1s included as a single line
item in the consalidated balance sheet as the Group's share of the
tarr value ot the mvestee underntaking’s net assets plus goodwill,
which equates 10 the cost of the investment plus the Group's share
of post-acquisition reserves The Group's share of post-tax profis or
losses is presented as a single ling rtem in the consolidated income
staternent, adsted for the effect of any fair value adjustments

1 3 2 Product classification

{a) Insurance contracts

Cantracts under which the Group accepts significant insurance nsk
fram another party {the policyholder}l by agreeing to compensate the
poheyholder if a specified uncertamn future event (the insured event)
adversely affects the pelicyholder, are classified as insurance
contracts Under IFRS 4, insurance risk ts nsk other than financial nsk
Financial risk 15 the nsk of a possible future change in one ar more of
a specitied interest rate, secunty price commoedity price, foreign
exchange rate, index of pnice or rates a credit rating or credit index or
other vanable Insurance contracts may transter some financial nsk

Once a contragt has been classified as an insurance contract 1t
remains an insurance cantract for the remander of its ifetime, even
if the msurance nsk reduces sgnficantly dunng this penod As a
general guideline, the Group defines as significant insurance nsk the
possibiity of having to pay benefiis on the occurencea of an insured
event that 1s more than 5% greater than the benefits payable if the
nsured event did not ocour

b} Investrment contracts

Palicyholder contracts not considered insurance coniracts under
IFRS 4 are classtfied as investment contracts Contracts classified as
Investrnent contracts are either unit-inked or contracts with
Discretionary Participation Features (DPF} These are mainly unitised
with-profits contracts

{c) Options and guarantees

Cptions and guarantees are valued separately unless the option or
guarantee iiself meets the definition of an insurance contract, orit s a
pobcyholder option to sumender an insurance contract for a fixed amount

For aptions and guarantees separated from the host contract the
Group measures them at fair value and includes the change in fair
value in the Income statement on the same basis as for its other
embedded dervatives

13 3 Segment reporting

Management reviews the Group's operations on the basis of its key
business activities or business segments These are groups of
assets or aperatigns that provide products or services that are
different in terms of risks and returns to those of other busmess
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segments The Group therefare reports s primary segrnent
informaticn using business segments

Secondary segment information 1$ reperted using gecgraphical
segments A geographical segment provides products or services
within a particular economic environrment that are subyect to nsks and
returns that are different 10 those of other geographical segments

Further details of the segments selected by the Group are included
n note 3

1 3.4 Foreign currency translation

{a) Foreign currency transactions

The Group’s presentation currency is sterlng Transactions in foreign
currencies are translated to sterfing at the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the date of the transaction Monetary assets and latnhnes
denominated :n forexgn currencies at the balance sheet date are
translated to stering at the exchange rate ruling at the balance sheet
date, and any exchange differences ansing are taken to the income
staternent Non-monetary assets and habidities measured at histoncal
cost 1n a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rate at the
date of the transaction and are not subsequently restated Non-
menetary assets and habilivies stated at far value 1n a foreign curmency
are transiated at the rate on the date the far value was determined
When a gain or loss on a non-monetary tem 15 recogrised direcity in
equity, any exchange cormponent of that gain or loss is recognised
directly n equity Conversely, when a gan or ioss on 3 non-monetary
ntem s recognised in the income statement, any exchange
component of that gain or lass 18 recognised in the income statement
Fareign exchange adjustments recogrised in equity are reported in the
Groun's foreign currency translation resenve wathin retained earmings
and reported In the statement of recognised income and expense

{0} Overseas subsidianes

The assets and hahbilities of overseas subsidiares, including goodwill
and intangible assets attnibutable to the acquisition of the overseas
subsidiary and far value adjustments ansing on consohdation, are
translated to sterhng at foreign exchange rates ruling at the balance
sheet date The revenues and expenses of overseas subsidiaries are
translated 10 sterling at average foreign exchange rates for the year
Forergn exchange differences ansing on the transfation 0 sterling
are classified as equity movements and recognised in the Group’s
foreign currency translation reserve and reparted in the statement of
recognised income and expense These exchange differences are
recognised in the income statement « the period in which the
overseas subsidiary 1s dispcsed of

1 35 Revenue recognition

(a) Premums

Premium income in respect of single prerruium business, new
generation group pensions husiness and pensions husiness not
subject to contraciual regular premiums 1S accounted for when the
premiums are receved

For all ather classes of business, prerruum mcorme (s accounted for
in the year in which 11 falls due

Reinsurance premiums are accounted for when due for payment
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{b) Fee and commission income and incorne from service activities
insurance end investment contract pehicyholders are charged for
policy administration services Investment maragement services and
for surrenders Investment managernent SETVICES COMPNse pnmanty
fees and charges from unit-inked investment contracts issued by the
Life & Pensions business Fees earned by the Asset Management
business relate 1o the sale and management of retaill Investment
products and from managing investrents in the institutional market

These fees and charges are recognised as revenue in the accounting
perod in which the services are rendered

Front-end fees are charged to the policyholder at the inception of the
contract This 1s pnmarnly used for singte premmm contracts The
consderation receved 15 deferred as a hability and recognised over
the expected term of the contract on a straight-ine basis

Regular tees charged to the policyholder periodically (monthiy,
quarterly or annually), are recognised on 2 straight-ing basis over the
perniad in which the service 1s rendered

in respect of Asset Management a number of contracts have
perforrmance fees based on an agreed level of performance in a set
tme penod Performance fees are recognised when the quantum of
the fee can be estimated relably, which 1s when the performance
peniod ends when this occurs on or before the reporting date, or
where there 1s a period of less than six months remaiming to the end
of the performance penod, and there is evidence at the reporting date
which suggests that the current performance will be sustainable

(c} Investment income

All Income recewved from investments 1s recegnised in the income
statement and includes dividends, interest, rental income and gains
and losses relating to investment preperties, financial assets at far
value through the income statement and denvative financial instruments

Drvidend income from listed and unlisted secunties i1s recognised as
revenue when the night to receive payment is estabhished For histed
securittes this i1s the date the security 1s isted as ex-dividend For
unhisted secunties this 1s the due date of payment

Interest income 1s recogrused in the Income statement as it accrues,
taking 1nto account the effective yield of the asset or an applicable
floating rate Interest income includes the amortisation of any
discount or premium

Rental income from investment properties under operating leases 15
recognised In the Income statement on a straight-ine basis aver the
term of the lease Lease incentives received are recogrised in the
incoeme statement as an integral part of the total lease Income

1 3 6 Expense recognrtion

{a} Claims and benefits paid

insurance claims reflect the cost of all claims incurred duning the
year, mcluding ciamns handing costs Death clams and surrenders
are recorded on the basis of notifications recerved Maturities and

annuity payments are recorded when due Claims and benefits
recorded are accrued 1o the policyholder and included within
msurance and investrnent contracts habilities

Claims handling costs include nternal and external costs incurred in
connection with the negotiation and settlement of clams Internal
costs include all direct expenses of the clams departiment and any
general administiaiive costs directly attnbuiable 1o the dlaims function

Reinsurance recovenes are accounied for i the same period as the
related claim

{b) Finance costs
Finance costs are recegnised as an expense in the penod in which
they are incurred

{c} Operating lease payments

Paymients made under operaing leases are recognised in the
income statement on a straight-ine basis over the term of the lease
Lease ncentives paid are recegrised in the ncome staterment as an
Integral part of the total lease expense

{d) Investment properties related expenses
Expenses with regards 1o invesiment properiies are freated as
administrative expenses and are recognised when incurred

13.7 Impairrment

Assets are reviewed at each reporting date to assess whether there
are any circumstances that might indicate that they are imparred If
such crcumstances exist iImparrment testing 1s performed and any
resulting impairment iosses are charged to the income statement The
carrying vaiue 1s adjusted to the recoverable amount Goodwill 1s tested
annually for impairment or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be imparred

Imparrment is detarmined by assessing the recoverable amount of
the asset or in respect of goodwill the cash generating unit to which
the goodwill relates The recoverable amount 1s the higher of the
asset’s far value less costs to sell and value in use

Each cash generating unit to which goodwall 1s allocated represents
the lowest level within the Group at which the goodwill s monitored
for internal management purposes and 1s not larger than any of the
Group's primary or secondary segments used for segment reporting

1 3 8 Intangible assets

{a) Gooadwili

Goodwill anging on business combinations 1s the future economic
benefit ansing from assets that are not capable of heing ndmidually
wdentfied and separately recognised

{b) Investment management contracts

Investment management contracts acauired separately are
measured on initial recogrition at cost The cost of intangible assets
acquired In a business combination 15 the far value as at the date of
acquisition Following iniial recagnition intangtble assets are carned
at cost less accumulated amorisation and any accurmulated
impairment losses The useful Iives of investrment management
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1 Accounting policies continued

contiacts are finite and are amortised as the revenue on those
contracts 1s earned, which equates 10 a straght-kine basis aver the
estimated average contract term depending on the nature of the
contract with amortizsation being charged te the ncome statement
The amortisation pernod 1s reviewed at each financial yearend

The estimated useful lves have been assessed as follows

2008 2005
Investment trusts 10 years 20 years
Insurance 10 years 10 years
Institutional 6 years 10 years
Retall 10 years 1Q years

The useful lves of Investment trust and Insttutionat management
contracts were reduced dunng the year as set cut in note 2(h)

{c} Present value of acquired in-force business {PVIF)

On acquusition of a portfoho of iInsurance cantracts or investment
contracts, either directly or through the acquisition of a subsiciary
undertaking, the net present value of the Group s wterest tn the
expected pre-tax cash flows of the in-force business 1s capitalised in
the balance sheet as an intangible asset This ts amortised over the
anticipated lives of the related contracts which typically varnes
hetween 5 and 50 years

{d} Other intangible assets

Distnbution ksts brands and licences acquired are capitalised at
cost, being the far value of the consderation pawd Saftware &
capnalised on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and to bring
nte use Duect costs of internally generated software are capitalised
as intangible assets

Qther intangible assets have finite useful ives and are carned at cost
less accumulated amortisation and imparment Amartisation
calculated using the straight-line method tc allocate the cost over
the estimated useful lves of the intangible asset as follows

Distrhution dists 10-15 years
Brands 10 years
Licences 3-5 years
Software 3 years

Subsequent expenditure on other Intangible assets is caprtalised only
when it increases the future economic benefits embodied In the spechic
asset to which st relates Al other expenditure 1s expensed as incurred

1.3 8 Property and equipment

{a) Owned assets

Land and buildings are iitially recognised at cost and subsequently
measured at far value Revaluatons are performed anrually by
independent valuers who hold a recogrused and relevant professional
gualtication and have recent expenence In the location and category of
properties being valued Valuations are performed with sufficent regulanty
such that the carrying amount does not differ matenalfy from that which
would be determined using far values at the balance sheet date The farr
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value 1s the armount for which a property could be exchanged hetween
knowledgeable and wiilling paries in an arm s length transaction

Properties occupied by the Group are hekd at fair value on the basis
of open market value at the date of revaluation Revaluaton
surpluses are credited to the revaluation surplus in shareholders’
equity Decreases that offset previous increases of the same asset
are charged against the revaluation surplus directly to equity all
other decreases are charged to the tncome statement

Equipment 15 recogrised at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses

{b] Depreciation

Depreciation is charged so as to write off the cost of an asset net of
the estmated residual value, using the straight-kne methad, over the
estimated useful life of each part of an (tem of property and
equipment as follows

Motor vehicles 3-4 years
Computer hardware and related software 14 years
Fixtures, fitings and office equipment 3-10vears

Residual velues and useful lives are reviewed at each reporting date
and adjusted if appropnate

{c) Oisposal and derecognition

An item of property and equipment s derecognised upan disposal or
when no further future economic benefits are expected from s use
Any gain or loss ansing on derecognition of the asset 1s inctuded in
the income statement in the year the asset s derecognised Any
revaluation reserve relating to the particular asset being disposed of
or ne longer n use 15 transferred to retaned earnings

13 10 Investment properties

Investment properties comprnse land and/or builldings that are not
occupied by the Group and are held either 1o earn rental income or
for capital appreciation or for both

Investment property 1s nivally included n the balance sheet at cost
and subsequently measured at 1ts fair value which (s supported by
market ewidence based on annual valuations by independent valuers
who hold a recogrised and relevant professional qualfication and have
recent experience In the lecation and category of investment property
being valued Movements in the farr value of investment properties
are taken to the income statement in the penod in which they arse

13 11 Fair values of financial instruments

Fair values of histed financial instruments are based on market bd
price for assets and offer price for llabilities at the close of business on
the balance sheet date For unhisted financial mstruments broker of
dealer price quotations are obtamed | prices are not readly available,
the farr value s based on valuaton techniques Cerain financial
nstruments Including financial denvative Instruments are valued
using pricing models that consider among other factors, contraciuat
and market pnces correlation, tme value of money, credit risk, yield
curve volabhty factors andfor prepayment rates of the undertying
positions The use of different pricing models and assumptions could
produce matenally different estimates of far values
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If the value of financial Instruments cannot be relably measured,
they are measured at cost

1 3 12 Financial assets

The Group classities its investments as either financial assets at far
value through the income statement or loans The classification
depends on the purpose for which the investments were acguwed
ar onginated

Purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the date
the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset

A financial asset 1s derecogrised when the contractual nght to recerve
cash flows expires or when the asset, together with substantally all
the nisks and rewards of ownership, has been transferred

(a) Financial assets at farr value through the income statement

These mvestments are financial assets designated on initial

recogrution at fair value through the income statement A financtal

instrument is designated upon initial recognition at tar value through

the iIncome statement when it satisfies one of the fcllowing critenia

= It eliminates or significantty reduces an accounting mismatch
caused by financial assets and financial habiities being measured
on a different basis

¢ The financial instrument or group of financial Instruments s
managed indivmdually or together on a fair value basis

= The financral instrument contamns or may contain an embeddad
derivative

The fair value oninitial recognition 15 the consideration given excluding
any transaction costs directly attnbutable to their acquisition
Subsequent to invtial recognstion all such financial assets are measured
at far value Maovements in farr value are taken to the income
statement in the penod in which they anse These financial assets
include dervative financial nstruments held for trading purposes

Embedded denvatives are separated from the hast contract

(including ermbedded denvatives in insurance contracts) recognised

as a stand alone derivative financial instrument and measured at farr

value through the income statement when the {ollowing conditions

are met

= the economic charactenstics and nsks of the ernbedded
derivatives are not closely related to the economic charactenstics
and risk of the host ¢ontract,

* a separate nstrument with the same terms as the embedded
denvative would meet the definition of a denvative and

* the hybnd instrument 1s not measured at fair value with changes In
fair value recogrised In the income statement

{b} Loans

Loans are financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market Loans are measured on initial
recogrition at the farr value of the constderation given plus
incremental costs that are incurred on the acquisition of the
investment Subseguent 19 tnitral recogritton loans are measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest rate method

The amortised cost ¢f loans 1s the present value of estimated future
cash flows discounted at the onginal effective interest rate

1 3.13 Deferred acquisition costs

For both msurance contracts and investment contracts with DPF,
acquisiien costs compnse all direct and indirect costs ansing from
writing the contracts which are incurred during a financial perod
Costs are deferred 1o the extent that they are recoverable out of
future margins The rate of amortisation of deferred acquisition costs
on such centracts s proportionat to the future margins emerging in
respect of the related policies, over the ifetme of those policies

For investment contracts without DPF and for Asset Management
service contracts, deferred acquisition costs compnse all incremental
tos1s that are directly related 10 the wnting of the contract, which are
incurred duning a financial penod and are deferred to the extent that
they are recoverable out of future margms Such deferred acquisition
costs are amorused uarformly over the Iifetime of the policy

13 14 Reinsurance

Amounts due to and from reinsurers are accounted for m a manner
consistent with the insured policies and in accardance with the
relevant reinsurance contract Premiums ceded and clams
rembursed are iIndividually presented on a gross basis

Contracts that do not give nise to a significant transfer of insurance
rnisk to the reinsurer are considered financial reinsurance and are
accounted for and disclosed 1n a rmanner consistent with financial
nstruments

1 3 15 Taxation

{a) Current tax

The tax expense disctosed on the face of the iIncome staternent
represents the sum of current year corporation tax the movement In
deferred tax and adjustments 1o prior penods’ tax

Taxation 1s based on prefits and income for the penod as deterrmined
i accordance with the relevant tax legislation together with
adiustments to provisions for prior penods except where it relates
to an item which s recognised in equity Tax payable Is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the balance sheet date

The tax charge is analysed between tax in respect of income and
nvestment return an the policyhelders’ interest i the with-pratits
and binked fund assets represenung palicyholders” tax, with the
balance being tax on equity holders' investmaent return and profits
repreésenting shareholders’ tax

{b) Detferred tax

Deferred tax 15 the tax expecied to be payable or recoverahie on
difterences between the carnang amount of assets and habilities n
the financial statements and the corresponding tax basis used in the
computation of taxable profit This i1s accounted for using the
balance sheet labiity method and the amount of deferred tax
provided 15 based o the expected manner of realisauon or
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settlement of the carrying amount of the assets and tabilltes The
tax rates used are the rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the balance sheet date

Deferred taxation 1s recognised in the income staterment for the
period, except to the extent that it 1s attnbutable to a gain or loss
that 1s recogrised directly in equity In this case the gain or 10ss s
shown net of the attnbutable deferred tax

Deferred tax lizbilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognised 1o the
extent that it 1s probable that taxable future protits will be available
against which deductible temporary differences can be utiised

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets s reviewed at each
balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it 1s neo longer
probable that sufficient future taxable profits will be available to
allaw ail or part of the asset to be recovered

1 3 16 Insurance and other receivables

tnsurance and other recevables are recognised when due and
rmeasured on inibal recognitron at the farr value of the amount
recevable plus incremental costs Subsequent to inial recogniion
recevables are measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate method

The carrying value of recevables 1s the present value of estimated
future cash flows discounted at the onginal effective interest rate

13 17 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents (nclude cash in hand, deposrs held at call
with banks, other short-term hghly fiquid investments with onginal
matuntes of three montns or less and bank overdraft faclites where
there 15 a legal nght of offset against cash and cash equivalents

1 3 18 Insurance contracts

insurance contracts are measured using accounting policies
consistent with those previously adopted under the Modified
Statutory Solvency (MSS) basie as amended following the adoption
of the principles contatnad in FRS 27 Lie Assurance

Insurance contract labiities are determined separately for each life
operation following an annual investigation of the long-term funds at
31 December For UK operations the habihtes are calculated in
accordance with the relevant Financial Services Authority (FSA} rules
contained in the Prudental Sourcebook for Insurers For averseas
operaticns, insurance contract habilities are calculated on recogrised
actuarial principles based on local regulatory requirements The
valuations are subject to adjustments o reflect relevant accounting
requirements as set aut below

For the conventional with-protits business in Friends Prowident Lite
and Pensions Lirited {(FPLP) the liabilities to policyholders are
determined in accordance with the Realistic Balance Sheet {RBS)
regulations and in accordance with the principles contained in

FRS 27 These habhites inchude both declared and constructive
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chbligatons for future bonuses not yet declared (excluding the
shareholders share of future benuses) and includes the cost of
options and guarantees measured on a market consistent basis
The RBS basis of valuation does not recognise deferred acquisition
costs but allows for future profits of non-profit and unit-inked
business wiritten i the With-Prafits Fund to be recognised

The calculation of the liabiities to polcyholders in respect of
conventional with-profits contracts i Friends Prowident Life
Assurance Limited (FPLA} 1s on a net premium basis and i
accordance with the MSS basis These habiities include an impheit
provision tor tuture regutar bonuses, but not final bonuses, by
means of a reduction in the valuation interest rate and an
assessment of opuions and guarantees on a deterministic basis

The calculation of habilities to policyholders for nan-profit contracts s
on a gross premium basis and (0 accordance with the MSS basis
These labiities include explict allowance far future expenses

The provision for iInsurance contract hiabrlities can never be definitive
as to the overall level of Labilities or their timing and 1s subject to
regular reassessment

The Group carries out an annual llability adeguacy test on its
insurarice contract Labilities less related deferred acguisihion costs
and other related intangible assets 1o ensure that the carrying amount
of its labilities 1s sutficient 1n the hght of estimated future cash flows
Where a shortfall s identified an additional provision 1s made

The Group applies shadow accounting in relation to certain insurance
contract habilties, which are supported by owner occupied
properties, an which unreahsed gans and losses are recognised
wathin equity Adiustments are made 1@ the nsurance contract
provisians to reflect the movements that would have ansen if the
unreahsed gains and losses had been recagmised in the income
statement The corresponding change in the value of these balances
15 also recognised in eguity

13 19 Investment contracts
Investment contracts are either unit-inked or contracts with DPF
{mamnly unitised with-profits contracts)

A unitlinked Investment contract 1s recognised at fair value through
the income statement The far value s calculated as the number of
urits allocated to policyholders in each of the unit-inked funds
mutuphed by the unit price of those funds at the halance sheet date
The fund assets and hlabilities used to determine the unit prices at
the batance sheet date are valued on a basts that Is consistent with
theiwr measurement basis in the consolidated Group balance sheet
adjusted 1o 1ake account of the effect on the halnhues of discounting
for the time value of future tax on unrealised gains on assets held in
the fund Prowision 1s made for renewal comnussions at the
inception of an investment cantract as intermediaries are not
required to perfarm any senace ance the palicy is incepted

Unitised with-profits investment contracts are measwred using
Realistic Balance Sheet principles as amended by FRS 27
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A contract with DPF 1s a contractual nght heid by a policyholder to
recelve, as a supplement to guaranteed minimurm payn'wents,
adchtional payments
* that are likely to be a significant portion of the total contractual
paymenis, and
* whose amount or tming s contractually at the discretion of the
issuer and that are contractually based on
- the performance of a specified poot of contracts, or a specified
type of contract or
- realised and/or unrealised investment returns on a specified pool
of assets held by the 1ssuer or
— the profit or loss of the company that Issues the contracts

Investment contracts with DPF held within the FPLP and FPLA with-
profits funds are measured on a basis that 15 consistent with a
measurement bas:s for insurance contracts held within those funds

Balances representing ehoible surplus that has not yet been
allocated to shareholders, or policyholders with DPF contracts are
retained as a polieyholders hability

1 3.20 Fund for future appropriations (FFA)

The FFA compnises all funds avallable for allocaticn either to
policyholders or to shareholders the allocation of wh:ch has not
been determined at the balance sheet date

Within FPLP the insurance and investrment contracts habiines allow
for discreticnary benefit allocaticns to the extent that they are
allowed within current bonus practices The FFA represents working
capital and the value of future transfers to shareholders from the
With-Profits Fund in respect of discretionary bonuses for
conventional with-profits business

Withun FPLA the FFA represents the value of future final bonus
payments to policyholders

13 21 Interest-bearing loans and borrowings

Borrowings are recognised inmially at fair value, which 1s generally
the cash consideration receved net of transaction costs incurred
and subsequently stated at amortised cost Any difference
between the proceeds net of transaction costs and the
redemption value 1s recognised in the income statement over the
pernicd of the borrowings using the effective interest rate method

Convertible bonds that can be converted to share capital at the option
of the holder where the number of shares 1ssued does not vary with
changes ) ther far value are accounted for as compound financial
nstruments Compound financial instruments are split and the equity
and lability components recorded separately The equity compenent
of the convertible bonds s calculated on ssue as the excess of the
1ssug proceeds over the present value of the future interest and
prncipal payments, discounted at the market rate of interest
applicable to similar hiabiittes that do not have a conversion option
The equity compenent ts recagnised and included in shareholders’
equity, net of tax effects The farr value of the liability companent is

recorded on an amortised cost basis until extinguished on conversion
or matunty of the bonds

The interest expense recognised 1n the income statement under
finance costs, 1s calculated using the effective interest rate
method Interest accrued on vanable rate interest bearning loans
and borrowings 1S recognised under insurance payables other
payables and deferred income and not in the carrying value of
interest bearng loans and borrowings

13 22 Provisions

A provision s recognised when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation, as a result of a past event which is Iikely to
result i an outflow of resources and where a reliable estimate of the
amaunt of the obligaticr: can be made If the effect 1s materia! the
provision 1s determined by discounting the expected future cash
flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects a current market assessment for
the time value of money and, where approprate, the risks specific to
the habity

The Group recognises a provision for onerous contracts when the
expected benefits to be derived from the contracts are iess than the
related unavaidahle costs

13 23 Insurance payables, other payables and
deferred ncome

insurance and cther payables are recegnised when due and
measused on inmial recognition at the fair value of the consideration
paid Subseguent to initial recogrition payables are measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest rate method

Fees charged for services to be pravided in future penods are deferred
and reccgnised m the income staternen on a straightine basis as the
services are provided over the expected term of the contract

13 24 Employee henefits

(@) Pension obligations

Il Detined benefit schemes

Pension schermes are in operation for emplioyees of certain
substdiary undertakings The principal schemnes, to which the
matority of employees belong are of the funded defined benefit
type with assets managed by FAC Asset Management plc F&C) &
subsidiary undertaking The schemes provide benefits based on final
pensionable salary The assets of the schemes are held in separate
trustee administered funds

The pension liability recognised n the balance sheet 1s the present
obhigation of the employer which 1s the estimated present value of
future benehts that employees have earned in return for therr
services i the current and pnior years less the value of the plan
assets in the schemes The discount rate applied ta the employees’
benefits 15 the appropriate AA rated corporate bond yield at the
balance sheet date A qualified actuary perferms the calculation
annually using the projected unit credit method

The pensian costs for the schemes are charged to the income
staternent and consist of current service cost, past service cost,

Interest cost on schemne liabihties, the effect of any settlements and
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1. Accounting policies continued

curtailrents and the expected return on pension assets Past
service COsts are recagrused i the income statement on a straight-
line bas is aver the pericd in which the increase in benefits vest
Actuarial gains and losses are taken to the statement of recognised
income and expense for the penod

The actuaral gains and losses, which anse from any new valuation
and frorm updating the latest actuanal valuation te reflect conditions
at the balance sheet date, are taken to the statement of recognised
income and expense for the period The adjustment 1s shown net of
deferrecd taxation

{n) Defined contribution schemes

Contributions made 10 these schemes are charged to the income
stateme nt as they become pavyable n accordance wath the rules of
the scheme

(i) Multi-empltoyer defined benefit schemes

The Group participates in several mult-employer defined benefrt
schemes In Europe These schemes are defined benefit schemes
but the Group s unable to identify its share of the underlying assets
and habihties as they are not separately identifiable The Group
accounts for the contributions to the schemes in the same manner
as defined contribution schemes

{iv) Cther lang-term employee benefits

Other long-term employee benetits are recognised at the discounted
present value of the defined benefit obligation at the balance sheet
date The obhgation 15 caleulated using the unit credit method The
discounted rate of the employees’ benefits 1s the yield at bzlance
sheet date

v} Termunation benetits

Termination benefits are recognised as a liability and an expense
when the Group terminates the employment of an employee before
the normal retirement date

{b} Share based payment schemes

The Company and cenan subs:dary undenakings offer share baseo
payment schemes to employees of the Group, depending on
ekgbiity The farr value of equity-settied share based payments I1s
measured at the grant date and expensed on a straight-ine basis
over the vesting period in the income statement A coresponding
amount 1s credited to equity

At each balance sheet date, the Group revises its estimate of the
number of options that are expected 1o become exercisable 1t
recognises the impact of the revision of onginal esumates if any in
the ncorne statement, with a corresponding adjustment o equity
over the remaining vesting penod The far value 18 measured using
scenano based modelhing techniques that take Ino account the
terms and conditions upon which these options were granted The
amount recognised as an expense 15 adjusted 1o reflect the actual
number of share cptions that vest, except where forferture 15 anly
due 10 share prices not achieving the threshold for vesiing
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The dilutive effect of outstanding options 15 reflected in the
computation of diluted earmings per share

For cash-settled schemes, the far value of the share based payment
18 measured at the grant date and expensed over the vesting period
In the Income statement with a correspending credn to habibties

The estimated fair value of cash-settled awards s remeasured at
each reporting date until the payments are ulumately settled

1 3 25 Share capital and dividends

Where erther the Company or F&C has a holding in its own equity which
has been classried as treasury shares the consideraticn paid 1s deducted
frorm share capital and reserves Where such shares are subsequently
sold reissued or otherwise dispased of, any consideration recerved 1s
inciuded in equity attnibutable to the Company's equity holders, net
of any directly attrbutable incremental transaction costs and the
related tax effects

Dwvidends are recognised as an appropriation on the date declared by
the Group's directors or, If subject to approval by the shareholders

2. Use of estimates, assumptions and judgements

The Group makes estimates, assumptions and judgements that
affect the reported amounts of assets and hiabiities Estirnates
assumptions and judgements are continually evaluated and based on
historical expenence and other factors including expectations of future
events that are considered 10 be reasonable under the cireumstances

{a) Labiliuies ansing from insurance contracts and investment
contracts with DPF

As stated in the accounting policies, management has determined
that a contract 1s an insurance contract If there 1s a significarst
insurance nisk Policyholder contracts not considered insurance
contracts are classified as mvestment contracts Investment
contracts with DPF are mainly unitised with-profit policies which are
valued on the same basis as Insurance contracts

The estimation of the ulumate habthities ansing s a critical accounting
estimate There are several seurces of uncertanty that need to te
considerad in the estmation of the habdities that the Group will
uvhhmatety pay for clarmns

A number of assumptions are used 1o determine the Group s

hab:ities which contain guarantees and options The most

significant assumptions ale

* mortality morbidity and persistency assumptions

» for with-profits pohicies within FPLP the stochastic model used to
value habilities 1s sensitive to nsk-free rates, assumed asset
volathiues and the assumed correiauon between asset volatines
Risk-free rates are set in accordance with current market rates

= for gther policies, the valuation interest rate 15 the most significant
eccnomic assumption

» for guaranteed annuity cptions [one of the principal guarantees
written by the Group} the cost depends on assumptions such as
the lgvel of policy discontinuance and the 1ax-free cash take-up,
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Notes to the consolidated accounts conued

2. Use of estimates, assumptions and judgements
cortinued

¢ changes in assumptions behind the valuation techniques for assets
that are not quoted in active markets could have a significant
1mpact on assets that are backing insurance and investment
contract habilities

The sensnivity of hability valuations to key nsks and assumptions 1
set outin nate 27

The carrnying value of insurance contracts habilities 1s £13 762m
{2005 £14,637m} and mvestment contracts habihties with DPF s
£6 700m {2005 £6,394m)

{b} impairment testing

The Group is required to perform an annual imparrment test of
goodwill Cther assets, excluding those assets held at far value
through the income statement, are reviewed where there 15 an
indication of impairment For most assets this requires the Group to
estrnate future cash flows and discount these amounts using a
suitable rate which reflects the nsk of those cash flows In
projecting cash flows, the Group makes a number of assumptions
on matters which include, but are not restricted to

s Investment rmarket conditions

* Sales and margins

* Expenses

* Policy/client lapses

» Discount rates

* Termunal values

These assumptions are established using management’s bast
estmate of the likely outcome but with all assumptions there
remamns a degree of uncertainty as to the final results

Management have deterrmined that there are four segments for
impairment testing UK Life & Pensions Lombard, FPI and Asset
Management

The carrying value of goodwill ts £662m (2005 £677m} and of other
intangible assets 15 £743m {2005 £913m) Detalls of the testing of
impairment performed dunng the year are contained in nate 16

{c) Prawision for review of mortigage endowment and other sales

The Group has made provision for the estimated cost and
compensation associated with the review of mortgage endowment
and other sales These provisions are subject to considergble
uncertainty and are influenced by external factors beyond the contrel
of managernent Although the provrsions are regularly reviewed the
final outcome could be different from the prowision established

The total carrying value (including actuanal provisions) for the review
of mortgage entdowment and other sales 1s £63m {2006 £142m)

(d) Fair value determination of financial assets at farr value through
the mncome statement

Fair values are based on guoted market prices for a specrfic Instrument,
or comnpansons with other mghly sirmilar fmancial instruments, or the

use of valuation models Establishing valuations where there are no
quoted market prices mherently involves the use of judgement in
estaphishing reserves aganst indicated valuations tor aged positions,
deterorating economic cenditions {including country-specific nsks)
concentrations in specific industnes, types of nstruments or
currencies, market iguidity, madei nsk tseif and other factars
Market nisk sensitivities are disclosed in note 30

The carrying amount of financial assets at far value through the
income statement {excluding units n wmit trusts and shares in open-
ended investment companies) that are not based on quoted market
prices s £1 835m (2005 £1 391m}

te} Staff pension schemes assumptions

In assessing the pension benefit obl:gation assumptions are made
as to the Iife expectancy of all current, deferred and retired
mermnbers, rates of increases of salanes and pensions, and interest
and inflation rates Matenal assumptions used and sensitivities are
explained In detall n hote 10

The carrying value of the net pension liabiity 1s £77m (2005 £107mi

{f] Share options and share based payments

in assessing the cost of share options expected to vest estimates are
made of future staff leaver numbers on the basis of past expenernce,
and of the farr value of the options using assumptiens including
expected future fevels of share price volatlity and dividend vield

The amount charged to the income statement in respect of share
based payments i1s £22m (2005 £28m)

(g) Deferred tax assets

in assessing deferred tax assets, an estirnate of probable future
taxable prohits 1s made, against which the temparary differences,
being the carry forward of excess tax expenses and tax losses are
uthised These involve management's best estmate based on past
profit expenence, adjusted for possible future deviations that
management consider might occur

The carrying value of deferred tax assets 1s £97m (2005 £91m)

{h) Changes in accounting estimates

{} Investment management contracts

Following a full impairment review of 1nvestment management
contracts In accordance with 1AS36 Imparment of Assets,
impairment losses have been recognised in 2005 and 2006 This
review has led the Group 1o reconsider the average expecied lives
of these assets With effect from 1 July 2006, the estimated
remaining useful lives of the assets were assessed as follows

Investment trusts
Institutional (non-fixed term)

10 years
6 years

The cnigingl estimate of their useful lves an acquisition of the assets
in October 2004 was 20 years for investment {rusts and 10 years for
nor-fixed term institutional contracts The estirated useful ives of all
other categones of Investment management contracis are unchanged
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2 Use of estimates, assumptions and judgements
continued

This represents a change in accounting estimate from that used up to

30 June 2006 and has accelerated the amortisation of the remaining
value of the assets from July 2006 The effect of this change 1s an increase
of £2m 1n the amortisation charge in 2006 and £3m per annum in
future pencds untl such time as the assets become fully amortised
With ettect from 1 January 2007 the estimated useful lives of
Instrtunional (non-fixed term) ranagement contracts were revised to
4 years, following a further review by managernent

in} One-off bams change FSA Policy Staternent PS06/14 Prudentiat
Changes for Insurers {PS06/14}

Regulatory reserving rule changes ansing from the adeption of the
Prudential Requirements for Insurers (Amendment) instrument 2006
(2006/62) have been applied 10 the valuation of Life Protection
Insurance contract atyilities, with the exception of Income
Pratection business and other protection business reinsured on a
nsk prerntum basis Allowance 1s made for prudent lapse rate
assurnptions reducing overall habibiies {previously such allowance
was only made for with-profits business) Individual contracts may
contribute a negative value, reducing overall hzbilities {previously
such contracts were recegnised at zero value)

Future margins are reduced as a result of the changes, impacting
the carrying value of Deferred Acguisition Costs (DAC)

The impact of partally adapting PS06/14 on profit before tax 1s an
increase of £33m ansing from a reduction in labiities to
policyholders of £237m, a reduction In reinsurance assets of £126m,
and a write-down 1n DAC of £78m

{n) One-off basis change Morbidity

Impraved management of the PHI claims process has resulted n a
considerable improvement in morbidity experience and as a
consequence a change has been made In the moerbidity basss,
increasing profit befare tax, and reducing the Iiabihities to
palicyholders by £123m in 2006

{iv) Actuarial Funding

Caprtal units n respect of investment contract habiities have
previously been provided for based on the current value of units in
the fund, this method has been changed to a straight-ine basis,
bringing the treatment of capttal units in line with the treatment of
other front-end charges for Investment contragts The impact on
profit before 1ax was an increase of £26m in 2006
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3 Segmental information

{a} Summary

Segment information i1s presented in respect of the Group's
business and geographical segments The primary reporting format,
based on the Group's management and internal reporting structure,
15 business segments

Inter-segment pricing 1s determined on an arm's length basis
Segment results, assets, and habilities, include tems directly
attributable to a segment, as well as those that can be allocated on a
reasonable basis Segment capital expenditure includes purchases of
property and squipment, investment properues and intangble assets

Business segments (primary segment)

The Group compnses the fellowing main business segments

+ UK Life & Pensions (including corporate items)

¢ |nternational Life & Pensions

* Asset Management (including F&C s Managed Pension
Fund business)

Geographical segments (secondary segment)

In presenting infarmatton on the basis of geographical segments,
segment revenue 1s based on the geographical lccation of
customers Segment assets are based on the geographucal location
of the assets The Group bhas defined two geographical areas

* UK

* Rest of the world
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3. Segmental information contnued

{b) Business segment information {primary segment information)

(1} Revenue and expenses
Year sndad 31 December 2006

International Elinenation of
UK Life 8 Life & Asset nter-segment
Pensions Pensions  Management amounts Total
£m £m fm £m £m

Gross earned premiums on insurance and

Investment contracts 3,709 2,769 199 - 6,677
Less investment contracts premiums {1 (2,741) {2,757) {199} . 5,687}
Gross earned premiums 968 12 - 980
Less premiums ceded to remnsurers {82) {2} - - B84)
Net earned premiums 886 10 - 896
Fee and commission income and

income from service acuvities 138 198 258 139) 565
Investrnent income 2,934 640 123 - 3,697
Total revenue 3,968 848 387 {39) 5,158
Net claims and benehts paid 1,582 2 - - 1,544
Movement in insurance and investment centracts habihties 1,176 579 101 - 1,856
Transfer to fund for future appropriations 19 - - - 19
Movement in net assets attnbutable 1o unn holders 131 - - 131
Acgquisition expenses 329 72 1 . 412
Admrustrative and other expenses 240 130 287 {39) 618
Finance costs 72 15 1 - B8
Total claims, benefits and expenses 3,509 798 400 (39) 4,668
Share of profits of associates and joint venture 1 - - - 1
Profit before tax from continuing operations 480 50 {19} - 491
Poheyholder tax {124) - - . {124}
Shareholder tax 45 1 8 - 54
Segmental result after tax 381 51 (11} - 421
Inter segment revenue/{expense) {39} - 39 - -

(it Accounted for as deposits under IFRS
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3 Segmental information conunued

Year anded 31 Dacember 2005

tnternational Ehrmination of
UK Lfe & Lie & Asset  intersegment
Pensions Pensions Management amounts Total
fm £m £m £m Em
Gross earned premiums ¢n nsurance
and tnvestrnent contracts 3122 2,013 170 - 5,303
Less investment contracts premiums 2,153} {2 003) {370 - {4 326}
Gross earned premiums 969 8 - - 977
Less premiums ceded to reinsurers {56} - - - {56}
Net earned premuums 913 8 - - a1
Fee and commussion income and
incomae from service activities 116 124 276 (33} 483
[nvestrnent income 5180 932 175 - 6,287
Total revenue 6,208 1,064 453 (33} 7.691
Net claims and benefits paig 1528 4 - - 1,532
Movement in insurance and investment contracis habiities 3,291 888 157 - 4,336
Transfer to fund for future appropriations 187 - - - 187
Maovement in net assets attributable to unit holders 136 - - - 136
Acquisition expenses 207 67 1" - 285
Administrative and other expenses 295 i3 376 (33) 759
Finance costs 17 11 i - 89
Totai claims, benefits and expenses 5,72i 1091 545 {33 7,324
Profit before tax from continuing operations 498 27 {54) - 367
Policyholder tax 218) - - - 218)
Sharenotder tax 67 2 129 - 40
Segmental results after tax 337 {25) {123 - 189
Inter sagment revenue/{expense) {33 - 33 - -
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3. Segmental information continued

{u} Uinderlying profit

Intermational ,
UK Life & Life & Asset \
Per P Management Total |
Year ended 31 December 2006 £m £m £m £m
Profit before tax from continuing operations 460 50 {19) 491
Inter segment loan Interest 12 - {12) -
Policyhelder tax {124) - - (124)
Returns on Group-controlled funds attnbutable to third parties {104) - - {104}
Profit before tax axcluding profit generated within
policyholder funds 244 50 (31 283
Non-recurring items {1) 2 - 19 17 .
Amortisation of Asset Management acquired intangible assets - . 43 43
Amortisatton of acquired gresent value of in-force business 9 16 - 25
Amorusation of Life & Pensions acquired intangible assets - 7 - 7
Impatrment of Asset Management acquired intangible assets . - 58 b8
Interest payable on STICS {52) - - (52}
Short-term fluctuations in Investment return 41 2) - 39
Underlying profit betore tax 240 n 89 400
Tax on underlying profit 86
Minority interest in underlying profit [29)
Underiying profit after tax attnbutable 1o ordinary !
sharsholders of the parent 377
Earnings per share
Underlying earrungs per shate (pencel 179

{) Non-recurnng items
Life & Pensions items include costs of £nil {2005 £6m) relating to integration actvity following the acquisition of Friends Provident
Internatonal Limited in August 2002 a cred:t of E3m (2005 charge of £14m} in respect of the cost to shareholders of mortgage
endowment cormplaints and historic business reviews a credit of £1m (2005 £7m) in respect of the review conducted into pension
transfers and opt-outs and a charge of £2m (2005 £n:l} ansing from the closure of the Appointed Representative sales channe!

Assel Management itemns include costs of £10m {2005 £22m) incurred integrating rationalising and reorgamsing the Asset Management
business following the acquisihon of F&C Group {Holdings) Limited £mil (2005 £2m) of other reorganisation costs, £12m (2006 £22m) in
respect of 1ssuing shares to employees under the 2004 Re-Investment Plan and £3m {2005 £nill compensatien received on loss of an

Invesiment management contract

Discontinued operations are shown in note 42 and the profit after tax from these operations amounted to £nil {2005 £8m)
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Year ended 31 December 2005
nternational

UK Life & Life & Asset
Pensions Pensions  Management Total
£m £m £m £m
Profit before tax from continuing operations 488 (27} {94) 367
imter segment loan interest 12 - 2 -
Policyholder tax (218 - - {218)
Returns an Group-controlled funds attnbutable to third parties (571 - - 57
Profit before tax excluding profit generated wrthin
policyholder funds . 225 27 (108) 92
Non-recurrnng items 10 3 45 59
Amortisation of Asset Management acquired intangdhle assets - - 56 56
Arnortisation of acquired present value of in-force business i0 8 - 28
Amortisation of Life & Pensions acquired intangible assets - 7 - 7
Imparment of Asset Management acquired intangible assets - - 112 112
{nterest payable on STICS (37 - - (37}
Short-term fluctuations in investment return (101 () - {102}
Vanatien 1n value of option on convertible debt 9 - - 9
Underlying profit before tax 116 - 108 224
Tax on underlying profit (5)
Minonity interest in underlying profit {36)
Underlying profit after tax attributable to ordinary
shareholders of the parent 183
Earnings per share
Underlying earnings per share (pence) 88

{m} Assets and habhues
Year ended 31 Dacember 2006
Eltmination of

UK Life & International Asset  inter-segment
Pensions Life & Pensions Management amounts Total
Em £m £m £m £m
Segment assets 40,182 12,243 2,126 {77 54,474
Investment 1n associates and joint venture 15 - - - 15
Total assets 40,197 12,243 2,126 (77) 54,489
Total liabilities 36,991 11,730 1.680 {17} 50,324

Other segment information

Capital expenditure 313 4 5 - 322
Depreciation 7 - 3 - 10
Amortisation 24 24 44 - 92
Imparrment losses {1} . - 58 - 58

88 Friends Provident Annual Report & Accounts 2006



PARENT COMPANY ACCOUNTS I ABBREVIATIONS AND DEFINITIONS

Notes to the consolidated accounts comnued

3 Segmental information continued

Year ended 31 December 2005

International Elrmination of

UK Life & Life & Asset  intel-segment
Pensions Pensions  Management amounts Total
£m £m £m £m fm
Segment assets 38586 9766 1936 (216} 50,072
fnvestments In associates and joint venture 14 - - - 14
Total assets 38,600 9,766 1936 (218} 50 086
Total liabilities 35 665 9 262 1435 (218} 46,146

Other segment informatign

Caputal expenditure 228 3 5] - 235
Depreciation 8 - 3 - M
Amortisation 45 8 56 - 109
Impairment losses {I) - - 116 - 116

{1l Compnses mparrment losses ¢n acquired intangible assets £58m (2005 £112m} and impairment losses an associates £nil (2006 £4m)

The presentation of intercampany lhabilities has been amended in 2006 resultng in the reclassification of certain segment habihities
reportedin 2005

{c) Geographical segmental information {secondary segment information)
Year ended 31 Decomber 2006

Rest of

UK the world Total

£m £m £m
Gross earned premiums 968 12 280
Fee and comrmission income and income from service activities 274 291 565
Revenue from external customers 1,242 303 1,545
Investment incoms 3.697
Less premums ceded to remsurers (84}
Total revenue 5,158
Total assets 43,228 11,251 54,489
Capstal expendnture 316 6 322
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Year anded 31 Decembar 2005

Rest of
919 the world Total
fm Em Em
Gross earned premiums 969 8 977
Fee and commission income and income from service activities 243 240 483
Revenue from external customers 1212 248 1460
Invastment income 6,287
Less premiums ceded to reinsurers (56)
Total revenue 7 691
Total assets 40 852 9,234 50,086
Caprtal expendrture 232 3 235
4 Net earned premiums
Year ended 31 Decemnber 2006
Gross earned prermmums Premmums Total net
ceded to parmmed
Single Regular retmnsurers premiums
£Em Em £m £m
Protection 1 am {81) 221
Investment - 315 {1 314
Individual pensions 10 12 - 22
Group pensions - 19 {1} 18
Annuities 322 1) 321
Total 333 647 (84} 896
Year ended 31 December 2005
Gross earned prermiums Premiurms Total net
ceded to earned
Single Regular reinsurers premiums
£m £m fm £m
Protection 2 267 (53) 216
Investment ' 365 (2) 363
Indmidual pensions 9 1 20
Group pensions 23 (1} 22
Annuities 300 . 300
Total 311 666 (56) 921
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5 Investment income

(a) Net investment return

2006 2008

£m £m

Interest Income 963 938

Dividend income 678 550

Rental ncome 127 114
Net realised and unrealised gains on assets at farr value

Financial assets through the income statement 1.803 4 547

investment properties 273 218

Financial derivative mnstruments 147) {80}

Total net investment return 3,697 6 287

{b} Longer-term investment return - underlying profit

The longer-term investment return used in arnving at underlying profit before tax 1s calculated i respect of equity and fixed interest
nvestments by applying the longerterm rate of return for each investment category to the quarterly weighted average of the corresponding
assets, after adjusting for the effect of any shert-term market mavements The longerterm rates of return are based on assumed gilt and
cash returns adjusted where appropriate to reflect the additional nisks associated with the type of investment The directors have determined
the longerterm rates of investment return to be as follows

2006 2005

% %

Equities 725 750

Government fixed interest 425 500

Other fixed interest 475 575
lc) Sensitivity of longer-term investment return - underlying profit

2006 2005

fm £m

Longer-term tnvestment return 43 61

After the impact of a 1% increase in the longer-term rates of investment return 62 81

After the impact of a 1% decrease in the longerterm rates of investment return 26 41

{d) Companison of longer-term and actual investment return - underlying profit

1 January 2002 to
31 December 2006

9 July 2001 1o
31 December 2005

£m £m
Actual nwestment return attributable to shareholders 7”m 140
Longer-term investrnent return (378} (380
Cumulatve deficit of actual return over longer-term returns (207 {240Q)
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6 Net claims and benefits paid

Year ended 31 December 2006 Gross Amounts Total net
claims and receivable claims and
benofits from benaefits
pad reinsurers pawd
£m £m £m
Protection 145 {42) 103
Investrment 782 {1) 781
Indrwidual pensions 180 180
Group penstons 179 - 179
Annyines 301 301
Total 1,587 {43) 1.544
Year ended 31 December 2005 Gross Amounts Total net
claims and recevable claims and
benefits from benefits
paid remnsurers paid
fm £m fm
Protection 133 {35} as
Investment 863 2} 861
Individual pensions 143 143
Group pensions 140 - 140
Annuites 250 - 290
Total 1,569 (37} 1532
7 Acquisition expenses
2006 2005
£m £m
Comrmussion 302 247
QOther acquisition expenses 229 186
Deferral (334) {272}
Amortisation 215 124
Nat acquisition expenses 412 285
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8 Administrative and other expenses

{a) Analysis of admimstrative and other expenses

2006 2005
£m £rmn
Am ortisation of intangible assets 79 95
Imparment of intangible assets 58 112
Imparment of Investment In associate - 4
Employee remuneration 184 183
Share based payments
Equity-settled transactrons 20 26
Cash-settled transactions 2 2
Auditors’ remuneration 9 17
Investment expenses and charges 118 ]
Investment property expenses 5 5
QOperating lease rentals
Land and bulldings 21 21
Equipment 4 4
Renewal comrmission 22 35
Office costs 12 13
Meowvement in provision for past sales 8 40
Sundry administrative expanses 76 m
Total admimistrative and other expenses 618 759

Sub-lease rentals of £2m {2005 £2m) were receved durng the year

The categonsation of certan expenses has been amended in 2006 resulting in some reclassification of expenses reported in 2005

{b) Auditors’ remuneration

At the Company s Annual General Meeting held on 25 May 2006 the shareholders approved the reappointment of KPMG Audit Ple as auditor
to the Company and subsidianes On 20 Cctober 2006, the directors of F&C approved the appointment of KPMG Audit Ple as auditor to F&C
Asset Management pic and its subsidianes Ernst & Young LLP were auditors 10 F&C Asset Management ple and its subsicianes pnor to this

date The following tables give an analysis of the total fees excluding VAT in respect of services prowided to the Group by each firm

Information concerning the auditers’ appointment process is given in the Corperate Governance Report on pages 55 and 56
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8 Admunistrative and other expenses contnued

Fees for the year ended 31 December 2006

international
UK Life & Lefe & Assat
Pensions Pensions  Management Total
£m £m £m €m
Fess paid to KPMG
Statutory audit {ees 03 - . 03
Subsidiary and pension scheme audit fees 08 01 05 14
Other audit fees 02 - 01 03
Regulatory reparting 02 - o1 03
Total audit fees 15 01 07 23
Services relating to (T . - 06 06
Services relating to recruitment and remuneration . - 01 01
All pther services - - 01 01
Total KPMG fees 15 01 15 31
Fees paid to Ernst & Young
Regulatory reporting - . 05 05
Total audit fees - - 05 05
Qther taxation services - - 04 04
Services relating 1o IT 08 . - 0s
All ather senices 44 - a1 45
Total Ernst & Young fees 52 - 10 62
Total fees 67 01 25 93

KPMG Audit Plc 1s the auditor of the principal pensign scheme of the Group, the Friends Provident Pension Scheme (FPPS) Fees pad to
KPMG Audit Plcin 2006 in respect of the audit of FPPS amounted to £29,000 (2005 £27,000)

Corporate tems of £1 6m (2005 £1 6m) are included within UK Life & Pensians
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8 Administrative and other expenseas continued

Fees for the year anded 31 December 2005

International
UK Life & Life & Asset
Pensions Penstons  Management Total
£m £m £m £m
Feas paid to KPMG
Statutory audi fees 02 - - 02
Subsidiary and pensicn scheme audit fees 04 01 - g5
Other audit fees 02 01 - 03
Regulatory reporting 01 - - o1
Total audn fees 09 02 - 11
Services relaung 10 1T - - 23 23
All other services 08 01 12 21
Total KPMG fees 17 03 35 55
Fees paid to Ernst & Young
Subsidiary and pension scheme audit fees - - 11 11
Regulatory reporting - - 03 03
Total audit fees - - 14 14
Other taxation services - - 08 06
Services relating to [T 10 - - 10
All other services 51 - 31 82
Total Ernst & Young fees 61 - 51 12
Total fees 78 03 86 167
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9 Employee remuneration

{a) Aggregate remuneration

The aggregate remuneration in respect of employees including executive directors, was as follows

2006 2005
£m fm
Wages and salanes 216 201
Social security costs 21 18
Pension costs 30 i8
Total remuneration 267 237
{b) Average number of employees ’
The average number of employees, including executive directors, employed by the Group was as follows
2006 2005
No No
UK Life & Pensions 3,548 3445
International Life & Pensions 669 660
Asset Management B55 B63
Average number of employees 5072 4,968

{¢) Directors’ emoluments

Infermation concerning individual directors’ emoluments, interests and transactions 1s given on pages B0 to 68 of the Remuneration Report
of the Board Owrectors’ interests in the share capital of Friends Prowident plc and F&C Asset Management ple are shown in note 43

10. Staff pension schemes

{a} Introduction

The Group operates several defined benefit schemes the Frends Provident Pension Scheme {FPPS} to which the majonty of the Group s UK
Life & Pensions employees belong, and various schemes operated by F&C In addition, the Group operates two defined contribution
schemes, the scheme operated by F&C and the schema operated by FP! Lombard does not aperate a pension scheme

{b) Total provisions for pensions liabilities

Under IAS 19 Employee Benefits the pension hability 1s recogmsed on the balance sheet, gross of deferred tax A reconciliation of the Group
pension liability Included 0 the consclidated balance sheet and the net pension hability as determined by actuanal valuations is set out below
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10. Staff pension schemes continued

2006 2005
£m £m
Deficit in FPPS 3n {69}
Deficit in the F&C schemes (46} (48)
Growup pension liability included in provisions (77} {i07)
Non-transferable assets - 40
Deferred tax 23 20
Net pension liabilty 54) (47)
Analysis of net pension hability
FPPS (22) {13}
F&C schemes {32) {(34)
(54) 47
2006 2005
€m £m
Amounts recognised 1n the Ingome statement
FPPS (14) {17}
F&C schemes 4 (4
(18) 21}
Amounts recognised in the statement of recognised income and axpense
FPPS (12) £2)]
F&C schernes 2 {31)
Deferred tax ’ 3 12
{7} {28)

The cumulative armount of actuanal gains and losses recognised in the statement of recognised income and expense since adoption of

IFRS 1s a loss of £69m (2005 £49m}

{c) Friends Provident Pension Scheme

The FPPS 15 a UK defined benefit scheme 1o which the majarity ot the Group s UK Life & Pensions employees belong The scheme s assets,
which are admintstered by F&C are held under the controt of the Trustee and used to secure benefits for the members of the Scheme and

therr dependants in accordance with Trust Deed and Rules

The Trustee board consists of a Chairman whe s appointed by the employer and eight additional directors of which four are employer-
appointed directors, three member-selected directors and one pensioner-selected director

() Pnncipal economic assumpttons used by the Scheme Actuary

2006 2005

% %

Inflation gssumption 302 285
Rate of increase in salaries” 350 350
Rate of increase in pensions In payment 302 270
Discouns rate 502 475

*Plus allowance for salary scale increases
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10 Staff pension schemes continued

{1} Mortalty assumptions

Moertalty assumptans are based on the medium cohort basis, projectad forward to take account of future improvements in mortality according

to each ndmidual s year of birth

The mortality assumphons provide the following Iife expectancies of members retinng at the age of 60

Life expectancy

Basis ~ future pensioners

Basis — current pensioners

Expected age at death of future male penstoner
Expected age at death of future fernale pensioner
Expected age at death of current male pensioner

Expected age at death of current {emale pensioner

2006 2005
PM/FAS2BMC* PM/FA92BMC*
PM/FA9ZBMC* PM/FAS2BMC*

) 88
90 90
87 87
80 0

*Projected according to individual's vear of birth

The present value of providing an annuity frem the age of 60, based on the above Iife expectancies for every one pound of pension

accumulated 1s as follows

Cost of annuities 2006 2005

£ £
Male annuty 24 68 2272
Female annuty 2381 2229

These rates assume a monthly payments model with a discount rate of 5 02% (2005 4 75%) The rates also assume two-thirds of the
members benefit will be paid to the spouse, a Syear guaraniee 1$ prowded and pensions in excess of the Guaranteed Manimum Pension will

increase by 3 02% (2005 2 70%) per annum

2006 2005

% of total % of total

membership membership

Actrve members 24 23
Deferred members 56 57
Pensioners 20 20
100 100

The sensrtivities regarding the pnncipal assumptons used to measure the scheme liabiliues are set out below

Assumption

Change in assumption

Impact on schems liabilities

Inflation
Salaries
Pensions
Discount rate

Rate of monality

Increase/decrease by 0 6%
Increase/decrease by 0 5%
Increasefdecrease by 0 5%
Increase/decrease by 0 5%

Increase/deccease by 1 year

Increase/decrease by 2 3%
Increase/decrease by 1 7%
Increase/decrease by 5 6%
Decreasefincrease by 10 2%

Increase/decrease by 2 5%
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10. Staff pension schemes continued

imy Changes in the present value of obligatcns of defined benefit scherne

2006 2005
£m fm
Present value of obligations at 1 January 907 706
Interest cost 43 39
Current service cost 23 i8
Contributions oy plan participants 3 2
Actuarial {gains)figsses (9 163
Benefits paid (25} 21)
Present value of obligations at 31 December 942 907
{w) Analysis of defined benefit obligations
2006 2005
£m fm
Wholly of partly funded plans 942 207
The profile of the obligations s analysaed as follows
2006 2005
fm fm
Active members 324 300
Deferred members 291 276
Pensicners 327 3N
942 207
{v) Changes in present value of defined benefit plan assets
2006 2005
£m £m
Fair value of plan assets at 1 January 883 539
Expected return on plan assets 52 40
Actuanal llosses)/gains 21 157
Employer contributions 14 1
Contributions by plan participants 3 2
Beneins pad {25} 2n
Fair value of plan assets at 31 Decemnber mn 888
Non-transferable assets {a0)
Fawr value of plan assets excluding non-transferable assets 911 848

Included within the farr value of plan assets at 31 December 2006 are tnvestments in internal linked funds of £49m In 2005 these assets
had a farr value of £40m but did not meet the defintion of plan assets, as they were non-ransferable The terms of the investments have

been amended to make them transferable
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10. Staff pension schemes continued

twi} Assets in the defined benehit scheme and the expected rate of return

Expaected rate of return Value

r 2006 2005 2006 2005

% % £m £m

Fixed interest bonds 502 475 64 110
index-hnked bonds 5 02 475 31 116
Equties 700 700 523 447
Derivatives 502 - 14 153
Liabiity Drniven Investment pools 502 - 256 -
Cash 400 400 23 22
Total market value of assets excluding non-transferable assets s 848
Prgsent value of scheme liabilities (942) {907)
Deficit in the scheme (31} (99)

The expected return on net pension scheme assets 15 calkculated using the assumptions and the market value of pension scheme assets as

stated in the table above for the preceding year

Basis used to determine the expected return on plan assets

The expected return an assets s calculated using a weighted average of the expected returns at 1 January for each asset class held These
individual expected returns are set having regard ta market conditions at 1 January, and long-term expectation an the respective assets
classes Further adjustments were made to the expected return on assets for the year 1o allow for contnbutions received by the scheme

and for disbursements paid during the year

tvi) Amounts recognised in the income statement i respect of defined berefit scheme

2006 2005
£m fm
CurTent sefvice costs §23} {18)
Interest cost 43) (39
Expected return on plan assets 52 40
Total amounts recogmsed in the income statement i14) (17}
Actual return on plan assets 3| 197
tvi) Amounts recognised in the statement of recogrused income and expense in respect of defined benefit scheme
2006 2005
£m fm
Actuanal lasses recagmsed in the year {12} 8]
In respect of non-transferable assets - {3)
(12} (9)
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10. Staff pension schemes continued

i) History of experience gains and losses of defined benefit scheme

2002+ 2003 2004 2005 2006
£m £m £m £m £m

Present value of defined benefit obligation (547) (609) {706) 907} (942)
Fair value of plan assets * 527 603 665 848 L LA
Surplus/ideficit) {20} {6} {41) {59} (31}
Dhifarence between the expeacted and actual return on scheme assets
Amounts {190} 61 64 167 {21)
Percentage of closing scheme assets (36}1% 10% 10% 19% [2)}%
Expenence gains and lossaes on scheme habilities
Amount 4 {11) @& 7 (4)
Percentage of the present value of the scheme liabilities 1% (2)% {1)% 1% -

Total amount recognised n the statement of recogmised income and expense
Amount 214) 26 (6) (9} (12)
Percentage of the present value of the scheme habihithes (39}% 4% {11% (1% 1%

* The history before 1 January 2004 the date of adoption of IFRS 1s prepared cn a UK GAAP basis

{x} Future funding

The most recently completed triennial actuarial valuation of FPPS was performed by an independent actuary and was carmied out as at

30 September 2005 From 1 July 2007 1t has been decided to close the scheme to new members and existing members have been asked to
increase therr contributions of 3% by 1% per annum until 2010 if they wish to contnue to retire at the age of 60, or reduce therr contributions
from 3% to 2% and increase therr normal retirement age to 65 Fnends Provident has agreed to increase its contributions from 15% to 20%
These arrangements have been put in place with a view to eliminating the deficit within 5 years A new defined contnipution scheme will be
In place for new employees

A draft Statement of Funding Principles 1s being agreed by the Group and the Trustee The statement provides the principles around
assumption setting, n parucular, choosing the discount rate future price inflation  future pension increases, rates of monalty future pay
increases, employee turnover pension commencement age, and typical partner or dependant inferrmation In addition the Trustee has the
foliowing objectives for investments, as set out in the Statement of investment Pnnciples

* To achieve and maintain a minimum funding level of 100% on a long-term ongoing basis, and

* To maintain the cost of providing the benefits at an acceptable level to the Employer

Arnounts paid to FPFS in the past 2 years and expected future payments over the next § years are as foliows

£m
Contributions paid
2005 T
2006 14
Contnibutions expecied to be paid
2007 19
2008 17
2009 16
2010 15
2011 14
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10 Staff pension schemes continued

ixi} Fusk Managerment

The Trustee has estabhshed a separate investment subcommitiee which 1s responsible for assisting the Trustee in investrent policy and
morutoring the Scheme’s investments The investment subcomrmiitee seeks advice from the investment adwiser and believes it has sufficient
skills and expertise to make nvestment decisions based on this advice

The Trustee sets general nvestment pohcy but delegates day to day responsibility for the selection of specific iInvestments {other than
investments in respect of members’ voluntary contrbutions} to the Investment Manager

The Trustee has set performance and nsk targets for the Investment Manager The performance objectives are long-term {5 years) hawever,
the Trustee monitors the Investment Manager on a regular basis in order to ensure that 1t ts on track to meet s long-term objectives

interest rate and mflation nsk

In 2003, FPPS implemented a senes of denvative hedges with Merrll Lynch (swaps) designed to hedge the interest rate and inflation
sensitivittes of the Scheme's liabilites The fall in long-term interest rates (compared to when the swaps were effected) has meant that the
value of the swaps has increased and broadly matched the increase in value of the habilities

In 2006, to achieve a better match to the liabilities the inflation swaps were exchanged in November 2006 for posiuons in ten Liabiity Driven
investment (LD} pools managed by F&C In additon FPPS residual Government Bonds and index linked bonds were exchanged for
additional holdings in the LDI peols These pools are designed to achieve a good match to the interest rate and nomenal sensitivities of the
lab:ities of FPPS habiities The value of investment in LD pools at 31 December 2006 was £256m

Currency nsk

To wmcrease the dwersihicatian of the equity portichio, the Scheme mnvests in overseas assets The Scheme's hability 1s entisely in pound
sterkng and therefore there is a sk that the appreciation of pound sterling against other currencies will reduce the return from overseas
equities The Trustee has reviewed this nsk and hedged one third of the overseas exposure on a strategic basis

Cperational nsk
The Invastment Manager does net directly hold any of the Scheme’s securiies These are held in a separate account with the custodian

All organisations involved in stock fending are kept under review by the Investment Manager s credit committee The borrowing organisations
have to past collateral with the Scheme, which 1s marked to market on a dally basis
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10. Staff pension schemes continued

(d) F&C Asset Management plc pension schemes

F&C operates twe core defined benefrt pension schemes tn the UK one in The Netherlands and one in Portugal Both of the UK schemes are
closed to new entrants with all new UK employees ehgible to benefit from defined contribution arrangements

The Charrman of F&C Mr RW Jenkins was awarded pension benefits by F&C Management Limited prior to completion of the merger of ISIS
and F&C in respect of his past service to F&C This 1s an unfunded pensions liability and therefore the Group has made an appropriate
ProvisIon In its accours

F&C Netherlands BV

Prior to the merger with F&C, employee benefits in The Netherlands were provided through the Achmea pension plan Post-merger a
separate insurance contract has been set up with all assets and labilities in respect of the F&C employees transfernng to the new coniract
Existing benefits of the employees participating in the scheme have not been altered as a result of the transfer

FRC Ireland Limited

Employee benefits in Ireland are pravided through the Frends First Retirement and Death Benefits Plan, in which F&C participates together with
Friends First F&C have set up a separate new defined benefit plan and a process 15 undenway to calculate the assets and liabilities that waill
transfer from the mult-employer glan 1o the new F&C plan This process had not been comgpleted at 31 December 2006 As the assets and
labilrties are not identifiable at 31 December 2006, pension benefits provided through the Friends First plan have been accounted for as a mult-
employer plan on a defined contnbution basis '

Once the transfer of assets and liabilities 10 the F&C plan has completed they will be separately dentifiable and defined benefit accounting
will be possible This new scheme s trustee board consists of four trustees two of whom are employer appointed and two of whom are
member selected

At the end of 2006 the plan had a deficit of €5,100,000 (£3,436 000) F&C freland Limited contriuted €174 00C {£117 000) to the Fnends First

Retirement and Death Benefits Plan for the year

i Major assumptions used by the Schemes’ Actuary

2006 2005

% %

Inflation assurmnptron 175-300 175-275
Rate of increase in salanes 250-425 275-4 00
Rate of increase In penstons 1N payment 2 75-40C 275-350
Discount rate 4 60-5 00 425470
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10 Staff pension schemes continued

{n) Mortahty assumptions

Mortality assumptions are based an the medium cohort basis, prejected forward to take account of future iImprovements in monalty usmg a
typical year of birth of 1965 for all future pensioners and 1935 for all current pensioners, rather than on an indvidual basis

The mortahty assumptions provide the following Iife expectancies of members retining at the age of 60

Life expectancy

2006 2005

Basis — future pensioners
Basis — current pensioners

PM/FAS2B1965MC-1
PM/FAS281935MC-1

PM/FAS2B1S65MC-1
PRM/FAS281935MCA1

Expected age at death of future male pensioner 88 88
Expected age at death of future female pensioner n 91
Expected age at death of current male pensioner 86 86
Expected age at death of current female pensioner 89 89
The present value of providing an annuity from the age of 60 based on the above life expectancies, for every one pound of pension
accumulated, is as follows
Cost of annuities 2006 2005
£ £
Male annuity 2450 24 70
Female annuity 2500 2520
These rates assume a manthly payments model with a discount rate of 5 00% {2005 4 70%) based on the Baxx over 15 year AA
corporate bond index of 5 12% (2005 4 73%) The rates also assume two-thirds of the members benefit will be paid to the spouse
a b-year guarantee 1s provided and pensions in excess of GMP will increase by 3 00% (2005 2 75%) per annum
2006 2005
% of total % of total
membership  membership
Active members A 22
Deferred members €9 68
Pensioners 10 10
100 100

The sensitivities regarding the principal assumptions used to measure the scheme habilities are set cut below

Assumption Change i assumption Impact on scheme habilities
Inflatsion Increasefdecrease by 0 1% Increase/decrease by 1 9%
Salanes increase/decrease by 0 1% Increasef/decrease by 0 4%
Pensions Increase/decrease by 0 1% Increase/decrease by 1 0%

Discount rate Increase/decrease by 0 1%

Rate & mortality Increase/decrease by 1 year

Decreasefincrease by 23%
increase/decrease by 2 6%
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10. Staff pension schemes contnued

{u) Changes in the present value of obligations of defined benefit schemes

2006 2008
£m £m
Present value of cbhgations at 1 January 164 114
Interest cost 8 B
Current service cost 4 3
Contnbutions by plan participanis
Actuanal (gainsilosses (4) 42
Benefits pag (3} 2
Past service cost 1
Teansfer 1n respect of The Netherlands scheme 1" -
Present value of obligations at 31 December 180 164
(v} Analysis of defined benefit cbligations
2006 2005
£m £m
Wholly ynfunded plans 2 2
Wholly or partly funded plans 178 162
180 164
The profile of the obligations s analysed as follows
2006 2005
£m £m
Active members 57 51
Deterred members 83 76
Pensioners 40 37
180 164
(v} Changes in present value of defined benefit plan assets
2006 2005
£m £m
Fair value of plan assets at 1 January 116 96
Expected return on plan assets 5
Actuartal gamns 2 i1
Employer contributions 5
Benefits pad {3) {2)
Transfer in respect of The Netherlands scheme 7
Fair value of plan assets at 31 December 134 116
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10 Staff pension schemes continued

{tvi) Asse1s in the defined benefit schemes and the expected annual rate of return

Expected rats of return Value

2006 2005 2008 2005

% % £m £m

Gilts 5 00 500 17 i5
Equittes 7 00 7 00 93 86
Corporate bonds 500 470 13 12
QOther 700 - 7 -
Cash 450 400 4 3
Total market value of assets 134 116
Present value of scheme habilities {180) (164}
Deficrt in the schemes {46) (48}

The expected return on net pension scheme assets 1s calculated using the assumptions and the market value of pension scheme assets as
stated in the table above fer the preceding year

Basis used to deterrmine the expected rate of return on plan asses

To develop the expected long-term rate of return on assets assumption, FAC considered the current level of expected returns on nsk-free
mnvestments (prmarnly government bonds), the historical level of nisk premium associated with the other asset classes in which the portfolio
15 invested and the expectations for the future returns of each asset class The expected return for each asset class was then weighted
based on the target asset allocation to develop the expected long-term rate of return on assets assumptton for the portfolio

i) Amounts recognised in the iIncome statement in respect of detined benetit schemes

2006 2005
£m £m
Current service costs {4) (3)
Interest cost {8) {6)
Expected return on plan assets 8 6
Past service cost - {1}
Total amounts recognisad in the Income statemant {4) (4}
Actual return on plan assets 10 17
tvin} Amounts recognised i the statement of recognised iIncome and expense in respect of defined benefit schemes
2006 2005
£m £m
Actuanial gans/ilosses) recogaised in the year 2 31
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10 . Staff pension schemes contnued

{ix} Hstory of experience gains and losses of defined benefit schemes

2002 2003* 2004 2005 2006
fm fm fm £m £m

Pre sent value of defined benefit obligations 33 37 {114} {164} (180)
Fair value of plan assets 25 30 o6 16 134
Def it 8 {7 ne {48) {46)
Diff erence between the expected and actual return on schemes assets
Amount @ 2 2 1 2
Percentage of closing schemes assets (371% 7% 2% 10% 2%
Exp erignce gamns and lossas on schemas liabihties
Amount i - n - 2]
Percentage of the present value of the schemes liabilities 4% - 1% - .

Total amount recognised in the statement of recognised income and expense

Amount (8} 1 3 31) 2
Percentage of the present value of the schemes liabilites 24)% 2% {3)% {19)% 1%
* The history before 1 January 2004, the date of adoption of IFRS, 15 preparad on a UK GAAP basis

i) Future Funding requirements

UK schemes

The trustees of the ISIS Fund and FAC Mgt Fund have agreed 1o merge the schemes This i1 targeted to accur dunng 2607 and will be
achieved by the transfer of all of the defined benefit assets and habifimes from the F&C Mgt Fund into the 1515 Fund The assets and liabilities
will be merged on a co-mingled basis (ie they will not be separately identufiable into F&C Mgt Fund or SIS Fund sections) In conjunction with
this rmerger special employer contributions totalling £8m will be paid into the SIS Fund around the time of the merger with a view to
improwving the funding level of the merged scheme

Following the merger, it 15 intended that a formal actuanal valuation will be performed This valuation will be subject to the requirements of
the scheme funding regulations introduced under the Pensions Act 2004 and the funding principles are to be agreed between the trustees of
the merged scheme and F&C The results of this formal valuation will help to deterrmine the future level of employer contributions due to the
merged scheme Untl such ume as any revision 1o employer contributions 1s agreed following this valuation, it 1s anticipated that employer
cantributions will continue Intially at 25% of Pensionable Salanies for ex-1SIS Fund members and at 29 9% of Pensionable Safares for ex-F&C
Fund members
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10 Staff pension schemes continued

QOverseas schemes

Given possible changes in overseas pension provtsion (for example the new schemes set-up), there I1s spme uncertainty on the future tevel of
employer contributions that may be required The figures in the table below assume that contnbutions at the level paid in 2006 continue for
the overseas schemes

Contributions to defined benefit schemes i
Amounts paid into the defined benefit schemes in the past two years and expected future payments over the next five years are as follows ‘

£m

Contnbutions paid
2005
2008

Contributions expected to be pad

2007 . . 1
2008

2009

2010

20t

Lo N ]

(xi} Risk Management

UK schemes

The trustees of each scheme set general investment policy but delegate the responsibility for the selection of specific investments (other
than investments in respect of members voluntary contnibutions) to the tnvestment Manager

The trustees regularly momitar the schemes' investments The trustees seek advice from their investment adviser and believe they have
sufbicent skiis and expertise to make investment decistons based on this advice

The trustees have set performance and nsk targets for the Investment Manager The performance objectives are long term however the
trustees rmomitor the Investmant Manager on a regular basis in order to ensure that the scheme 15 on track to meet its long-term objectves

In conpunction with F&C the trustees have recently conducted assetiability review of the schemes These studies were used to assist the
trustees and F&C to determine the optimal Jong-term asset allocation with regard to the labilites within the schemes subject to an
acceptable funding cost to F&C The results af the studies were alsa used to assist the trustees and F&C in managing volatility 1n the
underlying investment performance and nisk of a significant increase in the schermnes’ deficits by providing information used 1o determme the
schemas’ investment strategy

Asset gdllocanon

Following the asset-lability review, both the trustees of the F&C Mgt Fund and ISIS Fund have agreed with F&C that they will shorily
implerment a Liabiity Driven Investment (LD} approach to their investment strategy This will involve the use of pacled LD preducts managed
by F&C The exact details of the investment strategy and asset allccaton for the merged 1SIS Fund are still being considered

Currency nisk

In order to increase the diversification of the equity portiolio, the schemes invesi in overseas assets However the schemes labilites are
entrely (n pound sterling and therefore there (s a nisk that the appreciation of pound stering against other currencies will reduce the retwn
from overseas equities
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10. Staff pension schemes continued

Operational nsk
The Investrment Managers do not directty hold any of the schemes secunties These are held by an external custodian

Overseas schermes
The plan in The Netherlands 1s tnsured The value of the plan assets Is the value of the statutory reserves which the insurance company is
required to hold to back the pension iabilities

The plan in Portugal 1s part of an industry-wide banking sectar plan Each partcipant company hoids a share of the assets, which 1s invested
using the same asset allocation as the overall plan assets The assets for the overall plan are managed by F&C Portugal At 31 December
20086, the scheme assets were Invested In a diversified portfalio that consisted prnmanly of debt and equity secunties

{e) Other pension schemes

The Group operates two defined contribution schemes the scheme operated by F&C and the scheme operated by FPl Comtibutions for the
yvear were £2 9m and £C 6m respectively

Lombard does not operate a staff pension scheme

11. Share based payments
{a) Summary
The Group operates a number of share based payment schemes within Frends Provident plc and F&C Asset Managerment plc The number of

options and awards 1ssued by the schemes and outstanding at the year end and the charge to the consolidated income statement In the year
are as follows

2006 2005
No of options Charge No of options Charge
outstanding £m cutstanding fm
Fnends Provident 32,816,922 4 47 707,385 3
F&C 24,821,455 18 29,573 064 25
57,638,377 22 77,280,449 28

The charge to the income statement compnses £20m (2005 £26m) relating to equity-settled schemes and £2m (2005 £2m) relating to cash-
settled schemes The most significant scheme 1s the Re-Investment Plan operated by F&C, which accounts for £11m {2005 £21m} of the
total charge for the year Details of the Re-Investment Plan are set cut in section (b) below

The carrying amount of the habilty ansing from cash-settled schemes 1s £3m (2005 £3m)
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11. Share based payments continved

{b) The Re-Investment Plan

The Re-lnvestment Plan was a plan established 10 allow employees previously employed by F&C Group {Holdings) Lirmited {(F&CGH Group)
pnor 1o the merger 1o voluntanly re-nvest one half of therr enttlernent under the Shadow Equity Plan {SEP} mo ordinary shares in F&C and
nights to receive further ordinary shares n F&C The Re-Investment Plan 1s pnmarily an equity settled scheme with an additional miner cash
settled award being made 11 certain circumstances

The purpose of the Re-lnvestment Plan which was a one-off plan linked to the merger was to encourage key former F&CGH Group
employees to rednvest one half of therr proceeds of their vested SEP enutlement into Investment Shares which will be forfeitable for a period
up to two years should the participant voluntandy resign or be dismussed for gross miscanduct within 24 manths of completion ot the merger
on 11 October 2004

To encourage reinvestment and in recognition of the fact that the Investment Shares carry forfeture provisions, after three years participants
wiill receive up to one Matching Share for each Investment Share {subject to continued employment and achievement of performance
conditions relating to EPS growth} One third of Matching Shares have no performance cntena, while the remaining two-thirds vest in line
with perfermance based on F&C Underlying EPS grewth between 2003 and 2006

The cash settled element of the awards is based on dividends payahle on the F&C shares dunng the vesting perrod (prior to becoming
uncendrtionall being notionally reinvested i F&C shares Once the award shares vest, the value of the notional shares 13 paid to the
employee n cash

The number of Investment Share and Matching Share awards are as follows

2006 2005

Investment Matching Investment Maiching

ghares no shares no shares no shares no

Qutstanding at start of year 4,625,626 9,633,741 11,021 991 11,021,991
Forfeited {169,199} (1.144,760) {836 054} {955,538)
Exercised 14.408,520) {485,821) {5 560 31 1) 532 712)
Expired - - - -
Outstanding at end of year 47,907 7,903,160 4,625626 9,533,741

The exercise price for all awards s il pence
The wenghied average FAC share pnce dunng 2006 was 201 pence {2005 232 pence}
A1 3i December 2006 the following awaids granted under The Re-Investment Plan were outstanding

Earltest exercise
date (zssuming

No of awards performance
Grant date outstanding criteria satisfied)
11 Octeber 2004 lnvestment shares 47,907 11 October 2006
11 October 2004 Matching shares 7 903,160 11 October 2007

The awards outstanding at 31 December 2006 have a weighted average contractual Iife of 0 8 years (2005 1 5 years)

The fair value of services recewved in return for share awards granted are measured by reference to the farr value of share awards granted
No valuation model was used as awards were granted at full market value
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11. Share based payments continued

{¢} Friends Provident ptc

1y Descripticn of the plans

There are a number of active siock option and award schemes over Friends Provident shares all of which are equity settled schemes Certain
schemes are open to all employees whiist others are open to executives only Schemes operated by the Group include ShareSave schemes
Executive Share Options Schemes (ESOS) and Long Term Incentive Plan (LTIP) There is a range of performance and vesting conditions
including conditions based on term of service the financial performance of the Company, and other terms ShareSave schemes vest on
completion of continuous terms of service ranging from 3 to 5 years The ESOS and LTIP schemes vest on completion of 3-year terms of
service and the achievement of certain financial perfermance measures by the Greup nitially over a 3-year penod

{u} Cutstanding options and awards relating to Friends Provident plc

Share options ;

The options outstanding at 31 December 2006, over Friends Provident pic shares had an exercise price and an earligst exercise date as
shown below

Numbar of Exercise price Earltest

share options pence per share Exercise date

ShareSave 2001 277 222 180 00 1 August 2006
ShareSave 2002 2,865,393 107 76 1 Qctaober 2007
ShareSave 2003 519,086 108 54 1 October 2008
ShareSave 2004 16816915 102 47 1 October 2007
ShareSave 2005 2,418 450 143 84 1 November 2008
ShareSave 2006 - 2,225,146 14774 1 November 2009
£50S 2002 2,197 214 195 00 14 March 2006
ESOS 2003 864,833 7100 17 March 2006
ESOS 2003 73,989 136 00 6 August 2006
ESOS 2004 6 844,897 163 00 18 March 2007
ESOS 2004 1494 299 127 00 12 August 2007
ESOS 2005 6134,164 178 00 29 March 2008
LTIP 2005 1,528 747 1000 29 March 2008
LTIP 2006 2,195 062 1400 24 March 2009

The fallowing table summanses infarmaton about gptions autstanding at 31 December 2008

Range of Number of Wetghted averaga remaining Woeighted average exercise
exarcisa prices aptions outstanding contractual life in years prica \n pence
£010-£072 4 588,642 183 2150
f073-£135 6,495 693 102 11093
£136-£198 20,171,082 110 163 82
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11. Share based payments conunued

The following table summanses information about options outstanding at 31 December 2005

Range of
exercise pnees

Number of

options outstanding

Weighted average remaining

contractual life in years

Weighted average exercise

prnce m pence

£0 30— £072
f073- £135
£1 36~ £i98

18 367,787
7.601 136
21,738 463

039
185
152

63 61
110 50
168 59

Share avvards

The awards cutstanding at 31 Decermnber 2006, over Fniends Provident plc shares, had an exercise price and an earliest exercise date as

shown below

Number of Vesting

Scheme share awards date

Deferredd Share Plan {DSP) 2006 1,661 5805 25 March 2009

im) Movernents in the year
Movements of the option plans are as follows
2006 2005

Weighted average Weghted average

Number of axercise price Number of exerciss price

options n pence cpliens in pence

Outstanding at start of year 47,707,385 129 45 053,294 111

Granted 4,635,359 80 10,998 095 145

Forfeited (994,487) 156 {782,040} 132

Exercised (17,273,200} 73 (5,234 538) 90

Expired {2.819,640) 176 (2,327 426} 0

Qutstanding at end of yeear 31,255,417 132 47 707,385 128

Exercisable at end of year 3,630,776 158 693 502 142

The far value of services rendered in return for share options granted are measured by reference to the far value of share options granted

The estimate of the fair value of the senaces receved 1s measured using binomial modelling techniques

The faw values of the share opuons and grants made dunng the year have been calculated using the following assumptions

ShareSave ShareSave DspP
i3 year) {5 year)

Award date 19 Sept 2006 19 Sept 2006 24 Mar 2006
Fair value 611 696 1893
Exercise price 147 7 147 7 0o
Share price 1893 1893 2116
Volatidity 40% 40% 0%
Dividend yield 3% 3% 3%
Average life 3 years 5 years 3 years
Risk-free rate 497% 4 87% 4 46%
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11. Share based payments continued

LTIP {TSR) LTIP (TSR} LTIP (TSR}

Award date 24 Mar 2006 9 Aug 2008 13 Nov 2006
Fair value 536 447 528
Exercise price 100 100 100
Share price 2160 1820 2120
Volatibity 40% 40% 40%
Dividend yield 3% 3% 3%
Average life 3 years 3 years 3 years
Risk-tree rate 4 46% 497% 501%
LTIP {ROEV} LTIP {ROEV) LTIP (ROEV)

Award date 24 Mar 2006 9 Aug 2006 13 Nov 2006
Farr value 2060 1720 2020
Exercise pnice 100 100 i00
Share price 216 0 1820 2120
Volatility 40% 40% 40%
Dividend yield 3% 3% 3%
Average lfe 3 years 3 years 3 years
Risk-{ree rate 4 46% 497% 501%

{d} F&C Asset Managemaent plc

i} Descrnption of the plans

There are a number of active stack option and award schemes over F&C Asset Management plc shares inctuding equity settled and cash
seftled schernes The most significant scheme 1s the Re-Investment Plan detals of which are set out in sectron (b} above The other schemes
are less significant and compnse schemes open to all employees and those which are restricted 10 executives only There 15 a range of
perfarmance and vesting conditions including conditions based on term of service, the financial performance of the company, and cther terms

The vesting of awards under these schemes s mainly dependent on specified pertormance conditions and conditions of continued service
The performance conditions applied to the largest of these schemes, the Long-Term Remuneration Plan (LTRP} are deterrnimed by the F&C
Board and are measured over a 3-year performance period 50% of any awards relate to the achievermnent of Total Shareholder Return {TSR)

targets and 50% of the awards relate to F&C underlying EPS growth
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11 Share based payments contnued

{ny Outstanding options and awards excluding the Re-Investment Plan relating to F&C Asset Management plc

The cptions outstanding at 31 December 2006, over F&C Asset Management plc shares, had an exercise price and earkest exercise date as

shown below

Number of Exercise price Earliest
Scheme share options pence per share exercise date
ESQOS 1894 847,259 20380 24 March 2006
ESOS 1999 490 762 . 23250 24 March 2006
ESQS 2000 481,666 21400 24 March 2008
ESOS 2000 18,740 320 20 24 March 2006
ESOS 2001 393 500 455 80 24 March 2006
ESOS 2003 1071,0Mm 13900 18 March 2006
ESOS 2004 808,365 24083 9 March 2007
Share Save 2003 285574 114 00 9 May 2008
Share Save 2004 267,480 181 00 i9 Apnl 2007
Share Save 2005 384,685 186 60 29 Aprll 2008
Share Save 2006 511,113 171 00 18 April 2009

The following table summanses information 2bout options outstanding at 31 December 2006

Waeighted average exercise
price in pence

Range of Number of Weighted average remaining
axercisa prices options outstanding contractual Irfe in years
£114-£2128 3 648,688 083
£229-£343 1,318,867 011
£3 44 - £4 57 3932 500 -

17102
238 86
455 80

The following table surnmanses tnformation about options cutstanding at 31 Decernber 2005

Range of Number of Weighted average remaining Woeighted average exsrcise
exercise prices options outstanding contractual ife in years price in pence
£114-£228 5 500 454 081 160 44
£229-£343 2,070,905 a82 23840
£3 44 - £4 57 520,500 023 45580
Share awards
The awards outstanding at 31 December 2006 cver F&C Asset Management plc shares had vesting dates as shown below

Number of Vesting
Scheme share awards date
LTRP 2004 - perdformance vesting 5024713 15 November 2007
LTRP 2006 — performance vesting 1 482,046 17 May 2008
LTRP 2006 - time vesting 3,349,655 17 May 2009
LTRP 2006 - time vestng 96,969 1 September 2009
Purchased Equity Plan 2005 586 B26 24 March 2008
Purchased Equity Plan 2006 844,286 24 March 2009
Deferred Share Award 154,838 9 August 2009

The exercise piice for all awards 1s nil pence
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11. Share based payments continued

() Movernents in the year
Mowvements of the option plans are zs follows

2006 2005
Weighted Wanghted
Number of average exercise Number of avarage exarcise
options price tn pence optiens price in pence
Cutstanding at stan of year 8,091,853 199 10 369,740 19%
Granted 564,830 m 527,374 187
Forferted (1.676,710) 117 (1,379 914} 219
Exercised {1.618,923) 133 {1345,342) 143
Expired - - {80,000} 23
Qutstanding at end of year 5,361,055 209 8,091 858 199
Exercisable at end of year 3,161,533 220 667,973 210

The farr values of the share options and grants made dunng the year have been calculated using the following assumptions

Share Save Purchased Equrty Plan

3 year 5 year Equrty Cash
Award date 18 Apnl 2006 18 Apnl 2006 24 March 2006 24 March 2006
Fair value 54 00 54 00 182 00 3300
Exercise price 17100 17100 - -
Share price 21550 21550 21500 21500
Volatility 30% 30% nfa nfa
Dividend yield 5560% 5 50% nfa n/a
Average Iife 3 years 5 years 3 years 3 years
Risk-free rate 4 50% 4 50% nla nia
LTRP performance vesting options TSR EPS

Equrty Cash Equrty Cash
Award date 17 May 2006 17 May 2006 17 May 2006 17 May 2006
Far value 108 00 19 00 177 00 3200
Exercise price - - - -
Share price 208 50 208 50 208 50 208 50
Volatility 30% 0% n/a nfa
Cwidend yeld 5 50% 5 50% n/a n/a
Average lfe 3 years 3 years 3 years 3 years
Risk-free rate 4 80% 4 B0% n/a n/a
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LTRP timing vesting options TSH EPS
Equrty Cash Equrty Cash
Award date 17 May 2006 17 May 2006 1 Sept 2006 1 Sept 2006
Fair value 177 00 3200 17500 3 00
Exercise prce - . - -
Share price 208 50 208 50 206 25 206 25
Volatiity nfa nfa n/a nfa
Dividend yield 5 50% 550% 5 50% 5 50%
Average life 3 \.rea:s 3 years 3 years 3 years
Risk-free rate nfa n/a nfa nfa
Deferred Share Award Equrty Cash
Award date 9 Aug 2006 9 Aug 2006
Fair value 1630 290
Exercise prce
Share price 193 76 193 75
Volauhty nfa n/a
Dividend yield 550% 5 50%
Average life 3 years 3 years
Risk-free rate nfa nfa
12 Finance costs
2008 2005
£m £m
Suberdinated loan interest 20 21
Debenture loan interest 29 N
Convertible loan interest 22 22
Interest pard to credit instiiutions 17 15
Total finance costs 88 89
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13. Taxation

{a) Tax charged to the income statement

2006 2005
£m fm
Current tax expensa
UK corporation tax {30%) 49 107
Adjustments in respect of prior penods {25} {7}
QOverseas taxaton 21 19
Tax rehef on STICS interest payable (16) 7
Total current tax expense ) 29 112
Deferred tax expense
Ongrnation and reversal of temporary differences 31 66
Adjustments in respect of prior periods 10 -
Total deferred tax expense 41 66
Total tax expense 70 178
Analysis
Palicyhelder tax 124 218
Shareholder tax (54) (40}
Total tax expense 70 178

Palicyhelders’ tax 15 tax on the income and investment returns charged to policyholders of Iinked funds and with-profits funds
Shareholders tax s tax charged to shareholders on the profits of the Group
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13 Taxation continued

(b) Factors affecting tax charge for period

The tax assessed for the penod s lower (2005 higher} than the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK ot 30% The differences are

explained below

2006 2005
Shareholder Policyholder Prafit Sharehaldar  Policyholder Profi
profit tax bofore tax profit tax befcre tax
£m £m £m £m £m Em
Profit before shareholder tax from
continuing operations 367 128 491 149 218 367
Protit before shareholder tax from
continuing operations multiphed
by the standard rate of corporation
tax 1N the UK of 30% 110 37 147 45 65 110
Effects of
Non-taxable investment return {12) - 12) {38) - (38}
Non-taxable income {6) 3N 143) 12 65) 67}
Deductions not allowable for tax purposes 4 - 4 12 - 12
Tax on feserving adjusments {14} - {14) - - -
Overseas tax 13) {13) 7 - 7
Adjustments in respect of pror pencds {13} - (13} {5 - (5)
Uuhsation of excess expenses brought forward {29} {29} {21) 121
Current year movement i tax losses not valued {28) - (28) (14} - (14}
Tax relhef on share based payments {6) - {6} - -
Tax relief on STICS interest payable {16) - {16) {7 - 7
Non-taxable with-profits minonty interest 3n - 31) 7 - {17)
Palicyholder tax - 124 124 218 218
Total tax expense {54) 124 70 {40 218 178

{c] Tax recagnised dwectly in equity

Tax recogrused directly in equity related solely 10 defined benefit plans and amounted to £2m (2005 £12m)

118 Friends Provident Annual Report & Accounts 2006



PARENT COMPANY ACCOUNTS ABBREVIATIONS AND DEFINITIONS

Notes to the consolidated accounts cntnues

14. Appropriations of profit

{a) Dvidends paid and proposed on ordinary shares

Divrdends paid dunng the year and recogmsed in reserves 20086 2005
£Em £mn

Final dividend in respect of 2005 and paid in May 2006 of & 1p per share

(i respect of 2004 and paid in May 2005 of 5 Qp per share} 108 103
Internm dividend 1n respect of 2006 and paid in November 2006 of 2 65p per share

(in respect of 2005 and paid in November 2005 of 2 6p per share} 56 54
Total dividends paid 164 157

After the balance sheet date the dividends set out below were proposed by the directars In accordance weth 1AS 10 these have not been
provided as a hability at the balance sheet date

2006 2005
£m fm

Final dividend in respect of 2006 payable In May 2007 of § 2p per share
{in respect of 2005 paid tn May 2006 of 5 1p per share) 111 108

The 2006 final dividend 1s based on 2,136m shares estimated to be in 1ssue at the dividend payment date (excluding treasury shares)
The 2005 final dvidend was based on 2,114m shares (excluding treasury shares)

{b) STICS interest

STICS interest paid duning the year and recognised in reserves

2006 2005
£m £m
interest on 2003 STICS at 6 8756%
Paid in May 2006 {May 2005} 10 10
Paid in November 2006 {November 2005) 12! 11
Total 2003 STICS imerest pad 21 21
Interest on 2005 STICS at 6 292%
Paid m June 2006 3 -
Total 2005 STICS mterest pad n -
Total STICS interest paid 52 21
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15. Earnings per share

{a) Bassc and underlying earnings per share from continuing operations

Earning s per share have been calculated based on the profit after tax and on the underlying profit after tax attributable to ordinary
shareholders of the parent The directors consider that the underlysing earmings per share figure gives a better indication of opesating
performance

2006 2006 2005 2005
Earmings Per share Earnings Per share
£m peance £m pence
Profit after tax attnbutable to ordinary shareholders of the parent 276 131 132 63
Short-te rm fluctuations m investiment return 39 18 {102} (4 9l
Vanaton in value of optron on convertible debt - - g 04 :
Non-recurnng riems 17 [1]:] 59 28 l
Amortis ation and imparrment of acquired intangible assets 133 63 203 a8 !
Minarity (nterest on items excluded from underfying profit {40) 18 {72} (3 4)
Tax cred it on items excluded from underlying profit {48) 122} 146) {2 2}
Underlying profit after tax attributable to ordinary
shareholders of the parent n 179 183 88
{b} Diluted basic earnings per share from continuing operations
2006 2005
Weighted Waghted
average average
numbar of nurmber of
) 2006 ordinary 2006 2005 ordinary 2005 |
Earnings shares Per share Earnings shares Per share
£m millrons pence fm millions pence
Profit after tax attrbutable to ordinary
shareholders of the parent 276 FARD 131 132 2,082 63
Diution {c} 16 164 03 - 15 -
Diiuted profit after tax attributable to
ordinary shareholders of the parent 292 2.275 128 132 2,097 63

{c) Dilution

Options over 32,816 922 (2005 47,707 385) shares are outstanding under the Company's option schemes as at 31 December 2006 Of
these 24,239 504 {2005 32,319 827) opuons were not diutive for the perrod shown because the market price of the Company s shares
was below the option price or the performance cniterta were not met

There were £283m (2005 £276m) bonds in 1ssue, convertible te ordinary shares at any time on or after 27 December 2005 If all these
bonds were converted at 31 December 2006 133,640,553 new shares would be issued This has a dilutive impact on earmings per share
in 2008 {2005 no dilutve impact)

The calculation of diluted earnings per share also includes an allocation of shares in respect of the finatl earn-out payment for the Lornbard
acquisition

{d) Earnings per share from discontinued operations

Discontinued operations have no smpact on profit after tax attnbutable to equity holders of the parent Earnings per share frem discontinued
operanons was £l in both years
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16. Intangible assets

investment
Acquired  management
Goodwill PVIF contracts Other Total
£ £m £m £m £m
Cost
At 1 January 2006 586 264 626 82 1,558
Acquisitions through business combinations 151 230 - 109 490
Cther additions 8 - 1 14 21
Disposals (68) - - 7 {75)
Forergn exchange adiustments 2 (10 )] {3) {18}
At 31 Decomber 2005 677 484 820 195 1976
Other additions 4 - - 18 22
Disposals (4) - (43) - 47
Adyustment to consideration {note 41(al} (12} - - - (12}
Foreign exchange adjustments 13) 4 {4 {3) (14}
At 37 December 2006 662 480 573 210 1,925
Amortisation and imparment
At 1 January 2005 - g7 36 47 170
Amortisation charge for year - 28 56 25 109
Impairment charge - - 112 - 112
Disposals - - - {5} {5)
At 31 Deceamber 2005 115 204 G7 386
Amortisation charge for year - 25 43 24 92
Impairment charge - - 58 58
Disposals - - 16} - {16}
At 31 December 2006 - 140 289 9 520
Carrying amounts
At 31 December 2005 677 368 418 128 1590
At 31 December 2006 662 340 284 119 1,405
(a) Goodwill
Goodwill 13 the only intangible asset which has an indefinite useful life The goodwill has been allocated to the following cash-generating units
2006 2005
£m £m
UX Life & Pensions m 193
Lombard 138 181
Friends Prowident Internatronal Limited -
Asset Management 333 333
Total goodwill 662 677
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16. Intangible assets continued

In accordance with |1AS 36 Impairment of Assets, goodwill Is assessed for possible impairment each year This assessment takes place in
December of each year and compares the carrying value of goodwill for each segment with its recoverable amount The recoverable amount
has been taken to be the segment’s calculated value in use There has baen no goodwill imparment charge in 2006 12005 Fnil}

The value in use for UK Life & Pensions and Lombard has been taken from their business plans These projections refiect the long-term
nature ©f the busimess and forecast the cash flows over the antoipated terms of the polities The plans include forecast sales of new
busines s for three years and other assumpuens that take into account both past expenence and market conditions The key assumptions to
which the calculated values in use are most sensitive are set out helow

* [nvestrnent market conditions the plans assume modest Investrment growth

* Policy lapses the plans assume no change from recent expenence

» Sales and margins the plans assume a modest reduction In margins but an increasing level of sales
* Expenses the plans assume that expenses will broadly increase 10 hne with inflation

* Discowunt rate the discount rate apphed to UK Life & Penstons 1s 8 0% and to Lombard1s 7 2%

The autcome of the ymparrment assessment has been that ¢ 1s considered unlikely that goodwill in respect of UK Life & Pensions would be
imparred given that the value in use 1s significantly higher than the carrying value of goodwill The UK Life & Pensions segment is operated as
a single group and so a single value in use has been prepared For Lombard, acquired in January 2005, the levels of new business have
indicated that there 15 no reguirement for any impairment of goodwill No goodwiil has been aflocated to FPI

For the Asset Management segment, the value in use 1s calculated using a cash flow projecticn based on the latest annual financial budget
approved by the Beard of F&C Asset Management plc The Asset Management segment I1s operated as a single group and 50 a single value
In use has been prepared The key assumptons to which the calculated vatues In use are most sensiuve are set out below

= Investrment market conditions the plans assume modest investment growth

* Sales and margins the plans assume modest sales and margin growth although operating margins have been capped as a measure of prudence
» Expenses the plans assume cost growth in excess of mflation recognising the impact of staff costs

* Discount rate the discount rate applied to the cash flow projections 1s 8 8% based on F&C’s weighied average cost of camital

The outcome of the Impairment review 1s that there 1s no requirement for any impairment of goodwill In the Asset Management segment

In addition, the fair value of the Group's holding in F&C at 31 Decernber 2006, based on the quoted bid price of F&C s isted ordinary shares
was £831m (2005 £441m) This was in excess of the carrying value of the Group s holding i the Asset Managernent business a1 1is date

{b) Acquired PVIF
Acquired PVIF 1s amortised over the Iifetime of the in-force polictes and is analysed as follows
2006 2005
Cumulative Cumulative
Cost amortsabon Net Cost amortisation Net
£m £m £m fm £m Em
UK Lite & Pensions 184 100 84 187 91 96
international Life & Pensions 296 40 256 297 24 273
Total acquired PVIF 480 140 340 484 115 369

Acquired PVIF has been assessed for possible impairment and there 1s no indication that 1t has beert impared

{c} Investment management contracts

Investment management contracts relate 1o the Asset Management segmens and are amortised over therr expected useful econormic ives of
between 10 and 20 years untl 30 June 2006 and between 6 and 20 years from 1 July 2006 until 31 December 2006

122 Frnends Provident Annual Report & Accounts 2006




PARENT COMPANY ACCOUNTS ' ABBREVIATIONS AND DEFINITIONS

N otes to the consolidated accounts connued

16. Intangible assets contnuved

As 1indicated in 2005, Resolution plc withdrew the majonty of its assets in the first half of 2006 The agreed compensation of £27m received
frorn Reselution during the penod has been recognised as proceeds i respect of the deemed disposal of intangible assets The cost, with
respect to the engingl valuation of the assets disposed of was £43m and the related cumulative amortisation amounted (0 £16m Therefore
the carmyng value of the disposed asset equalled the proceeds received giving nse to neither a gain or a loss

During 2006 the business continued to experience a levei of fund outflows which was tigher than anticipated This leve! of lost business wilt
have notable impact on revenues and was significant encugh 1o be considered an indicator of potenttal iImpairment of certain Intangible
assets namely the related investment management contracts

in accordance with 1A5 36, a full impairment review of these assets was undertaken The review resuited in an impairment being recognised
{included within Admirusirative and other expenses in the income statement) in respect of Investment management contracts as follows

2006 2005

£m £m

F4C Investment Trust contracts 22 56
F&C Institutional contracts 36 56
Total impairment recognised in the income statement 58 112

The above contracts relate to the (nvestment trust management contracts and institutional fund management contracts acquired as a result of
the creatign of F&C Asset Management plc fallowing the business combrnation of ISIS Asset Management ple and FAC Graup (Holdings)
Lirmited on 11 October 2004

The recoverable amounts of the assets have been determined based on value in use calculations using cash flow projections based on the
latest annual financial budget approved by the F&C board

The discount rate applied to the cash flow projections 1s 9 4% (2005 9 4%) for investment trust contracts 9 4% (2005 9 4%) for institutional
contracts with no {xed term and 8 4% {2005 8 4%} for fixed term institutional contracts These rates reflect the varying risks and
uncertanties :nherent in the revenues from the underlying assets, using F&C’'s weighted average cost of capital of 8 9%, calcutated as at 31
December 2006 (31 December 2005 8 9%} as a benchmark

Revenues in the projections have been grown at 5 75% {2005 6%) per annum in ine with the Group's long-term view of market growth
which 1s consistent with that experienced over the last 16 years across the markets in which the managed assets are invested The revenue
projections are denved using the estimated useful ives of the underlying contracts and assume a constant loss of revenues over the
projection penods

Costs for the first year of the projections are dniven by the budgeted F&C operaiing margin for 2007 Thereafter costs are drven by FAC s
projected operating profit, as determined for the purposes of the goodwall impairment review

Impairment has been determined by comparing the resuits of the value In use calculations in respect of the remaining contracts at the year
end to the carrying value (cost less aggregate amortisation and prior imparment) of the assets at 31 December 2006, with any deficits ansing
constituting Impairment to be recognised for the year

The Group continues to monitor the level of investment contracts under management and 0 assess any impact on the expected hives of the
related assets Following further business gutflows in the second half of the year the Board revisited the useful hie estimates of the affected
assets at the yearend and as a result with effect from 1 January 2007 the remaming hie of nonfixed term insututional contracts 1s now
assessed as being 4 years

The revised useful lives represent a change in the accounting estrmate and will accelerate the amortisation of the remaining value of the
assets The effect of these changes increased the amortisation charge 1n the second half of 2006 by £1 7m and the charge in future years will
be increased by £2 6m per annum compared to continuing 10 amartise over the lives assigned from 1 July 2006, unul such tme as the asseis
becorne fully amorised
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16. Intangible assets contnued

{d} Other intangible assets

QOther intangble assets marnly consist of distnbution channel relanonships and software development which are amortsed over their
antioipated useful lives of between 3 and 15 years The analysis for each segment 15 as follows

2006 2005
Cumulative Curnulative

Cost amortisation Net Cost  amortisation Net

£m £m £m £m £m £m

UK Life & Pensions 90 69 21 77 54 23
International Life & Pensions 116 19 97 114 11 103
Asset Management 4 3 1 4 2 2
Total other intangtble assets 210 9 119 195 67 128

Included m amortisation 1s £7m (2006 £7m} in respect of Life & Pensions acquired intangible assets
Management have assessed other intangible assets for possible iImpairment and there 1s no indication that they have been impaired
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17. Property and equipment

Fixtures
Qwner fittings and
occupled Motor Computer office
properties vehicles equipment equipment
at valuation at cost at cost at cost Total
£m fm £m £m £m
At 1 January 2005 19 1Q 81 a3 233
Addhitions through business combinauons . - - 1 1
Other additions 2 3 7 1 13
Rewvaluation (3) - - - (3)
Disposals {72} {4) (30) (27) {133)
At 31 December 2005 46 9 38 18 it
Other additions 3 1 8 3 15
Revaluation 6 - - - &
Dispasals - 8 (11 - {9)
At 31 December 2006 55 z 45 21 123
Depreciation
At 1 Jenuary 2005 - 5 a4 16 65
Depreciation charge for year - 2 7 2 i1
Disposals - (3 (24) (11} (38}
At 31 December 2005 - 4 27 7 38
Deprectation charge for year - 1 7 2 10
Disposals - {4) (1) - (5}
At 31 December 2006 . 1 33 9 43
Carrying amounts
At 31 December 2005 46 5 11 11 73
At 31 December 2006 55 1 12 12 80
if owner occupted properties were measured on a cast basis, the carrying amount would be £31m (2006 £32m}
18 Investment properties
2006 2005
£m fm
At 1 January 1812 1,527
Purchases 285 201
Disposals {39) {34}
Farr value adjustments 268 218
At 31 December 2,426 1912

Investrnent properties are camned at fav value The properties are independently valued in accordance with the Royal Institute of Chartered
Surveyors' guidelines on the basis of open market value The key assumptions used in preparing the property valuations relate to tenure, letting
and town planning and the location condion and state of reparr of the properties The last valuauon was conducted on 31 December 2006

In accordance with JAS 17 Leases properties held by the Group under operating leases are classified as investment properties when the
properties otherwise meet the definition of investment preperties
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19 Principal Group undertakings

Prncipal subsidiary undertakings of the Group as at 31 December 2006 are shown below

Unless othenaise stated they are underakings mcomaorated n England and Wales ot Scotland and have anly ane class of issued ardinary shares

The voting nghts are equal to the percentage holdings unless otherwise stated Other subsidianes do not materially affect the results of the Group

Subsid #ary undertaking Activity % hald
UK Lfe» & Pensions
Friends Provident Life and Pensions Limited® Insurance 100
Fnends Provident Life Assurance Limited Insurance 100
Friends Prowident Pensions Limited Insurance 100
Friends Provident Reinsurance Services Limited Remnsurance 100
Friends Prowident Marketing Limited Financial services 100
Friends Provident Management Services Limited* Management services 100
tondon Capital Heldings Limited Property company

Ordimary shares 100

Deferrred shares 100
international Life & Pensions
Friends Prowident International Limited (1) Insurance 100
Lombard International Assurance SA (n)* Insurance 100
Asset Management
F&C Asset Management plc* Holding company

Qrdinary shares 5218

Variable rate cumulative preference shares 100
F&C Managed Penston Funds Limited Insurance 5218
FP Fund Managers Limied Asset management 5218
ISIS Investment Management Limited Asset management 5218
F&C Fund Management Limited Asset management 52 18
F&C Portugal Gestao de Patnmonios SA (in} Asset management 5218
F&C Ireland Limited (v} Asset management 5218
F&C Netherlands BV (v} Asset management 5218
F&C Management Limited Asset management 52 i8
F&C Investment Senices Limited Asset management 5218
F&C Unit Management Limited Asset management 5218
F&C Luxembourg (i} Asset management 5218
F&C Emerging Markets Limited Asset management 8218
F&C Investmant Business Limited Investrment trust management 5218
F&C Private Equity Nominees Limited Private equity Investment management 5218
F&C Treasury Limuted Treasury management 5218
F&C Commercial Property Trust plc {vi} Property company 52 56

*Held directly by Friends Provident plc (all cther companies are held indwectiyl

{} Incorporated in the Isle of Man
i Incorpeorated in Luxembourg

(i} Incorporated in Porugal

v} incorporated n freland

{v} Incorporated in The Netherlands
{vi) Incorporated in Guernsey
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20. Investments in associates and joint venture

|a) Associates

2006 2005
£m Em
Carrying amount of investments 2 1

inve stments n assaciated undertakings are companies over which the Group exerts significant influence The tatal assets, labilities revenues

and profitsfllosses) of the Group's associate undertakings are as follows

2006 2005
£m £m
Current assets 90 83
Non-current assets - 1
Current habilities 5] {5}
Non-current abimes {86} 81
Net habdities m i2)
Revenue 15 3
Profit/lloss) before tax 7 3)
(b) Joint venture
2006 2005
£m £m
Cerrymng amount of investment 13 13

Thes investment is in Tenet Group Lirmited, an IFA firm which comprises two IFA networks, and a compliance network and intermediary
operating in the mortgage and general insurance sectors The Group s interest in the ordinary share capital of Tenet Group Limited 1s 21 1%

{2005 21 1%} The Group's share of assets, iabiities revenue and profit1s as follows

2006 2005

£m £m

Current assets 8 8

Non-current assets 3 3

Current habilities {4) 3

Non-current hatilities 4} it
Net assets 6

Revenue 24 8

Profit before tax 1 .
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21 Financial assets

The Group's financial assets are summarnsed by measurement categones as follows

2006 2005
£m f£m

Fawr value through the income statement 45,135 42 072
Loans 15 19
Total fimancial assets 45,150 42,09
(a) Financial assets at fair value through the income statement

2006 2005

£m £m

Listed
Shares and other vanable yield secunties 21,827 20 365
Debt secunties and other fixed-income secuntes 16,138 16 815
Total isted financial assets 37,965 37,180
Unhsted
Shares and other vanable yield securties 783 398
Units in unit trusts and shares in open-ended Investment companies 5,335 3,501
Debt secunties and other fixed-ncome secunties A1 49
Partricipation in investment pools 136 141
Denvative financial instruments 212 239
Deposits with credit nstitutions 663 564
Total unhsted financizal assets 7.170 4,892
Total financial assets at farr value through the income statement 45,135 42,072

For Iisted financial assets at far value through the income statement far value 1s by reference to quoted bid-values

If a quoted bid-value s not available a valuaiton techmgue is apphed The far value of shares and other variable yield secunties and of

dervative financial imstruments are esumated using preing models of discounted cash flow techniques Where prioing models are used,
nputs are based on market related data at the balance sheet date Where discounted cash flow techniques are used estimated future cash

flows are based on managerment’s best estimates and the discount rate used 1S a market related rate for a simiar instrument

For umnis in unit trusts and shares 10 open-ended nvestment companies fair value 1s by reference 10 published bid-values

Parutipation n nvestment pools mainty relates 1o property invesiments Property 1s independently valued in accerdance with the Royal

Institute of Chartered Surveyor s guidelines on the basis of open market values as at each year end
The farr value of floating rate and overmght deposits with credit institutions s thew carnying value The carrying value 1s the cost of the deposit
and accrued interest The farr value of fixed-interest beanng deposits 15 esumated using discaunted cash Hlow techniques Expected cash

flows are discounted at current market rates for similar instrumenis at the balance sheet date

The total amount of the change in farr value of Invesiments estimated using a valuation technique that 1s recogrised 1n the Income statement
dunng the year 15 a charge ot £98m {2005 credit of £143m) :
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21 Financial assets contnued

(b) Loans

2006 2005

£m £m

Martgage loans 2 3
Other loans 13 18
Total loans 15 19
The fair value of loans at both year ends Is the same as therr carrying value
{c) Unit-linked assets and liabilities
The amounts included in the balance sheet in respect of assets and habibties held within unit-inked funds are as fallows

2006 2008

£m £m

investrment properties 975 845
Shares and other vanable yield secunties 12,847 12,232
Umits in unit trusts and shares in open-ended investment companies 8,200 6 683
Debt secunties and cther fixed-income secunues 3472 1,703
Derwvative financial instruments 9 -
Deposits with credit institutions 518 244
Other recewvables 333 363
Cash and cash equivalents 1,796 772
Total assats 28,150 22,642
Qther payables {303) (195)
Tota! unit-linked assets less hiabilties 27,847 22,447

The impact of cansolidating open-ended investment companies in which the Group has a holding in excess of 50% has been excluded

from the analysis of inked assets This has resulied in some realignment of the discicsure reported n 2005

Friends Provident Annual Report & Accounts 2006 129



FINANICIAL STATEMENTS
IFRS AMNANCIAL STATEMENTS EEV SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

Notes to the consolidated accounts connved

22. Deferred acquisition costs

Year anded 3? December 2006 Insurance Investment
contracts contracts Total
£m £m £m
At 1 January 411 583 994
Incurred and deferred in the year 10 224 334
Amortisation charge to the income statement (152) (63) {215)
Qther movements - 2) {2)
At 31 Decamber 369 742 1,111
Year ended 31 December 2005 Insurance Investment
contracts contracts Total
£m £m £m
At 1 January 357 419 776
Acquisitions through business combinations - 70 70
Incurred and deferred in the year 114 58 272
Amortisation charge to the tncome statement (B0) (B4} {124)
At 31 December 419 583 994

For 2006, £983m {2005 £877m) of the total I1s non-current and £128m {2005 £117m} 15 current
Acquisition expenses that do not meet the cntena for deferral are expensed directly as incurred

23 Reinsurance assets

Year ended 31 December 2006 Insurance Investment
contracts contracts Total
£m £m £m
At 1 January 177 6 183
Premiums 37 a0 87
Claims {20) - {20}
Unwind of discount rate 3 - 3
Other (1} {150} 2 (148)
At 31 December 47 38 85

t) The main siem included wathin Other is the impact of one-off items as set out in note 2{h}

¥ear ended 31 December 2005 Insurance tnvestrment
contracts contracts Total
fm fm fm
At 1 January 112 - 12
Premiums 56 5 61
Clams (386 - {36
Unwind of discount rate 4 - 4
Otner A 1 42
At 31 December 177 6 183

Resnsurance assets are valued using the same methods and bases as those used to value the underlying insurance liabilities that are
being reinsured
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24. Deferred tax assets and habilities

{a} Recognised deferred tax assets and habilities

Deferred tax assets and habilties are atinbutable ‘o the followang

2006 2005
Assats Liabilities Net Assets L-abilities Net
£m Em £m £m Em £m
Property and equipment 40 - 40 26 - 26
Intanaible agsets . (1786} {176) - (223 (2231
Unrealised gains on investments . {168) 1166) - {83) (83
Employee benefits 37 - 37 33 33
Deferred acquisition costs . (73) (73) - 73 (73
Tax walue of recognised tax losses 9 . 9 n 1
Short-term tempoarary differences n - n 21 - 21
Net deferred tax assets/{liabilities) 97 (415) (318) a1 {379) {288)
{b) Movement in temporary differences during the year
1 January Recognised Recogmised Acquired 31 December
2006 in Income m equity n year 2008
£m £m £€m £m £m
Property and equipment 26 14 - - 40
Intangible assets (223) 38 9 (176}
Unrealsed gains on 1nvestments (83) (83) - (166}
Employee benefits 33 } 2 2 - 37
Deferred acquisition costs {73} - - 73
Tax value of recognised tax losses 1 (2} - - 9
Short-term temporary differences 21 {10) - 11
Net deferred tax {liabdities)/assets {288) {41) 1" (318)
1 January Recognised Recognised Acquired 31 December
2005 mncome N equity In year 2005
£m fm fm Em fm
Property and equipment 27 (1} - - 26
Intangible assets 201) 62 2 {86) (223)
Unrealised gains on investments {15} (68) - - {83}
Emnlayee henefits 11 10 12 - 33
Deferred acquisition costs {25) 87} - 9 {73)
Tax value ot recogmised tax losses 32 {21) 11
Short-term temporary differences 8 9 - <] 21
Net deferred tax (habilities)/assets {165) {66} 14 {71} (288}
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24. Deferred tax assets and liabilities conunued

{c} Unrecogmised deferred tax assets and liabilities

Deterred tax assets/(:abiitres} have not been recogrised in respect of the fellowing tems

2006 2005
£m £m

Assets
Tax losses 93 147
Total asseots 93 147
Liabiltias
Distnbutabie profit of subsidary (1 {4)
Total habilities {11) (4}
Net unrecogmsed deferred tax assets 82 143

A deferred tax asset has not been recogrised in respect of these losses as 1t 1s probable that there will be insufficient surtable profits
emerging In future penods against which to relieve them

25 Insurance and other receivables

2006 2005
£m £m
Recevables ansing out of direct insurance operations
Policyholders 37 24
Agents, brokers and intermediaries 20 29
Investment income recevables 93 48
Investments sold for subseguent settlernent 60 125
Prepayments and accrued income 313 310
Other racawables 83 53
Tota! insurance and other recewvables 606 590
All nsurance and other recevables are expected to be recovered within 12 months
26. Cash and cash equivalents
2006 2005
£m Em
Bank and cash balances 1.081 815
Short-term deposits 2,500 t 799
Total cash and cash equivalents 3,581 2614

The effective interest rate on cash and cash equivalents 1s shown in note 30
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27 Insurance contracts

{a) Changes in insurance contracts liabilities

Insurance contracts and investment contracts with a DPF element are measured using the same accounting policies These are consistent
with thase previously adopted under MSS, as allowed under IFRS 4, and amended following the adoption of the principles contaned in FRS
27 Investment contracts with DPF are mainly uniised with-profits contracts

The following table shows the movements in insurance contracts habilities in the year

2006 2005
£m £
At 1 January 14,637 14 047
increase n hiabfity from premums 783 883
Release of hability due to racorded clams (1,506) (1513}
Unwinding of discount 187 208
Change 1n assumplicns
Economic {254) 256
Non-economic {405) 172
Qther movements including net investment return 2320 930
At 31 December 13,762 14 637

A hability adequacy test was carried cut at policy level and resulted in no additional prowision m erther 2005 or 2006
No sigruficant gain or [oss arose on reinsurance contracts incepted 1n either 2005 or 2006

It should be noted that changes in the ecenomic assumptions will be largely offset by corresponding changes in the assets backing the
llabihties In addition, assumpticn changes on with-profits contracts will result in changes in the FFA, and not in retained earnings

The man rtems within non-economic assumption changes in 2006 relate to cne-off items as set out in note 2(h)

The non-economic assumption changes in 2005 includes a £41m reduction as a result of more accurate modelling of the Guaranteed Annuity
Option take-up rate in the Realistic Balance Sheet and a £68m reduction as a resutt of receving confirmation that rules in PS05/01 relating to
surrender payments do riet overnde the Scheme of Demutualisation

The main tems within Other movements including net investrment return were
s £546m {2005 £1,058m} in respect of the investment return credited to asset shares and unitdinked kabiities
* Movements in respect of the release of habiity due to favourable mortality expenence vanances and other items

{b) Terms and conditions of insurance contracts

The mam types of insurance contracts that the Group currently has in force are

{0 Life

Protection business (cther than whole life praducts) — these consist ma:nly of regular premium term assurance critical iilness and income
protecticn products which pay out 2 fixed amount {the sum assured} on il health or death For most palicies this payout will be a single
amount, whereas income protection products provide a regular income upon incapacity either for the length of liness or to the end of the
contract if earler depending an the specific policyholder terms Most contracts have no surrender value

Endowments and whole life products — these contracts both prowide benefits upen death or, in the case of endowments at a preset matunity
date if earier These policies often have a surrender value, parucularly In the later years of the contract The amount payable on death is
subject to a guaranteed minimum amount The maturity value usually depends on the investment performance of the underhying assets For
with-profits business 115 underpinned by a mimimum guarantee, which may be increased by the addition of bonuses
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27 Insurance contracts contnued

{1} Pensions

Individual and group pensions — those contracts classified as
nsurance contracts are deferred annuity products where retirement
benefits are expressed in the form of the annuity payable at
retrement age If death cccurs befare retrement, contracts
generally return the value of the fund accumulated or In some cases
premiums are returned

Mast contracts gve the policyhelder the option 3t retirement ta take
a cash sum at guaranieed conversion rates

Annuities in payment — these are typically single premium products
which pay a specified payment 1o the pohicyholder whilst they andfor
their spouse are stil alive Payments are generally either fixed or
ncreased each year at a specified rate o1 in hne with the rate of
inflation  Maost contracts guarantee an incorrie for a minimum perod
usually of five years irrespecuve of death

) Guarantees and options

The mamn guarantees and options included within the Group's
nsurance contracts, the majority of which anse within FPLP's With-
Profits Fund, are as follows

Guaranteed cash and annuity options — most conventional deferred
annuity contracts have benefits expressed i terms of cash and
annuity with a guaranteed conversion rate allowing the policyholder
the option of taking the more valuable of the two at retrement

Guarantees 1n respect of bonus additions — bonuses added to with-
profits pohcies increase the guaranteed mmimum benefit that
policyholders are entitled to at matunty These are set at a level that
takes account of expected market fluctuations such that the cost of
the guarantee 15 generally met by the investment performance of
the assets backing the hakbility However in circumstances where
there has been a significant fall in investment markets, such as that
which occurred in 2001 to 2003, the guaranteed matunty benefits
may exceed asset shares and these guarantees become valuable to
1he pohcyholder

Guaranteed surrender bases — cenan older progucts have a
guaranteed basis for calculating surrender values In all these cases
the hasis includes an element of hinal benus which can be reduced
or taken away The guaranteed basis typically applies over a period
of 15 years but 1n most cases policies are approaching the end of
this penod The effect of the guaranteed surrender basts 1s to extend
the guarantee in respect of bonus additions to apply over an
extended period and not |ust at the matunty date
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{e} Method used for reserving for both insurance
contracts and investment contracts with DPF

The kabilty for insurance contracts and unitised with-profits
contracts 1 calculated on the basis of recognised actuanal methods
having due regard to actuanal pnnciples and best practice The
methodology takes into accournt risks and uncertanties of the
particular classes of long-term business wntten and the results are
certified by the professionals undertaking the valuations

Caiculations are generally made on an ndividual policy basis,
however in addition there are some global provisions which are
calculated using statistical or mathematical methods The results are
expected to be approximately the same as if an indmdual hability
was calculated for each long-term cantract

For the conventional with-profits business in FPLP, including unstised
with-profits business, the habilities are determined on a realistic
basis and in accordance with the principles contained in FRS 27 The
main element of the reahstic Labilities 15 the asset shares’ of with-
profits business, representng the premums receved to date
tegether with the investment return earned ess expenses and
charges These asset shares move with the value of the underlying
assets Pclicyholder iabilities including options and guarantees
ansing in the With-Profits Fund, are then valued on a market-
consistent stochastic basts The mamn types of guarantees and
optians within the With-Profits Fund are guarantees in respect of
bonus additions and guaranteed annuity options The caiculation of
habulties and management actions that would be taken in certan
scenarios is also in accordance with FPLP's Princrples and Practices
¢f Financial Management {(PPFEM} and are set out in more detalin
note 28 on the Realistic Balance Sheet

For the conventional with-profits business in FPLA (which is closed
1o new business), the habilities are determined using a net premium
valuatron method The rmajonty of options or guarantees ansing
within this fund are valuable to the pelicyholder and are valued on a
determmistic basis as if the guarantee I1s taken up

Single prem:um group income protection contracts have been
valued as 80% of the last three years' premiums plus an allowance
for outstanding claims in respect of earlier premiums

The calculatien of labilities to policyholders in respect of mast other
non-profit policies, which consists principally of protection and
annuity products, has been valued using a gross premium method

The proviston far inked centracts mesung the defintion of insurance
1s equal to the value of units plus a sterling reserve where
necessary The sterling reserve is equal to the maximum value of
future strains due to future cash outflows {premium allocations,
expenses claims and tax) being greater than future cash inflows
{premiums, Investmen? inceme and charges)

Where reinsurance relates to individual policies they are valued using
the same method and basis as if they were the direct benelit An
asset 1s established representing the fact that the reinsurance will
reduce the net cost of the pakcy to the Group
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27. Insurance contracts continued

{d) Process used for assumptions

4} Economic assumptions
Details regarding the economic assumptions used in the stochastic madel for the valuation of with-profits policyholders habilties are set out in
note 28

For other insurance liabilities and unitised with-profits contracts within the FPLA fund ecoromic assumptions are the same as those used for
reporting to the FSA under the regulatory peak Economuc assumptiens are adjusted from year to year by reference to changes in consistent
econcmic indices or yietds on the underying ponfohc The prncipal assumption 15 the valuation Interest rate

) Non-ecenomic assurmptions

The prowvision for nsurance contracts and investment contracts with DPF liabiities is sensitive to the principal assumptions in respect of
mortality morbidity and maintenance expenses (except for net premum valuations) persistency and guaranteed annuity option take-up rates
although the relative sensitivity will vary depending on the class of long-term business

Long-term estimates of future mortality and morbidity assumptions are based on standard tables wherever possible but adjusted ta reflect
the Group’s own expenence Where appropriate industry tables are not available and the Group s experience 1s insufficient to derive a reliabie
basis {eg for critical Jiness) the expenence of reinsurers 1s used Expense assumptions are based on recent experience Experience
mvestigations for mortality, morbicity persistency, guaranteed annuity option take-up rates and maintenance expenses are performed at least
annually Where industry analysts indicates that changes in expected future martality/morbidity or other assumptions factor patterns mean
that claim costs are likely to nse in the future, then this s taken into account in the valuztion basis No benefit is taken where ndustry
analysis incicates that future trends are likely to reduce claim costs i the future improving montality has been assumed when valuing
annuities and detenorating morbidity has been assumed when valuing critical iliness business Assumptions are generally intended to be a
prudent estimate of future experience

{e) Valuatron interest rates for poiicies other than conventional with-profits business in FPLP

Valuation interest rates

With-profits Non-profit
31 December 31 December 31 Daecember 31 December

2006 2005 2006 2005
Ciass of business % % % %
Life Fund
Endowment and whale-cf-life 29 27 31 29
Protection - - 31 28
Pension Fund
Annuities in payment - - 42-456 40
individual and group pensions 37 34 39 36
Protection . - 39 3%
Income protection - - 38 34

As explained in (¢} above FPLP conventicnal with-profits business 1s valued in accordance with the FSAs realistic capital regulations

For products with overall negative liabilities the interest rate used in 2006 15 5 6%

Friends Provident Annual Report & Accounts 2006 135



FINANCIAL STATEMENTS !
IFRS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS o EEY SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

Notes to the consolidated accounts conmued

27 Insurance contracts continued

{fl Mortality/morbidity rates

insurance habiities allow far mortality and morbidity nsk by making assumptions about the proportion of policyholders who die or become
sick Allawance far future maortality has been made using the following nercentages of the standard published tables below

20086 2005

Term assurances
Smaoker 95% TM92(5) 100% TM92(5)
116% TF92(5) 110% TF32(5)
Non-smoker 58% TMS92(5) 65% TM3215)
T4% TF92(5) 85% TF92(5}
Other hfe assurances 80% AM/F80ult 80% AM/F80ult
Unitised life policies 80% AM/F80ult B0% AM/FBOLIt
Pension pohcies 35% AM/F20ult 35% AMFE0Ult
Individual annurties 10 payment - 75% RM/FV92U2006* 75% RM/FV92U2005*
Group annuities 1n payment 95% PM/FA92L12006* 95% PM/FAZ2U2005*

*Plus additional 0 25% per annum and 0 5% per annum far indduals and group males only respectively from 31 December 2003 anwards

incorne protection sickness expenence 1s based on recent expenence with a 10% rmargin {2005 10% margm) for recovery rates and a 10%
margin {2005 39% margin) for Incepuion rates Rates differentiate by smoker status

Lapse rates are based on recent expenence with the equivalent of a 20% margin 1e for each policy the hability 15 based on the higher of the
results based on 80% and 120% of experience

{g) Increase/(decrease) in pre-tax shareholder profit from changes in assumptions

2006 2005

£m £fm

Mortality and morbidity 127 {20}
Other non-economic assumptions 106 58
Total assumption changes 233 38

This 1abte shows the effect on pre-tax profit of the changes in assumptions described above

1 Impacts are reduced 1o allow for with-profits policyholders shanng in the profits and losses of some products (see (h)

) Changes in the economic assumpticns will be fargely offset by corresponding changes in the assets backing the habiities

{r} The most significant tem within mortality and morbidity assumption changes refates to morbichty assumptions Further details of the
impact of changes ;m mortudity assumptians in 2006 are set out i nate 2(h)

{iv) The main item within other non-ecoromic assumption changes 1n 2006 1s the impact of partal adoption of PS06/14 being a reduction n
pohcyholder habibbes and remnsurance assets, as set out m note 2th)

(h) Apportionment of surplus between sharehoiders and with-profits pohcyhol'ders
Shareholders are entitled 10 100% of surplus emerging from compantes within the Group with the exception of surplys emerging in the two

withprofits funds

(it The Group's main With-Profits Fund 1s within FPLP and 1s open to new busingss The Fund 1s run on a mutual basis and managed so that
over time the working capital 15 suffictent 1o prowide most of the nsk caprital but not to exceed the nisk capral margin The entitlements of
shareholders to share in surplus differ for policles written before and after demwtualsation on 8 July 2001

in respect of pre-demutualisation conventional with-profits policies shareholders are entitled to one ninth of the cost of bonuses added to
policres In respect of pre-demutualisation non-profit and unittsed business (excluding the investment element) shareholders are entitled to
60% of the surplus ansing
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27 Insurance contracts conunued

Post-demutuahsation with-prefits policyholders are only entitled to surplus from the return on thew investments, other sources of surplus
are wholly owned by shareholders including policies written by FPLA and Friends Provident Pensions Limited, where the investrnent
ele rment 15 reinsured to the FPLP \With-Profuts Fynd

(1) The With-Profits Fund of FPLA 1s closed to new business The Funds palicyholders are entitled tc all the surplus of that fund [n addition, FPLA
has a clesed unitised with-prefits fund Shareholders are entitled to all profits from the unitised wath-profit fund other than investment profits
whi ¢h are wholly owned by with-profits policyholders The investment element of the contract 1s wholly reinsured to the FPLP With-Profits Fund

The effect of this fund structure 1s that investment nisk, in respect of assets backing with-profits policies, 1s largely berne by policyhelders,
shareholders bear 10% of the investment risk frorn conventional with-profits policies Expense nsk (s borne by the shareholders other than in
the FPLA closed fund Untl 2009, the FPLP With-Profits Fund is charged a fixed amount for managing policies adjusted by an inflation index
irrespective of actual costs The charges will be reviewed in 2009 to reflect market rates at the time Cther forms of risk are shared between
shareholders and policyholders as descrbed above

28. Realistic balance sheet

The main UK with-profits fund 15 1n FPLP and the capital pesition of this fund has been determined in accordance with the RBS regulstions
prescnbed by the FSA There is alsc a small UX with-profits fund in FPLA The capntal positon of this fund has been calculated on a reguiatory
basis as this fund is closed to new business, and is significantly below the £500m leve! that the FSA has determined should be applied for

calculating liabilimes under the reahistic methodology

The RBS for FPLP's with-profits busness can be summansed as follows

2006 2005
£m £m
Total net assets 16,087 17,366
Less non-profit labilities including share of restience capnal reserves and required minimum margin (2,670} (2 774}
Total regulatory assets 13.417 14,592
Additional assets ansing on realistic basis 265 253
Total assets 13,682 14 845
Policyholder abilites
Asset shares 11,365 12 342
Financial guarantees {net ot charges) 101 149
Options {(guaranteed annuities} 747 796
Other liabiities 1,249 1,322
Total habihtes 13,462 14,609
Excess of assets over habiities 220 236

At 31 Decemnber 20086, the surplus of realisuc assets over realistc iabiines imtially amounted to £254m {2005 £236m) wath a Risk Caprtal
Margin {(RCM) of £220m {2005 £276m), the surplus assets have subseqguently been reduced by £34m wvia a reduction in tuture guarantee
charges leaving the warking capital at £220m fully covering the RCM This results in an excess of realistic assets over realistic habilities of
£220m {2005 £236m) After adding back the sharehoiders’ share of future bonuses totalling £95m {2005 £85m) and deducting adjustments o
elminate double counung of acquired PVIF of £19m (2005 £20m) the excess in accordance with FRS 27 amounted to £296m {2005 £301m)

The man element of the realisuc habihties 15 the asset shares of wath-profits business This represents the premiums received to date
sogether with the investment return earned less expenses and charges This is mainly calculated on an indmidua! pobicy basis using histonc
informaton and in hne wath the company s PPFM Assets and reghstic abedities are closely matched since the realistic lizbilities move with the
value of the underlying assets

Palicyhalder hatulues (inctuding eptions and guarantees) are then valued using a market consistent stachastic model Included n ozher
habilities are provisions for specific itemns such as morigage endowment reviews and other llabilities of the fund Reahstic valuations also
allow for future profits of non-profit business written in the With-Profits Fund to be included In accordance with FRS 27, the value of fuiure
profits of non-profit busingss has been deducted from policyholder liabitities in the balance sheet
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28 Realstic balance sheet conunued

Opt:ions and guarantees are features of ife assurance and pensions
contracts that conder potentially valuable benefis to policyheiders
They are not unique to with-profits funds and can arise n non-
partcipatng funds They can expose aninsurance comnpany 10 1wo
types of nsk insurance {such as mortality/morbrdity) and financial
isuch as marke1 pricesfinterest rates) The value of an option or
guarantee compnses two elements the intrinsic value and the tme
value The intnasic value 15 the amount that would be payable i} the
option OF guarantee was exercised immediately The time value 1s
the addrtional value that reflects the possibility of the intrinsic value
increasing in future before the expiry of the option or guaraniee
Under FSA rules all options and guarantess must be valued and
included in policyholder liabibies For funds within the FSA's realistic
capntal methodology options and guarantees are valued on a market-
consistent stochastic basis that takes into account bath the time
value and the intnnsic value of the options and guarantees

The majorty of the Group's Iife and pensicns options and guarentees
are within FPLP's With-Profits Fund These are valued stochastically
and included in the reahstric habibties There are two main types of
guarantees and gptions in the FPLP With-Profits Fund matunty
guarantees and guaranteed annuity options Maturity guarantees are
in respect of conventional with-profits business and unitised with-
profits business and represent the sum assured and reversionary
bonuses declared to date The cost of these guarantees, net of
charges, has been calculated at £10tm {2005 £149m) For certan
with-profits pensien policies 1ssued there are options guaranteeing
the rates at which annuities ¢an be purchased The cost of these
guarantees has been calculated at £747m (2005 £796m)

The cost of the with-profits guarantees Is assessed using a market-
consistent stochastue model {using The Smith Plus Model as the
scenano generator) and 1s calculated using 5 000 ssmulatons The
model has been calibrated using the gilt nsk-free curve assuming
interest rates of between 3 9% and 5 3% pa {2005 between 4 0%
and 4 2% pa) and mphed volatiities in the market The capital return
has been calbrated and compared to the actual asset portfalio Far
eqguities, the capital return volatility vanes by year with 20% pa
(2005 21 % pal assumed i year 7 increasing to 23% pa (2005
24% pa} by year 14 and 25% pa (2005 26% pa) by year 21
Volatility for property returns has been assumed at 15% pa
throughout (2005 15% pa}

The cost of guarantees also depends an management actions that
would be taken under vanous scenanos For example, the future
level of the equity-backing ratio (the ratio of funds held 1n equities
and property 1o 10tal nvestments) vanes m each scenarnie depenting
on the ratro of the guarantee cost to the asset share Srmilarly

the reversionary Donus rate 1s set each year such that, by maturity,
guzranteed benefits are targeted as a prescrbed fracuon of the total
asset share leaving the remaining portion of the asset share to be
paid as terrminal bonus The management actions are i hne with the
company s PPFM and are programmed into the model
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The guarantee cost in respect of guaranteed annuity options Is
assessed using a market-consistent stochastic mode! and values
both the current ltevel of the guaranteed annurty rate benefit
(allowng for future iImprovements in annutant mortality} and the
ume value due to uncertainty 1n future iNterest rates

The guarantee cost in each scenano s the value of the excess
annuity benefit prowded by the opuions relative 1o an annuity
purchased in the open market In estmaung the future open market
annuity rate the modet allows for stochastic vanialion in interest
rates and for future mortality improvements The stochastic interest
rate assumption reflects that implied by current market interest rate
dervative prices Future annutant mortality has been dernved from
the premmm basis at which annuities can be purchased from
Friends Provident Pensions Limited which allows for future
mertality improvernents Future improvements are diftcult to assess
as there 13 no industry consensus

The guaranteed annuity opticns cost also depends upon other
factors such as policy discontinuance and tax-free cash take-up The
factors are based on recent expenence adjusted 1o reflect industry
benchmarks and to anticipate trends in policyholder behaviour

A summary of the key assumptions s as follows

Policy discontinuances lapse early retirernent and paid-up rates vary
by policy type and penod and have been based on recent experience
Polrcy lapses for pensions are generally in the range of 1% 10 3% pa
{2005 0 5% to 2% pa) with pabey lapses for Iife business in the
range of 3% to 3% pa {13% pa for morigage endowment and with-
profit bond policies} (2005 3% to 9% pa (13% pa for mortgage
endowment policies)) Patd-up rates far pensions are generally in the
range of 7% 10 11% pa (2005 7 5% 10 10% pa} with hie policies
generalty tn the region of 0 5% t0 2% pa (2005 1% pa) Early
retivermnent rates vary by age band and policy type and have been
reviewed and amended in 2006 based on recent experience

Tax-free cash option where a guaranteed anntuity option 1s more
valuable than the cash equivalent 1t 1s assumed that 18% t0 27%
of the benefit I1s taken as tax-free depending on type of busmess
(2005 18% to 25%!} This 15 based on recent experience

There are alsa guarantees and aptions it respect of some of the
other ife assurance business wathin the Group, but these are not
conswdered to he matenal to the Group's future cash flows
addition, they have largely been matched with suitable assets and
there is no materal exposure 1o market or interest rate changes
Provisions have been estabished using deterministic scenanos
based on prudent assumptions
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29 Capital statement

The capsal statement in respect of the Group's Life & Pensions business is set out below This statement shows an analysis of the avallable
capital resources calculated on a realistic basis for the FPLP With-Profits Fund and en a regulatory basis for all other funds It also shows the
regulatory capital requirements and n 1otal, the overall surplus capital over regulatory requirements In agddition the statement provides an
analysis of policyholders’ habihtes

At 31 December 2006

Overseas Life 8 Total
UK with- UK with- UK non- Life & Pensions Life &
profits profits participating Pensions shareholders’ Pensions
{FPLP) {FPLA) funds funds funds busmess
£m £Em £m £m £m £m
Shareholders’ funds
Outside fund - - - - 1,045 1,045
Inside fund - - 1,211 30 - 1.241
- 1,211 30 1.045 2,286
Other gqualifying capital
Subordinated debt - - - 10 300 310
Preference shares - - - - - -
FFA 296 143 - . - 439
296 143 1.211 40 1.345 3,035
Reguiatory adjustmants
Assets 19 - (725) (323} - {1,029)
biapiines - in 237 327 - 563
Shareholders’ share of future benuses 95) - - - - {85)
Available caprtal resources 220 142 723 44 1,345 2,474
Caprtal requirement
UK realistic basis 220 - - . - 220
Qther regulatory bases - 21 368 13 - 422
220 21 368 33 - 642
Overall surplus caprtal over
regulatory requirements 1.832
Analysis of policyholders’ lrabcltias
With-profits 12,505 217 - - - 12,722
Unit-hinked - . 16,954 11,323 - 28.277
Nen-parttipaung 2,595 33 2,896 55 - 5,584
Total 15,100 255 19,850 11,378 - 46,583
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29, Capital statement continued

At 31 December 2005

QOverseas Life & Total
UK with- UK with- UK non- Life & Pensions Life &
profits protits  participating Pensions  shareholders’ Pensions
(FPLP} (FPLA) funds funds funds business
£m £m &m £m fm £m
Shareholders’ funds
Cutside fund - - - 951 951
Inside fund - - 1149 13 - 1,162
- - 1149 13 951 2,113
Other qualiying caprtal
Subordinated debt - - - 10 - 10
Preference shares - - - 300 300
FFA 3am 19 - - - 420
Kiod} 119 1149 23 1251 2843
Regulatory adjustments
Assets 20 m 670) (228 t2)] 827
Liabilities - - 275 261 536
Shareholders share of future bonuses (85} - - (851
Avarlable caprtal resources 236 118 814 56 1243 2,467
Caprtal requiremant
UK realistic basrs 276 - - 276
Other regulatory bases - 17 332 29 378
276 17 332 28 654
Overall surplus capital
over regulatory requirements 1,813
Analysis of policyholders’ iabilties
With-profits 13519 243 - - - 13,762
Untt-hnked - - 13 853 8,871 22,724
Non-participating 2,783 39 3128 58 - 6,008
Total 16 302 282 16 981 8929 - 42494
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29. Caprtal statement corunued

{a} Summary

As can be seen from the above table, the total avallable capial
resaurces of the Group's Life & Pensions business amounts to
£2,474m (2006 £2,467m), its regulatory caprtal requirements amount
to £642m (2005 £654m) resulting n a surplus of availlable capal
resources over regulatory capital of £1,832m (2005 £1 813m)

Set out below are detaills of how the availlable capiial resources have
been calculated, the restrictions that are in existence over the avalable
capital resources, the basis of calculating the regulatory capital
requiTernents and an explanauon for the increase in the avalable caprtat

Apart frorn capral employed in the Life & Pensions business
amounting to £2 286m {2005 £2 113m), the Group's other man
activity 15 that of Asset Management operated by the F&C Group i
which Friends Provident owned 52% at 31 December 2006 The
total capital in the Asset Management business amounts 1o £683m
(2005 £745m) The caprtal employed in these twoe activities
recanciles to the Group total equity attributable to ordinacy
shareholders of £2 807m (2005 £2 688m) by way of central
corporate activities and consohidation adjustments {mainly goodwill),
amounting to £(162)m {2005 £(170Im)

ib) Basis of calculating available capital resources in
Life & Pansions business

The available capital of the two UK with-profits funds has been
determined in accordance with FSA reguiations and mcludes the
FFA The FFA represents the estmated surplus in the funds that has
not been allocated and 1s avatable to meet regulatory and other
solvency reguirements of the funds Adjustments have been made
1o restate all assets and habilities onto a regulatary hasis

The majenty of the Group’s Iife and pensions options and guarantees
are within FPLP's With-Profits Fund and detalls are set qut in note
28 These are valued on @ market consistent stochastic basis
Options and guarantees outside FPLP’s With-Profits Fund are not
considered to be matenal to the Group's future cash flows In
addition they have largely been matched with suitable assets and
there 1S no matenal nsk to market or interest rate changes
Provisions have been established using deterministic scenanos
based on prudent assumpiions

The With-Profits Fund in FPLP has available capital of £220m (2005
£.236m) and has been calculated in accordance with the FSAs
reahstic capital regulations In accordanice with accounung rules the
reahstic labihttes only represent amounts relating to policyhoiders
and do not include the shareholders’ share of future bonuses
However, the shareholders share Is treated as a deduction from
capital that 1s avallable 1o meet regutatory requirements and shown
as a separate adjustment in the capital statement

The available capital in the closed wath-proirts fund in FPLA amounts
to £142m {2005 £118m) This has been calculated in accordance
with the FSA's regulatory capnal requirements

The available canual m the Group s UK non-pacicipating businesses
has been determined in accordance with FSA regulations and
amaounts to £723m (2009 £814m} Adustments have been made 1o
restate all assets and babtlties on to a regulatory basis The
regulatary adustment to assets mainly consists of eliminating
deferred acquisiion costs The regulatory adjustment to labilities
mainly represents the addtional regulatory capital ansing as a fesult
of the secuntisation of a defined book of pre-dermutuahsation
business in December 2004 and deferred tax

The avallable capitai in the Group s overseas businesses written by
FPI and Lombard has been determined in accordance with local
requiremnents and amounts 10 £44m (2005 £56m) FPI s based in
the Iste of Man and Lombard ts based in Luxembourg The analysis
of available capital 15 £19m FPl and £26m Lombard (2005 £31m FPI
and £25m Lombard} Adjustments have been made 1o restate al!
assets and habiliies onto local regulatory bases

The sharehoiders’ funds held outside the Life & Pensions funds are
shown separately in the capdal statement It 1s the Group's policy to
ensure that each subsidiary 1s adequately caprialised to support its
Wite businesses and 10 exceed regulatory capital requirements The
amount of shareholders funds avarable capital resources 1s
£1,345m (2005 £1,243m}

{c) Restrictions on available capital resources in Life &
Pensions business

The avallable capital 1s subject to certain restrictions as to its
availabulty 1o meet capital requwements elsewhere in the Group n
particular no transfers from long-term funds can take place without
an up to date actuanat vatuation The main restrictions on caputal are
set out below

UK With-Profits Fund in FPLP the avallable surplus held in the FPLP
With-Profits Fund can only be applied to meet the requirements of
the fund itself or be distnbuted to policyholders and shareholders
Shareholders are entitled to an amount not exceeding one-ninth of
the amount distributed to policyholders in the form of bonuses on
conventionat policies Non-profit business wiritten in the FPLP With-
Profits Fund has been secuntised and surpluses are initially used to
repay £380m of floating rate lcan notes 1ssued by the Group and any
subsequent surplus may be distributed 40% to FPLP's With-Profits
Fund and 60% 1o shareholders Anstng from this arrangement the
FPLP Non-Profit fund has loaned £90m {2005 £173m) to FPLP's
With-Profits Fund The FPLP Non-Profit fund has also prowvided a
contingent loan of £50m (with a facility for a further £50m) to the
FPLP With-Profits Fund which 1s repayable out of future surpluses in
the With-Profits Fund, subject 1o certan restrictions

UK With-Profits Fund in FPLA the avatlable surplus held in the
closed With-Profits Fund of FPLA can only be distnbuted to
policyholders

UK ron-paricipating funds for non-pariicipating business the

majority of surplus can be distrbuted to shareholders subject to
meeting the requirernents of the busmess

Friends Prowident Annual Report & Accounts 2006 141



FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
IFRS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS EEV SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

Notes 1o the consolidated accounts wntnea

29. Capntal statement contnued

Overseas fe funds the available surpluses in FPI and Lombard can be distnbuted to shareholders subject to meeting the requirements of the
businesses

Shareholders’ funds the capital 1s generally available to meet requirements anywhere in the Group It remains the intention of management
to ensure that there 15 adequate capital to exceed the regulatory requirements of the Group s hfe and pensions businesses, to meet any net
new business stran and to support the Group's overall credit ratings FPLP has guaranteed the £300m STICS issued in 2003 and the £500m
STICS 1ssued in 2005 by the Parent Company

{d} Basis of calculating capital requirements for Life & Pensions husiness
Each Life and Pensions company has ta hold sufficient capital te meet its regulatory capital requirements

For the FPLP With-Profits Fund, the capital requirement is the nisk capital margin (RCM) which armounts to £220m (2005 £276m) This is
calculated on set cnitena of adverse scenarios laid dawn by the FSA (the market nisk scenanios tested are what would happen if property
prces fall by 12 5% equity pnces fall by 20%, corporate bonds spreads increase by 5 23%, fixed interest yields nse 0 81% and persistency
increases by 32 5%} The RCM s based on the asset mix at the year-end and 1akes inio account hedging strategies and the actions
managerment would take in the event of particular adverse market conditions

Under the realistic capital methedology the capital requirement 1s the higher of the ‘twin peaks’ test of the reafistic peak and the regulatory
peak In FPLP With-Profits Fund, the realistic peak applied i both 2006 and 2005 This has resulted in a With-Profits Insurance Capital
Component (WPICC) of £886m {2005 £638m) required to brng the regulatory peak of £1,475m {2005 £598m) in hine with the realistic peak
of £l (2005 £{40)m} Regulatory reserving rule changes anising from the adoption of PS 06/14 allow the value of future transters to be
deducted from the WPICC for 2006 this has resulted in a surplus in the FPLP With-Profiis Fund on a regulatory basis, of £609m

Realistic Regulatory
2006 2005 2006 2005
£m £m €m £m
Avalable capital 220 236 Surplus 1,933 1,498
Risk capital margin {220) (278} Long-term Insurance Capital requirements {458) {548}
Resilience capital - (350
Realistic peak - {40) Regulatory peak 1.475 599
With-Profits insurance Capital Component {866} (639}
40 609 {40)

The caprtal cover to meet the regulatory solvency requirement of FPLF s With-Profits Fund 1s prowided from FPLP’s Non-Profit Fund and
shareholders’ fund to the extent not met from the With-Profits Fund nself

For the FPLA closed With-Profiss Fund the capuat requirement has been calculaied on a regulatory basis in accordance with FSA regulations
at£21m (2005 £17m)

For UK non-participating funds  the relevant caprtal requirement 1s the minimum solvency margin determined i accordance with FSA
regulations This, In total, amounts to £368m (2005 £332m)

For overseas business, local regulatory caprtal requirements are determined and these amount to £33m (2005 £28m) This is anatysed £9m
{2005 £8rm) for FPl and £24m {2005 £21m) for Lornbard
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29. Capital statement conunued

{e} Movement in avatlable capital

At 31 December 2006 total available Life & Pensions capital resources had increased by £7m ta £2,474m as shawn below

Overssas Life Total

UK with- UK with- UK non- Life & Pensions Life &

profits profits  participating Pensions shareholders’ Pensions

{FPLP) {FPLA) funds funds funds business

£m Em £m £m £m £m

At 1 January 2008 236 118 814 56 1,243 2,457

Newwv business strain - - [297) {3s) - (332)

Surplus in year® 4) 25 155 49 73 298
Assumption changes

- PS06/14 - - 123 - - 123

- Meroidty basis - . 123 - - 123

- Other {12} (1) 6 {1} - {8)

Transters . - {200} (25) 225 -

Dividend and STICS interest . - - - (197) (197)

At 31 Decamber 2006 220 142 724 44 1,344 2,474

* All tax items are mcluded wathin Surplus in year

30 Risk management objectives and policies for mrtigating risks

The Group's nsk management pohicies and the processes for identifying nsks across the Group, including strategic and operational risks, are

descnbed in the Corporate governance report These processes include rdentificavon and control of financial insurance, and other nsks, the

key components of which are

« Market nsk — the nsk of loss anising from changes in the values of, or income from assets or in interest o exchange rates A nsk of loss
also anses from changes in the volatiity of asset prices interest rates or exchange rates

= Insurance nsk ~ the nisk of loss due to the inherent uncertainties as to the occurrence amounts and timing of insurance labifities

= Credit nsk — the risk of loss due to the default of a company, individual or country, or a change 10 investors' nsk appetite

» Liguidity nsk — the nsk of loss because a firm although salvent, either does not have sufficient financial resources avatlable te it 10 order to
meet its obligations as they fall due, or can secure them only at excessve cost

For each of the above rnisks, the Group determines i1s nsk appette and sets 1s investment and underwnting pohicies accordingly The Group
companies set thew respective gualtatve nsk appettes in a range from no appeite for the nsk through to actvely pursuing those neks
where they have competitive advantage Risk policy s documented in each of the above areas, including the actions to mitigate those risks
A summary of how each risk 1s mitigated 1s pravided below with, where appropnate, quantitative information on the exposure to that nsk
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30. Risk management objectives and policies for mitigating risks contnued

{a) Market risk

Market resk includes equity and property nsk foreign exchange risk and interest rate nsk The Group manages market nsk attaching to assets
backing specific policyholder liabilities and to assets held to deliver income and gains for the sharehelder Within the unit-inked funds and
with-profits funds the Greup manages market risk so as 1o provide a return in line with the expectations of policyholders The prncipat
objective for shareholder assets 1s to manage them so that they meet the capital requirernents of the Group, and support its future strategic
and gperational objectives

Appetite for market risk vanes for different asset classes and by the nature of the habilities or funds that they represent For example n the
Life & Pensions business In relation to equity nsk appetite vanes from taking on the nsk when 1t s beneficial to do so for shareholder
earnings at nsk from annual management charges on unit-hinked policies to avaiding risk wherever possible for assets backing nor-linked
non-profit policies

Far assets backing policyhalder labilites, market nsk 1s managed by matching, where possible, the duration and profile of assets to the
poiicyholder liabilies they are backing This helps manage market nsk to the extent that changes in the values of assets are matched by a
corresponding movement :n the values of labilities

Market risk anses on guarantees and options cffered on certain of the Group s products As described within the section on palicyholder
llabilities (see note 27), the Group is exposed to guarantees on bonus additions that become more valuable as investment values fall In
addiion, the Group 15 exposed to guaranteed cash and annuity options on certain pension policies that become more valuable as interest
rates fall

Shareholders’ earnings are further exposed to market nsk to the extent that the income frem policyholder funds 1s based on the value of
financial assets held within those unitdinked or with-profits funds

Within F&C there i1s no net market risk n relation to customer assets because the nsk s fully borne by the clients concerned Cther assets
and liabilities do not expose the Asset Management business to significant market risk F&C actively pursues market sk in relation to the
impact on management fees of movements in market variables such as equity prices and interest rates

The {pllowing summarnses the key actions undertaken by the Group to manage all aspects of market nsk

The Group Board Investment Committee oversees investment policy and strategy which the Group actions pnimarily through the use of
investment fund mandates Day-to-day implementation of investment policy and strategy 1s managed predominantly by F&C in line with these
approved mandates, subject to robust montoring by the Group

Mandates are set for each relevant fund within each of the insurance legal entities within the Group taking account of the relevant factors
outlined above Unit-inked funds are managed in ine with therr underlying objectives The mandates set imits on the level of market risk
permitted using some or all of the following mecharisms

* defined performance benchmarks !

* a maximum proportion of the fund that can be held in equities and, for with-profits funds a mimmum level

* restuctions on the size of compames within which equity investment can be held (eg potentally restncting UK egusty 1o FTSE 100 stocks)
= defined asset alfocations between UK and overseas equity exposure in specific regians

* restrictions on the vanaton of the duration of the portfolio of bends from the benchmark duration

Equity denvatives are permyited to be held to facilitate efficient portfoho management or to reduce investment nsk (without disproportionately
increasing other types of nsk) and appropriate approval must be obtained for their use Currency forwards and other denvatives may be held
to manage currency nsk, but only If permutted by individual fund mandates

In addition to the mandates, the Group undertakes a programme of assetliability management For example 1n order to manage the impact
of interest changes on profit, corporate bonds and giis are held to match the duration of annuity and permanent heaith irsurance policies
This provides matching of cash flows and vatuation movements and 1s supplemented by the use of interest rate swaps to improve
assetMliabiity matching as necessary
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In order to manage the exposure ansing from guarantees and options the Group purchases a number of denvatives including interest rate
swaps, equity put options interest rate swaptions and equity futures to manage exposures to movements :n equity prices or interest rates
Hedge accounting has not been applied 10 these dervatives as movernents in the far value of these instruments will be offset by the
movament (1 the valuauon of the lability As noted, the majority of these guarantees anse within FPLP's With-Profits Fund and €0 any net fai
value movement wiil be reflected in the FFA rather than within shareholders’ funds

The following provides additional nformation on the exposure to equity and property nsk, foreign exchange nisk and interest rate nsk

i} Equity and property rnsk

For with-profits and unit-hinked paticies, the policyholders bear the majonty of the investment nsk and any change in asset values 1s matched
by a broadly equivalent change In the hability Shareholder funds invest in equities and are subject to nsk from fluctuation in their value
Charges which are expressed as & percentage of fund are alsc impacted The approximate imgact of a 10% change in equity and property
values on post-tax shareholder profits and equity 15 £53m (2005 £72m})

() Foreign exchange nsk

The Group invests in financiai instruments denominated in currencies gther than its measurement currency (pounds sterling) Consequantly
the Group is exposed tc the risk that the exchange rate of s presentation currency relative to other currencies may change n a manner that
has an adverse effect on the value of the Group s financial assets and lakilites

For unit-inked contracts currency risk 1s borne by the policyholder As noted above, the shareholders are subject to currency risk only to the
extent that ncome from palicyhoider funds 1s based on the value of the financial assets held in those funds The habilty for nen-linked
Insurance contracts In currencigs other than stering 1s iImmatenal

The impact of exchange rate movernents on F&C 1s mimirmised by repatnation of excess foreign currency funds to sterling and by holding
reguiatory capital in the local currency

) Interest rate nsk

The Group 1s exposed 1o farr value interest rate nsk where changes to wterest rates result in changes to fair values rather than cash flows, for
example fixed interest rate loans and assets and dervatives that convert floating rate interest payments to fixed rates Conversely, floating
rate loans and dervatives that convert fixed interest rates to floating rates expose the Group 1o cash flow nterest rate nsk

The faliowing table shows effective interest rates for those hinangial instruments held at amortised cost and hence where such a rate (s
deemed applicable

2006 2005
% Y%
Assets
Cash and cash egquivalents 456 464
Liabilities
£215m Undated subordinated guaranteed bonds - 913
£260m Floating rate subordinated loan notes 675 -
£380m Floating rate secured notes 495 498
£230sm Secured bonds 523 523
£290m Convertible bonds 525 525
Bank overdrafts 564 563

It interest rates mcreased by 1% across the whole yield curve there would be a fall in the value of fixed interest assets but the discount rate
far valuing habiities would be increased to partially offset the rmpact The net effect of a 1% increase in interest rates at all terms would
reduce post-tax profit and equity by about £92m (2005 £86m) The impact of a 1% reduction in interest rates would be to Increase post-tax
profit and equity by about £110m {2005 £79mj)

The following able indicates the contractual re-pricing dates for the Group s significant financial assets and habiliies and insurance and
mvestment contracts that afe exposed to interest rate nsk {there were no nstances where the re-pncmg dates were betore raturty dates)
Assets and labilities held within unitHinked funds where 2ll financial nsks are borne by the policyholder are excluded from the tabie below as
are any assets not directly exposed to Interest rate risk
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Year eraded 31 December 2006

Less More
than than No
one 1-5 6-10 11-15 16~20 20 fixed Total
ysaar years years years years years term 2006
fm £fm £m £m £m £m £m £m
Financi al and insurance assets
Cash flow interest rate risk
Shares and other vanable yield securities - - - - - - - -
Units in unit trusts and shares in
open-ended investment compénles « - - - - - - -
Debt se cunties and other fixed income
securities 33 92 49 19 10 N . 334
Participation in investment pools - - - - . - - -
Denvative financial instruments - 2 3 1 32 77 - 115
Depaosits with credrt institutions 145 - - - - - . 1456
Fawr value interest rate nisk
Shares and other vanable yield securities - - - - - - 5,279 5,279
Umits in unit trusts and shares in
open-ended investment cornpanies - - - - - - 873 873
Debt secunittes and other fixed income
securities 232 679 2,358 2,656 1,564 4,839 . 12,328
Participation in mvestment pools - - - 136 - - - 136
Derwative financtal instruments 7 14 34 14 12 2 - 88
Depasits with credit institutians - - - - . - - -
Reinsurance assets 12 9 12 23 35 {7 1 85
Financial and insurance labilities
Fair value interest rate risk
Derivative financial instrurnents 5 3 10 3 . - - 21
Insurance contracts 452 1,869 3,077 1,009 397 181 5,48% 12,474
Investment contracts 312 657 781 694 589 686 2,035 5,754

Nete that while sigmificant cash flows often occur at the maturity date there are other cash flows which occur throughout the term of the
contracts, including income from investments premiums, annuity paymenis, death and sickness payments expenses and commission
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Yesar ended 31 December 2005

Less Maore
than than No
one 1-5 810 11-15 16-20 20 fixed Total
year years years years years years term 2005
£m £m £m £m £m fm fm £m

Finmneial and insurance assets
Cas:h flow interest rate nsk
Sha res and other vanable yield securities - - - - - - - -
Units in urit trusts and shares In

open-ended investment companies - - - - - - - -
Debrt securities ang other fixed income

Securities 55 68 33 49 15 197 - a7
Part scipation In iNnvestment pools - - - - - - - -
Deri vative financial instruments - {15) {40} (14) 73 144 - 148
Dep ©sits with credit institutions 144 - - - - - - 144
Fair value interest rate nisk
Shares and other variable yield secunties - - . - - - 9778 9778
Unitss inunit trusts and shares in

orpen-ended investment companies - - - - - - 262 262

Debt securities and other fixed income

s ecunties 404 951 3,337 2192 2084 4682 - 13880
Partreaipation in investment pools - - - 141 - - - 141
Dervative financial nstruments (6) 17 45 28 13 4 - 101

Deposits with credit institutions - - - - - - - -
Reinsurance assets 8 4 16 29 50 70 6 183
Finaroal and msurance babilities

Faw walue interest rate nsk

Insur ance contracts 524 2,152 2705 1,415 609 435 5,471 13311
inves tment contracts 269 675 824 715 634 833 2.51C 6.460
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30 Risk management objectives and policies for
mitigating risks continued

{b) Policy cash flow nsk (including insurance risk}

Policy cash flow sk consists of the following tour main areas

Insurance nisks

* morta ity nsk - gk of ioss ansing due to policyhelder deaths
expen ence being different from expectations or for annuties sk of
annwtants Iiving longer than expected (called annuity longewity risk},

» morpicdity nsk — sk of loss anising due to policyholder health
expen ence being different from expectations

Other rnisks

» policybolder decisien nisk — nsk of loss ansing from expenence of
actual policyhelder behaviour (eg lapses option take-up) bemng
different from expectaticns,

* expense nsk — nsk of loss due to expense expenence being
differe nt from expectations

The Life & Pensions business actively pursues maortalty nsk and
morbidity risk in those areas where 1t believes 1t has a competitive
advantage in managng these nsks to generate shareholder value
(without compromising the interests of policyhalders, and the need
to treat customers farly) Policyholder decision nisk and expense nisk
are taker an when s deamed financally beneficial for the
orgamisation to do s0 or where the taking of these risks 1s in support
of the Group's stratege oblectives

Underpmming the Group's management of pahcy cash flow nsk s

= attherence 10 an approved underwnting policy that takes mo
account the level of nsk that the Group 15 prepared 1o accept

s controls around the development of products and ther pricing, and

» regutar analysis of actual mortality moetbidity and tapse expenence
which feeds into the development of products and policies

Risks 1n excess of agreed underwnting imits may be reinsured The
Group s objective 1s to purchase reinsurance in the most cost-effective
manner from rensurers whase creditworthiness 1s deemed appropriate

Substantially all insurance contracts and 60% of the combined
nsurance and investrment contract portfolio, are written m the UK and
so resuits are sensitive to changes in the UK insurance market and
tax regme Otherwise the Group sells a diverse range of products to
a diverse group of people

Note 27 describes the main insurance contracts wntten by the
Group and the basis of setting assumptions 1n Measuring Msurance
habilities which will take into account the nsks above The following
sections describe how policy cash flow rnisks are managed and
provide an indication of the sensitivity of reported profit to the nisk
Each sensitivity has been calculated independently of the remaining
nsks {ie correlatons petween nsks have been wgnored)

F&C nsurance contracts are all annuty contracts wath guaranteed
payment during the life time of the annuitant at a specified leve! or
with a specthied escalation factor They are 10C per cent remnsured 1o
Friends Provident Pensions Limited
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{1} Mortality and mortidity nisk

Life assurance

Most insurance policies other than annuities and deferred annuity
pohcies include ife assurance When pnicing policies an assumption
1Is made as to the likelihood of death and this assumption s
reviewed as part of the annual valuation of policies To the extent
that actual mortahty expernence 1s worse than that anticipated in
pricing {and subsequently in the insurance hability valuation) a loss
will be made The nsk 1s greater for those policies such as term
assurance where the matunty ar surrender benefit 1s small in
relation to the death benefit Other policies which have a savings
element, such as endowment assurance bave significant labilities
relating to the matunty benefit particularly as the policy approaches
matunty Contractual terms for unitinked and unitised with-profits
products include pravision for increases in mortality charges

Cntical lness

The Group wiites a number of ¢ntical iiness policies that pay out In
the event of a policyholder's Ill health As for life assurance, the
amount payatle on il health can be significantly higher than the
amoeunt payable if the policy 1s surrendered

An increase n expenenced martality and morbdity will reduge IFRS
profit A 5% increase in assurance maortality and critical dlness
expenence will reduce posttax profit and eguity by €£19m (2005
£26m} before allowing for reinsurance and £8m (2005 £6m) net of
remsurance  This takes inte account the impact from increasing the
prowision for future mortality as well as the impact from actual
experence A 5% reduction in assurance mortably and cmuical finess
expenience would increase post-tax profit and equity by £18m (2005
£22m) before reinsurance and £7m {2005 £4m} net of remsurance

Income protecticn

Income pratection policies pay a regular level of benefit if the
pohicyholder s unable to work due to incapacity for more than a
specified penod The two main nsks mvolved are an increase in the
trequency of clams (the inception rate) and an increase in the average
length of the clarm {a reduction In recovery rate) Most income
protection policies are regular premium with the premium and cover
fixed at inception Some group policies allow premiurns to be reviewed
but the prermium rates are usually guaranteed for three years

The impact of Inception rates increasing by 5% and recovery rates
reducing by 5% would be a £21m {2005 £45m} reduction in post-tax
IFRS profit and equity A 5% reduction in incepticn rates and a 5%
Iincrease In recovery rates would increase post-tax profit and equity by
about £11m (2005 £33m) The impact assumes that the reserving
basis 15 adjusted to reflect the change n experience

Annuities

Life annuities are contracts that, in return for a lump sum, pay & regular
amaunt (usually monthly or annually and sometmes increasing at a fixed ar
indexdinked rate), untl the death of the policyholder As a result if annuttants
lve longer than expected on average profits wil reduce In many cases the
annuity 1s guaraniteed payable for a fxed tern (usually fve vears) even in the
event of death Manwy pohoes are written on jomt Ives so that when the
first ife dies the beneiit continues, sometimes at a reduced leve! These
features 1end 1o reduce the volatiity of resuits 10 random fluciuations
In experence byt not the impact of a general Increase in lengevity
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30 . Risk management objectives and policies for
mitigating risks cortunued

Deferred annuties are contracts whereby there 1s a promise to pay a
Iife annuity starting from a specified date i the future These
policies are subject to a similar nsk from the smpact of longewity the
only difference bemng that the nsk of adverse impact 1s greater given
that the annuny 15 payable further into the future However most of
thesse policies are with-protits and the impact would be offset by a
redwaction n the FFA, with relatively ittle resulting impact on
snareholder profits

A 5% reduction in annuitant mortality would reduce post-tax IFRS
profit and equity by £31m (2005 £32m)] This takes into account the
impact from increasing the provision for future mortality as well as
the 1mpact from paying more annurty than expected A 5% mncrease
in expected annuitant mertality woutd increase post-tax profit and
equity by £28m (2005 £29m} These impacts assume that the
rese rving basis changes to reflect expenence

The impact of a mortality shock on term assurance business would
normally be at least partially offset by a favourable impact on the
annuity book

(n) Policyholder decision risk

Persistency expenence varies over time as well as from one type of
contract to another Factors that wi! cause lapse rates to vary over
time Include changes \n investment perfermance of the assets
unde rlying the contract where approprigte regulatory changes that
make alternative products more attractive, customer perceptions of
the (nisurance industry 1 genesal and the Group i particular and the
general economic environment

The immedhate impact on IFRS profit of a change in lapse rates 15
relatrvely small An increase in lapse rates will normally resultin a
small reduction in profit due mainly to eliminating the deferred
acquisition cost asset In respect of the insurance contracts that
lapse However the impact 1s much smaller than the etfect of other
factors considered here Lapses have a more significant effect on
the Group s other basis of measurement — being EEV profit

The valuauon of the Group’s guarantees and options 1s described n
note 27 As stated in that note the cost of guaranteed annuity
options i1s dependent on decisions made by policyhelders such as
policy discontinuance and tax-free cash take-up These assumptions
are set by reference 1o recent experience

{m) Expense nsk

Though under IFRS 4 expense nsk 1s not 2 companent of insurance
nsk 1t 1s an important financial risk in the contex: of iInsurance and
nvestment contracts

The whole of the impact of changes i expense levels 1s borne by
shareholders with the following excepticns In 2009 the charges
made to the FPLP With-Profits Fund for managing policies will be
reviewed to reflect market rates at the time Pre-demutualisation
with-profits palicyholders will bear the impact of any resuliing

changes 10 charges Also FPLA closed fund with-profits
poticyhelders bear the full expense nsk for the fund

Centractual terms for urit-inked and unitised with-profits products
nclude provision for increases in charges Certain expenses {such
as feesfcommussions) are fixed at the tme a contract Is written

If the remaining renewal expenses were to Increase by 10% the
impact on post-tax profits and eguity would be approximately £15m
{20058 £14m)

{c} Cradht nisk

Credit nsk can be descnbed as the nisk of loss due to the default of
a company, indiwidual or country or a change in investors’ risk
appette it includes investrnent credit risk, denvative and
reinsurance counterparty nsks deposit and loan risks

The Life & Pensians business will take cn investment credit ask and
loan nsk when it 1s deemed financially beneficial to do so in support
of the Group’s strategic objectives (eg on making an investment
decrsion between two cerporate bonds of differing credrt quaiity, the
default nsk of the lower rated bond would be weighed up agamst
the additional yield gained with a view to ensuring that the expected
reward exceeded the potential cost of the defauht nsk) F&C actively
pursues credit nsk in refation 1o the impact on management fees of
credit events The Group 1s averse to most other types of credrt risk,
 particular that related to the default of derivative counterparties,
reinsurers and deposn takers

Te mmigate credit nisk

¢ Investment mandates for many funds will have a prescnbed
minimum credit rating of bonds that may be held Investing in a
diverse portfolio reduces the impact from indivdual cormpanies
defaulting

» Counterparty imiis are set for investments, cash deposits, foregn
exchange trade exposure and stock lending

*» All denvative transactions are covered by collateral and dervatives
are only taker out with counterparties with a swtable credit rating

* The Group regularly reviews the financial security of its reinsurers

In F&C, credit nsk (including denvative counterparty nsk) 1s managed
by the application ot a strict investment poiicy designed to hmit
exposure 1o companies with poor gredit ratings and to avoid undue
nvestment with any single counterparty Regular meetings are held
10 conswler credit developments and all credit exposures are
reviewed at least annually Colizteral i1s not usually obtamed for credit
nsk exposures on derivative Instruments except where margin
deposits are required from counterparues

The Group 1s subject to the nsk of increases in credit spreads
reducing the value of corporate bonds Bases for valuing liabilities
will reflect bond yields, reduced for default risk To the extent that
the increase In credit spreads reflects an increase in actual default
rates this will result in a reduction in profits A 0 25% pa increase 1n
average credn spread which is reflected by an increase n actual
defaults will reduce post-tax profit and equity by £60m (2005 £70m)
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Concentrations of credit nsk might exist where the Group has significant exposure 10 an indmdual counterparty or to a group of
counterparties with simifar economic characteristics that would cause ther ability to meet contractual obligations to be similarly affected by
changes n econoric and other conditions The Group has most of iis counterparty risk within its Life & Pensions business As noted above
this 1s momitored by the counterparty imits cantained within the Group s investment guidelines overlaid with regutatory requirements

F&C 1s expesed 1o a concentration of gredit risk 10 the extent of tming differences between the recagniicn of incame for senvices rendered
and the timing of receipt of management {ees from chents The specific concentration of risk from clients where trade debtors and accrued
incoma for any one chent or group of connected clients 1s £1m or more at 31 December 15 as follows

2008 2005
Armounts due from £m £m
The Achmea group 4

Resclution Life ple -
RSA ple 1 1
QEICs {management fees)

Certan dernvatives are subject 10 a legal nght of ser-oft
The amount disclosed in the balance sheet in respect of financial assets represents the Group’s maximum exposure 1o credit risk

An indication of the Group s exposure to credit risk 1s the quality of the investments and counterpart:es with which 1t transacts The Group s
most exposed to credit nsk on debt and other fixed iIncome securities, denvative financial instruments deposits with credit nsututions,
remnsurance arrangements and cash and cash equivalents Debt and other fixed incorme secunuies mamly compnse government bonds and
corporate bonds Grven the nature of the Group's Investments in government bonds the credit nsk associated with these 1s considered small
and the Group therefore focuses on monnonng the qualny of s corporate bonds

The following table gives an indication of the level of creditworthiness of those categonies of assets which are most expesed to credit nsk

using principally ratings prescribed by Standard & Poor s and Moody s Assets held within unit-inked funds have been excluded from the table
below as the credrt nsk on these assets 1s borne by the policyholders rather than the shareholders

31 December 2006

AAA AA A BBB a8 B Notrated Total
£m £m £m Em £m £m £fm £fm
Corporate bonds 2,641 1,676 2,424 6562 7 7 210 1.617
Dernvative financial Instrurmenis - 181 1 - - - - 182
Reinsurance assets - 85 - - - - . 85"
31 December 2005
AAN AA A 8BB 88 B Not rated Total
Em £m £m £m £m £m £m fm
Corporate bonds 2952 1,900 2810 703 - - 276 8 641
Derwative financizl instruments - 24 225 - - - - 2489
Remsurance assets - 26 157 - - - - 183
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For over-the-counter derwvative transactions undertaken by the Group, collateral 1s received from the counterparty if the contract Is In-the-
morney ie 15 an asset of the Group's and over any agreed mimmum threshold) This collateral can be sold or repledged by the Group and 1s
repavyable if the contract terminates or the contract s far value falls At 31 December 2006 the far value of such collateral held was £181m
{2005 £241m) No collateral receved from the counterparty has been sold or repledged

tn re spect of deposits with credit institutions and cash and cash equivalents, Group policy 15 to hold cash and deposits in AAA money funds
or financial institutions with a rating of above AA

{d) Liquidity risk
The Group faces twa key types of iquidity nsk sharehalder auidity nsk {iquidity within funds managed for the benefit of shareholders, including
shareholders’ interests 1n long-term funds) and policyholder liquidity risk fhiquidity within funds managed for the beneft of palicyheiders)

Lenger-term shareholder hquidity risk will be taken on when  1s deemed financally beneficial for the arganisauon to da sg, of where the
taking of this hquidity risk 15 1n suppert of strategic objectives Short-term shareholder kquidity nisk 1s avoided due to the need to satisfy
dividend expectations whilst having a imited timeframe to raise capital Policyholder hquidity nisk 1s not accepted over either a short or
longer-term timeframe 1n all but the most extreme scenarios The same Is trua for hquidity sk in F&C's investors’ funds

The overalf objective of shareholder liquidity nsk management is to ensure that there 1s sutficent iquidity over short {up to one yearl and
medturn time horizons to meet the needs of the business This includes liquidity to caver, amangst ather things, new business costs, planned
strategic actmnies such as acquisitions, servicing debt and equity capital as well as working capital to fund day-to-day cash flow requrements

For policyholder funds liquidity nsk anses from a number of potential areas including
» a short-term msmatch between assets and Labilities

+ having to realise assets to meet labilities when asset velues are depressed

* an unexpectedy lngh teve! of lapses/surrenders

Liquidrty nsk 1s managed i the following way
* Forecasts are prepared regularly to predict required iquidity levels over both the short and medium term
= Cornrmitted thrdparty funding fachities are held 1o enable cash 1o be raised in a relatively short time-span

* Credit nsk of cash deposits 1s managed by appiying counterparty limits and imposing restrictions over the credit ratings of third parties with
whom cash i1s deposited

* Assets of a suitable maturity and marketabiity are held to meet policyholder liablities as they fall due
» Lirmuts are set on the tevel of lower grade or speculative investmenis that can be held

The Group has ssued fixed rate subordinated loan notes repayable In 2016 with the option of extending the term to 2026 (at a floating rate)
This has prowvided the Group with long-terrn flexible funding at a fixed rate of interest
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31 Investment contracts

Movemrent In investment contracts habilities

2006 2005
£m £m
At 1 Ja nuary 27,857 18,001
Premiurms 5725 4 349
Claims {3.046) (2 232)
Annual rmanagement charges (293) (147)
Acquisitions through business combinations 4187
Investim ent return and other expenses 2578 3699
At 31 D ecember 32821 27,857
Analysed as fellows
Unit-link.ed contracts 27,066 21 441
Policies with DPF 5,700 6394
Other 55 22
Total inwvestment contracts habihittes 32,821 27,857

lnvestment contract habilities are included at {far value Unitlinked liabiliies are based gn the far value of the underlying assets Labdines

relating to pelicies with DPF are determined using methods and pnnciples consistent with those used to far value other products

32. Interest-beaning loans and borrowings

2008 2005

Coupon % £m £m
Subordinated hahilties
£215m FP finance PLC undated subordinated guaranteed bonds callable 2006 (1} 9125 . 215
£260m F&C floating rate subordinated loan notes due 2026 (n} Various 258 -
£10m Lombard undated subordinated loans Varnous 10 i0
£10m F&C subardinated loan 6m LIBCR +1 05 - 10
Debenture loans
£280m Box Hill Life Finance ple secuntisation notes — class A-1 due 2016 (in) 3m LIBOR +0 20 198 280
£100m Box Hill Life Finance plc securitisation notes ~ cfass A-2 due 2019 () 3m LIBOR +0 23 100 100
£6m Friends Provident Investment Holdings plc loan notes due 2006 LIBOR -0 50 - 6
£230m F&C Commercial Property Trust secured bonds due 2017 (v} 523 229 229
£€35m Lombard financial reinsurance treaty LIBOR +2 00 24 22
£18m Friends Provident plc loan notes due 2011 {note 4i{a)} LIBOR -0 75 18 -
Convertible bonds
£290m Friends Provident ple convertible bonds due 2007 (v 525 283 276
Other
Amounts owed to credit nstitutions loverdraft faciives) 10 7
Total interest-bearing loans and borrowings 1,130 1155
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32. Interest-bearing loans and borrowings contnued ,
Unless othersise stated below the fair values of nterestbeanng loans and borrowings are the same as the carnying values

(1 tssued on 18 November 1986 and guaranteed biy Friends Provident Life Qffice (FPLO) Redemption is at the optign of FP Finance PLC and
thus was exercised on 27 November 2006 The bonds were guaranteed on a subordinated basis by FPLO after the claims of its semor
creditors, including al! policyholder habdives Qn 9 July 2001 under the Demutualisation Scheme, FPLP replaced FPLO as the guarantor
The farr value of the bonds at 31 December 2005 was £223m

(n) Subordinated loan notes issued in Decernber 2006 and stated net of 1ssue costs of £2m The Ican notes are redeemakle in 2026
For the penod 20 Decernber 2006 to 19 December 2016, interest accrues at a rate of 6 75% per annum, payable annuzlly \n arrears
For the penod 20 December 2016 to 20 December 2026 interest accrues at a rate of 2 69% above 3m LIBOR per annum, payable
quarterly in arrears

{(m) On 16 December 2004 FPLP raised £380m of core regulatory caprtal in the form of floating rate secured notes through a securtisation of
the cash flows expected to emerge from a book of hfe insurance policies The total cost of funds is approximately 5 5% per annum The
repayment of principal on the notes started on the 15 Apnl 2006 and every year thereafter dependent on the surplus emerging frem the
book of Iife insurance policies For the purpose of secunbisatien, two special purpose vehicies were estabiished, namely Bax Hil Life
Finance plc and Box Hill Loan Finance Limited Both campanies have been treated as Group companies for the purposes of the
consalidated accounts Qn 16 December 2004 Box Hilt Life Finance pic 1ssued the two classes of figating rate secured notes The notes
benefit from a financial guarantee provided by Ambac Assurance UK Interest 1s payable quarterly in arrears on 15 January Aprl July and
October each year

In 2006 £82m of the notes were repaid Of the remaming £198m notes outstanding £144m 15 expected to be repad in Apnl 2007
(vl lssued in Febryary 2005 The carrying value is stated net of issue costs of £1m

(v} Issued on 11 December 2002 Convertible at the option of the holder of ordinary shares at any time ¢n or after 21 January 2003 and up to
5 December 2007 The number of ordinary shares to be issued on conversion will be determined by dividing the pnncipal armount of the
refevant bonds by the conversion price in effect on the relevant conversion date The canversion price 1s £1 71 per ordinary share Unless
previously purchased and cancelled, redeemed or converted, the bonds will be redeemed on 11 December 2007 at therr principal amount
The Company may, at its cption, redeern all (but not some) of the bonds outstanding at any time on or after 27 December 2005 and up to
the final matunty date of 11 Decermnber 2007 if certain conditions are met Interest 1s payable in equal instalments semrannually in arrears
on 11 June and December each year

The convertible bonds are separated mto a hability component, measured at amartised cost and an embedded dervative being the option
to convert to equity A deed poll election effective May 2005, eliminated the Group's ability to settle conversion consideration n cash
The embedded dervative 15 classified as eguity and held at its farr value at May 2005 The liabilty component 1s carnied at £283m (2005
£276m) The embedded denvative I1s valued at £51m and included in note 38

Totat interest-beanng loans and borrowings are repayabie as follows

2006 2005

£m £m

Within one year or an dernand an 238

Between one and two years - 276

Between two and three years . -

Between three and four years - -
Between four and five years 24 22 ,

0 more than five years 795 619

Total interest-beaning loans and borrowangs 1,130 11565

Total interest expenses for financial habilities not measured at far value through the income statement which anses solely from interest-
beartng lcans and borrowings 1s £88m {2005 E89m)
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33 Net asset value attributable to unit holders

The movements in the value of third-party interests in open-ended investment companies and unit trusts that are consohdated by the
Group are as follows

2006 2005

£m £m

At 1 Ja nuary 751 576
Share of total return in the period 131 136

Share ot distributions in period 17} {13
Amount fecerved on issue of shares 297 289

Amount pad on cancellation of shares (429} (192}
Acquired upon funds coming into scope (I} 208 -

Disposerd upon funds going out of scope (1) - {45}
At 31 December 941 7581

() Thord-party interests n F&C managed funds which were either consohdated by the Group for the first bme at 31 Decernber 2006 or
deconso hdated in 2008, as the Group holding was above 50% or below 50% respectively

34 Provisions

Raview of Future
Pension mortgage consideration
schemaes endowment for Lombard
(note 10) sales inote 41(a)) Other Total
£m £m £m £m £m
At 1 January 2006 107 49 148 62 364
Charged in the year 28 12 3 43
Released in the year - - {12) - {12)
Utihsed 1n the year (58} (41} {59) {22} {180}
At 31 December 2006 77 20 75 43 215
Current - 14 75 18 107
Non-current 77 6 - 25 108
77 20 75 43 215
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{a} Review of mortgage endowment sales

Prowision has been established for the estimated likely cost of redress including administrative costs ansing from the review of the suitability
of rmorigage endoewment policies In addition to the accounting provision of £20m (2005 £49m)} an actuanal reserve of £17m (2005 £60m)
was held in insurance contracts habiities of FPLP's With-Profits Fund in respect of estimated further complainis

Therre 1s cansiderable uncertainty involved in the calculation of this provision wihich has been calculated on a best estimate basis taking into
account Group and industry expenence The majority of the mortgage endowment redress provision 15 expected to be setiled in the next
12 months

(b} Other

Other provisiens consist of £14m (2005 £18m) in respect of vacant properties, £9m (2005 £9m} in respect of potential claims on share
entitlements not claimed following demutualisation, £3m {2005 £13m) in respect of the estimated likely cost of redress ansing from a
review of other sales, and other £17m (2006 £22m} In addition to the accounting prowvision in respect of other sales an actuanal reserve of
£23m (2005 £20m)1s held within insurance contract habiities

35. Insurance payables, other payables and deferred income

2006 2005

£fm £m

Credrtors ansing cut of direct insurance operations 161 100
Creditors ansing out of reinsurance operations 18 29
Accruals and deferred income 99 87
Investments purchased for subsequent settlement 78 71
Deferred front end fees 66 101
Employee benehts 33 30
Other payables 127 79
Total msurance payables, other payables and deferred income 582 497

Al insurance payables and other payables are repayable within a penod of one year except for deferred front end fees which are anatysed
current £24m (2005 £13m} and non-current £42m (2005 £88m) The estinated far values of insurance payakbles and other payables are
equal to the amounts held on the balance sheet at each reporting date
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36 Movement in capital and reserves

Equsty attnbutable to equity holders of the parent

Share Share Other Minority
captal premium raserves STICS Total interest Tatal
£m £m £m £m £m fm £m
At 1 January 2006 214 2,038 436 810 3,498 442 3,940
Total recognised income
and expense for the year - 258 52 310 92 402
Dmidends on equity shares - - {164) - (164) {48) (210)
interest pad on STICS - 52) (52} - (52)
Appropriations of profit - - {164) (52) (2186) {46) 262)
Share based payments - 13 12 - 25 : 7 32
Change m participation
in subsidiary - - . - 53 53
At 31 December 2006 214 2,051 542 810 3,617 548 4,165
Equity attnbutable to equity holders of the parent
Share Share Other Minornty
capnal premium reserves STICS Total interest Total
£m £m £m fm £m £m £m
At 1 January 2005 199 1799 421 299 2,718 80 2798
Total recognised income
and expense for the year - 107 37 144 17 i61
Dmdends on equity shares - (157) {157} {29] (186)
Lnterest pad an STICS - - 2n (21) 21
Appropriations of profit - 11587y 21 {178) {29) {207)
issue of STICS - - 495 495 - 485
Share based payments - 5 14 - 19 12 3
Misposal of subsidiary - - 54 54
Change in participation
in subsidiary - - - - 42 42
Allotment on acguisition of
Lombard 15 234 - 249 249
Conversion option - - 51 51 - 51
Property transfer into trust - - 266 266
At 31 December 2005 214 2038 436 810 3498 442 3940

Details of the authonsed and 1ssued share capital of the Company are set out n note 37 the analysis of other reserves 1s set out n note
38, details of STICS are set out In note 39 and details of the property transfer mto trust are set out It note 41(b)
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37. Share caprtal and share premium

{a) Allotted, called up and fully paid share caprtal of the Company

2006 2005
£m £m
Authonsed
2 500m (2005 2,500m) ordinary shares of 10 pence 250 250
Allotted, called up and fully paid
2 139m {2005 2,139m) ordinary shares of 10 pence 214 214

The holders of ordinary shares are entitted to receive tividends as dectared from tme to tme and are entitled to one vote per share at
meetings of the Company In respect of the Company's shares that are held by the Group (Treasury shares} 2ll nghts are suspended untif
those shares are reissued Treasury shares are available for use 1o settle habiiies in respect of share options for employee share schemes
at which paint they are redesignated as ordinary shares

{b) Changes to share capital and share premium during the year

Treasury Crdinary Share Share

shares shares Total capital premium

number {1} number number Em £m

At 1 January 2005 45 617,972 1943 277,696 1,988,895 668 189 1,799
Allotment on acqusition of Lombard {u) - 150 249,291 150,249,291 15 234
Employee share schemes {5,508 717) 5,608 717 - - 5
At 31 Decamber 2005 40 108,255 2,092 036,704 2 139,144 959 214 2038
Employee share schemes {17 478172} 17,478 172 - - 13
At 31 December 2006 22,630,083 2,116,514,876 2,139,144,959 214 2,051

it Following demutuahsation in 2001 share and cash entitlements that were not clamed were placed into two trusts On & July 2004 the
trusts were wound up and 61 4m shares and £25m cash were transferred to the Company for nil consideration in exchange for it
accepung hathty for any future cleerns in respect of demutualisatien entittements twhich must be made by 9 July 2013 and a
commitment to endow the Fnends Provident Foundation, a registered chanty with cash or shares to a value of £20m

The Company has set up a provision ot £Y0m based on & best estimate, In respect of possible future claims trom policyhelders iwhich
will only be paid out In cashl To satisfy the commutment to the chartable trust, 14 Sm shares with a far value of £20m [£1 35 a share)
were transferred in 2004 to the Friends Prowident Foundation for mil cansideration The combined effect of these iransactions resulted i
an increase 1 the share premium of £15m

The remaining 46 5m shares were designated as Treasury shares These shares do not carry any voung fights or entitlement to dividends
and are avarlable for use 10 settle habihties in respect of share options for employee share schemes at which point they are redesignated
as ordinary shares

) The allstment of 150 2m shares represents consideration in respect of the acquisition of Lombard This was allotted in three stages, the
first being 113 5m shares on 11 January 2005 at £1 65 resulting in a share premium of £175 3m The second was 0 4m shares on 6 Aprif
2006 at £1 73 resulting in a share prermiym of £0 6m and the third was 36 2m shares on 15 Apri 2005 a1 £1 71 resuliing In & share
premium of £68 4m Further detarls are set cut in note 41

tn} Since the end of the year 230,808 Treasury shares have been redesignated as ordinary shares 1o sausfy habilines in respect of vanous

employee share schemes Since the end of the year 584 shares have been issued to satsty habihties in respect of converuble bonds
As at 19 March 2007, the Company had 2 116 746,268 ordinary shares in 1ssue and 22 399 275 Treasury shares

(c) Options

Outstanding options under the Group’s option schemes at 31 December 2006 are set out in note 11
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38. Other reserves

Foreign
currency
Retamned Convertible translation
earnings bonds reserve Total
£m £m £m £m
At 1 January 2006 390 51 (5) 436
Prota for the year 216 276
Actuanal losses on defined benefit schemes (8) - {B)
Foreign exchange adjustments - (10 {10)
Omndends (164} - (164}
Share based payments 12 12
At 31 December 2006 506 51 {15) 542
Foreign
currency
Retained Canvertible translation
earnings bonds reserve Total
£m £m fm £m
At 1 January 2005 419 2 421
Profit for the year 132 - - 132
Actuanal losses on defined benefit schemes {18} - (18)
Foreign exchange adjustments - (7) {7)
Dvidends {157) - (157}
Share hased paymenis 14 - 14
Conversion aption 81 - 51
At 31 December 2005 380 51 (5) 438
39. Step-up Tier one Insurance Capital Securities
2003 STICS 2005 STICS Toa)
£m £fm £m
At 1 January 2005 299 - 299
Issue of 2005 STICS - 495 495
Interest payable in the year 21 16 37
Interest paid in the year (21} - (21}
At 31 December 2005 298 511 810
Interest payable in the year 21 3 82
Interest paid in the year {21) 31) (52)
At 31 December 2006 299 511 810

The Company has issued two STICS These are identified as the 2003 STICS and the 2005 STICS Under IFRS it1s necessary to treat STICS
as equity as there 1S no requirement to settle the abligation in cash or another financial asset Interest end dvidends on instruments classified
as equity are not treated as expenses but as an appropnation of profit The Group considers that the commercial intent of the Instruments 15
debt accordingly the interest is included in the undertying profit calculaton of the Group
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39. Step-up Tier one Insurance Capital Securities continved

2003 STICS

On 2% November 2003, the Company issued £300m of STICS which bear interest from November 2003 to November 2019 at a rate of
6875% The STICS have no maturnity date but will be redeemable at the option of the Company on 21 November 2019 thereafter on the
coupen payment date faling on or nearest successive fifth anniversanes of this date The STICS are perpetual securities and are not
redeemable at the option of the holders at any trme The STICS are wrevocably guaranteed on a subordinated basis by FPLP The guarantee 1s
intended ta prowide holders with nghts against FPLP in respect of the guaranteed payments which are as near as possible equivalent to those
which they would have had if the STICS had been directly 1ssued preference shares of FPLP For each ¢coupon penod after 20 November

201 9, the STICS will bear interest that 1s reset every five years The STICS are carmed at £289m being £300m principal less capitalised 1ssue
costs of £3m plus interest due of £2m rot yet paid to STICS holders Interest 1s payable 1n equal iInstalments in arrears on 21 May and

21 Navember of each vear

2005 STICS

Qn 27 June 2005, the Company 1ssued £500m of STICS, which bear interest from 30 June 2005 to 30 June 2015 at a rate of 6 292% The
STICS have no matunty date but will be redeemable in whole or part at the optan of the Company on 1 July 2015, thereafter on every fifth
anniversary of this date The STICS are perpetual securities and are not redeernable at the option of the holders at any tme The STICS are
guarantead on a limited and subordinated basis by FPLP For each coupon pened atter 1 July 2015, the STICS will bear interest that 1s reset
avary five years The STICS are carried at £511m, paing £500m principal lass capitalised 1ssue costs of £6m, plus nterest due of £16m not
yet pad to STICS holders Interest 15 payable in arrears on 30 June of each year

40 Contingent liabilities and commitments

{a) Past sales

The Group has made prowision for the estimated cost of settling cornplaints in respect of past sales Although the provisions are regularly
reviewed the final outcome couldf be different from the provisions established as these costs cannot be calculated with certanty and are
influenced by external factors beyond the control of management Such uncertainties include future regulatory actions, media attention and
investment performance The majonty of the uncertanty relates to endowment mortgages although a number of other products are being
reviewved as an ongoing process bt is expected that the majonty of endowment cases requinng compensation will be settled in the next two years

{b} VAT on investment trust management fees

In a current European Court case, a UK investment trust 1s seeking to establish that management senices to UK investment trusts should be
a VAT exempt supply, rather than a taxable supply in accordance with current UK VAT law ¥ this case were successtul, a number of group
companies, In common with other relevant fund managers In the UK would face claims from those investment trusts to which they have
supplied services for repayment of the VAT they have charged to them The Associaten of Investment Compames {AIC) a party to the above
Imigation has incicated that it beheves claims dating back as far as 1980 may be lodged with fund managers by investment trusts Companies
in the F&C group can submit repayment clams to HM Revenue & Customs but only dating back as far as 2001 being the maxsmum time
period permitted F&C has begun to receive protective claims from a number of its investment trust chents and has lodged protective claims
with MM Revenue & Customs The Advocate General 1ssued an opinion on the case, on 1 March 2007, which 1s in favaur of investment
trusts However, until the decision of the European Court of Justice and the subsequent UK VAT tribunal decision are known, the directors of
F&C are not able t0 judge the Iikelthood that the investment trusts and the AIC will be successful, nor are they able to quantify the clams that
may be receved or the extent to which such claims could be mitigated and therefore, are not able to guanufy the potential iabiity
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40 Contingent habilities and commitments ccntinued

{e) F&C acquisition

In Decerber 2000 when Eureko BV acquired F&C Group {Heldings) Limited approximately 73% of the issued ordinary shares of F&C Group
Management Limited, a subsidiary company were held in the form of two bearer share warrants which could not be located prior to the
completion of the sale Eureko BV was indemnihied by F&C Group {Holdings) Limited against any losses suffered as a resuit of the loss of the
old share warrants or the 1ssue of replacement share warrants Since a hearer share warrant 1ssued by a company entitles the bearer to the
shares specified in the share warrant, there 1s a nsk that the third-party halding the old share warrants may clam that it 1s entitled to the
specified shares in F&C Group Management Limited If a third party were successful in establishing a claim in relation to the old share
warrants, F&C Group {Holdings) Limited could be Tiable to indemnify F&C Group Management Limited under the onginal indemnity
arrangerments, which could have a matenal adverse effect on F&C's business results of operations and/or financial condition

Although there 1s a possibility that a third party may seek to establish that it 1s entitled to the shares specified in the old share warrants the
drrectors of F&C have been informed that Eureko BV has been advised that the prospect of a third party succeeding in such a claim 1s

remote Under the terms of the 2004 merger between ISIS and F&C Eureko Holdings has given a specific indemnity (guaranteed by Eureko
BV} to F&C in respect of losses ansing in relation to the lost share warrants to bearer in F&C Group Management Lirmited (including 1n respect
of the mdemmmty granted oy F&C Group {Holdings) Limited 10 F&C Group Management Lirnted), which 1s capped at approximately £432m

(d] Operrating leases where the Group 1s lessee

The Group leases a number of properties under operating leases These leases typically run for a pencd of 50 years wath an option of
renewal at the end of the lease Lease terms include annual escalation clauses 1o reflect current market conditions

The future minrmum rentals payable under nan-cancellable leases are as follows

2006 2005

Land and Land and
buildings Other Total buildings Other Total
£m £m £m £m £m fm
Within one year 13 4 17 3 4 7
Between one and five years 49 7 56 14 2 16
in more than five years 75 - 75 148 - 148
Total operating lease payables 137 1 148 165 4] 171

(&) Sub-lease receivables

Future murimum rentals recelvable under noncanceliable operating leases at the year-end are as follows

Prarmises
2006 2005
£m fm
After one year but not more than five years 5
More than five years 1
Total sub-lease recevahles 6
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41. Business combinations

(a) Lombard acquisition

On 11 January 2005 the Group acquired 100% of the voting rights of Lombard, a non-histed wealth management group of companies
ingorperated in Luxembourg The following table summanses the transaction

£m
Fair value of net assets acquied 25%
Goodwill anising on acquisition 139
Total 394
Discharged by
Issue of 150 2m ordinary shares in the company 250
issue of Friends Provident ple loan nates due 2011 18
Cash 41
Future consideration 75
Acguisition costs 10
Total consideration 394

Total consideration and goodwill ansing on acguisiion have been revised in 2006 10 reflect the revised esumate of the final amount of future
consideration payable

The £250m far value of shares 1ssued was based on the market price on the date of exchange 150 249,281 ordinary shares of Friends
Prowident plc were 1ssued for the acquisition n three individual allotments (1st allotment 113,477 763 shares at £1 645 per share 2nd
allotrment 389 414 shares at £1 733 per share and 3rd allotment 36,382 114 shares at £1 705 per share}

Future considerat:on represents the earn-out payment to be made which 1s vanable on Lombard's 2006 performance Earn-out payments in
respect of 2004 and 2005 performance have already been settled in shares, cash and loans The 2006 payment 1s dependent gn Lombard
achieving certain performance thresholds for both new business protits and underfying embedded vafue The earn-out payment 1s payable n
shares or cash, at the Group's optien The payment in respect of 2004 was capped at €30m {£62m) and the payment In respect of 2005 was
capped at €85m (£59m] with any excess combined with the final potential payment in respect of 2006

The goodwill of £139m 1s attrbutable to the quality, expenence and knowledge of Lombard management and stai, which 1s expected to
genarate sigaificant new business value  the foreseeable future Such expenence and knowledge mandests dself in existing business
relationships (and the abnlity to mantan and further develop these) and processes that are not captured i separately identifiable intangible
assets The diversification of Lombard s business and the flexible business medel and refatively unique competitive position also adds
significant value

The estimated 2006 earn-out payment is €111m (£75m) and this amount 1s ncluded in provisions on the balance sheet This payment I1s
lower than previously esumated resulting i a £12m release of the prowsion held at 31 December 2005 winch has been offset agamst
goodwill This has no impact on the far value of the net assets acquired The final determination of the earn-out payment will take place in
Apnl 2007

{b} F&C Commercial Property Trust pic

In January 2006, F&C Commercral Property Trust ple (CPT) was incorporated as an invesiment trust and subsequently isted A fund raising
exercise was completed in the first half of 2005 which raised appreximately £965m (£943m net of cosis compnsing £714m from the 1ssue of
shares and £229m from the 1ssue of bonds)

FPLP With-Profits Fund transferred 1ts direct property investments and property unit trusts to CPT at @ market value of £925m This was
discharged by way of 465m ordinary shares with a norrunal value of £0 90 issued at £1 each In addmon CPT discharged £315m of liabhities
held in FPLP and made a cash payment of £145m

The above iransaction was completed in the first half of 2005 and at 30 June 2005 vanious hfe funds of the Friends Prowident Group owned
63% of the share capitaf of CPT The Group has subsequently reduced 1ts expasure to CPT through the sale of shares to third parties and the
holding at 31 December 2006 was 63% (2005 58%}
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42 Discontinued operations

There wvere no discantinued operations duneg 2006 On 30 June 2005 the Group disposed of its cantroling interest in the private equity
operattons of ISIS Equity Partners plc 8 venture capital organisation which controlled a number of underlying unquaoted companies primarly
through investments by FPLP s With-Profits Fund, to ISIS EP LLP

The net assets of the private equity operation at 30 June 2005 were £0 2m and the consideration received was & neminal amount of cash
plus 19 99% of the voting A class ordinary capital in ISIS EP LLP in addition, the Group subscribed £2 6m for aon-voting, nen-participating B
class capital 1515 EP LLP 1s considered te be an associate as the Group has the ability te exert s;gnificant influence and affect policy and
decisiort making through the appointment of one out of the six members of the management bpard

The profit before tax in 2005 of the discontinued operation, up to the paint of disposal was £11m (£8m after tax) The net cash outflow
attributable to the discontinued operation was £3m
43 Directors’ shareholdings

The interest ot directors, their spouses and children under the age of 18 m the shares of Friends Provident plc and 1ts subsichary F&C Asset
Manage rment plc are shown below

Friends Prowvident pic F&C Asset Management plc
Ordtnary shares of 10 pence Ordinary shares of 0 1 pence
Movement in Movement n
shareholdings shareholdings
after 31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec  after 31 Dec 31 Dec 31 Dec
20086 (u) 2006 2005 (u) 2006 (n) 2006 2005 ()

Executive
Alain Grigay - - - - 326,153 726 287
Ben Gunn 175 105,546 38773 - - -
Phuip Moore - 53,063 1332 - 2,163 2183
Keith Satchell 114 (1) 207,814 63,528 - 14,326 14 326
{retired on 31 January 2007)
Jim Smart . - - . - -
{appointed 1 January 2007)
Non-axacutive
Ahson Carnwath - 10,000 10 000 - 8,651 8,651
Christopher Jernmett - 2,655 2655 - 24,881 24 476
Lady Judge . 17,865 17,865 - - -
Ray King - 10,000 10 000 - - -
Lord MacGregor - 13,849 13,849 - - -
Sir Adnan Montague - 6,018 5781 - - -
Sir Mervyn Pedelty . - - . - -

) Including shares acquired in February 2007 through the Group s share incentive plan in respect of January 2007 contnbutions

i} Changes to directors’ interests dunng the period 1 January 2007 to 19 March 2007 include shares acquired through the Group's share
incentive plans and options exercised under ESOS 2003 and LTIP 2003

{n) Or date of appointment f later
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44 . Related parties

In the ordinary course of business, the Group and its subsidiary undertakings carry out transactions with related parties, as defined by 1AS 24
Retated party disclosures Matenal transactions far the year are set out below

The pnncipal subsidrary undertakings of the Group and 1ts interest in associates and joint venture are shown in notes 1% and 20 respectively

{a) Key management personnel compensation

Key management persennel consists of the Group's directors the Managing Cirectors and Chief Executves of the Group's business units
the Group s principal actuary and other key executive board directers of the Group s listed subsidiary, F&C Asset Management ple

In aggregate the compensation paid to key management 15 as set out below

. 2006 2005

Number £m £m

Short-term employee benefits 19 65 71

Post-employment benefits {excluding defined benefit scheme) 3 20 01

Termunation benefits - - 20

Share based payments 14 17 38
Total key management personnel compensation

charged to the income statement 102 130

Post employment benefits — defined benefit schemes 8 33 31

Total key management personnel compensation 135 161

Post-employment benefiis — defined benefit schermes’ comprises the change in value of key management personnel accrued pension
benefits from the beginning of the relevant financial year to the end of that year This 1s consistent with the amounts disclosed as ‘increase In
transfer value dunng the year in the tahble on page 66 of the Remuneration Report of the Board Details of pension schemes and share
schemrnes operated by the Group, and in which key management persannel partrcipate are given in notes 10 and 11

There were no balances outstanding at the year-end with key management (2005 Enil)

2006 2005
Number £fm £m
Payments during the vear by key management in respect of
polcies issued or managed by the Group 12 01 02
Payments during the year to key management in respect of
policies 1ssued ar managed by the Group 1 o9 -
The sum assured or fund balance of those pelicies at 31 December 12 27 2g

All these transactions were completed on terms that were no better than those available to staft
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Notes to the consolidated accounts cnued

44 Related parties continued

{b} Other related parties

Detaits of the Group's investments In assoctates and jaint venture are given in note 20 to the accounts Details of the Group’s pension
schemes, whose assets are managed by F&C, are prowvided in note 10

Transactions made between the Group and related parties were made in the normal course of business Loans fram related parues are made
on normal arm s length commercial terms

Services provided to related parties

2006 2005
Income earned Receivable Income earned Receivable
In year at year end in year at year end
£m £fm £m £m
Associates 3 3 i 1
Employee pension schemes 1 - 1 .
Other related parties 34 g az
Total a8 12 44 8
Servicas provided by related parties
2006 2005
Incoma earned Recemvable Income earned Recelvable
in year at year end In year at year end
£m £m fm £m
Joint venture 23 - 11 -
Other related parties 13 - 13 -
Total 36 - 24 -

Other related partes nclude Eureko BY who hold in excess of 19% of the ordinary share capnal of F&C and 15 entitled 10 FAC board
representation The £9m unsecured subordinated loan by Eureko BV to F&C was repard on 20 December 2006

The Group has subscrnbed £2 §m for non-voting, nonparticpating B Class ordinary caprtal in ISIS EP LLP, an associated undertaking
This is treated as a loan
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ASBREVIATIONS AND DEFINITIONS

Statement of directors’ responsibilities in relation
to the European Embedded Value basis
supplementary information

The directors of Fnends Provident plc have chosen to prepare
supplementary information i accordance with the European
Embedded Vatue Pnnciples 1ssued in May 2004 by the CFO Forum
{the EEV Principles}, as supplemented by the Addiional Guidance on
European Embedded Value Disclosures issued in Cetober 2005
When compliance with the EEV Principles 1s stated those principles
require the directors to prepare supplementary information in
accordance with the Embedded Value Methodology {EVM) contained
in the EEV Principtes and to disclose and explain any non-compliance
with the EEV Guidance included in the EEV Principles

In preparing the EEV supplementary information, the directors have

» prepared the supplementary information in accordance with the
EEV Principles,

« dentfied and descnbed the business covered by the EVM,

» applied the EVM consistently to the covered business

s determined assumpuons on a realistic basis, having regard to past
current and expected future expenence and to any relevant
external data, and then applied thern consistently,

+ made estimates that are reasonable and consistent

+ described the bas:s en which business that 1s not covered
business has been ncluded in the supplementary information,
including any material departures from the accounting framework
applicable to the Group financial statements

independent Auditor’s report to Friends Provident
plc on the European Embedded Value basis
supplementary information

Independent Audrtor’s report

We have audited the EEV basts supplementary information (the
supplermentary information) of Friends Prowident plc on pages
166 to 184 0 respect of the year ended 371 December 2006 The
supplementary information has been prepared 10 accordance with
the European Embedded Value Principles 1ssued in May 2004 by
the CFO Forum as supplemented by the Addmicnal Guidance on
Eurcpean Embedded Value Disclosures issued in October 2005
{together the EEV Principles) using the methodology and
assumptions set out on pages 169 to 171 The supplementary
information should be read in conjunction with the Group financiat
staterments which are on pages 70 10 164

This report 18 made solely to the Company in accordance with the
terms of our engagement Our audit work has been undertaken so
that we might state to the Campany those matters we have been
engaged to state in this repert and for no other purpose To the
iullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept o assume
respensibility to anyone other than the Company for our audit work
for this repent or far the opinions we have formed

Respective rasponsibilities of directors and auditor

As described In the statement of directors respensibiities on page
56, the directors’ responsibilities :nclude preparing the
supplementary infarmation on the EEV basis in accordance with the
EEV Prnoiples Our responsiiliies as independent auditor, n
relation to the supplementary information are estabhished 1n the
United Kingdom by the Auditing Practices Board by our profession s
ethical guidance and the terms of our engagement

Under the terms of engagement we are required to report to the
Company our opinton as to whether the supplementary information
has been property prepared w accordance with the EEV Ponciples
using the methodology and assumptions set out on pages 169 to
171 We also report if we have not receved all the information and
explanations we require for this audit

Bagis of audt opmnion

We conducted our audit having regard to International Standards on
Audiing (UK and irefand) issued by the Auditing Practices Board An
audit includes exammation, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to
the amounts and disclosures in the supplementary information

It also includes an assessment of the significant estimates and
judgements made by the directors in the preparation of the
supplementary information, and of whether the accounting policies
apphed In the preparation of the supplermentary information are
appropriate to the Group's circumstances, consistently applied and
adequately disclosed

We planned and performed our audit so as 1o obtain all the
information and explanations which we considered necessary in
arder to provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable
assurance that the supplementary informatian 1s free frrom matenal
misstatement, whether caused by fraud or ather irregulanty or errar
In forming our opinon we also evaluated the overall adequacy of
the presentation of the supplementary information

Optrion

In our opinion the EEV hasts sugplementary information for the year
ended 31 December 2006 has been progerly prepared in accordance
with the EEV Principles using the methodology and assumptions set
out on pages 169 to 171

e o e

KPMG Audit Pl¢
Chartered Accountants
London

19 March 2007
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Surmmary consolidated income statement on an EEV basis
For the year ended 31 December 2008

2006 2005
Nates £m fm
Life & Pensions
Contribution frorn new business 20y 3ial 204 144
Profit from existing business
Expected raturn 207 186
Expenence vanances 7 22
Operating assumption changes L)) 6
Development costs 286) {25)
Expected return on shareholders net assers within the Life & Pensions business 51 a1
Life & Pensions underlying profit 2ia) 434 434
Asset Management underlying profit 89 108
Expected return on net pension lrability 9 {2)
Expected return on corporate net assets {10 {7
Corporate costs {13) {12)
Operating assumpton changes for corporate costs - 3
Underlying profit before tax 509 524
Investment return varances 1174} 550
Etfect of economic assumption changes 181 (238)
Non-recurring inems ) {17) {59}
Amortisation of Asset Management acquired intangible assets (43) (56)
Impairment of Asset Management acquired intangible assets {58} (112)
Vanation 1n value of optron on convertible debt - {9)
Profit before tax 398 8§00
Tax {101) {196}
Profit atter tax 297 404
Attributable to
Ordinary shareholders of the parent 308 441
Minority interest {11) (37}
Profit after tax 297 404
2006 2005
Earnings per share Notes pence pence
Basic earnings per share 5 146 2112
Mluted basic earnings per share 5 142 210
Undestying earnings per share 5 164 163

EEV underlying profit 1s a measure of profit which excludes protit generated wathin palicyholder funds that i1s not allocated to sharehalders
Marnagement consider that underlying profit better reflects the performance of the Group and focus on this measure of profitin 1ts internal
monitoning of the Group's EEV results

EEV underlying profit 1s based on expecied investment return and excludes {1 amortisation and imparrment of Asset Management

acquired intangible assets {u} effect of economic assumption changes () non-recurning rtems, and 1s stated after deducting interest
payable on STICS
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Consolidated statement of recognised income and expense on an EEV basis
For the year ended 31 Decermber 2006

2006 2005

£m £m

Actuanal losses on defined benefit plans net of tax (8] (28)

Foretgn exchange adjustments (2} {9}
Net loss recognised directly in equity {10} {(37)
Profit after tax 297 404
Total recognised income and expense for the year 287 367

Arntnibutable o

Ordinary shareholders of the parent 300 M7
Minonty interest {13) {80)
Total recognised income and expense for the year 287 367

Consolidated movement in ordinary shareholders’ equity on an EEV basis
For the year ended 31 December 2006

2006 200%
fm £fm
Total recogrised income and expense for the year attributakle to ordinary shareholders of the parent 300 47
Dividends on equity shares (164) (157
Share based payments {impact on EEV reserves) 12 14
Earn-gut payments 87
Conversion option on convertible bond - 51
increase n EEV reserves for the yoar 61 325
Increase as a result of business combinations - 148
Share based payments {impact on share caprial and share premum) 13 5
Net addtion to ordinary shareholders’ equity 74 478
At 1 January 3,446 2,968
At 31 December 3,520 3,446
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Consolidated balance sheet on an EEV basis

At 31 December 2006

2006 2005
£m fm
Assets
Vajue of inforce Life & Pensions business 2,021 2019
Intangible assets 676 B8O7
Property and equprment 80 73
Investnment properties 2,426 1912
lavestment in associates and joint venture 15 14
Financial assets 45,150 42 091
Reinsurance assets 98 128
Current tax assets 30 25
Insurance and other recenvables 647 640
Cash and cash equivatents 3,581 2614
Total assets 54,734 50,323
Liabilities
Insurance contracts 13.762 14 637
Fund for future apprepriations 439 420
Financial habilities
- Investment contracis 32,451 27,539
- Interest bearng loans and borrowings 2.045 20989
Net asset value attnbutable to unit holders am 751
Provisions 187 265
Deferred tax habihties 166 125
Current tax habiities 116 177
fnsurance payables other payables and deferred income 559 422
Total iabiitties 50,666 46 435
Equrty attributable to
QOrdinary shareholders of the parent 3,520 3,446
Munonty interest 548 442
Total equity 4,068 3,888
Total aqurty and habilities 54,734 50323
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ABBREVIATIONS AND DEFINITIONS

Notes to the EEV results

1 Methodology

1 1 Baus of preparation

The EEV resuits presented in th:s document have been prepared n
accordance with the European Insurers’ Chief Financial Officers
Forum s EEV Principles issued in May 2004 and the Addwional
Gurdance 1ssued in 2005 They provide supplementary information
for the year ended 31 December 2006

The EEV basis of reporting Is designed to recognise profit as 1t 1s
earmead over the term of the policy The total profit recognised over
the hietime of the policy 1s the same as that recognised under the
IFRS basis of reporting but the tming of recognition 1s different

The reparted embedded value provides an estimate of the value of
sharehclders interest in the covered business excluding any value
that may be generated from future new business This value
compnses the sum of the shareholders net worth the provision for
future corporate costs and the value of existing business The
shareholders’ net worth 1s the net assets attnbutable to shareholders
and s represented by the sum of required capital and free sumlus
The walue cf exisung business s the present vaiue of the projected
strearn of future distnbutable profits avallable o shareholders from
the existing business at the valuation date on a best esumate basis
allowwing for nisk, adjusted for the cost of holthing required caprial

The supplementary information should be read in conjunction with the
Group s IFRS results These contan wformauon regarding the Group's
financial statements prepared in accordance with IFRS 1ssued by the

international Accounting Standards Board and adopted for use i the EU

The results for covered business as reported under EEV principles
are combined with the results for the remainder of the business
reported In accordance with IFRS, except where EEV pnnciples
dictate otherwise [n particular the EEV principles have been apphed
to reflect Step-up Tier one Insurance Capital Secunties {STICS) as
debst rather than equity

In addition, a pro forma embedded value s reported showing
ordinary sharehelders funds on an EEV basis adjusted to include the
F&C hsted subsidiary at market value

Shareholders’ net 2ssets on an EEV basis for the Group consist of

the foltowing

* Life & Pensions net assets,

» the Group s share of its mvestment in the Asset Management
business including the net pension hiabiity) on an IFRS basis

* corporate net assets

* the net pension liabihty of FPPS on an 1AS 19 basis but in 2005,
ncluding haldings mn non-transferable secunues 1ssued by the
Group (both net of deterred tax),

* the provision for future corperate costs

* the present value of future profits attributable to sharehelders from
existing policies of the Life & Pensions business

It 1s currently expected that the final consideration in respect of the
Lombard acquisition will be settled by way of shares and cash
Prowvisian has been made in 2006 for the estimated cash element of
the final earn-out payment

The sharehclders’ net worth includes the corporate debt of the Group
This debt is valued at market value, consistent with the EEV guidance

EEV and other balance sheet items denominated in foreign
currencies have been translated 10 sterling using the appropnate
closing exchange rate The new business contnbution and other
mcome statement items have been translated using an average
exchange rate for the relevant penod

1 2 Covered business

The covered business incorporates the Life & Pensions business
defined as long-term business by UK and overseas regulators

The Asset Management business is not included in the definition of
covered business

13 Allowance for nsk

The allowance for nisk in the shareholder cash flows s a key feature

of the EEV Prnciples The EEV guidance sets out three main areas

avallable 1o aiow for nsk in an embedded value

* the nsk driscount rate

* the allowance for the cost of financial options and guarantees,

+ the cost of holding both prudential reserves and any additional
required capital

The market-consistent approach has been used to allow for nsk i alt
three areas

1 4 Denving nsk discount rates

A market-consistent embedded value has been calculated for each
product line by valuing the cash flows in ine with the prices of
similar cash flows traded on the open market

In principle each cash flow 1s valued using the discount rate
consistent with that appled to such a cash flow in the capital
markets For example an equity cash flow 1s valued using an equity
nsk discount rate, and a bond cash {low 15 valued using a bond nisk
discount rate If a higher return i1s assumed for equities the equity
cash tlow 15 discounted at this higher rate

In practice for liabiities where the payouts are either independent or
move tinearly with market movements a method known as the
‘certainty equivalent approach’ has been applied whereby all
assumed asseis earn the sisk-free rate and all cash flows are
distounied using the nsk-free rate This gives the same result as
applying the method 10 the previous paragraph
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NOteS '[O the EEV reSU|tS continued

1 Methodology conunued

A rmarket-consistent cost of financial options and guaranitees and a
market-cansistent cost of helding requued capaal have alsa been
calculated The cost of financial options and guarantees ncludes
additionatl aftowance for non-market nsk within the With-Profits
Fund An additional provision has been made for operationat nsks
These are descnbed in mare detail below

Faor presentational purposes, a set of nsk discount rates has been
derived for each product kne, and tor in-force and new business hy
calculating the nsk discount rate under a iraditional embedded value
approach that gives the same value as that from the market-
cansistent embedded value determuned above These derwed nsk
discount rates are a function of the assumptions used {eg equity risk
premium, corporate bend spreads) However as the market-
consistent approach is used these assumptions do not impact the
level of embedded value a higher equity nisk prermium results in an
exactly compensating higher risk discount rate

15 Financial options and guarantees

The material financial options and guarantees are those i the
Fnends Provident Life and Pensions Limited (FPLP) With-Profits
Fund mn the form of the benefits guaranized to pohcyholders and
the guaranteed annurty rates associated with certain policies

The nsk to sharehelders is that the assets af the With-Profits Fund
are insufficient to meet these guarantees While shareholders are
entitled to only a small share of profits in the With-Profits Fund {wvta
one ninth of the cost of bonus) they can potentially be exposed to
the full cost if fund assets are insufficient to meet policyholder
guarantees The ume value cost of this asymmetry, known as the
burnthrough cost, 1s modelled siochastically as it will only oceur in
some adverse scenanos The burnthrough trme value cost s
calculated as the difference between the average value of
shareholder cash flows under a number of market-consistent
scenanos, and the intrngic shareholder value using nsk-free
assumptrons included within the deterministic model

The burnthrough cost has been assessed using a stochastic model
derrved from the current Realistic 8alance Sheet (RBS) model This
model has been calibrated to market conditions at the valuation
date Allowance has been made under the different scenarnos for
managernent actiens such as altered investment strategy,
consistent with the RBS model The burnthrough cost would be
markedly higher without the hedging activities undertaken

The burnthrough cost at 31 December 2006 of £50m (2005 £75m),
15 split between £30m (2005 £40m) market nsk and £20m {2005
£38m} non-rnarket nsk The non-market nisks include lapses,
annuitant longewity and operational risk wathzn the With-Profits Fund
The allowance for non-market risks s made by consideration of the
impa¢t of extrame scenanos from our economuc capital model
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Significant arnounts of new with-profits business are no langer
written and the guarantee levels offered are lower, hence there I1s no
matenalimpact of the bumthrough cest in the contribution to profits
of new business

1 6 Required capital and the cost of caprtal

Required capital I1s set at the greater of regulatory capital and
econcmic capital Regulatory minimum capital includes prudent
reserves as well as solvency margin  Econemic capital s determired
from internal models based on the Company's risk appetite

At a product level economuc caprtal requirements are higher than
regulatory capital requirements for with-profits and annurty business
and lower then regulatory capral requrements on unitdinked and
protection business In aggregate the economic capital
requirerments are tugher than regulatory requirements by
approximately £200m {2005 £100m)

Capntal requirements under EEV amounted to £652m (2005 £551m)

For new business regulatory capital requirements are higher than
economic capital requirements given the high proportion of unit-inked
and protection new business and the contribution ta profits from new
husiness (s therefore based on regulatory cepital requirernents

The EEV includes a deduction for the cost of holding the required
capital Frictional costs being the tangble costs of holding caprtal,
have been allowed for on a market-consistent basis These consist
of the total taxation and investment expenses incurred on locked-in
shareholder capital and reflect the cost to an investor of holding an
asset through investment in a life company rather than investing i
the asset directly

No adjustment has been made for any agency cost this
representing the potential markdown to value that investors will
apply because they do not have direct control over therr capital Any
adjustment would be subjective and different investors will have
ther own views of what adustment, if any, should be made

1 7 Non-market risk

An investor can diversify away the uncertainty around the return on
non-market nsks such as moriality and expenses Hence in a
shareholder valuation the allowance for nen-market nisk 1s made
through the appropriate choice of best estimate expenence
assumpuions and the impact of non-market nsks on the level and
hence the cost of capital

fn choasing best estimate assumptions the allowance for non-market
nsk has been reviewed However best estimate assumptions may
farl 10 represent the full impact on shareholder value where the
impact of fluctuations in expenence 1s asyrmmetric, that 15 whera
adverse expenence has a higher impact on shareholder value than
favourable experience The areas identfied as having such
asymmetries are the burnthrough cost and operational nsk
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Notes to the EEV results contnued

1 Methodology continued

The impact of vanations 1n nan-market nsks have been taken inte
account in the burnthrough cost calculation This allows for
asymmetnes ansing from the profit sharing mechanism

In addition a provision of £85m {2005 £87m} has been set up for
operatonal nsks in the shareholders’ funds This provision has been
calcuated by comparning the mean impact of varations in cperational
nsk, as modelled in the economic capital calculations with the
existing allowance for operatignal nsk in specific accounting
provisions and embedded value projection assumpticns

Thus prowision of £85m 15 equivalent 1o a 0 4% {2005 0 4%) increase
n the nisk discount rate for LUK Life & Pensions business and 0 8%
(2005 0 8% for Internaticnal Life & Pensions business recognising
the higher cperational nsks in international business This impacts
both the in-farce embedded value and the contribution from new
business

18 Expenses

The EEV guidance requires companies to actively review expense
assumptions and include an allowance for holding company
{corporate} costs and service company costs

(a) Corporate costs

Corporate costs relate to those costs incurred at the corporate level
that are not directly attriputable to the Life & Pensions or the Asset
Management businesses

Under EEV methodolegy, corporate costs are classified as either
ongoing costs or development and one-off costs For 2006, £6m
(2005 £6m) of corporate costs were regular ongoing corporate costs
and £7m {2005 £6m) were development or one-off costs The
ongoing costs have been capitalised under EEV The impact s a
provision of £47m (20056 £47mi)

() Service costs

Service company costs are included in the EEV expense assumption
calculations Included within these are the fees charged by F&C for
investment management services to the covered Life & Pensions
business

F&C service fee profits in respect of covered Lile & Pensions
business are not capitaised under the EEV methodology as F&C 1S
3 separate business segment within the Group and the arrangement
between F&C and the Life & Pensions business 1s on an arms
length basrs Instead these profits, approximately £11m (2005
£15m) are brought into the consehdated income statement on an
IFRS basts, and F&C 1s brought into the pro forma embedded value
at market valug

Producuvity gains have been assumed within the EEV in respect of
international business n anticipation of future business growth The
Lombard EEV has been reduced by £13m (2005 £8m) for a
prajected expense averryn for the penod 2007-2012

19 New business

New business within the covared business mcludes

* premiums from the sale of new contracts

* payments on recurfing single premium contracts, ncluding
Department for Work and Pensions rebate premiums except
existing stakeholder-style pensions business where If a regular
patierm In the receipt of prermums for individuals has been
established the regular payment 1s treated as a renewal of an
existing contract and not new business,

* non-contraciual increments on éxisting palicies, and

* new entrants in the group pensions business
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Notes 1o the EEV results conunued

2 Segmental analysis

{a) Life & Pensions EEV profit

Year ended 31 December 2006 2006 2005
UK Internationat Total UK  International Total
Notes £m £€m £m fm £m £m
Contribution from
new business 2(b) 3Ma) 108 96 204 64 80 144
Profit from existing business
Expected return 173 34 207 170 26 196
Expenence vanances {1) 9 i2) 7 20 2 22
QOperating assumption changes (i) 1 (10} {9) 19 i3 16
Development costs {26} {26) (25} - {25}
Expected return on
shareholders net assets within
the Life & Pensions business 50 1 51 80 i 81
Life & Pensions EEV
underlying profit before tax 315 119 434 328 106 434
Non-recurnng items 4 2 2 (10} 3) (13
Investment return variances e} {179) {n (186) 584 57 641
Effect of economic assumption changes 187 {7) 180 (223} {13) {236)
Life & Pensions EEV profit before tax 325 105 430 679 147 826
Attributed tax charge 3id} (103} (18] (121} {204) (28) {232}
Life & Pensions EEV profit after tax 222 87 309 475 119 594

it UK expenence vanances include the positive vanance ansing from lower burnthrough cost of £36m Against this there have been
adverse experence vanances on persistency of £12m and other adverse varniances amounting to a net £16m This includes adverse

varnances on non-recurring expenses and model changes with positive vanances ansing frorm operational risk and taxation

i} The UK operating assumption change includes the adverse wnpact of persistency assumption changes of £f41m offset by mortalty and
mortndity favourable varances of £27m and £15m from other changes including PS06/14

{b) New business margin

Year ended 31 Dacember 2006 2006 2005
UK International Total UK  International Total
Contnbution from new business £108m £96m £204m f64m £80m £144m
Present Value of New Business
Prermuiurms (PYNBP) £4,162m £2,912m £7,074m £2192m £2 205m £5397m
Margin — PVNBP 2 6% 33% 29% 20% 36% 27%

PVNBP equals new single premiums plus the expected present value of new regular premium business
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Notes to the EEV results contnued

2, Segmental analysis contnued

{c) Pro forma embedded value

At 31 December 2006 2006 2005

£m £m

Qrdinary shareholders equity on an EEV basis 3,520 3 446
Adjustment 16 the value of the listed Asset

Management business to market value 140 18

Pro forma embedded vatue 3,660 3464

Pro forma embedded value per share £173 £165

(d) Summary consolidated balance sheet on an EEV basis

At 31 December 2006 2006 2008
Segmental Intra-group Segmental Intra-group
analysis debtlin) Total analysis debt(in) Total
£m £m £fm fm £m £m
Life & Pensions - long-term funds 778 - 778 621 {180) 441
Life & Pensions - shareholders’ funds 419 795 1,214 429 770 1,199
Life & Pensions net assets 1,197 795 1,992 1060 580 1,640
Corporate net asseis {33) {795} (828} 14 (795) {781)
Shareholders’ invested net assets 1.164 - 1,164 1 064 {205} 859

Attributable net asset value of the

Asse? Management business

net of minonty interest 0}, () 394 - 394 423 205 628
Net pension kability of Friends

Prowvident Pension Scheme (22) - (22) {131 - 13
Shareholders’ net worth 1.536 - 1,536 1,474 - 1474
Prowvision for future corporate costs 47) 47)
Value of in-force Life & Pensions business 2,031 2,019

Ordinary shareholders’ net assets

on an EEV basis 3,520 3 446
Called-up share capital 214 214
Share prermium account 2,051 2,038
EEV reserves 1,255 1,194
Ordinary shareholders’ aguity

on an EEV basis 3,520 2446

() The attnbutable net asset value of the Asset Management busmess includes goodwwll of £333m at 31 Cecernber 2006 (2005 £333m) and
other intangible assets, net of related tax, of £105m (2005 £154m) Other intangible assets comprise Investment management contracis
£104m {2005 £153m} and software £1m {2005 £1m}

{1} The attnbutable net asset value of the Asset Management business includes the value of the net pension Jiability of that business on an

IAS 19 Employee benefits basis, and 1s net of related tax The net pension hability of Friends Prowident Pension Scheme (FPPS) 15 stated on
an IAS 18 basis but, in 2005, including holdings in non-transferable secunties 1ssued by the Group and 1s net of related deferred 1axation
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Notes to the EEV results contiaved

2 Segmental analysis contnued

() Intra—group long-term debt is analysed as follows

Debt Interest payable

2006 2005 2006 2005

£m fm £m fm

Due from F&C t¢ FPLP - 205 12 12

Due fram FPLP ta Frends Provident plc 795 795 48 30
{e) Life & Pensions net assets segmental information by business segment

2006 2005

UK Intermaticnal Total UK International Total

£m £m £m £m £m £m

Life & Pensicns net assetls 1147 50 1197 1,028 22 1080

Value of in-force Life & Pensions business 1.491 540 2,031 1,538 481 2019

2,638 590 3,228 2,566 503 3089
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Notes to the EEV results contmues

3 Life & Pensions EEV profit

(a) Contnbution from new business

The contnbution from new business 1s caleulated using economic assumptions at the beginning of the penod The contribution from new
business using end-of-period economic assumptions was £196m (2005 £143m) Denved nsk discount rates for new business have been
based on end-of-pengd econormuc assumptions

The contribution from new business s quoted after cost of required capital and share incentives The table below gives the contnbution
before cost of capital and share based payments

2006 2005

£m Em

Contabution from new business before cost of capital and share based payments 212 152
Cost of share based payments (2 2)
Cost of capital (6} 6
Contribution from new business 204 144

{b) Profit from existing business — Life & Pensions

Protit trom existing Lite & Pensions business comprises the expected return on the velue of in-force business at the start of the period plus
the irmpact of any changes i the assumptions regarding future operating experience changes in the reserving basis (other than economic
assumpton changes) and profits and losses caused by differences between the actual experience for the perod and the assumptions used to
calculate the embedded valueg at the end of the penod

The expected return on the value of in-farce business 13 the difference between the expected return on the assets backing the labilities and
the expected change in the market-consistent value of the labiities Effectively, this approach i1s similar to applying an unwind in the rnisk
dizcount rate 1o the value of the n-force business at the beginning of the year However the nek discount rate to be used s a rate
appropnate over the penod of return only, which 1s not necessarly equal to the overall in-force nsk discount rate averaged across all future
durations above

{c} Development costs — Life & Pensions

Development costs represent investments made to improve future EEV profits, for example by reducing expenses or increasing future new
business volumes In particular, the Life & Pensions costs represent investment in developing advanced electrenic trading systems,
e-commerce related activiies and new business service automnation and improvemertt

{d) Expected return on shareholders’ net assets

The expected return on shareholders’ net assets held within the Life & Pensions business compnses the re'tum an the shareholders net
assets held by the Iife assurance companies within that business using the investment return assumptions used to calculate the embedded
value at the beginning of the penod

The expected return on corporate net assets 1s the expected investment return on assets held by Fnends Provident plc and its non-life

subsidianies It excludes the expected return on the net pension hatility and the result of the F&C business which are shown separately in
the summary consoldated income statement
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Notes to the EEV results contnued

3 Life & Pensions EEV profit conunued

le) Inwvestment return variances

The split of the investment? return vanances in the Life & Pensions EEV profit 1s shown in the table below

2006 2005

£m £m

In respect of net assets at the start of year {16? B4
In respect of covered business (122) 373
Investnent return vanances after tax 1138) 457
Investrnent return varniances before tax {186) 641

The investment return vanances of £(16)m after tax relates to shareholder net assets The investment return vanances in respect of covered
husiness compnses £{110jm after tax, relating to assets backing actuarial habilities, and £{12)m after tax, relaung to the value of the in-force

business Together these vanances ameount to £1i38lm after tax and £1186)m befgre tax

(f) Attributed tax charge

EEV profits are calculated net of tax and then grossed up at the effective rate of shareholder tax Except for the expected return on
shareholders’ net assets, the full standard rate of UK comoration tax has been used ta gross up after tax profits on UK business and

appropnate tax rates have been used for the International business

2006 2005
£m £m
Contributron from new business 51 35
Profit from existing business 55 89
Development costs (8} 8
Expected return on shareholders’ net assets within the Life & Pensions business 16 24
Non-recurnng items 1 (3}
Investment return vanances {48) 184
Effect of economic assumption changes 54 169)
Attributed tax charge 121 232
4, Non-recurring items
20086 2005
£m £m
Life & Pensions integration costs - 6
Closure of Appomnted Representatives Sales Channel 2 -
Provision for past sales {4) 7
Life & Pensions non-recurmng items (2) 13
Asset Management integration cosis 7 24
Asset Management Reinvestment Plan costs 12 22
Asset Management non-recurning items 19 46
Total non-recurring tems 17 59

Explanations of the non-recurring rtems are set out in note 3 to the Group s IFRS financial statements
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5 Earnings per share

Basic and underlying sarnings per share 2006 2005
Earnings Per share Earnings Per share
£€m pence £m pence
Profit after tax attributable to ordinary shareholders of the parent 308 146 441 212
Investment return vanances 174 82 (550} {26 4)
Variation in value of optien on convertible debt - - 9 04
etfect of economuc assumption changes (181} 85) 238 114
Amortsation and imparrment of Asset Management
acquired intangible assets 101 47 168 B1
Non-recurnng tems 17 08 o5 2B
Tax charge on tems excluded from underlying profit (32} {15} 486 22
Minonty interest on items excluded from underlying profit 40} {19} (72} (34}
Undaerlying profit after tax attrnbutable to ordinary sharehoiders of
the parent 347 164 339 163
2006 2005
millions milisons
Weighted average number of ordinary shares 2111 2082
Diiuted basic earnings per share
2006 2005
Werghted Woaighted
average average
number of 2006 number of 2005
2006 ordinary Per 2005 ordinary Per
Earnings shares share Earnings shares share
£m millions pence £m milhons pence
Protit after tax attnbutable 1o ordinary
shareholders of the parent 308 2,111 146 441 2082 212
Dilution (1} 16 164 (0 4) - 15 02
Diluted profit after tax attributable to
ordmary shareholders of the parent 324 2,275 142 441 2097 210

{1 Detals of dilution are set out 1n note 15(c} to the Group’s IFRS financial staternents

Friends Provident Annual Report & Accounts 2006 177



FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS
IFRS FIINANCIAL STATEMENTS

EEV SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

Notes to the EEV results continued

6. Recconcthation of movement in pro forma embedded value

International  Total Life &
UK Lifo & Life & Pensions
Pensions Pensions EEV Other Total EEV
£m £m £m fm £m
Pro for ma embedded valua at 31 December 2005 2,566 503 3,069 395 3,464
Contnb ution fram new bustness 108 96 204 - 204
Profit from existing business
- Expected return 173 34 207 207
- Expenience variances 9 {2} 7 - 7
- Op erating assumption changes 1 (10) (9} 9}
- Expoected transter to net assets - - -
Development costs {26) {26) - {26)
Expected return on shareholders’ net assets 50 1 51 51
Other underdying items - 7% 75
Underlying EEV profit before tax 315 119 434 75 509
Non-recureng items 2 2 (19) 17
Investm ént return varances {179} N (186) 12 (174
Effect of economic assumption changes 187 i7) 180 1 181
Other non-underlying items - - - (101} {101}
EEV profit before tax 328 105 430 {32) 398
Tax {103) (18 {121 20 {101)
EEV profit after tax 222 87 309 {12) 297
Net movement recognised directly in the statement
of recognised income and expense - (10) (10)
Minonty nterest - - - 13 13
Drvidends on ordinary shares {150} - {150) {14) {164)
Share based payments - - 25 25
Earm-out payments - . 87 87
Adjustment to the value of the histed Asset
Management business to market value - - - 122 122
Total movement in EEV 72 87 159 37 196
Pro forma embedded value at 31 December 2006 2,638 590 3,228 432 3,660

Pro forma EEV comprises the EEV of the enure Group, incorporating the Group s share of F&C at market value of £531m {2005 £441m)

Other' consists predorninantly of Asset Management business and corporate items
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7 Reconciliation of net worth and value of in-force business for Life & Pensions

Total
Value of UK Life &
Free Required Total net inforce Pensions
surplus capital worth business EEV
£m £rm £m fm fm
Shareholders’ capital and reserves
At 1 January 2006 499 551 1,050 2,019 3.069
Contnbution from new business {299} 65 {234} et 154
Profit from existing business
Expected return 37 (34) 3 145 148
Expernence variances, operating assumption
changes and developmen? costs 138 689 207 {223) {16)
Expected profit - transter to net werth 240 - 240 {240) .
Expected return on shareholders net assets 33 - 33 33
Investment return vanances and eccnomic
assumption changes 47 1 48 {58) {10}
Life & Pensions EEV profit after tax 196 101 297 12 309
Divedend (150} - (150) {150)
Shareholders’ capitai and reserves
At 31 December 2006 545 652 1,197 2,031 3.228

All rems in the table above are shown net of tax
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8 Value of in-force Life & Pensions business on an EEV basis

At 21 December 2006 2006 2005
£m fm

Value of in-force allowing for market nsk (excluding

tme value ot options and guarantees) 2,215 2215
Time value cost of options and guarantees

(inciuding the impact of non-market nsks} (50) {75)
Cost of regulatory solvency caprital plus excess eccnomic

caprtal requirements 49) (34)
Prowvision for operational rnsks {85} 8N
Value of in-force Life & Pensions business 2,031 2019

9 Equity attributable to equity hoiders of the parent

Ordinary shareholders’ equity an an EEV basis reconciles to equity atthbutabie to eguity holders of the parent on an IFRS basis as follows

2006 2005
£m Em
Ordinary shareholders’ equity on an EEV basis 3,520 J 446
Less items only included on an EEV basis
Value of in-forge Life & Pensions business (2,031 {2,019}
Provision for future corporate costs 47 a7
Adjustment of long-term debt to market value 105 134
Add tems only included en an IFRS basis
Goodwill (net of provision for future consideration) 283 198
Other intangible assets €8 76
Acquired PVIF 257 282
STICS treated as equity 810 810
Deferred acquisition costs 1.100 994
Deferred front end fees {45) {85)
IFRS reserving and other IFRS adjustments (497) (385)
Equrty attributable to aqurty holders of the parent on an IFRS basis 3,617 3,498
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10. EEV assumptions

10. 1 Principal economic assumptions - deterministic

Econom:c assumptions are actively reviewed and are based on the market yields on risk-free assets at the valuation date

2006 2005

UK and International (excluding Lombard) % %
Risk-free rate (1) 46 41
Inve stment returns before tax

Fixed interest 3959 3847

Equities 76 71

Properties 66 61
Future expense inflation

UK business 43 39

International business 43 315
UK corporation tax rate 300 300
Risk discount rate {average}

In-force (UK business) 77 74

in-force {Internaticnal businesst 68 63
Risk discount rate

New busmess (UK business) 72 65

MNew business {international business) 65 60

() For UK and FPI business the nsk-free rate 1s set with reference to the gilt yield curve at the valuation date For annurty and with-profits
business, a term-dependent rate allowing for the shape of the yield curve 15 used as this can significantly smpact value For ather
¢

business, a rate based on the annualised 15-vear gift yield s used

2006 2005
Lomberd % %
Risk-free rate 41 36
lnvestment returns befare tax 55 49
Future expense inflation 40 35
Tax rate 252 258
Risk discount rate (averagel - in-force 70 63
Risk discount rate (average) — new business 70 63

The key exchange rates used i respect of Lombard business were a closing exchange rate of 1 Euro = £0 674 (2005 1 Eurg = £0 687) and

an average exchange rate over the year of 1 Euro = £0 678

Margmins are added to the nisk-free rates to obtain investment return assumplions for equity and property For corporate fixed interest
securibes the investment return assurnptions are denved from an AA-bond yield spread himited to the actual return on the underlying assets
As we have tollowed a market-consisient approach these mvestment return assumptions atiect only the dernved nsk discount rates and not

the embedded value result
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10. EEV assumptions conunued

Mainte nance expenses for UK and Internatianal business (excluding Lombard) are assumed to increase n the future at a rate of 1% per
annum N excess of the assumed long-term rate of retall price inflation This 15 derived from the difference between the nigk-free rate of return
and the average of the FTSE Actuanes over five-year index-inked git yield at 5% and 0% inflation

For Lormbard the risk-free rate 1s the average of the 10-15 year and the over 15 year yields using the EuroMTS indices The invesiment return
assumption 1s the weighted average (based on an assumed asset mix} of returns on fixed interest secunties equities and cash The Lombard
investrment return assumption 1s shown gross of tax but net of fund managemerit charges

Average dernved nsk discounti rates are shown beiow for the embedded value and the contnbution from new business The average derived
nsk discount rate tor in-force has increased over 2008 due mainly o a higher nisk-free rate and a hugher nsk margin on annuities There 15 a
reducton in the element of the nsk discount rate refating to options on with-profits business which reflects the reductron in burnthrough cost
A more detaled sphs of the derved risk discount rates 1s given n the followng 1able

Derived risk discount rates by product type

At 31 December 2006 International
UK wrth-profits UK annurty Other UK Average UK Sterling Euro
Embedded value % % % % % %
Risk-free rate 46 46 46 46 46 41
Market risks inon-options) 27 76 16 22 14 21
Options — market rsks 26 - - 03 - -
Options — non-market rsks 18 - - 02 - -
Qther nan-market risks 04 04 04 04 08 1] ]
Risk discount rate 121 126 66 77 68 70

At 31 December 2005 International
UK with-profits UK annuity Other UK Average UK Sterling Eure
Embedded value % % % Yo % %
Risk-free rate 41 41 41 A1 41 36
Market nisks inon-options) 30 60 17 21 13 18
Opuons — market nsks AQ - - 03 - -
Options = non-market nsks 33 - - 02 - -
Other non-market nisks 04 04 04 ca 08 08
Risk discount rate 148 105 62 71 62 63
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10. EEV assumptions continued

At 31 Decamber 2006 International

UK Sterling Euro
Contnbution from new business Y% % Y%
Risk-free rate 46 46 41
Market r1sks 22 11 21
Non-market rnsks 04 0B 08
Risk discount rate 72 65 70
At 31 December 2005 International

UK Sterling Euro
Contribution from new business % % %
Risk-free rate 41 41 38
Market rnsks 20 11 19
Non-market risks 04 08 o8
Risk discount rate 65 60 63

With-profits and annuity business are subject to more investment nsk than the remawung business, and so the apprapnate nisk discount rates
are higher

10 2 Principal economic assumptions — stochastic

The cost of options and guarantees 1s determmed using The Smith Plus Medel economic scenarnio generztor The model 15 calibrated to
market conditions at the valuation date and correlations between the asset classes are derived from histonc data, consistent with the model
used for the Realstic Balance Sheet

Risk-free rates are calbrated to the gilt yield curve Egquity volatility 1s calibrated to rephicate the implhed voletty of FTSE 100 put options held
by the FPLP With-Profizs Fund Property haldings are modelled as a mix of equity and gilt assets, calibrated to dernve a level of running yield
and volatihty as observed In histonical data

At 31 Decoamber 2006
Term {years)

Semple implied volatilities by asset class 5 18 25 35
16-year nsk-free zero coupon bonds 7 1% 47% 46% 51%
15-year corporate bonds 94% B 6% 83% 8 8%
Equity 17 1% 18 2% 19 6% 20 8%
Property 15 1% 16 4% 17 9% 190%

At 31 December 2005
Term lyears)

Sample impled volatiities by asset class 5 15 25 35
15year nsk-free zero coupen bonds 87% 50% 4 4% 50%
15-year corporate bonds 98% 79% 77% 76%
Equity 177% 19 8% 21 8% 21 7%
Property 149% 17 2% 19 2% 19 3%

The volatility represents the vanation of return around the average for the paricular asset class

Bonus rates are set at levels which fully utiise the assets supporting the in-force business over its lifetme and are consistent with the
econamic assumptions and the Group s bonus policy
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10 EEV assumptions continued

10 3 Other assumptions

Other assumpticns are regularly reviewed having regard to past current and expected future expernence, and any other relevant data
These are set s0 as 10 be best estimate assumptions

The assumed rates of mortality, mortidity lapse surrender conversion to paid-up and early retirement, which are reviewed annuatly have
been denved from analyses of the Group’s recent operating expenence and industry studies In particular improvements in annuitant

monality have been assumed to follow the medium cohort for males and 75% of this for females

Allewance for commussion 1s based on the Group's recent expenence

11. Life & Pensions EEV sensitivity analysis

The table below shows the sensitivity of the embedded vaiue and the contribution frem new business ta changes in assumptions for 2006
For each sensmivity other future experience assurmptions remain unchanged, except where changes in ecenomic conditions directly affect them

The assumptions underlying the statutory reserving calculations remain unchanged in all sensitivities
Change in Change in

embedded new business
value contribution

Notes £m £m
1% increase in risk discount rates 0] (168} 37
1% ncrease in equity and property expected returns in} - -
1% reduction in nsk-free rates with correspending change In fixed-interest asset values 112 7
10% reduction in market values of equity and property assets {for embedded value) (i} (138} -
£100m reduction in capital requirements {for embedded value} fiv) 8 -
50% mcrease in caphtal requirements {for new business contnbution) - {3t
10% reduction In expenses 48 9
10% reduction in lapses 59 18
5% reduction in annuitant mortality 47) {2
5% reduction in mortality and morbidity {excfuding annurties) 27 5

) Although not directly relevant under 2 market-consistent valuaton where the nsk discount rate 1s a denved disclosure only this shows the
impact of a change 10 the average derved nsk discount rate, to enable adjustments to be made to reflect differing views of nsk

{n) As a market-consistent approach Is used, equity and property expected retumns only affect the denved risk discount rates and not the
embedded value or contribution to profits from new business

() The movement in embedded value compnses a £45m decrease in shareholders invested net assets and a £93m reduction In the value
ot intorce Lite & Pensions business

iv) Reguired capital 1s set at the greater of regulatory capital and econormic capital in aggregate the economic capital requirements are higher
than the regulatory requirermnent by approximately £200m
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Parent company balance sheet
At 31 December 2006

2006 2005
Notes fm fm
Fixad assets investments
Investments 1n Group undertakings 2 4,746 4 554
Other financial assets 88 283
’ 4834 4,835
Current assets
Amounts owed by Group undertakings 2 2
Other debtors 23 19
Total debtors 25 21
Cash at bank 180 27
205 48
Creditors amounts falling due within one year
Convertible bonds 3 {283} -
Loan notes 3 {18) -
Amounts owed te Group undertakings (17 (12)
{318) (12)
Net current {liabilrties}/assets (113) 36
Total assets less current habilihies 4,721 4,871
Creditors amounts falling due after more than one year
Ceonvertibie bonds 3 - (276)
Provisions 4 (84 {155}
Total creditors falling due after more than one year (84) (431}
Total assets less liabilties 4,637 4 440
Capital and reserves
Called-up share caprtal 5 214 214
Share premiym 5 2,051 2 038
Other equity 6 810 810
Revaluation reserve 7 1.266 1,070
Retained earnings 7 296 208
Equrty sharehoiders’ funds 4,637 4 440

The financial staterments were authonsed for issue by the Board ¢f directors on 19 March 2007

ftiie Mo TR

Sir Adrian Montague Philip Moore Jim Smart
Chairman Group Chief Executive Group Finance Director
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Notes to the parent company accounts

1 Accounting policies

1 1 Basis of preparation

friends Provident ple {the Company) i1s a imited lizbility company,
incorporated in the UK whose shares are publicly traded

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
apphcable accounting standards and under the histoncal cost
conventron as modified by the revaluation of investments as set out
nnote 123

The Cormipany has continved to present indmadual financial
statements prepared on a UK Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice basis as permitted by section 226(A) and Schedule 4 to the
Companies Act 1985 of adopting the exemption of gmitting the
profit and loss account as permitted by section 230 of that Act

All accounting policies have been reviewed for appropriateness in
accordance with Financial Reporung Standards

In accordance with FRS 1 the Company 15 exempt from the
reguirernent to prepare a cash flow statement on the grounds that
this 18 provided in s consoldated financial statements

1 2 Significant accounting palicies

12 1 Investment return

Investment retumn excludes revaluation of group investments, and
includes dividends interest, rents, gains and losses on the realisation
of assets and unrealised gains and losses Such income includes any
withholding tax but excludes other 1ax credits, such as atinbutable
tax credits Income from fixed-nterest securities together with
nterest, rents, and asscciated expenses are accounted for in the
penod in which they accrue Dnedends are included in the profit and
loss account when the secunties are histed as ex-dwvidend Realised
gains or losses on investments are calculated as the difference
between the net sale proceeds and onginal cost Unrealised gans
and losses on mnvestments represent the difference between the
valuation of investments at the batance sheet date and thew onginal
cost or If they have been previously revalued the valuation at the
last balance sheet date The movement (n uncealised gans and
losses recognised In the peniod also includes the reversal of
unrealsed gans and losses recogrused n earlier accounting penads
in respect of disposals in the current penod

1 2.2 Taxation

Jaxation 1s based on prohits and incorne for the penod as determined
in accordance with the refevant tax legistation the movement m
deferred tax and adjustments to prior pernicds’ 1ax
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1 2.3 Valuation of investments

Investments are shown in the balance sheet as follows

{1} Unlisted investments are valued by the directars, having regard
to their likely realisable value

) Listed and other quoted investments, including those in
participating interests, are carried at bid value at the balance
sheet date

i} Shares in Group undertakings are stated at current value
Revaluation gains and temporary diminutions in value are
recognised as a transfer to the revaluation reserve
Revaluation losses, and ther reversal are recogrused in the
profit and less account

12 4 Share based payments

The Company operates share based payment schermes for employees
of the Group, depending on eligibiity The farr value of these equity-
settled share based payments 158 measured at the grant date, and the
cost 1s borne by the subsidiary companies The farr value 1s added to
the cost of the Company s investments in its subsidiary undertakings
and a corresponding credit 1s made 1o reserves

1 2 5 Interest-bearing loans and borrowings

Barrowings are recogrused initially at cost being the farr value of the
consideration receved, net of transaction costs incurred and
subsequently stated at amortised cost Any difference between the
proceeds, net of transaction costs and the redemption value 1s
recognised in the profit and loss account over the period of the
horrowings using the effective interest method

Convertible notes that can be converted to share capital at the
option of the helder where the number of shares issued does not
vary with changes in thew farr value, are accounted for as compound
financial instruments Compound financial instrurnents are spht and
recorded respectively within each of iis two components, equity and
habity Transaction costs that relate to the issue of a compound
financral Instrument are also allocated to the equity and liabihity
components in proportion to the allocation of proceeds The equity
components of the convertible notes are calculated as the excess of
the 1ssue proceeds over the present value of the future interest and
principal payments, discounted at the market rate of interest
applcable to similar li2bilties that do not have a conversion option
The equity component 1$ recognised and included in shareholders’
equity net of tax effects The far value of the habrlity component i1s
recorded on an amortised cost basis untl extinguished on
conversien of matunty of the bonds

The interest expense recognised 1n the prefit and loss account under
interest payable 15 calculated using the effectve interest rate method
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Notes to the parent company accounts conunved

1 Accounting policies continued

1 2.6 Deferred taxation

Prowvision 1s made for deferred taxation habdities using the hability method on all matenial 4ming differences including revaluation gamns and
losses on investments recognised In the profit and loss account, as the investments are revalued Deferred taxation 15 calculated at the rates
at which 1t 1S expected that the 1a% will anse, and discounted 1o 1ake into account the likety timing of payments and pattern of expected
realisation of investments Deferred taxation 1s recogrised in the profit and loss account for the period, except to the extent that it 1s
anributable to 3 gam or loss that s recogmsed directly n the statement of total recognised gains and losses

1 2.7 Foreign currencies

Assets and liabilities held in foreign currencies at the balance sheet date are expressed i sterling at rates ruling on that date Income and
expenditure denominated in foreign currencies are transfated at rates ruling at the date on which the transaction cceurs All resuiting
exchange gains and losses are included within the part of the profit and loss agcount in which the underlying transaction 1s reported

2. Investments in Group undertakings

Subsidiary Loans to Group Total
undertakings undertakings investments
£m £m £m
Current value
At 1 Januvary 2005 4,249 305 4,554
Additions 8 - 8
Adjustment 1o consideration (12} - (12
Revaluations 196 - 196
At 31 Dacember 2008 4,441 305 4,746
Cest
At 1 January 2006 3,180 305 3,485
Additrons 8 - 8
Adstment to cansideration (124 - {12)
At 31 December 2006 3,176 305 3,481

Additions include £4m mvestment in F&C and £4m in share based payment transactions with Friends Provident Management Services
Limited The adjustment to consideration 1s a £12m reduction n the cost o Lombard in respect of future consideration {see note 4)

The pnncipal subsidiary undertakings of the Company as at 31 December 20086 are set out in note 19 to the Group s consolidated financial
statements A hist of all subsidiary undertakings is filed at UK Companies House with the Company s Annual Return
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Notes to the parent company accounts connved

3 Convertible bonds and loan notes
The converible bonds are camed at £283m (2005 £276m)
Detalls of the convertible bonds are set out In note 32 1o the Group's consolidated financial statements

The loan notes were 1ssued as part consideration for Lombard (see note 41{a) to the Group s consohdated financial staterments)

4 Provisions

Future consideration Share

far Lombard  entitlements Total

£m £m £m

At 1 January 2005 - 10 10
Acquisihon for the year 146 . 148
Utlised i the year - ) {n
At 31 December 2005 146 9 155
Adjustment to consideration {12) - (12)
Utlrsed 0 the year {59} - (59)
At 31 December 2006 75 9 84

Future consideration for Lombard includes future earn-out payments (see note 41(a) to the Group’s consoldated financial statements)
The share entitlement provision represents expected future claims on share entitlements not claimed following demutualisation

Total creditars amounts to £402m (2005 £443m)

5. Share capital and share premium

Cetalls of the Company's share capital and share premiurn are set out In note 37 to the Group's consolidated financial staternents

6 Other equity
2003 STICS 2005 STICS Tatal
fm Em £m
At 1 January 2006 299 511 810
Interest due on STICS 21 31 52
Interest paid on STICS 21) {31) 52)
At 31 December 2006 299 511 810

Orther equity consists of Step-up Tier one Insurance Capital Secunties (STICS) of £810m {2005 £810m} that were 1ssued in 2003 and 2005
Details ot the Company’s STICS are set cutin note 39 to the Group s consolidated financial statements
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Notes to the parent company accounts continved

7 Reserves
Revaluation Retamned
reserve earnings
£m £m
At 1 January 2006 107C 308
Profit for the financwl year - 240
Dwvidend - {164)
Share based payments - 4
Revaluation of investments 104 -
Transter Q2 {92)
At 21 Decembsr 2006 1.266 296

In accordance with the Companies Act 1985 the directors have considered the valuation of all fixed assets and are satisfied that the
aggregate value of all assets i1s not less than the book value as stated in the Company s balance sheet on page 186 Therefore 1n accardance
with the Comipanies Act 1985 section 275 certain losses on fixed assets have been treated as unrealised losses In order to reflect this, a
transfer of £92m has been made to the revaluation reserve from the profit and loss account !n 2005 a transfer of £203m was made to the
profit and loss accoumt Transfers to the revaluation reserve include an £B0m increase in the current value of F&C Asset Management pic

includted within retained earmngs are thstnbutable reserves of £234m 2005 £249m)

8 Directors and employees

The Company does not directly emnploy any staff The directors and employees who provide services to the Company are employed by and
recerve therr remunetation from Friends Prowident Managernemt Services Limited {FPMS), a Group undertaking Inciuded within the
managerment recharges from FPMS for 2006 15 an allowance for directors’ and employees’ emoluments in respect of their services to

the Company Full details of directors ernolurnents are comtamed in the Remunerstion Report of the Board set out on page 63 1o the Group's
consolidated financial statements

9 Auditor’s remuneration

Auditor s remunecation, exclusive of VAT for audit services for the year was £305,000 (2005 £262 000}

10 Related party transactions

The Company 1s exempt from the reguirements of FRS 8 concerning the disclosure of transactions with other companies that qualify as related
partres within the Group, as the Company s financial statements are presented together with the Group's consolidated financial statements
Details of key management transactons are set out In note 44 to the Group's consolidated financial statements

11, Guarantees

The Campany has given a guarantee to 1ts subsidiary undertaking Friends Provident Management Services Limuted for at least 12 months
from the date of approval of its financial statements
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FINANICIAL STATEMENTS
IFAS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

EEV SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

Abbreviations and definitions

Abbreviations

ABI Association of Bntish Insurers HNWI High Net Worth Individual

ABS Annual Bonus Scheme 1AS International Accounting Standard

AGM Annual General Meeting IFA Independent Financial Adwviser

ALM Asset Liability Management IFRS Internzticnal Financial Reporting Standard
DPF Discretionary Participation Features IRR Internal Rate of Return

EEV turopean Embedded Value LDI Liabihity Driven Investment

EPS Earnings Per Share LIBOR London Interpank Offered Rate

ESOS Executive Share Option Scheme Lmip Long Term Incentive Plan

F&C F&C Asset Management plc LTRP Long Term Remuneration Plan

FFA Fund for Future Appropriations OLAB QOverseas Life Assurance Business

FPI Friends Provident International ORC Operaticnal Risk Committes

FPLA Frnends Prowident Life Assurance Limited PPFM Principles and Practices ot Financial Management
FPLP Friends Provident Life and Pensions Limited RoEV Return on Embedded value

FPMS Friends Provident Management Services Lirmited PVIF Fresent Value of In-Force

FPP Friends Provident Pensicns Limited PVNBP Present Value of New Business Prerniums
FPPS Friends Provident Pension Scheme RBS Realistic Balance Sheet

FRC Firancial Risk Committee RCM Risk Capital Margin

FRS Financial Reporting Standard RP1 Retail Prices Index

FSA Financial Services Authority STICS Step-up Tier one Insurance Capital Securities
GAAP Generally Accepted Accounting Practice TSR Total Shareholder Return

HMRC HM Revenue and Customs

Definitions

EEV underlying profit 1s based on expected nvestment return
and excludes (1} amortisation and impairment of Asset
Managemens acquired intangible assets (i) effect of economrc
assumption changes (i) non-recurring 1tems, and 1s stated after
deducting interest payable on STICS

IFRS underlying profit 1s based on longer-term investment return
and excludes {} pclicyholder tax (n) returns attnbutable 1o minorty
interests in pohcyhalder funds (1) non-recurnng tems (iv)
amortisation and impairment of acquired intangible assets and
present value of acquired in-force business, and 15 stated after
deducting interest payable on STICS

Present Value of New Business Premiums (PVYNBP) represents
new single premiums plus the expected present value of new
business regular premiums
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Internal Rate of Return {{RR} 1s equivalent 1o the discount rate at
which the present value of the after tax cash flows expected to be
earned over the lifetime of the business wrtten s egqual to the
capital invested to suppert the wnting of the business Ali
assurnpucns and expenses in the calculaton of \RR are consistent
with those used for calculating the contrbution from new business

Payback Period is the time at which the value of the expected
cash flows, after tax, 15 sufficient to have recouped the capital
invested 10 support the writing of the business The cash flows are
discounted at the appropriate nsk-discount rate, and calculated on
the same assumptions and expense basis as those used for the
coniribution from new business

Margins are defined as the pre-tax contribution from new business
generated by each product type divided by the new business
volume for that product Contribution is calculated using economic
assumptions at the beginning of the penod, and 1s quoted after the
cost of required capital, share based payments and including an
appormionment of fixed acquisition expenses across preducts



PARENT COMPANY ACCOUNTS ABBREVIATIONS AND DEFINITIONS

Shareholder Information

Registrar The Registrar offers the following share

Lioyds TSB Registrars dealing services

The Causeway By post

Worthing If dealing by post you will need to complete a ferm and
BN93 6DA send it to the Registrar rather than just instruct them 1n
Telephone writing of your request The form s avallable on our
08706 094534 (UK) website www friendsprovident com/investor or can be

requested from the postal sharedealing helphne on
08706 060302

By telephone
Call Shareview Dealing, a telephone dealing service
provided by the Registrar, on 08453 002946

(Monday to Friday 8 00am to 6 00pm)

+44 121 415 7109 (overseas)
iMonday to Friday 8 30am to 5 30pm}

Website www shareview co uk

Shareholder enquiries

You should contact the Registrar «f you
* have any questions regarding your shareholding Ee;::dhave your Shareholder Account Number
s have any gquestions regarding your dividend
payments By internet
« wish to participate in the dividend re-investment plan Shareview Dealing 1s also available cnine at
www fnendsprovident comsshareholderservices
» have lost your Share Account Statement or share
certficate Please have your Shareholder Account Number
1 n
» have changed your name or address 0 hand
¢ wish to transfer your shares into somecne else’s name Latest share price information
or Jjoint names www friendsprovident com/shareprice

Dividend Re-investment Plan (DRIP)

From the 2006 final dividend payment, through DRIP you can use your dividends to buy shares in Friends Provident plc In order

to participate in DRIP in tme for the 2006 final dividend payment Lloyds TSB Registrars must receive your Instruction no later

than 25 Apnl 2007 For future dividends your instruction must be received 15 working days before the relevant dividend payment
date Before making a decision to join DRIP, you should first read the terms and conditions that were sent to shareholders with

the interm dividend mailing in Novernber 2006 To join, simply cali Lloyds TSB Registrars on the number provided ahove The

terms and conditions are also availlable to download and view at www friendsprovident com/dividends .

important dates

Shares go ex dividend 11 Apnl 2007
Record date 13 April 2007
Annual General Megting 24 May 2007
Payment date of 2006 final dvidend 29 May 2007

Cautionary statement

Certain statements contained in this document constitute ‘forward-looking statements’

Such forward-looking statements involve fisks uncertainties and other factors, which may cause the actual results, performance
or achuevements of Friends Provident plc, its subsidianes and subsidiary undertakings, from time to time  or mdustry results to
be materially different from any future results performance or achievernents expressed or implied by such forward-looking
statements Such nsks uncertainties and cother factors include, among others, adverse changes to laws or regulations, risks in
respect of taxation unforeseen Labilives from product reviews asset shortfalls against product habihties, changes in the general
ecenomic environment, levels and trends m mortahity and morbidity, restnctions on access to product distribution channels,
increased competuon and the ability to attract end retain personnel These ferward-locking statements are made only as at the
date of this document and, save where reguired In order 10 comply with the Listing Rules there i1s no obligation on Friends
Providen: plc 10 update such forward-looking statements
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